






 
 
 

                                                                         MINUTES 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 

201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ September 3, 2015 at 7:00 PM  
 

  
  
 
 

1. Open meeting, Invocation, Pledges of Allegiance 
Mayor Fielder opened the meeting at 7:00 pm and welcomed those in attendance 
Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette delivered the invocation 
 

2. Roll Call 
All present 
 

3. Staff Comments: Chief Greg Minton – Leander LEO Photo Contest 
Chief Minton announced the winners of the Leander LEO Summer Adventure photo contest  
for kids. 
The winners were: Tess Ashford, Jacob Poulton, Mason Vorwerk, Grayson Pikkaart and  
 Isabella Stone.   

  4.   Citizen Comments:  Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker  
             Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins 
             No speakers 
 
       5.  Proclamation recognizing September 2015 as “Childhood Cancer Awareness Month” 
            Sponsored by Mayor Fielder 
            Council Member Shepherd read the Proclamation  

 
 
 

  6.  Approval of the minutes: August 20, 2015 
 

       7.  Approval to Extend the Library Management & Operations Agreement for FY 2015-16 

  8.  Special Permit Approval for the Bluegrass Festival 
 
  9.  Second Reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case #15-Z-017: amending Ordinance #05-018, the 
       Composite Zoning Ordinance for a parcel of land located at 6301 N. Bagdad Road for 11.0959 acres, 
       more or less from SFR-1-B, Single Family Rural to SFU-2-B, Single Family Urban, Leander,  
       Williamson County, Texas 
 
 
 
 
 

    Mayor   – Christopher Fielder                  Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese 
    Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette (Mayor Pro Tem)                  Place 5 – Jeff Seiler 
    Place 2 – Michelle Stephenson                                 Place 6 – Troy Hill  
    Place 3 – Shanan Shepherd    City Manager – Kent Cagle 
                                                                              

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 

 



 
 
 
10.  Variance to Article 8.04, Noise, of the Leander Code of Ordinances for Alpha Paving Industries, LLC 
       for pavement repairs of the Crystal Falls Parkway and Bagdad Road Intersection  
 
       Motion made by Council Member Shepherd to approve the consent agenda.  Second by Mayor  
       Pro Tem Navarrette.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
   

   
 
 

11.  Public Hearing on Subdivision Case #15-CP-001:  Consider the Deerbrooke Concept Plan for 168.06 
       acres, more or less, generally located to the northeast of the intersection of CR 279 and Collaborative 
       Way, to the north of the Savanna Ranch Subdivision, Leander, Williamson County, Texas  
       Applicant: Southwest Land Development Services (David Singleton) on behalf of Deerbrooke  
       Austin, LLC   
      Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
      David Singleton, applicant, was available for questions 
 
       Action on Subdivision Case #15-CP-001: the Deerbrooke Concept Plan for 168.06 acres, more or  
       less, generally located to the northeast of the intersection of CR 279 and Collaborative Way, to the 
       north of the Savanna Ranch Subdivision, Leander, Williamson County, Texas  
  
       Motion made by Council Member Abruzzese to approve.  Second by Council Member Hill. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
12.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #15-Z-019:  Consider a zoning change for a portion of a parcel of  
       land located at 804 Bagdad Road for 4.8 acres, more or less, from GC-3-C, General Commercial to  
       MF-2-A, Multi Family, Leander, Williamson County, Texas  
       Applicant: Josh Becker on behalf of E & L Properties, LTD 
       The applicant has postponed this request 
 
       Mayor Fielder announced that this item has been postponed by the applicant. 
 
13.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #15-Z-020:  Consider a zoning change for a parcel of land located to 
       the southeast of the intersection of San Gabriel Parkway and Bagdad Road/CR 279, for 1.508 acres,  
       more or less, from LC-2-B, Local Commercial to LC-3-B, Local Commercial, Leander, Williamson  
       County, Texas  
       Applicant: Danny Martin on behalf of JSL Commercial Investments, LLC 
 
        Mayor Fielder announced that this item has been postponed by the applicant. 
 
       Action on Zoning Case #15-Z-020: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance  
       for a parcel of land located to the southeast of the intersection of San Gabriel Parkway and Bagdad  
       Road/CR 279 from LC-2-B, Local Commercial to LC-3-B, Local Commercial, Leander, Williamson  
       County, Texas  
 
14.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #15-Z-021:  Consider a zoning change for a parcel of land located at  
       508 Municipal Drive for 1.235 acres, more or less, from TF-2-B, Two-Family to LO-2-B, Local Office,   
       Leander, Williamson County, Texas  
       Applicant: Del Ray and Linda Sudderth 
       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
        Del Ray Sudderth, applicant, was available for questions 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 

 



 
 
 
       Action on Zoning Case #15-Z-021: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance  
       for a parcel of land located at 508 Municipal Drive for 1.235 acres, more or less, from TF-2-B, Two- 
       Family to LO-2-B, Local Office, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Stephenson to approve zoning for LO-2-A.  Second by Mayor  
       Pro Tem Navarrette.  Motion passes, all voting “aye”. 
 

 
 

      
          
     15.  Consider Naming Library Conference Room C 
            Kent Cagle, City Manager explained 

      Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve naming Conference Room “C” at the  
       Library the “Betty Brown Community Room”.  Second by Council Member Stephenson. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
     16.  a.  Consider a Development, ETJ Release, and Consent Agreement for the Caughfield Tract                   

     b. Consider an Ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas giving consent to the creation of a 
            Municipal Utility District on the Caughfield Tract 
            Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
             Motion made by Council Member Seiler to approve items a & b with edits.  Second by 
             Council Member Shepherd. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
             
  
17.  Consider an Agreement between the City of Leander and the City of Liberty Hill Regarding the  
       Extraterritorial Jurisdiction Release of the Caughfield Tract 

            Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 

      Motion made by Council Member Stephenson to approve.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
     18.  Consider Amended and Restated Agreement regarding Consent to Creation of Leander Municipal  
            Utility Districts No. 1, 2 and 3 and Development of the Bar W. Ranch 

        Mayor Fielder announced that this item has been pulled from the agenda. 
 
     19.  Receive Effective & Rollback Tax Rate Calculations for FY 2015-16 
            Robert Powers, Finance Director explained 
 
            No action taken 
 
     20.  Consider a Proposal to Adopt a Tax Rate for FY 2015-16 
            Robert Powers, Finance Director explained 
 
            Mayor Fielder moved to place the proposed tax rate for FY 2015-16 of 63.292 cents per $100 valuation  
            on the agenda of a future meeting as an action item.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette.  
            Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 

 



 
    
 
     21.  Schedule Two Public Hearings on a Proposal to Adopt a Tax Rate for FY 2015-16 
            Robert Powers, Finance Director explained 
 
            Mayor Fielder moved to schedule two public hearings on September 14, 2015 (special called City  
           Council meeting beginning at 6:00 p.m.) and September 17, 2015 (regular City Council meeting  
           beginning at 7:00 p.m.) to consider a proposal to adopt a tax rate of 63.292 cents per $100 valuation. 
           Second by Council Member Seiler.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
     22.  Water Supply Update 
             Pat Womack, Public Works Director gave an update 
             Council asked staff to bring this item back to the second meeting in October 
 
     23.  Consider Bond Task Force Committee: 
                   a. Qualifications and appointments                    
                   b. Consider Election Date  
                    
            The following motion was made to include both items a & b: 
 
             Mayor Fielder moved to form a Bond Task Force Committee to consider the election date of May 
             2016 to include 15 people; one to be the president of the Chamber of Commerce, one member 
             from the City’s ETJ, three council members with the recommendation that Council Members 
             Abruzzese, Seiler and Shepherd serve and 10 residents who must reside in the City of Leander,  
             be registered voters; with all applications going through the vetting committee and be brought back  
             to council at the first meeting in October.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette.  Motion passes,  
             all voting “aye” 
 
     24.  Council Members Closing Statements       
            Council Members gave their closing statements. 
 
     25.  Adjournment 
            With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:10 pm. 
 
 
 
 
    Attest: 
 
 
 
          __________________________________                     __________________________________ 
          Christopher Fielder, Mayor           Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 8 

 

 

Executive Summary 

September 17, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Receive Quarterly Investment Report for the period ending   
6/30/2015. 
 
Background:  State law requires that the governing body be presented with a quarterly 
report outlining the City’s investments.  The period covered in this report is April through 
June 2015.  The average interest rates in TexPool for the quarter ending June, rose 
slightly from 0.0462% to 0.0551%.  TexSTAR ended slightly better at 0.0688%.  As of 
6/30/15, our earnings credit rate at our depository bank (Bank of America) remained at 
0.25%.  Beginning 7/1/15, our new bank depository will move to Frost Bank. LISD GO 
Bonds purchased in February 2014 (Par $4,655,000 with 2% coupon / 0.18% yield) will 
mature on 8/15/15.  In March 2015, we purchased Federal Home Loan Bank security (Par 
$4,000,000 at 0.40% with maturity at 3/30/2016, but it was called on 6/30/2015.  At 
6/30/15, the Fed funds target rate remained within the zero to 0.25% range, and quarterly 
averages for the 3-month T-bill dropped to 0.01% from 0.2% in the previous quarter.  
The 6-month T-bill average stayed at 0.09%. 
 
The Weighted Average Maturity (WAM) at 6/30/15 was 80.25 days, up from 54.69 days 
at the end of March and the weighted average yield ticked up from 0.1136% to 0.1772%.  
Both increases were due to investing the Series 2015 CO’s ($28 million) into securities 
and money market accounts rather than the overnight investment pool (TexSTAR.)  
These investments are timed to coincide with the cash flow needs of the capital projects. 
  
Origination:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  n.a. 
 
Recommendation:  n.a. 
 
Attachments:   Quarterly Investment Report 
 
Prepared by:   Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 



Quarterly Investment Report 
City of Leander 
Period Ending 

6/30/1S 

Investment/ 

Source of Funds Account Name 

Invest 

Tvpe*« Fund 

Fund 

Type" 

G/L 

Acct# 

Settlement 

Date 

Coupon 

Rate 

Current 

Yield to Mty 

Maturity/ 

Call Date 

Paid Principal/ Market 

Value 

Interest 

Oct-Scn 

Cash In Bank 

Bank of America Operating IS Consolidated F l 99-00-1110 0.2500% S 9.868321.00 S 9.868321.00 $ 12.13558 

Chase Monev Market 17 GF Debt Service F4 80-00-1122 0.0300% S 582.142.25 $ 582.142.25 S 776.41 

Chase Monev Market 17 Utilitv F l 20-00-1122 0.0300% $ 3.441,884.08 s 3,441.884.08 s 256.82 

East West Bank Monev Market 17 Consolidated F l 99-00-1000 0.2000% $ 1.002.478.21 s 1.002,478.21 s 1.425.19 

East West Bank Monev Market 17 2015 CO's F2 54-00-1000 0.2000% s 7.003.054.69 $ 7.003.054.69 $ 3.054.69 

Texas Capital Bank Money Market 17 Consolidated F l 99-00-1000 03000% $ 245,514.97 $ 24531457 s 514.97 

Subtotal Cash in Bank s 22.143395.20 s 22.143395.20 $ 18.164.06 

U.S. Agencies & Instrumentalities & Municipal Bonds 

Leander ISD GO Ser 2014 52184CV6 12 Consolidated F l 99-00-1000 2/20/14 2.0000% 0.1810% 08/15/2015 $ 4.780.638.45 $ 4.664.496.20 $ 6319.16 

F H L M C / Bank of America 3134G5E76 12 Consolidated F l 99-00-1000 8/19/14 0.7000% 0.7000% 11/19/2014 $ s S 233332 

FHLB / Bank of America 3130A4JV5 12 Consolidated F l 99-00-1000 3/30/15 0.4000% 0.4000% 06/30/2015 S s S 4,000.00 

Leander ISD Rcf CABS S21841GD2 12 Consolidated F l 99-00-1000 6/25/15 0.0000% 0.7610% OS/15/2016 s 495.695.00 $ 495555.00 S 51.67 

Marvsville O H Wstwtr Svs Rev 57448RDR8 12 Capital Protects F2 54-00-1000 4/22/15 3.0000% 03010% 12/01/2015 s 254.09730 s 252.61730 $ 14438 

Duluth M N ISD GO Ref 264471KK8 12 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/16/15 2.0000% 03300% 02/01/2016 $ 531524.75 s 530.00830 s 360.69 

Spring T X ISD Rcf Ser A 850000X70 12 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/16/15 4.0000% 03010% 02/15/2016 401557.40 $ 398.25630 s 248.61 

Tompkins Countv NY GO 890091SA0 12 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/16/15 3.0000% 03100% 02/15/2016 S 664.48830 s 66033630 $ 423.27 

Miss State Dev Bank Rev Ends 60534TCU7 12 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/16/15 2.0000% 03600% 04/01/2016 s 558.646.00 s 554583.00 s 413.24 

SufTolk Countv NY GO 86476PPT9 12 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/30/15 1.2500% 03710%. 04/29/2016 $ 1.76333159 $ 1.758596.82 $ 1.09331 

Bentonville A R Sch Dist GO 083419ZR5 12 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/30/15 2.0000% 03510% 06/01/2016 $ 951.699.10 S 94759630 s 558-27 

HolbrookMARefGO 434722HK3 12 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/16/15 5.0000% 0.4700% 06/15/2016 S 842.008.00 s 834,432.00 $ 813.17 

Okla St Cap Impr Auth Rev Bn 6790S8AD6 12 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/16/15 2.0000% 03610% 07/15/2016 $ 341.629.65 s 340.40335 $ 253.41 

Canandaigua NY Sch Dist GO 137177SE2 12 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/28/15 3.0000% 03700% 07/15/2016 $ 314.705.10 $ 312303.00 s 200.98 

Lebanon IN Comm Sch Corp G 522508AY6 12 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/16/15 1.0000% 0.4510% 07/15/2016 $ 216.470.60 $ 216.16530 s 200.61 

FHLB 3130A3CE2 12 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/15/15 0.6250% 0.5150% 10/14/2016 $ 3305.740.00 s 3304.68630 s 3.75931 

Subtotal Agencies s 15.623.032.04 $ 15.472,036.67 s 21,173.62 

Certificates ofDeposit 

Unity National Bank/CDARS Operating 13 Consolidated F l 99-00-1000 12/26/14 0.4000% 12/24/2015 S 1.002.052.60 S 1.002.052.60 S 2.802.60 

Texas Capital Bank Operating 13 Consolidated F l 99-00-1000 10/20/13 10/20/2014 $ S S 51.10 

East West Bank Operating 13 Consolidated F l 99-00-1000 11/14/14 0.4500% 11/14/2015 $ 4315,17538 $ 4315.17538 $ 15,17538 

Subtotal Certificates ofDeposit $ 5317,228.18 S 5317.228.18 S 18.029.28 

Investment Pools 

TexPool General Fund I&S 14 Debt Service F6 80-00-1510 0.0551% $ 5.227,781.18 S 5J27.781.18 $ 1.15553 

TexPool Consolidated Operating 14 Consolidated F l 99-00-1520 0.0551% $ 8.757.14351 S 8.757.14351 S 2,727.19 

TexPool Utilitv Customer Deposit 14 Utilitv Fund F3 99-00-1521 0.0551% S 5535.82 S 5535.82 $ 2.21 

Quarterly Investment Report 13 09/090)15 



Quarterly Investment Report 

City of Leander 
Period Ending 

6/30/15 

Investment / Invest Fund G/L Settlement Coupon Current Maturity/ Paid Principal/ Market Interest 

Source orFunds Account Name Type** Fund Type* Acct# Date Rate Yield to Mty Call Date Current Balance Value Oct-Sep 

TexPool Utilitv I&S 14 UF Debt Service F6 85-00-1501 0.0551% S 151.800.48 S 151.800.48 S 50.40 

TexPool TIRZNo. 1 14 Capital Projects F l 79-00-1541 0.0551% s 780.04 s 780.04 s 1.64 

TexPool BCRUA Contract 14 Capital Projects F l 20-00-1500 0.0551% s 10.601.62 s 10,601.62 s 335 

Subtotal TexPool s 14,154.043.05 s 14,154,043.05 s 354052 

TexStar BCRUA Reserve 14 Consolidated F5 20-00-1525 0.0688% $ 498515.68 s 498515.68 $ 216.20 

TexStar 6M Series 2010 14 Capital Projects F2 53-00-1127 $ s s 82.10 

TexStar Capital Asset Fund 14 Capital Projects F2 14-00-1505 0.0688% s 5.19 s 5.19 s 
TexStar $24M Scries 2015 CO 14 Capita] Projects F2 54-00-1128 0.0688% $ 2,167,023.09 $ 2,167,023.09 $ 2,692.06 

Subtotal TexStar s 2.66554356 $ 2.66554356 $ 2590.36 

TexasDAILY Consolidated Operating 14 Consolidated F l 99-00-1522 | | 0.0900% | s 1.046544.27 s 1.046544.27 $ 597.62 

Subtotal Texas T E R M $ 1,046544J27 s 1.046544.27 $ 597.62 

Total All Funds 0.1772% s 61,150386.70 s 6059939133 s 64,895.86 

Quarterly Investment Report 23 09f09G015 



Quarterly Investment Report 

City of Leander 
Period Ending 

6/30/15 

Invest Fund G/L Settlement Coupon Current Maturity/ Paid Principal/ Market Interest 

T y p e « * Fund Type* Acct# Date Rate Yield to Mty Call Date Current Balance Value Oct-Sep 

*Fund Types: **Investment Types: 

Code Description: Code Description: % Authorized Current % 

F l Current Operating Funds 11 U.S. Treasuries (NotesJJills, Bonds) 100% 0% 

F 2 Bond Proceeds 12 U.S. Agencies & Instrumentalities & Muni Bonds 100% 26% 

F 3 Utility Deposit Proceeds 13 Certificates ofDeposit 100% 9% 

F 4 Debt Service Funds 14 Eligible Investment Pools 100% 29% 

F S Bond Reserve Funds 15 Demand Account 100% 16% 

F 6 I&S Reserve Funds 16 Investment Sweep 100% 0% 

F 7 Restricted 17 Money Market 20% 

As of 6/30/15 As of3/31/15 Change Total 100% 

11 0.00 0.00 0.00 

12 15,623,032.04 8,780.638.45 6,84239339 

13 5,517,228.18 5311.16538 6.062.80 

14 17,866531.28 37.461.169.79 (19394,23831) 

15 9,868321.00 11317,008-28 (1.64S.6873S) 

16 0.00 0.00 0.00 

17 12375,074.20 0.00 12,275.074.20 

Investment / 

Source of Funds Account Name 

Book Value: 

U.S. Treasuries (Notes-Bills, Bonds) 

U.S. Agencies & Instrumentalities & Muni Bonds 

Certificates ofDeposit 

Eligible Investment Pools 

Demand Account 

Investment Sweep 

Money Market 

WEIGHTED A V E R A G E MATURITY (days) 

WEIGHTED A V E R A G E YIELD 

Total Book Value 61,150,586.70 

80.25 

63,269.981.90 (2.119.395.20) 

25.56 

Market Value: As of 6/30/15 As or 3/31/15 Change 

U3. Treasuries (Notcs,BilIs, Bonds) 11 0.00 0.00 0.00 

U.S. Agencies & Instrumentalities & Muni Bonds 12 15,472,036.67 8,685,112.15 6,786524.52 

Certificates ofDeposit 13 5317,228.18 5311,16538 6,062.80 

Eligible Investment Pools 14 17,866.931.28 37,461,169.79 (1939433831) 

Demand Account 15 9,868321.00 11317,00838 (1.648,68738) 

Investment Sweep 16 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Money Market 17 12,275.074.20 0.00 12375,07430 

Certification: 

This is to certify that the Investment Report submitted herewith complies in all 
pecis wjth the Public Funds Inxestment Act Sec 2256 of the Government Code. 

Total Market Value 6059939133 | 63.174.455.60 | (2.17436437)1 

Investment Officer: 

Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 

Date 

Gain/(Loss) (15059537) (95,526.30) 

Quarterly Investment Report 33 09/09/2D15 



AGENDA ITEM # 9 

 
 

Executive Summary 

September 17, 2015 

 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Magnolia Creek Section 3  
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Magnolia Creek 
Section 3 have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record 
drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed 
in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files 
of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term 
Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on September 17, 2015, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through September 17, 2017.  
The Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Magnolia Creek Section 3. 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, ADA Inspection, Maintenance 
Bond, Affidavits of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 





























AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

September 17, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Magnolia Creek Section 2 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Magnolia Creek 
Section 2 have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record 
drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed 
in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files 
of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term 
Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on September 17, 2015, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through September 17, 2017.  
The Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Magnolia Creek Section 2. 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, ADA Inspection, Maintenance 
Bond, Affidavits of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 





























AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

September 17, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Willis Street Site 
Development – Offsite Utility Improvements (water and storm drain improvements) 
 
Background:  The water and storm drain improvements including utility trench backfill and 
compaction for the Willis Street Site Development have been installed, inspected, and found 
to be satisfactorily completed.  All documentation required for acceptance of the offsite 
utility improvements have been received, including record drawings, statement(s) of 
substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed in the State of Texas, 
copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files of the improvements 
and final plat(s), affidavit(s) of all bills paid, and a two-year term Maintenance Bond(s). The 
Maintenance Bond(s) will commence the two year term upon City Council acceptance, as 
anticipated, on September 17, 2015, which will provide warranty and maintenance coverage 
for the utility improvements through September 17, 2017.  The Engineering Department will 
perform a formal inspection of the improvements approximately 30 days prior to the 
expiration of the Maintenance Bond(s) to assure that any defects in materials, workmanship, 
or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the Willis Street 
Site Development – Offsite Utility Improvements (water and storm drain improvements) 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter(s), Maintenance Bond(s), 
Affidavit(s) of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimate(s) 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 

























AGENDA ITEM # 12 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

September 17, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:   Consider a Variance to the Construction Noise Ordinance for 
Bartlett Cocke General Contractors to allow for paving Municipal Drive and the 
intersection at West Drive overnight for two consecutive nights. 
 
 
Background:   
 

Bartlett Cocke General Contractors is requesting the ability to pave Municipal Drive at 
night to minimize the impact to traffic in the area.  Camacho Elementary, New Hope 
High School, Public Works Department, Parks Department and various commercial 
businesses use Municipal Drive for access.  The roadway will have limited access during 
paving operations.  The scheduled paving dates are September 23 and 24th; however, the 
contractor is requesting a variance for two nights between September 22 and 28th to 
accommodate changes in weather or schedule.  
 
Bartlett-Cocke General Contractors have agreed to make every effort to communicate 
with properties neighboring the construction site and take all reasonable precautions to 
reduce late night disturbances.  The City will also post a notice on its website regarding 
the dates of the paving operation. 
 
 
 

Origination:  Terri A. Crauford, P.E., Assistant City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  Not Applicable 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends a variance to construction noise ordinance to 
Bartlett Cocke General Contractors to allow for paving Municipal Drive and the 
intersection at West Drive overnight for two nights between September 22 and 28th.  
 
Attachments:   Letter Request, Location Map 
 
Prepared by:   Terri A. Crauford, P.E., Assistant City Engineer 
 



1

Terri Crauford

From: Linda Courtney [Linda.Courtney@leanderisd.org]
Sent: Wednesday, September 09, 2015 3:11 PM
To: Terri Crauford
Subject: Municipal Drive Asphalt Paving

The contractor on the Municipal Drive Improvement Project (Bartlett Cocke) is requesting a noise variance, to 
allow paving activity to commence two nights between the September 22 ‐ 28, 2015 time frame.  The 
proposed night‐time activity will minimize the impact on traffic, and maximize the safety of pedestrian and 
bicycle traffic. 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service. 
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com 
______________________________________________________________________ 



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

LEANDER 2243
SUBDIVISION

WESTVIEWMEADOWS

WESTVIEWMEADOWSSEC 4

OLDTOWNVILLAGE

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 2

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 1
LISD LISD

LISD

LEO
CTR

WA
LK

ER
 A

DD
ITI

ON

ATKIN ADDITION

MASONS ADDITION

LEANDER
MS

MAGNOLIA CREEK

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 2

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 1BLEDSOE
PARK

LION ACRES
LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 2

MASON
CREEK
PARK

VILLAS ATVISTA RIDGE

CAMACHO
ES

5D

5D

4C3A3A

5D

3A

4C

3A

5D

4C

4C

4C

S W
ES

T D
R

W SOUTH ST

MUNICIPAL DR

LION DR

CA
RO

L A
VE

LEE DR
ME

SA
 D

R

MASON ST

HORSESHOE DR

NO
RT

HE
RN

 TR
L

BA
NN

ER
 AV

E

KA
TH

ER
IN

E 
WA

Y

BE
NT

 W
OO

D 
DR

WO
OD

LE
Y R

D

SHERRY DR

PO
WE

LL
 D

R

N 
W

ES
T D

R

EM
MA

 R
OS

E 
TR

L

BROADE WAY

CINDY LN

DEXTER DR

DOVE SONG DR

FO
SS

IL 
TR

L

WI
ND

MI
LL

 C
IR

BLUEBONNET TRL

MA
CK

EN
ZIE

 W
AY

PARKHURST DR

MORGAN DR

PECAN GROVE DR

S T
RE

AS
UR

E O
AK

S 
DR

OAKLAND CV

RED BUD CV

LOGUE CV

AQUA BELL CV

W SOUTH ST

NO
RT

HE
RN

 TR
L

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±

0 500
Feet

NOISE ORDINANCE VARIANCE Location Map - Municipal Drive Paving

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Proposed Work Area
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



AGENDA ITEM # 13 

 

 

Executive Summary 

September 17, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration and possible action on the  Termination and 
Release of a Water Line  Easement located in Travisso. 
 
Background:  In 2014 Travisso, LTD granted the City of Leander a Water Line 
Easement for a 24 inch cross country water line that serves Travisso.  The alignment of 
the water line was adjusted during construction due to topographic field conditions. The 
original easement is included below as Attachment 1.  Travisso, LTD has proposed a 
replacement easement which is Attachment 3.  Staff recommends the vacation of the 
3.808 acre water line easement as shown on the accompanying attachment, Termination 
and Release of Water Line Easement, with the condition that the approved replacement 
easement is recorded prior to the release of the original easement. 
 
Suggested Motion Language:  Authorize the City Manager to sign and record the 
Termination and Release of Water Line Easement following the recording of an approved 
replacement easement.  
    
Origination:  Terri A. Crauford, P.E., Assistant City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  None 
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests approval of the Termination and Release of Water 
Line Easement with the condition that the approved replacement easement is recorded 
prior to the release of the original easement. 
 
Attachments:   (1) Water Line Easement, Instrument Number 2014034202, (2) 
Termination and Release of Water Line Easement, August, 2015, and (3) Replacement 
Water Line Easement 
 
Prepared by:   Terri A. Crauford, P.E., Assistant City Engineer 
 





























 

 
 

GRANTEE: 
 
City of Leander, Texas 
 

    
  Name  
  Title 

Address  
City, State Zip       
 

 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
COUNTY OF ______________  § 
 
 BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared _________________, Grantee herein, known to me to be the person whose 
name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that [s]he executed the same for 
the purposes and consideration therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the  __  day of ________, 20___. 
 
__________________________________________  
Notary Public in and for the County of   , Texas 
 
My Commission Expires   
 
AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
City of Leander 
P.O. Box 319 
Leander, Texas 78646 









AGENDA ITEM # 14 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 17, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-021: Consider action on the rezoning of a parcel 

of land located at 508 Municipal Drive; 1.235 acres more or less; 
WCAD Parcel R036441.  Currently, the property is zoned TF-2-B 
(Two-Family).   The applicant is proposing to zone the property to 
LO-2-B (Local Office), Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the final step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Del Ray and Linda Sudderth. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

recommended approval of LO-2-A at the August 27, 2015 meeting 
with a five to one vote (Commissioner Schwendenmann opposing).  
The City Council approved the recommendation of LO-2-A at the 
September 03, 2015 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4. Proposed Zoning Map 
 5.   Letter of Intent 
 6. Ordinance 
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 09/10/2015 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-021 

508 MUNICIPAL DR 
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Del Ray and Linda Sudderth. 
 
Current Zoning: TF-2-B (Two-Family) 
    
Proposed Zoning: LO-2-B (Local Office) 
  
Size and Location: The property is generally located ¼ mile from the southwest corner of the 

intersection of Municipal Dr and S. West Dr and is 1.235 acres more or 
less in size. 

 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, AICP, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 

ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFU-2-B Developed Camacho Elementary School 

EAST TF-2-B Developed single family home 

SOUTH TF-2-B Developed single family home 

WEST MF-2-B Vacant property 
        

 
  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
USE COMPONENT:   

LO – LOCAL OFFICE:   
Features:  Office, assisted living, day care. Hours of operation: 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 Sun.-

Thurs., 7:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 
Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact office uses or similar uses which may be 

located adjacent to residential neighborhoods.  Access should be provided by a collector or 
higher classification street.  This component is intended to help provide for land use transitions 
from local or general commercial or from arterial streets to residential development. 

 
SITE COMPONENT:   

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with HC and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENT:   

TYPE B:   
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% all stories; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
  
  

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Separate, and/or create transitions, or buffer areas between existing, conflicting or 

incompatible land uses. 
 Strive for a fiscal balance of land uses that will create a positive impact upon the City of 

Leander’s budget and overall tax base. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
The applicant is requesting to zone the property from TF-2-B (Two Family) district to LO-2-B 
(Local Office) district.  The property is located approximately ¼ mile from the southwest corner 
of the intersection of Municipal Dr and S. West Dr.  Immediately north of this property is the 
newly constructed Camacho Elementary school. Constructed single family homes are to the east 
and south of the property. The property to the west is zoned MF-2-B (Multi-Family) and is 
presently vacant.  
 
The applicant’s property is within proximity to a Town Center Node. The Town Center land use 
node is intended to be located at the intersections of major arterials within the community.  
These nodes are approximately one mile in diameter and incorporate approximately 500 acres.  
These areas are intended for large scale commercial, retail and office uses that require locations 
with direct access to major arterials and that serve both the community and a larger trade area 
outside the city limits.  These areas are also intended for high density multi-family and single-
family housing.  Development within these nodes should be integrated through internal streets 
and should provide pedestrian and bicycle connections to adjacent residential neighborhoods. 
The most intense development activities are to be located in the center of these nodes, and 
transition to reduced intensity of land use as moving towards the periphery of these nodes. 
 
The intent statements of the Local Office Use Component from the Composite Zoning Ordinance 
speaks to permitting the development of small scale, limited impact office uses or similar uses 
which may be located adjacent to residential neighborhoods. Access should be provided by a 
collector or higher classification street. This component is intended to help provide for land use 
transitions from local or general commercial or from arterial streets to residential development.  
The hours of operation to the general public shall be between 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. Sunday 
through Thursday, and between 7:00 a.m. and 11:00 p.m. Friday and Saturday. 
 
The current Type 2 site component does not permit outdoor storage, display, or outdoor 
entertainment. 
 
 

3 
 



Attachment # 1                 

Site Standards Type 2 

Outdoor Display and Storage Not Permitted 

Entertainment Venues & Outdoor Facilities Not Permitted 

Use of Overhead Commercial Service Doors Not Permitted 

Outdoor Fueling Not Permitted 

Outdoor Animal Boarding Not Permitted 

Outdoor Container Storage Not Permitted 
 
 
The Type 2 Site Component would also limit buildings to 60,000 square feet of floor area and 
individual users to 40,000 square feet. 
 
The Type B architectural component requires at least 85% of the exterior surface area walls to be 
comprised of masonry for the first floor and 50% masonry is required on each additional story 
thereafter. The architectural component would require four design features for street facing 
façades.  This component is intended to provide high building standards and ensure compatibility 
between non-residential and residential uses. 
 
The Type A architectural component would require 85% masonry on all stories and five 
architectural design features for street facing façades. This component is intended to help provide 
for harmonious land use transitions by applying this component to a less restrictive use or site 
component adjacent to a more restrictive use or site component. 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends denial of the requested LO-2-B zoning district and recommends approval of 
the LO-2-A zoning district.  The LO use component is intended to provide a land use transition 
from more intense commercial districts or arterial streets to residential development, and a Type 
A architectural component would enhance the compatibility of the LO use component with the 
adjacent neighborhood.  This property fronts onto Municipal Dr. and would provide buffering 
from the Camacho Elementary School and City of Leander Public Works yard on the north side 
of Municipal Dr. Additionally, this property is located on a collector class street, and the use 
component may be placed adjacent to residential neighborhoods.  This use component would 
help to provide transition from a more intensely developed area of the City to a less developed 
residential community on the south side of Municipal Dr.  In addition, the proposed Type 2 site 
component restricts the size of the buildings and ensures that development is designed to a form 
and scale that is compatible with residential neighborhoods.  This request meets the intent 
statements of the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 

4 
 



5D

5D
5D

4C3A

3A

3A

4C

3A

4C

4C

S W
ES

T D
R

LION DR

W SOUTH ST

MUNICIPAL DR

ME
SA

 D
R

BA
NN

ER
 AV

E

WO
OD

LE
Y R

D

MASON ST

SHERRY DR

BE
NT

 W
OO

D 
DR

PO
WE

LL
 D

R

FO
SS

IL 
TR

L

N 
W

ES
T D

R

BLUEBONNET TRL

WI
ND

MI
LL

 C
IR

DO
VE

 S
ON

G 
DR

PECAN GROVE DR

S T
RE

AS
UR

E O
AK

S 
DR

N 
TR

EA
SU

RE
 O

AK
S D

R

OAKLAND CV

AQUA BELL CV

DOVE SONG DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-021     Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - 508 Municipal Dr

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Town
Center
Node

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Townhome



S W
ES

T D
R

W SOUTH ST

LION DR

MUNICIPAL DR

ME
SA

 D
R

MASON ST

NO
RT

HE
RN

 TR
L

BA
NN

ER
 AV

E

WO
OD

LE
Y R

D

SHERRY DR

BROADE WAY

BE
NT

 W
OO

D 
DR

N 
WE

ST
 D

R

PO
WE

LL
 D

R

W BROADE ST

DO
VE

 SO
NG

 D
R

FO
SS

IL 
TR

L

WI
ND

MI
LL

 C
IR

BLUEBONNET TRL
LEE DR

FRIENDSHIP CV

S T
RE

AS
UR

E 
OA

KS
 D

R

DEW DROP LN

OAKLAND CV
TA

BL
ER

OC
K 

CI
R

RED BUD CV

AQUA BELL C
V

NO
RT

HE
RN

 TR
L

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-021 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
508 Municipal Dr

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



W SOUTH ST

S W
ES

T D
R

LION DR

MUNICIPAL DR

CA
RO

L A
VE

ME
SA

 D
R

MASON ST

HORSESHOE DR

NO
RT

HE
RN

 TR
L

LEE DR

BA
NN

ER
 AV

E

KA
TH

ER
IN

E 
WA

Y

BE
NT

 W
OO

D 
DR

WO
OD

LE
Y R

D

SHERRY DR

PO
WE

LL
 D

R

N 
W

ES
T D

R

EM
MA

 R
OS

E 
TR

L

BROADE WAY

DOVE SONG DR

FO
SS

IL 
TR

L

WI
ND

MI
LL

 C
IR

BL
UE

BO
NN

ET
 TR

L

MA
CK

EN
ZIE

 W
AY

W BROADE ST

DEXTER DR

PECAN GROVE DR

S T
RE

AS
UR

E O
AK

S 
DR

OAKLAND CV

PARKHURST DR

RED BUD CV

LOGUE CV

AQUA BELL CV

MUNICIPAL DR

NO
RT

HE
RN

 TR
L

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-021
Attachment #4
Proposed Zoning
508 Municipal Dr

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Proposed LO-2-B

Town
Center
Node



msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 5



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

 
ORDINANCE NO # 

 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING OF A PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
SFU/MH (SINGLE-FAMILY URBAN/MANUFACTURED HOME) TO LO-
2-A (LOCAL OFFICE); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following tract of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain parcel of land being 1.235 acres, more or less, located at 
508 Municipal Drive, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, 
legally described as Lot 6A, Block A, Leander Heights Section 2 Replat (Lot 6, Block A Replat); 
identified by tax identification number R036441; more particularly described in document number 
2004062764 recorded in the Williamson County Official Public Records. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from SFU/MH (Single-Family Urban/Manufactured Home) to LO-2-A 
(Local Office) as shown in Exhibit “A”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 3rd day of September, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 17th day of September, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 



W SOUTH ST

S 
W

ES
T 

DR

LION DR

MUNICIPAL DR

CA
RO

L A
VE

ME
SA

 D
R

MASON ST

HORSESHOE DR

NO
RT

HE
RN

 TR
L

LEE DR

BA
NN

ER
 AV

E

KA
TH

ER
IN

E 
W

AY

BE
NT

 W
OO

D 
DR

W
OO

DL
EY

 R
D

SHERRY DR

PO
W

EL
L D

R

N 
W

ES
T D

R

EM
MA

 R
OS

E 
TR

L

BROADE WAY

DOVE SONG DR

FO
SS

IL 
TR

L

W
IN

DM
ILL

 C
IR

BL
UE

BO
NN

ET
 TR

L

MA
CK

EN
ZI

E 
WA

Y
W BROADE ST

DEXTER DR

PECAN GROVE DR

S 
TR

EA
SU

RE
 O

AK
S 

DR

OAKLAND CV

PARKHURST DR

RED BUD CV

LOGUE CV

AQUA BELL CV

MUNICIPAL DR

NO
RT

HE
RN

 TR
L

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-021      Exhibit A 508 Municipal Dr
SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 

SFL
SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF

LO 
LC
GC
HC
HI

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Town
Center
Node

! ! !
! ! !

! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! !
! ! ! PUD Mixed Use

! ! !

! ! ! PUD Multi-Family

! ! !
! ! !
! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

PUD Townhome



AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 

 

Executive Summary 

September 17, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Resolution adopting an Investment Policy and Strategy for 
the City of Leander. 
 
Background:  State law requires that the governing body annually review and approve 
the City’s public funds investment policy and strategy.  The City’s investment advisor, 
Patterson and Associates has reviewed to the current policy.  The only recommended 
changes are in the Authorized Broker-Dealer list as recommended by our Investment 
Advisor. 
 
Origination:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  n.a. 
 
Recommendation:  Approval 
 
Attachments:   Resolution and Investment Policy and Strategy 
 
Prepared by:   Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 



          
 
  

City of Leander, Texas                         
Authorized Broker/Dealer List 

 
September 2015 

 
 
 
The authorized broker/dealer list for the City of Leander is shown below.  Each of these firms, and the 
individual covering the account, are sent the current Investment Policy.  In accordance with the Public 
Funds Investment Act (TX Gov’t Code 2256.005(k)) before any broker/dealer transacts business with the 
City, it will have had to certify in writing to a review of the Policy and have certified that procedures are in 
place to assure compliance with that Policy.   
 
The City’s Policy establishes specific criteria for the brokers and requires that the list of broke/dealers be 
approved annually by the Board.  Patterson & Associates maintains the brokerage compliance files for the 
City. 
 
When any material changes are made to the Investment Policy the new Policy is sent out for re- 
certification. 
 
  
 
  
  

Bank of America/Merrill Lynch 
Cantor Fitzgerald 

 Morgan Stanley 
Mutual Securities 

 Piper Jaffray 
 RBC 
 Raymond James 
 Robert W. Baird & Co.  
 Stifel Nicolaus 

Wells Fargo 
 William Blair 
 
 



RESOLUTION  NO. 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ADOPTING AN 
INVESTMENT POLICY AND STRATEGY 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Funds Investment Act (Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256) governs 
local government investment; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Public Fund Investment Act (Section 2256.005a) requires the City to adopt an 
investment policy and investment strategies by rule, order, ordinance or resolution governing the 
investment of funds under its control; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Fund Investment Act (Section 2256.005e), requires the governing body 
to review and adopt that investment policy and investment strategies by rule, order, ordinance or 
resolution not less than annually, recording any changes made thereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, the following changes have been reviewed and approved: 
 

- The authorized broker/dealer list has been amended. 
 
 NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1.  The City Council has reviewed and hereby adopts the Investment Policy and 
Strategy, a copy of which is attached hereto. 
 
Section 2.  The City Council hereby appoints the Director of Finance and the City Manager 
as Investment Officers of the City. 
 

 PASSED, AND APPROVED this the 17th day of September, 2015. 
 
 
ATTEST:     CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
_______________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary   Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
 



 
 

INVESTMENT POLICY AND STRATEGY 
 
 
I. POLICY 
 
 
It is the policy of the City of Leander that after allowing for the anticipated cash flow 
requirements of the City and giving due consideration to the safety and risk of 
investment, all available funds shall be invested in conformance with these legal and 
administrative guidelines, seeking to optimize interest earnings to the maximum extent 
possible. 
 
Effective cash management is recognized as essential to good fiscal management.  
Investment interest is a source of revenue to City Funds.  The City’s investment portfolio 
shall be designed and managed in a manner designed to maximize this revenue source, to 
be responsive to public trust, and to be in compliance with legal requirements and 
limitations. 
 
Investments shall be made with the primary objectives of: 
 

• Safety and preservation of principal 
• Maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet operating needs 
• Public trust from prudent investment activities 
• Optimization of interest earnings on the portfolio 

 
 
II. PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this investment policy is to comply with the Public Funds Investment Act, 
Chapter 2256 of the Government Code (the “Act”), which requires each governmental to 
adopt a written investment policy regarding the investment of its funds and funds under 
its control.  The Investment Policy addresses the methods, procedures and practices that 
must be exercised to ensure effective and judicious fiscal management of the Entity’s 
Funds. 
 
 
III. SCOPE 
 
This Investment Policy shall govern the investment of all financial assets of the City.  
These funds are accounted for in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR) and include: 
 

• General Fund 
• Special Revenue Funds (when applicable) 
• Capital Projects Funds 
• Enterprise Funds 

 
 



 
 

• Trust and Agency Funds, to the extent not required by law or existing contract to 
be kept segregated and managed separately 

• Debt Service Funds, including reserves and sinking funds, to the extent not 
required by law or existing contract to be kept segregated and managed separately 

• Any new fund created by the City, unless specifically exempted from this policy 
by the City Council or by law. 

 
The City will consolidate cash balances from all funds to maximize investment earnings.  
Investment income will be allocated to the various funds based on their respective 
participation and in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
This Investment Policy shall apply to all transactions involving the financial assets and 
related activity for all the foregoing funds.  However, this policy does not apply to the 
assets administered for the benefit of the City by outside agencies under deferred 
compensation programs. 

 
IV. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGY 
 
The Entity shall manage and invest its cash with four primary objectives, listed in order 
of priority: safety, liquidity, public trust, and yield, expressed as optimization of 
interest earnings.  The safety of the principal invested always remains the primary 
objective.  All investments shall be designed and managed in a manner responsive to the 
public trust and consistent with state and local law. 
 
The City shall maintain a comprehensive cash management program, which includes 
collection of account receivables, vendor payments in accordance with invoice terms, and 
prudent investment of available cash.  Cash management is defined as the process of 
managing monies in order to insure maximum cash availability and maximum earnings 
on short-term investment of idle cash. 
 
Safety   
 
Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.  Investments 
shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the 
overall portfolio.  The objective will be to mitigate credit and interest rate risk. 

o Credit Risk – The City will minimize credit risk, the risk of loss due to the failure 
of the issuer or backer of the investment, by: 
• Limiting investments to the safest types of investments 
• Pre-qualifying the financial institutions and broker/dealers with which the 

City will do business 
• Diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual 

issuers will be minimized 
o Interest Rate Risk – the City will minimize the risk that the interest earnings and 

the market value of investments in the portfolio will fall due to changes in general 
interest rates, by: 

 
 



 
 

• Structuring the investment portfolio so that investments mature to meet cash 
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to liquidate 
investments prior to maturity. 

• Investing operating funds primarily in certificates of deposit, shorter term 
securities, money market mutual funds, or local government investment pools 
functioning as money market mutual funds. 

• Diversifying maturities and staggering purchase dates to minimize the impact 
of market movements over time. 

 
Liquidity   
 
The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating 
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated.  This is accomplished by structuring the 
portfolio so that investments mature concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated 
demands.  Because all possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, a portion of the 
portfolio will be invested shares of money market mutual funds or local government 
investment pools that offer same-day liquidity.   
 
Public Trust 
 
All participants in the City’s investment process shall seek to act responsibly as 
custodians of the public trust.  Investment officers shall avoid any transaction that might 
impair public confidence in the City’s ability to govern effectively. 
 
Yield   
 
The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of 
return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk 
constraints and liquidity needs.  Return on investment is of secondary importance 
compared to the safety and liquidity objectives described above. 
 
Strategy 
 
The following investment strategy has been designed to accomplish these objectives: 
 
The City will invest in short and intermediate securities and investments which are 
highly credit worthy and mature within two years.  The City will invest only in 
securities specified by this Policy.   
 
At all times, the City shall maintain a cash position sufficient to meet daily liquidity 
requirements.  This will be accomplished by maintaining approximately 15 percent of 
the total portfolio in money market funds, local government investment pools, and 
interest bearing accounts.  The City may also position some investments to provide 
funding for anticipated or predictable obligations such as debt service payments.   
 

 
 



 
 

The City shall not exceed a weighted average maturity of one year for the total 
portfolio.   
 
V. RESPONSIBILITY AND CONTROL 
 
Delegation of Authority   
 
In accordance with the City of Leander and the Act, the City Council will designate the 
City’s Investment Officer(s) by resolution.  An Investment Officer is authorized to 
execute investment transactions on behalf of the City and may deposit, withdraw, transfer 
or manage funds for investment purposes.  Only the investment officer may engage in an 
investment transaction or the management of City funds until designated by the Council.  
The investment authority granted to the investing officers is effective until rescinded by 
the City Council. 
 
 
Quality and Capability of Investment Management   
 
The City shall provide for periodic training in investments for the designated investment 
officers and other investment personnel through courses and seminars offered by 
professional organizations, associations, and other independent sources in order to insure 
the quality and capability of investment management in compliance with the Act. 
 
Training Requirement 
 
In accordance with the City of Leander and the Act, designated Investment Officers shall 
attend investment training every two fiscal years relating to investment risks and 
responsibilities as specified in the Act.  A newly appointed Investment Officer must 
attend a training session of at least 10 hours of instruction within twelve months of the 
date the officer took office or assumed the officer’s duties.  The investment training 
session shall be provided by an independent source approved by the City Council.  For 
purposes of this policy, an “independent source” from which investment training shall be 
obtained include a professional organization, an institution of higher education or any 
other sponsor other than a business organization with whom the City may engage in an 
investment transaction. 
 
Internal Controls 
 
The Finance Director is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control 
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or 
misuse.  The internal control structure shall be designed to provide reasonable assurance 
that these objectives are met.  The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the 
cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation 
of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 
 

 
 



 
 

Accordingly, the Finance Director shall establish a process for annual independent review 
by an external auditor to assure compliance with policies and procedures.  The internal 
controls shall address the following points. 

• Control of collusion. 
• Separation of transactions authority from accounting and record safekeeping. 
• Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members. 
• Documentation of all transactions for investments and wire transfers. 
 

 
Monitoring FDIC Bank Status 
 
The Investment Officer or Investment Advisor shall monitor, on no less than a weekly 
basis, the status and ownership of all banks issuing brokered CDs owned based upon 
information from the FDIC.  If any bank has been acquired or merged with another bank 
in which brokered CDs are owned, the Investment Officer shall immediately liquidate 
any brokered CD which places the City above the FDIC insurance limit. 
 
Monitoring Credit Ratings 
 
All prudent measures will be taken to liquidate an investment that is downgraded to less 
than the required minimum rating.  The Investment Officer or Investment Advisor, shall 
monitor, on no less than a monthly basis, the credit rating on all authorized investments 
in the portfolio based upon independent information from a nationally recognized rating 
agency.  If any security falls below the minimum rating required by this Policy, the 
Investment Officer shall immediately sell the security, if possible, regardless of a loss of 
principal. 
 
 
Prudence 
 
The standard of prudence to be applied by the Investment Officer shall be the “prudent 
investor” rule.  This rule states that “Investments shall be made with judgment and care, 
under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and 
intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for 
investment considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income 
to be derived.”   
 
In determining whether an Investment Officer has exercised prudence with respect to an 
investment decision, the determination shall be made taking into consideration: 
  

• The investment of all funds, or funds under the City’s control, over which the 
officer had responsibility rather than a consideration as to the prudence of a 
single investment. 

• Whether the investment decision was consistent with the written approved 
investment policy of the city. 

 

 
 



 
 

Indemnification 
 
The Investment Officer, acting in accordance with written procedures and exercising due 
diligence, shall not be held personally liable for a specific investment’s credit risk or 
market price changes, provided that these deviations are reported immediately and the 
appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 
 
Ethics and Conflicts of Interest 
 
Investment Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from 
personal business activity that would conflict with the proper execution and management 
of the investment program, or that would impair their ability to make impartial decisions.  
Employees and Investment Officers shall disclose any material interests in financial 
institutions or counter-parties with which they conduct business.  They shall further 
disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the 
performance of the investment portfolio.  Employees and officers shall refrain from 
undertaking personal investment transactions with the same individual with which 
business is conducted on behalf of the City. 
 
An Investment Officer of the City who has a personal business relationship with an 
organization seeking to sell an investment to the City shall file a statement disclosing that 
personal business interest.  For this purpose, a personal business relationship shall be 
defined as: 

• Owning 10% or more of the voting stock of the firm 
• Owning $5,000 or more of the fair market value of the firm 
• Receiving more than 10% of the Officer’s annual income from the firm, or 
• Having acquired $2,500 or more from the firm in his personal account. 

 
An Investment Officer who is related within the second degree by affinity or 
consanguinity to an individual seeking to sell an investment to the City shall file a 
statement disclosing that relationship.  A statement required under this subsection must 
be filed with the Texas Ethics Commission and the City Council. 

 
 

VI. SUITABLE AND AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 
 
Portfolio Management 
 
The City currently has a “buy and hold” portfolio strategy.  Maturity dates are matched 
with cash flow requirements and investments are purchased with the intent to be held 
until maturity.  However, investments may be liquidated prior to maturity for the 
following reasons: 

• An investment with declining credit may be liquidated early to minimize loss 
of principal. 

• Cash flow needs of the City require that the investment be liquidated. 
 

 
 



 
 

Investments 
 
City funds governed by this policy may be invested only in the instruments described 
below, all of which are authorized by the Act.  Investment of City funds in any 
instrument or security not authorized under this Policy is prohibited.  The City will not be 
required to liquidate an investment that becomes unauthorized subsequent to its purchase.   
 
A. Authorized 
 

1. Obligations of the United States of America, its agencies and 
instrumentalities, excluding mortgage backed securities, with a stated final 
maturity not to exceed two years. 

 
2. Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political 

subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a nationally 
recognized investment rating firm not less than AA or its equivalent, with a 
stated final maturity not to exceed two years. 

 
3. Depository Certificates of Deposit issued by a bank or savings bank doing 

business in Texas that is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance or its 
successor or secured by obligations in a manner and amount provided by law 
and this policy for deposits of the City. 

 
4. Money Market Mutual Funds that 1) are registered and regulated by the 

Securities and Exchange Commission, 2) have a dollar weighted average 
stated maturity of 60 days or less, 4) are rated AAA by at least one nationally 
recognized rating service, and 4) seek to maintain a net asset value of $1.00 
per share. 

 
5. Constant-dollar, Texas local government investment pools, which 1) meet the 

requirements of the Act, 2) are rated no lower than AAA or an equivalent 
rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service, 3) must maintain a 
maximum average dollar weighted maturity of 60 days, 4) seek to maintain a 
$1.00 net asset value, and 4) be authorized by resolution or ordinance of the 
City Council. 

  
6. Fully collateralized repurchase agreements with a bank in Texas or a primary 

dealer, executed under the Bond Market Master Repurchase Agreement in 
accordance with the Act not to exceed 120 days.  Flex repurchase agreements 
may be used for bond proceeds and may exceed 120 days but must be 
matched to the projected expenditures of the funds. 

 
7. FDIC insured “brokered certificates of deposit” securities from a bank in any 

US state, delivered versus payment to the City’s safekeeping agent, not to 
exceed one year to maturity.  Before purchase, the Investment Officer must 

 
 



 
 

verify the FDIC status of the bank (at www.fdic.gov) to assure that the bank is 
FDIC insured. 

 
8. FDIC insured or collateralized interest bearing accounts in any bank in Texas. 

 
 
B. Not Authorized 
 
Interest-only or principal-only mortgage-backed securities, collateralized mortgage 
obligations with an inverse floating interest rate or a maturity date of over 10 years are 
strictly prohibited. 

 
VII. INVESTMENT PARAMETERS 
 
Maximum Maturities 
 
The longer the maturity of investments, the greater their potential price volatility.  
Therefore it is the City’s policy to concentrate its investment portfolio in shorter-term 
securities in order to limit principal risk caused by changes in interest rates. 
 
The City attempts to match its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements.  The 
City will not directly invest in securities maturing more than two (2) years from the date 
of purchase; however, the above described obligations, certificates, or agreements may be 
collateralized using longer dated investments. 
 
Because no secondary market exists for repurchase agreements, the maximum maturity 
shall be 120 days except in the case of a flexible repurchase agreement for bond 
proceeds.  The maximum maturity for such an investment shall be determined in 
accordance with project cash flow projections and the requirements of the governing 
bond ordinance. 
 
The composite portfolio will have a maximum weighted average maturity of 365 days.  
This dollar-weighted average maturity will be calculated using the stated final maturity 
dates of each security. 
 
Diversification 
 
The City recognizes that investment risks can result from issuer defaults, market price 
changes or various technical complications leading to temporary illiquidity.  Risk is 
controlled through portfolio diversification that shall be achieved by the following 
general guidelines; 
 

•  Limiting investments to avoid over concentration in investments from a 
specific issuer or business sector (excluding U.S. Treasury securities and 
certificates of deposit that are fully insured and collateralized in accordance 
with state and federal law), 

 
 

http://www.fdic.gov/


 
 

• Limiting investment in investments that have higher credit risks,  
• Investing in investments with varying maturities, and 
• Continuously investing a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds 

such as local government investment pools (LGIPs), money market funds or 
overnight repurchase agreements to ensure that appropriate liquidity is 
maintained in order to meet ongoing obligations. 

 
 
 
VIII.  AUTHORIZED BANKS AND DEALERS 
 
Depository 
 
At least every five years, a banking services depository shall be selected through the 
City’s banking services procurement process, which shall include a formal request for 
proposal (RFP).  The selection of a depository will be determined by competitive bid and 
evaluation of bids will be based on the following selection criteria: 
 

• The ability to qualify as a depository for public funds in accordance with state 
law. 

• The ability to provide requested information or financial statements for the 
periods specified. 

• The ability to meet all requirements in the banking RFP. 
• Complete response to all required items on the bid form. 
• Lowest net banking service cost, consistent with the ability to provide an 

appropriate level of service. 
 
Authorized Brokers/Dealers 
 
The City Council shall, at least annually, review, revise, and adopt a list of qualified 
broker/dealers authorized to engage in securities transactions with the City.   
 
Those firms that request to become qualified bidders for securities transactions will be 
required to provide 1) a completed broker/dealer questionnaire that provides information 
regarding creditworthiness, experience and reputation, and 2) a certification stating the 
firm has received, read and understood the City’s investment policy and agree to comply 
with the policy.  Authorized firms may include primary dealers or regional dealers that 
qualify under Securities & Exchange Commission Rule 15C3-1 (Uniform Net Capital 
Rule), and qualified depositories.   
 
All investment providers, including broker/dealers, banks, and local government 
investment pools, must sign a certification acknowledging that the organization has 
received and reviewed the City’s Investment Policy and that reasonable procedures and 
controls have been implemented to preclude investment transactions that are not 
authorized by the City’s policy. 
 

 
 



 
 

Competitive Bids 
 
It is the policy of the City to require competitive bidding for all individual security 
purchases and sales except for transactions with money market mutual funds and local 
government investment pools.   Treasury and agency securities purchased at issue 
through an approved broker/dealer or financial institution must still be compared to 
alternatives in the secondary market..   
 
Delivery vs. Payment 
 
Securities shall be purchased using the delivery vs. payment method with the exception 
of investment pools and money market mutual funds.  Funds will be released after 
notification that the purchased security has been received. 
 
 
IX. SAFEKEEPING OF SECURITIES AND COLLATERAL 
 
 
Safekeeping and Custodian Agreements 
 
The City shall contract with a bank or banks for the safekeeping of securities owned by 
the City as part of its investment portfolio.  The City will approve the Custodian for 
pledged collateral to secure demand or time deposits.  Securities owned by the City shall 
be held for the City as evidenced by safekeeping receipts of the safekeeping institution . 
 
An independent third party Custodian for collateral will be approved by the City.   
Collateral for deposits will be held by evidenced by original safekeeping receipts from 
the Custodian in which the collateral is held.    Collateral must be held by an independent 
bank outside the holding company of the depository, a Federal Reserve Bank, or a 
Federal Home Loan Bank. 
 
Collateral Policy 
 
Consistent with the requirements of the Public Funds Collateral Act (Gov’t Code 2257), 
it is the policy of the City to require full collateralization of all City funds on all time and 
demand deposits with any depository bank.  In order to anticipate market and provide a  
of security for all funds, the collateralization level will be 102% of market value of 
principal and accrued interest on the deposits less an amount insured by the FDIC daily.   
 
At its discretion, the City may require a higher level of collateralization for certain 
investment securities.  The Finance Director is responsible for entering into 
collateralization agreements with third party custodians in compliance with this policy.  
The acceptable investment securities for collateral are: 

i. Obligations of the US Government, its agencies and instrumentalities 
including mortgage backed securities and CMOs passing the bank test. 

 
 



 
 

ii. Obligations of any state or local government rated AA or better by at least two 
national recognized rating agencies. 

 
The collateral agreement shall include provisions relating to possession of the collateral, 
the substitution or release of investment securities, pledge of securities, and the method 
of valuation of securities.  A clearly marked evidence of ownership (safekeeping receipt) 
must be supplied to the City directly from the Custodian and retained.  The custodian 
shall provide a monthly report of collateral directly to the City.  Collateral shall be 
reviewed at least quarterly by the City to assure the market value of the pledged securities 
is adequate. 
 
 
Subject to Audit 
 
All collateral shall be subject to inspection and audit by the Financial Director or the 
City’s independent auditors. 

 
X. PERFORMANCE 
 
 
Performance Standards 
 
The City’s investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with the parameters 
specified within this Policy.  The portfolio shall be designed with the objective of 
obtaining a reasonable yield through budgetary and economic cycles, commensurate with 
the investment risk constraints and the cash flow requirements of the City.  Quarterly 
reports will provide performance information comparing the City’s yield to the one year 
Treasury Note which will be the benchmark for the portfolio in keeping with its one year 
maximum weighted average maturity. 
 
It is the policy of the City to purchase investments with maturity dates coinciding with 
cash flow needs.  Through this strategy, the City shall seek to optimize interest earnings 
utilizing allowable investments available on the market at that time.  Market values will 
be reported, at a minimum, on a quarterly basis on all securities owned and compared to 
current amortized book value. 
 
XI. REPORTING 
 
 
The Investment Officer shall prepare and sign an investment report on a quarterly basis 
that summarizes investment strategies employed in the most recent quarter and describes 
the portfolio in terms of investment securities, maturities, and shall explain the average 
investment yield for the quarter. 
 
The quarterly investment report shall include a summary statement of investment activity 
prepared in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles and the Act.  This 

 
 



 
 

summary will be prepared in a manner that will allow the City to ascertain whether 
investments activities during the reporting period have complied with the Investment 
Policy.  The report will be provided to the City Council.  The report will include the 
following: 
 

• A listing of individual securities held at the end of the reporting period. 
• Realized and unrealized gains or losses  
• A listing of the beginning and ending book and market value of securities for 

the period. 
• Additions and changes to the market value during the period. 
• Average weighted yield to maturity of portfolio as compared to applicable 

benchmark. 
• Listing of investments by maturity date. 
• Fully accrued interest and earnings for the reporting period 
• A comparison to performance benchmarks for the period 
• The percentage of the total portfolio that each type of investment represents. 
• Statement of compliance of the City’s investment portfolio with the Act and 

the Investment Strategy and Policy approved by the City Council. 
 
An independent auditor will perform a formal annual review of the quarterly reports.  
 
Monitoring Market Value 
 
Market value of all securities in the portfolio will be determined on a quarterly basis at a 
minimum.  These values will be obtained from a reputable and independent source and 
disclosed to the governing body quarterly in a written report. 
 
 
XII. INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION 
 
The City’s Investment Policy and Strategy shall be adopted by resolution of the City 
Council at least annually.  It is the City’s intent to comply with state laws and regulations.  
The City’s Investment Policy and Strategy shall be subject to revisions consistent with 
changing laws, regulations, and needs of the City.  The City Council shall adopt a 
resolution stating that it has reviewed the policy and investment strategies annually and 
include any changes or modifications to the Policy or Strategy.   
 

 
 



 
 

City of Leander, Texas                         
Authorized Broker/Dealer List 

 
September 2015 

 
 
 
The authorized broker/dealer list for the City of Leander is shown below.  Each of these 
firms, and the individual covering the account, are sent the current Investment Policy.  In 
accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act (TX Gov’t Code 2256.005(k)) before 
any broker/dealer transacts business with the City, it will have had to certify in writing to 
a review of the Policy and have certified that procedures are in place to assure 
compliance with that Policy.   
 
The City’s Policy establishes specific criteria for the brokers and requires that the list of 
broker/dealers be approved annually by the City Council.  Patterson & Associates 
maintains the brokerage compliance files for the City. 
 
When any material changes are made to the Investment Policy the new Policy is sent out 
for re- certification. 
  
  
Bank of America/Merrill Lynch 

Cantor Fitzgerald 

Barclay's  

Morgan Stanley  

Mizuho Securities 

Mutual Securities 

Raymond James 

Stifel Nicolaus 

Wells Fargo 

JP Morgan Chase 

Piper Jaffray 

RBC 

 
 



 
 

Robert W. Baird & Company 

William Blair 

 

 

Council Authorized Pools 

Texas Daily 

 

 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 16 

 
Executive Summary 

September 17, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Authorize Funding Agreement with WBC Opportunities, Inc. 
 
Background:  Section 13.05 of the City's Home Rule Charter states that a written 
contract for services shall be executed prior to any nonprofit, community service 
organization receiving city funds. Such contracts shall establish the terms, conditions and 
services to be provided, and shall require an annual audit of the nonprofit organization.  
The WBCO requested an increase in support to $6,000 but the proposed budget includes 
the $5,000 that the City has historically provided.   
 
According to WBCO, they currently have 34 home delivered meal clients and 55 
congregate clients that attend the senior center.  This number combines the cities of 
Leander, Cedar Park and Liberty Hill.  
 
Origination:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  $5,000 as provided for in the FY 2015-16 Budget 
 
Recommendation:  Approval 
 
Attachments:  Agreement; WBCO Income Statement; FY14 Audit; 2016 Request 

 
Prepared by:   Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30,2014



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30,2014

Table of Contents

lndependent Auditor's Report

Financial Statements:

Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Activities

Statement of Functional Expenses

Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements

Compliance Section:

Report on lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on
lnternal Control Over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Corrective Action Plan

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

Other Schedule:

Combining Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Project Level

7-15

16-17

18-19

20-21

22

23

24

25

3

4

5

o

26-33



Eoc¡IrI, PARKMAN, FLEMING & FIeuIruc ,PC
CeRrIrIeo PueLIc AccouNTANTS

41 10 KE¡-r- Blvo., Secor.¡o Fr-ooR P.O. Box 750
WlcHrR F¡LLs, Texns 76307-0750
Pn. (940) 766-5550 FAX (940) 766-5778

MrcnRel D. EDGIN, CPA
Dnvro L. PRnxrr¡Rru, CPA, CFE

A. PAUL Fle¡uluc, CPA
J. Mnnr Flervlrruc, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Williamson-Burnet County Opportunities, lnc.
Georgetown, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Williamson-Burnet County Opportunities, lnc.
(a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of November 30,2014,
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Aud itor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.



Opinion

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Williamson-Burnet CounÇ Opportunities, lnc. as of November 30, 2014, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards, as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Sfafes, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and the combining schedule of revenues and expenses - project level, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the fínancial statements.

Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. ln our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards and
the combining schedule of revenues and expenses - project level are fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 14, 2015,
on our consideration of Williamson-Burnet County Opportunities, lnc.'s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Williamson-Burnet
County Opportunities, lnc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

f4, ?c,^J,^.^, fh^ "-ð e fl- rVc

EDGIN, PARKMAN, FLEMING & FLEMING, PC

Wichita Falls, Texas
May 14,2015

2



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
NOVEMBER 30,2014

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Proper$ and Equipment:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation

Total property and equipment

TotalAssets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses payable
Deposits
Deferred revenues
Current portion of long{erm debt

Total cu rrent liabilities

Long-term Liabilities:
Accrued vacation benefits
Notes payable, net of current portion

Total long{erm liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

$ 646,642
702,059

30,001

408,363
16,676,280

1,004,321
41,103

(6,448,381)

$ 562,413
179,717
53,602
14,552

230,075

130,327
8 949 265

203,651
2,736,786

g 1,378,702

11,68r,686

$ 13,060,388

$ 1,040,359

9 079,592

10,1 19,951

2,940,437

$ 13,060,388Total Liabilities and Net Assets

The accompanying Nofes are an integral part of these financial statements.

3



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30,2014

Unrestricted

$
1,341,791

50,652

103,1 15

2,142,759

3,638,317

10,319 ,113

8,941,180
999,936

1,436,437
1,264,880

12,642,433

1,503,405
7,216

1,510,62',1

14,153,054

(195,624)

399,275

Temporarily
Restricted Total

Revenues:
Grant income
Rent and rental assistance
Contributions and donations
Program income
Other
ln-kind revenues

Total revenues

Net assets released from restrictions
due to satisfaction of restrictions

Expenses:
Program services:

Head Start
Meal distribution
Housing
Social services

Total program services
Supporting services:

General and administrative
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Total expenses

Change in net assets

Net assets at beginning ofyear

Net assets at end ofyear

$ 9,197,221

444,972
69,793

803,772

10,515,758

(10,319,113)

196,645

2,540,141

s 9,197,221
1,341,791

495,624
69,793

906,887
2,142,759

14,154,075

8,941 ,1 80
999,936

1,436,437
1,264,880

12,642,433

1,503,405
7,216

1,5't0,621

14,153,054

1,O2',1

2,939,416

$ 203,651 $ 2,736,786 $ 2,940,437

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these financialsfafemenfs

4



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDEO NOVEMBER 30, 2OI4

Prooram Seru¡ces Supportive Seruices

Head Meal Soc¡al

Start Distr¡but¡on Hous¡ng Seru¡ces Total

General ând

Administrâtive

Total

Fundra¡s¡ng Total Expenses

Payroll and related expenses:

Personnel and fr¡nge

Program expênsss

Profess¡onal expenses

lnterest expense

Suppl¡es

Telephone

Postage and sh¡pping

Occupancy

Ma¡ntenanca and repairs

Equ¡pment

Conferences, convention, meetings

Pr¡nt¡ng and copying

Dues and subscript¡ons

M¡scsllaneous

Deprsc¡ation expense

ln-k¡nd

Totals

$ 6,'162,337 $ 706,961

1,635,226 5,31 1

'193,679 252,443

517,094 16,647

346,710 46,345

71,685 18,552

515 6,'179

528,192 111,751

291,541 't24,466

47,896 6,894

125,327 14,300

28,989 13,590

20,418 5,A47

91,805 56,869

503,814 5't,730

2,077,205 ô5,520

$ s,1 80,656

456,934

66,300

89,775

274,987

51,093

'198

203,381

207,262

25,295

1 1 3,708

25,O76

2,208

32,131

183,057

2,O29,119

s 535,097

232,136

41.174

186,009

(5)

86,044

427,319

15,212

5,651

52

281,535

61,233

'14,389

2,625

67

5,596

42,999

307,71'l

$ 260,575

946,16'1

161

18,019

5,98'l

83

'13,189

948

84

4,'t37

972

5,909

8,661

$ 706,961

s,31 1

252,443

16,647

46,345

1 8,552

6,179

111,751

124,466

6,894

14,300

1 3,590

5,847

64,085

51,730

65,520

$ 6,869,298

't,640,537

446,'t22

533,74'l

393,055

90,237

6,694

639,943

4't6,OO7

54,790

139,627

42,579

26,265

1 55,890

555,544

2,'t42,725

$ 14,'153,054

$ $

38,492

8,960

182

30,087

22,O98

4,124

4,857

2,474

6,705

8,014

13,046

48,086

7,216

$8,941,180 $ 999,936 81,436,437 $ 1,264,880 $ 12,U2,433 $ 1,503,405 S 7,216 $ 1,510,621

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30,2014

Cash flows from operating activities:
lncrease in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Gain on sale of assets
(lncrease) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses

lncrease (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses payable
Deposits
Deferred revenues
Accrued vacation benefits

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of assets

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments

Net cash used by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:

lnterest

$ 1,021

555,544
(2,202)

(375,734)
(10,00e)

267,015
(42,808)
38,102

(36,013)
(11,842)

(141,370)

$ 383,074

(13e,168)

(261,s84)

(17,678)

664,320

$ 646,642

$ 533 741

2 202

(261,584)

The accompanying Nofes are an integral paft of these financial statements.

þ



WILLIAMSON-BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOVEMBER 30,2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Orqanization

Williamson-Burnet County Opportunities, lnc. (WBCO) is a not-for-profit organization that was
incorporated on November 19, 1965. WBCO was organized for the purpose of promoting self-
sufficiency and enabling persons to live in dignity and decency through providing a wide variety
of social services and economic opportunity programs benefiting low and moderate income
persons. WBCO has a twenty-one member Board of Directors as its governing body.

Basis of Accountino

The financial statements of WBCO have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
The significant accounting policies followed are described below to enhance the usefulness of
the financial statements to the reader.

Basis of Presentation

Contributions received are recorded as an increase in unrestricted, temporarily restricted or
permanently restricted support, depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions.
Accordingly, net assets of WBCO and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted - Those resources which are expendable for any purpose in performing the
primary objective of WBCO. They are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and the
WBCO Board of Directors has discretionary control over the use of the resources.

Temporarilv Restricted - Those resources subject to donor or grantor imposed restrictions
which will be satisfied by actions of WBCO or the passage of time.

Permanentlv Restricted - Those resources subject to a donor imposed restriction that they
be maintained permanently by WBCO. WBCO had no permanently restricted net assets at
November 30,2014.

Revenues are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets unless use of the related
assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in
unrestricted net assets. Gains and losses on investments and other assets or liabilities are
reported as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets unless their use is restricted by
explicit donor stipulation or by law. Expirations of temporarily restricted net assets are
reported as reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets.

Contributions are recognized as revenues in the period unconditional promises to give are
received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional,
that is when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Contributions of
assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value. Contributions that are
restricted by a donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions
expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted
contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets
depending on the nature of the restrictions.

7



WI LLIAMSON.BURNET COU NTY OPPORTUNITI ES, I NC.

NOTES TO FTNANC¡AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)
NOVEMBER 30,2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTTNG ?OLIC\ES (CONT'D.)

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that atfect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, WBCO considers all highly liquid instruments
with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Prepaid Exoenses

WBCO, in the ordinary course of business, is required to make payments for insurance
expense in advance of the actual occurrence of an expense. These prepayments are
expensed as the related cost is incurred or over the life of the associated benefit period using
a straight line calculation.

Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment represents the cost of acquisition and construction of the facilities,
including capitalization of professional fees associated with construction and taxes incurred
during the construction period, as well as land improvements and furniture and equipment with
unit costs of over $5,000. lf acquired by gift, the asset is recorded at the fair market value at
the date of the gift. Contributions of property and equipment are reported as unrestricted
contributions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets
donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be
used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor
stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization
reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor.

Depreciation of property and equipment is computed using the straight-line method based on
the estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment

15 - 31.5 years
5 - 20 years

Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations when incurred. Betterments and renewals
are capitalized when the unit cost of the item is over $5,000. When property and equipment
are sold or otherwise disposed of, the asset account and related accumulated depreciation
account are relieved, and any gain or loss is included in operations.

I



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

NOTES TO F¡NANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)
NOVEMBER 30,2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF S|GN|FICANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONT'D.)

Resident Deposits

Deposits are required under the rental agreement for residents entering the affordable housing
apartment complex. The deposit amount varies based on the rental plan and the type of unit.
lnterest is earned on the deposits and is kept by WBCO. At November 30, 2014, WBCO held
$53,602 in deposits which will be returned or applied to rent income when the tenant leaves.

Accrued Compensated Absences

Full{ime employees accrue personal time off of 120 to 160 hours per year depending on
length of service. Part-time employees accrue personal time off at a rate equal to their work
week as a percentage of the normal 40 hour work week. The limits on the amount of personal
time off which is paid to an employee upon voluntary termination is as follows:

Lenqth of Service
Up to 1 Year
1 - 3 Years
3 - 10 Years
10 - 20 Years
Over 20 Years

Accrued PTO Uo To
40 Hours
60 Hours
80 Hours

100 Hours
200 Hours

Apartment Rental lncome

WBCO owns an apartment complex that it rents to provide affordable housing to the
community. The apartment complex includes 152 units that are leased under a rental
agreement based on applicant income qualification. Tenants are billed monthly for their lease
payments and income is recognized when earned.

Donated Facilities, Supplies and Services (ln-Kind)

Certain grants require in-kind and/or cash matching funds. WBCO utilized the fair market value
of office space, furniture and equipment, and donated services as in-kind expense. The fair
market rate is sometimes dictated by grant requirements. The recognition of the in-kind
expense is offset by a corresponding revenue.

Functional Expense Allocation

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the Statement of Activities and Statement of Functional Expenses.
Accordingly, management has allocated certain expenses among program and supporting
services benefited based on specific identification of costs or other reasonable allocation
methods.

9



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)
NOVEMBER 30,2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF S|GNIFICANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONT'D.)

Tax Exempt Status

WBCO qualifies as a tax-exempt organization described in Section 501(c)3 of the lnternal
Revenue Code. Accordingly, WBCO is not subject to federal income taxes under Section
501(a) of the Code. WBCO is classified as a publicly supported charitable organization under
the Code and contributions to WBCO qualify as charitable tax deductions for the contributor.

WBCO's income tax returns are subject to review and examination by federal authorities.
WBCO is not aware of any activities that would jeopardize its tax-exempt status and is not
aware of any activities that are subject to tax on unrelated business income or other taxes. The
tax returns for the years 201 1 to 2013 are open to examination by federal authorities.

Fair Value Measurements

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America define fair value,
establish a framework for measuring fair value, establish a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used to measure fair value and specify disclosure requirements for fair value
measurements. Furthermore, WBCO maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes
the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the observable inputs be used when available.

Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability
based on data obtained from independent sources. Unobservable inputs reflect assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information
available in the circumstances. The fair value hierarchy is broken down into three levels based
on the transparency of inputs as follows:

Level 1- Quoted market prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
as of the report date. A quoted price for an identical asset or liability in an active market
provides the most reliable fair value measurement because it is directly observable to the
market.

Level 2 - Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly
or indirectly observable as of the report date. This includes investments for which quoted
prices are available but that are traded less frequently and investments that are fairly valued
using other securities, the parameters of which can be directly observed.

Level 3 - lncludes assets or liabilities for which there is little to no pricing observability as of the
report date. These are measured using management's best estimate of fair value, where the
inputs into the determination of fair value are not observable and require significant
management judgment or estimation.

10



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

NOTES TO FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)
NOVEMBER 30,2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGN|FICANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONT'D.)

Concentrations of Risk

Cash and Cash Equivalents - WBCO maintains its deposits in high credit quality financial
institutions. Those balances may exceed insured limits. WBCO's deposits exceeded the
insured limits in one financial institution by $178,076 at November 30,2014.

Receivables - WBCO has outstanding grants, rental fees and other receivables at times
throughout the year. Based on historical data, management does not consider there to be
any significant credit losses associated with those receivables. Therefore, management has
not established an allowance for uncollectible amounts for any of those receivables.

Revenue - WBCO received approximately 61% of its total revenue for the year ended
November 30,2014 from the Head Start Program, exclusive of in-kind contributions.

Subsequent Events

ln preparing these financial statements, WBCO has evaluated events and transactions for
potential recognition or disclosure through May 14,2015, the date the financial statements
were available for issuance.

NOTE 2 - ACCOUNTS RECE/VABLE, NET

Accounts receivable, net consists of the following at November 30, 2014:

Tenants
Grants and contracts
Management fees or reimbursements

Accounts receivable, net $702.059

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment, net consists of the following at November 30, 2014:

Land $ 408,363
Buildings and improvements 16,676,280
Furniture and equipment 1,004,321
Construction in progress 41,103

Total property and equipment 18,130,067
Less accumulated depreciation ( 6,448,381)

Property and equipment, net úL6&rc86

Various buildings are subject to mortgage or other debt. See Note 6 for further detail.

11



WILLIAMSON-BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

NOTES TO FTNANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)
NOVEMBER 30,2014

NOTE 4 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED ASSEIS

Revenues earned under grant contracts for specific purposes and other donor contributions
with temporary restrictions are recorded as temporarily restricted revenues. At November 30,
2014, temporarily restricted net assets totaling $2,736,786 consists of revenues in excess of
expenses for the following programs:

Total $2.736.786

NOTE 5- NETASSETS RELEASED FROM RESIR/CIIONS

The sources of net assets released from temporary restrictions by either the passage of time
or incurring expenditures satisfying the restricted purpose during the year ended November 30,
2014 were as follows:

Head Start
Meal Distribution
Federal assets, net accumulated depreciation

Head Start
Meal Distribution
SocialServices
CDBG
Depreciation of federal assets, net of purchases

$ 7,924,275
1,048,498
1,272,595

91,221
( 17.476)

Total $l_o3!€JlÍl

NOTE6- LONG-TERMDEBT

The following is a summary of the long-term debt payable at November 30,2014:

Note payable to the Texas Department of Housing and
Community Affairs secured by the multi-family housing project
at 2702 Bagdad Road in Leander, Texas, with a net book
value of $1,651,957. Payments of principal are due monthly
through March 2030 in the amount of $3,333 with a final
payment of the remaining principal due in March 2030. No
interest will accrue on this note unless there is an occurrence
of default. $1,150,000 will be waived and forgiven in March
2030 only in the event there is no occurrence of default. $1,763,334

Note payable to RBank secured by the offíce building located
at 604 High Tech Drive, Georgetown, Texas, with a net book
value of ç297,626. The interest rate is 4.5%. Payments of
principal and interest are due monthly in the amount of $1 ,1 13
with a final payment of the remaining principal due in March
2033.

12

163,759



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)
NOVEMBER 30,2014

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONT'D.)

Note payable to the Texas Department of Housing and
Community Affairs secured by Phase ll of the multi-family
housing project at2702 Bagdad Road in Leander, Texas, with
a net book value of $3,644,454. Payments of principal are due
monthly through July 2034 in the amount of $14,448 with a
final payment of the remaining principal due in July 2034. The
note bears interest at 10o/o. 1,540,577

Note payable to First State Bank Central Texas secured by
the multi-family housing pro.¡ect at 2702 Bagdad Road in

Leander, Texas including additional renovations, with a net
book value of $5,652,843 which also secures the two notes
payable to TDHCA. The interest rate is 6.94o/o, and payments
of principal and interest are due monthly through March 2025
in the amount of $29,172, with the entire principal balance
and any accrued interest due in March2025. 3,759,798

Note payable to RBank secured by the Round Rock
Transition building located in Round Rock, Texas with a net
book value of $3,422,288. The interest rate is variable and
adjusted every five years to prime plus 1% (4.5% at year-
end). Payments of principal and interest are due monthly in
the amount of $12,849 with a final payment of the remaining
principal due in September 2033.

Total long{erm debt payable
Less current portion

Long-term portion

951 8721

9,179,340
( 230,075)

s8,949,265

The annual maturities of the long-term debt at November 30,2014 are as follows

Year Princioal lnterest Totals

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Thereafter

$ 230,075
242,373
256,401
270,371
287,667

7.892.453

$ 506,913
494,615
480,587
466,617
449,32',1

2,909,651

$ 736,988
736,988
736,988
736,988
736,988

10.802.104

$9.179.340 S5,307,704 514.487 .044Totals

13



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)
NOVEMBER 30,2014

NOTE 7 - DEFINED CONTRIBUIION PENSION PLAN

WBCO sponsors a defined contribution pension plan available to all of its employees.
Contributions by WBCO are between 'lo/o and 5% ol the participating employees' compensation.
Pension costs were $61,569 for the year ended November 30,2014. Participating employees
must contribute a minimum of 1o/o and may elect to contribute as much as 100% of their
compensation. Employer and employee contributions go toward the purchase of an annuity
contract. This arrangement transfers the pension benefit obligation to the insurer, and neither the
plan assets nor the pension benefit obligation are recorded on the books of WBCO.

NOTE 8 - DONATED SERY/CES, SUPPLIES, AND FACILITIES

WBCO recognized the following in-kind revenue and expense for the year ended November 30,
2014

Head Start Title lll

$ 558,184
758,507
709,405
66.036

$
48,680

1.947

Totals $2.092.',t32 $50.627

The above is based on management's estimate of fair market value based on grant guidance
or from professional appraisers

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONT/NGE/\ICIES

Litigation

WBCO is subject to asserted and unasserted claims encountered in the normal course of
business. WBCO'S management and legal counsel assesses such contingent liabilities and
such assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment. ln assessing loss contingencies
related to legal proceedings that are pending against WBCO or unasserted claims that may
result in such proceedings, WBCO's legal counsel evaluates the perceived merits of any legal
proceedings or unasserted claims as well as the perceived merits of the amount of relief
sought or expected to be sought therein. At November 30,2014, management affirms there
are no asserted or unasserted claims against WBCO which could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Federal and State Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
such agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a
liability of the applicable funds. The amounts, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed
by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although WBCO expects such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

Volunteer/parent hours
Facilities use
Education services
Other

14



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

NOTES TO FTNANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)
NOVEMBER 30,2014

NOTE 9 - COMMTTMENTS AND CONTTNGENCTES (CONT',D.)

403(b) Retirement Proqram

WBCO sponsors a 403(b) retirement plan for íts employees. The plan requires annual
reporting to the lnternal Revenue Service and Department of Labor. During the year ended
November 30, 2013, management became aware of compliance issues with the plan.
Management is addressíng the issues and does not expect the total cost to become compliant
to have a material effect on the financial statements. The financial statements do not reflect
any liability at this time because the amount is uncertain.

NOTE 1O - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

WBCO receives a significant portion of its revenue from funds provided through federal and
state grants. The grant amounts are appropriated each year by the federal and state agencies.
lf significant budget cuts are made at the federal and/or state level, the amount of funds the
organization receives could be reduced significantly and have an adverse impact on its
operations. Management is not aware of any actions that will adversely affect the amount of
funds the organization will receive in the next fiscal year.

NOTE 11 - RELATED PARTY IRANSACT/ONS

WBCO is related through common management to Burnet Senior Housing Opportunities, lnc.
(BSHO), a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization which operates an apartment complex for the
elderly under Section 202 of the National Housing Act.

WBCO has a contract to provide management for BSHO. Management fees of $41,526 were
earned for the year ending November 30, 2014. Additionally, BSHO reimburses WBCO for
expenses related to services provided by employees of WBCO. Reimbursements of $132,422
were received for the year ending November 30,2014.

BSHO owes WBCO $30,440 at November 30,2014 which is included in accounts receivable
on the Statement of Financial Position.

15



COMPLIANCE SECTION



EDGIN, Pnnrn¡nN, FLEMllrlc & Flrvtruc ,PC
CeRttneo Puelrc AccouNTANTS

41 10 Keu- Blvo., Secoruo FlooR P.O. Box 750
WrcHrrA FRlr-s, Texns 76307-0750
Pn. (940) 766-5550 Fnx (940) 766-5778

MtcHner- D. Eoor¡¡, CPA
Drvro L. PARKMAN, CPA, CFE

A. Pnul Fleurruo, CPA
J. Manx Fle¡¡rruc, CPA

lndependent Auditor's Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Complíance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Williamson-Burnet County Opportunities, lnc.
Georgetown, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Sfandards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Williamson-Burnet
County Opportunities, lnc. (WBCO), (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of November 30, 2014, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated May 14,2015.

lnternal Control over Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered WBCO's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of WBCO's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of WBCO's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a materialweakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

16



Gompliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether WBCO's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material etfect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Gove rnment Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

lrhi^, ?anl,.*^, ilr^^.ð U ll- ?c

EDGIN, PARKMAN, FLEMING & FLEMING, PC

Wichita Falls, Texas
May 14,2015

17



EOCII.I, PARKMAN, FLEMING & FIevIIITIc PC
CeRlneo PuBLtc Accou¡¡tRr.¡ts

41 10 KEll Blvo., Seco¡¡o Fr-ooR . P.O. Box 750
WrcnrR FRus, Texns 76307-0750
Pn. (940) 766-5550 Fnx(940) 766-5778

MTcHAEL D. Eocrru, CPA
Dnvro L. PARKMAN, CPA, CFE

A. Pnul Flerr¡l¡ro, CPA
J. Mnnx Flevrruc, CPA

lndependent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
and on lnternal Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

Board of Directors
Williamson-Burnet County Opportunities, lnc.
Georgetown, Texas

Report on Gompliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Williamson-Burnet County Opportunities, lnc.'s (WBCO) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplemenf that could have a
direct and material effect on WBCO's major federal program for the year ended November 30, 2014.
WBCO's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its major federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for WBCO's major federal program based on
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Sfafeg Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about WBCO's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of WBCO's compliance.

18



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

ln our opinion, WBCO complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year
ended November 30, 2014.

Report on Internal Controlover Compliance

The management of WBCO is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. ln planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered WBCO's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal programs to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for the major federal programs and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of WBCO's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

4, 7r,^].-^, ilt^ .-ð e il-,Vc
EDGIN, PARKMAN, FLEMING & FLEMING, PC

Wichita Falls, Texas
May 14,2015

19



WILLIAMSON-BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30,2014

A. Summarv of Auditor's Results

1. Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

lnternal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be materialweaknesses?

Noncompliance material to the financial
statements noted?

2. FederalAwards

lnternal control over major programs:

One or more materialweaknesses identified?

One or more significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be materialweaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with section 510(a)
of Circular A-133?

ldentification of major programs:

Yes X No

Yes X No

Yes XNo

Yes XNo

Yes X None reported

Unmodified

Unmodified

Yes X No

CFDA Numbe(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

93.600 Head Start

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No

20



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF F|NDTNGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS (CONT'D.)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30,2014

21



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITY, INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30,2014

The prior year audit reported one finding for the year ended November 30, 2013. A brief summary of the
finding is noted below along with the status of the finding:

Accountinq Period

Prior year finding noted that the proper cut-off procedures were not followed for year-end close. WBCO
recognized expenses based on issuance of a purchase order rather than the actual date of receipt of the
goods. WBCO recorded $28,000 of accounts payable and related expense as of November 30, 2013 for
goods received in the subsequent accounting period.

Status - As of November 30, 2014, WBCO had put in procedures to only record accounts payable based
on receipt of goods or service. The audit for the year ended November 30, 2014 did not find any issues
with cutoff procedures.

22



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

GORRECTIVE AGT¡ON PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVENíBER 30,2014

There were no findings noted during the audit of the November 30, 2014linancial statements that require
a corrective action plan.

23



WILLIAMSON-BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30,2OI4

Federal Grantor/Pass-Throuqh Grantor/Proqram Title
Grant
Period

WBCO CFDA
Project Number

Contract
Number Expend¡tures

Federal Programs

U.S. DeDartment of Aqr¡culture
Passed Through Texas Department of Agriculture:

Ch¡ld Care Food Program
Child Care Food Program

Total U S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. DeÞartment of Health and Human Services
Direct Program:

Head Start
Head Start

Passed Through Texas Department Of Housing and Community Affairs:
Community Service Block Grant 2013
Community Service Block Grant2014

Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program 201 3
Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program 2014
Comprehensive EnergyAss¡stance Program 2014

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

U.S. Deoartment of Homeland Securitv
Passed Through Capital Area United Way:

Emergency Food and Shelter - Phase 30, 31

U.S. Deoartment of Housino and Urban Development
Passed Through Texas Department Of Housing and Commun¡ty Affairs:

Continuum of Cere

Passed Through CiÇ of Round Rock:
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)

Total U S DepartmentofHous¡ng and Urban Development

Total Federal Expenditures

State Program
Texas Deoartment of Aoriculture

Texans Feeding Texans
Total State Expend¡tures

Total Federal and State Expenditures

5t1t13 - 4t30t14 3631. 361 1 97 024 782400-004

211113 - 1131115 3633 14231 TX033086J071100

101'1113 - 9130114 381 5 14218 R-13-11-14-F7

211113 - 1131114 303'1 N/A N/A

101'113 - 9130114

10t1t14 - 9t30t15

1211112 - 11130113

12t'U13 - 11t30t14

111113 - 41301'14

1l1l't4 - 4130115

1t1t13 - 12t31t13
4t'U'14 - 9t30t14
111114 - 12131114

301 1, 3501 ,

3018,3502

-rx 246-001

TX 246-001

06c{5236t47
06cH5236/48

61 I 30001605
61 '140001866

581 30001 655
581 30001 984
581 40001 823

389,346
114,357
503

83,200
7,234,303
7 ,317,503

59,055
238,451
297,506

122,759
1 60,843
561 ,1 35
844.737

8,459,746

48,500

96,521

91,221

187,742

9,1 99,691

1 7,333
17,333

$ 9,217,024

3761
3761

3171
3171

3591
3591
3591

10 558
10 558

93 600
93 600

93.569
93 569

93 568
93 568
93.568

$

24



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, ¡NC.

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPEND¡TURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30,2014

NOTE I - BAS/S OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant
activity of Williamson-Burnet County Opportunities, lnc. (WBCO) and is presented in
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Sfafes, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF S/GN/F/CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-122,
Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

WBCO participates in a number of federal and state assisted programs. These programs are
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and the Slng/e Audit Act
Amendments of 1996, if applicable, in accordance with the required levels of Federal Financial
Assistance. Audits of prior years have not resulted in any significant disallowed costs; however,
grantor agencies may provide for further examinations. Based on prior experience,
management believes that further examinations would not result in any significant disallowed
costs.

NOTE 4 - RELATIONSH/P TO FEDERAL FINANCIAT REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule may differ with the amounts reported in the
related federal financial reports due to additional accruals, encumbrances, or adjustments
posted to the books after the submission of the original reports. Additionally, federal reports may
include cumulative balances which include expenditures incurred in a prior fiscal year.

NOTES-NONCASHAWARDS

WBCO had the following loan balances at November 30,2014. These loan balances are not
included in the federal expenditures presented in the schedule of expenditures of federal and
state awards.

Proqram Title

U.S. Department of Housinq and Urban Develooment
Passed Through Texas Department of Housing and
Community Affairs:

HOME I nvestment Partnership Program

Federal
CFDA No.

Amount
Outstanding

25

14.239 $33!3*911_



OTHER SCHEDULE



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

Combining Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Project Level
For the Year Ended November 30,2014

Head Start
301 1

Head Start
ln-Kind

3017

Head Start
Train/Tech

Asst.

301 I

Early

Head Start
3501

Revenues:

Grant revenue

Rent and rental assistance
Contributions
Program income
Other income
ln-kind

lnterest income
Total Revenues

Expenses:

Personnel and fringe
Program expenses
Professional expenses
lnterest expense
Supplies
Telephone
Postage and shipping
Occupancy
Maintenance and repairs
Equipment
Conferences, convention, meetings
Printing and copying

Dues and subscriptions
Miscellaneous
Depreciation expense
Administrative expense

ln-kind
Total Expenses

Revenue Over (Under) Expenses

$ 4,014,740 $

1,006,306

4 014 740 1,006,306

s 47,075 $ 3,197,091

47,075 3,197,091

2,961,118
180,081

156,019

52,300
145,089

36,921

2,878
1 64,1 99
128,660

10,707
17,537

18,792

3,182
24,233

1,033

2,636

43,406

2,433,253
76,385

130/26
50,688

117,185
27,737

2,530
133,696

94,764
7,681
7,660

6,909
2,758

16,467

(34) 1,006,306

3,901,682 1,006,306 47 075 3,1 08,1 39

$ 1 13,058 $ $ $ 88,952

26



Early

Head Start
ln-Kind
352'l

Early

Head Start
Train/Tech

Asst.

3502

MB

Kitchen

31 16

HS

Democrats

Club
3525

Child Care
Food

Program

3761

Local
Funds

3801

Lola
Wright Foundation

3526

$ $ 77,929 $ $ $ $ 503,393 $

15,000 1,148 5,000 3,014

2,065
't291,084,826

1,084,826 77,929 15,000 1,148 5,000 503,393 5,208

5,478

6,838 12,688

296,954
200,429

(1,035)
(e8)

33,261
(71)
(43)

(530)

(ee)

12,623
(350)

(64)

(1 3)

(205)

107

't,'t51
1

490 4,443

2

129

54,884
10,684

46

1

0
2

7991,

1,084,826
1,084,826 77,930 12,688 490 540,759 7,635

$ (1) ç 2,312 $ 658 $ 5,000 $ (37,366) S(2,427)$

27



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

Gombining Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Project Level (Gont'd.)
For the Year Ended November 30,2014

Program

Materials

3802

Health

Start
lnitiative

3803

RR

Playground

3820

Hutto
Beautification

3833

Revenues:

Grant revenue

Rent and rental assistance
Contributions
Program income

Other income
ln-kind

lnterest income

Total Revenues

Expenses:

Personnel

Program expenses
Professional expenses
lnterest expense
Supplies
Telephone
Postage and shipping
Occupancy
Maintenance and repairs
Equipment

Conferences, convention, meetings
Printing and copying

Dues and subscriptions
Miscellaneous
Depreciation expense
Administrative expense
ln-kind

Total Expenses

$$

750

$ (18) $

8,492

1,000

1,717

9,492 (1 8) 750 717

360 4,496

2,887

2

3,738

375

349

2,220

1 000
4,496

Revenue Over (Under) Expenses $ 1,505 $ (4,514) $

7 987 724 2,220

26$ (503)

28



Title XX

3021
Title lll
3031

Title lll
3032

Title XIX
3041

Senior
Citizens

3051

Swalm
3055

Bagdad

Kitchen

31 80

$ $$$$$$

347,900
52,658

493,856
29,000

2,500
17,135.00

245,732
272

516

20,075
3,377

2,363

40,917

15,437

40,000 10,894

923,414 265,639 23,968 58,717 40,000 10,894

11 472,988
203,975

39,442
1,054

41,957
8,222

604
23,671
25J66
8,562
7,450
3,820
7,199

14,012

(6,000)

(1,863)

(804)

53,148
10,258

1,579
88

1,624
126
94

2,422
995
287

422
116

133

929

55,951
12

1,524
93

(840)

2,170
50

11,218
(3,367)

46
(1,543)

58
74

735

20,128
19,872

19,175

1,455

29,000 272 3,377 15,437
887 122 (8,395) 75,598 81 ,618

$ (11) $ 36,292 $ 274,034 $ (51,630) $ (22,e01) $

40,000 20,630

$ (e,736)

29



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

Combining Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Project Level (Cont'd.)
For the Year Ended November 30,2014

CSBG
317'l

TXU

Energy Aid

3201

Share the
Warmth

3308
CEAP
3591

Revenues:

Grant revenue
Rent and rental assistance
Contributions
Program income
Other income
ln-kind

lnterest income
Total Revenues

Expenses:
Personnel

Program expenses
Professional expenses
lnterest expense
Supplies
Telephone
Postage and shipping
Occupancy
Maintenance and repairs
Equipment

Conferences, convention, meetings
Printing and copying
Dues and subscriptions
Miscellaneous
Depreciation expense
Administrative expense
ln-kind

Total Expenses

$ 297,506 $ $

469332596369

$ 822,818

430
2,412

697

297,875 596 1,029 826,129

238,099
1,065

9,261
496

13,273

5,900

333

9J92
1,324

371

3,846
1,286
3,527
8,729

24,488 9,605
60,695

748,386

2,470
51

11,752

3,793
194

5,951

444
124

1,377

911

2,617
383

2,412
296,702 24,488 9,605 841,560

Revenue Over (Under) Expenses $ 1,173 $ (23,8e2) $ (8,576) $ (15,431)

30



Emergency
Food and
Shelter
361 1

Continuum
Of Care

3633

Community
Service

3800

Season for
Caring

3821

Cedar
Ridge

Operating
4000

Cedar
Ridge

Apartments
3831

Burnet

Senior
Housing

3890

$ 48,500 $ 96,966 $ $$$
977

$

3,883 29
1,340,8',t4

33,212 68,400 41,526

65
48,500 3,883 29 1,374,091 69,377 41,526

82,562
12,017

80,651
17

505 2,975

3,804

2,421
162

86,294
427,319

16,006

5,679
52

284,375
61,233
14,389
1,438

(67)

67

208,798 10

(250)

(146)

1,193

(861)

13,554

159

109

3,474

94
5,596

44,261

307,7't1

68,400

82,562 96,521 505 (54) 13,5549,362 1,531,551

$ (34,062) $ 445 $ 3,378 $ (e,333) $ (157,460) $ 69,431 ç 27,e72

31



WILLIAMSON.BURNET COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES, INC.

Combining Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Project Level (Cont'd.)
For the Year Ended November 30,2014

Round Rock
Transition

3815

Agency
Admin

Account
3901

Notes/

Capital
Asset
3920

Labor
Hour
Pool

3990

Revenues:

Grant revenue
Rent and rental assistance
Contributions
Program income
Other income
ln-kind
lnterest income

Total Revenues

Expenses:

Personnel
Program expenses
Professional expenses
lnterest expense
Supplies
Telephone
Postage and shipping
Occupancy
Maintenance and repairs
Equipment
Conferences, convention, meetings
Printing and copying
Dues and subscriptions
Miscellaneous
Depreciation expense
Administrative expense
ln-kind

Total Expenses

Revenue Over (Under) Expenses

$ 91,221 $

228

$ $

50,648

28,038

46

4

91,449 78,732 4

25 41,779

't,750

866

2,306

1,187
41,019

130

(20,e63)

(34e)

99,788

1

1

247,833

99,815 88,907

$ (8,366) $ (10,175)

247,833

$ (247,833)

(21,182)

$ 21,186

32



Transaction
Pool

3991

$

22

Fundraising

3995

$

Grand
Total

$ 9,197,221
1,341,791

495,624
69,793

974,948
2,142,759

339
14,222,475

162

6,869,298
1,640,537

446,122

533,741

393,055
90,237

6,694
639,943
416,007

54,790
139,627

42,579
26,265

155,890

555,544
68,400

2,142,725
162 14,221,454

$ (22) $ (162) $ 1,021

33



WBC Opportunities

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

From 12/1/2014 Through 2/28/2015

Current Year Actual

Revenues

            HEADSTART 760,464.43 

            EARLY HEADSTART 606,151.32 

            AMERIGROUP 3,965.76 

            CAPCO CI 27,463.87 

            CAPCO CII 59,175.00 

            UNITED HC EVERCARE 1,485.08 

            CAPCO SR CTR 8,420.00 

            HUD 10,433.76 

            TDHCA 225,066.75 

            HHSC 165,561.62 

            EFSP 0.00 

            RENTAL REVENUE 330,491.00 

            RENT ASSISTANCE/HUD 25,278.00 

            RECOVERY OF DAMAGES/BAD 

DEBT

1,761.40 

            CEDAR RIDGE MGMT FEE 17,100.00 

            LAUNDRY & VENDING REVENUE 423.88 

            APPLICATION FEES 740.00 

            SECURITY DEPOSITS FORFEITED 1,056.34 

            TXU 37,047.90 

            ATMOS ADMIN REIMB 341.97 

            BSHO MGMT FEE 6,999.00 

            WMS COUNTY 16,000.02 

            BURNET COUNTY 2,700.00 

            BOARD CONTRIBUTIONS 581.00 

            CITY OF ROUND ROCK 7,511.16 

            CITY OF LEANDER 0.00 

            DONATIONS 58,050.71 

            CITY OF MARBLE FALLS 0.00 

            CITY OF BURNET 6,000.00 

            CITY OF HUTTO 0.00 

            FUND RAISING 17,686.31 

            AMPLIFY AUSTIN FUNDRAISING 280.00 

            CITY OF BERTRAM 635.00 

            CITY OF TAYLOR 5,000.00 

            UNITED WAY 2,500.00 

            LATE CHARGES 2,646.00 

            CITY OF CEDAR PARK 0.00 

            ST DAVIDS GRANT FUNDS 126,407.00 

            SWALM FOUNDATION 0.00 

            MEALS ON WHEELS 9,000.00 

            CONG. PROGRAM INCOME 10,684.62 

            HD PROGRAM INCOME 8,309.18 

            REBATES 451.38 

            CITY OF RR CDBG 0.00 

            INELIGIBLE MEALS 105.00 

            INTEREST INCOME 22.25 

            IN-KIND SUPPLIES 20,949.64 

Date:  09/09/2015, 8:48 AM Page:  1



WBC Opportunities

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

From 12/1/2014 Through 2/28/2015

            IN-KIND COMMUNITY VOL 6,032.00 

            IN-KIND SOC. SVC/PARENT IN 152,890.99 

            IN-KIND FACILITIES 0.00 

            IN-KIND EDUCATION 270,846.46 

            IN-KIND DISABILITY 4,955.00 

            IN-KIND HEALTH 719.10 

            IN-KIND NUTRITION 2,928.36 

            IN-KIND OTHER 130.00 

      Total Revenues 3,023,448.26 

Expenditures

            SALARIES 1,220,128.09 

            EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION 0.00 

            DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 138,885.90 

            FRINGE-FICA 86,283.21 

            FRINGE-UNEMPLOYMENT 20,008.03 

            FRINGE-MEDICAL INSURANCE 185,430.64 

            MEDICAL HIGH DEDUCTIBLE 

PLAN

21,891.51 

            FRINGE-LIFE INSURANCE 1,535.84 

            FRINGE-TUITION 6,093.50 

            FRINGE-PENSION 25,179.29 

            WORKERS COMPENSATION 11,038.19 

            LIABILITY  INSURANCE 51,071.30 

            DIRECTORS & OFFICERS INS 2,072.90 

            SUPPORT TO OTHER PROGRAMS 0.00 

            FIRE/PROPERTY INSURANCE 0.00 

            VEHICLE INSURANCE 0.00 

            LICENSE FEES 761.75 

            BACKGROUND FEES 5,941.15 

            RENT 10,056.98 

            SITE UTILITIES 92,517.99 

            MAINT/REPAIRS-SITE 28,247.44 

            BUILDING SECURITY 2,444.61 

            CDA FEES 0.00 

            EQUIPMENT 0.00 

            APPLIANCES 1,495.00 

            FLOORING 7,835.45 

            OFFICE EQUIPMENT 86.41 

            Small Office Furniture 925.00 

            EQUIP. LEASE/RENTAL 6,933.80 

            EQUIPT. MAINTENANCE 373.99 

            COMPUTER SOFTWARE 0.00 

            CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 11,414.32 

            PLAYGROUND 3,737.50 

            OFFICE SUPPLIES 12,408.94 

            BABY CARE SUPPLIES 6,338.80 

            JANITORIAL/CLEANING SUPP. 13,730.74 

            FOOD DELIVERY SUPPLIES 6,123.77 

            SHELF STABLE MEALS 0.00 

            KITCHEN SUPPLIES 14,534.97 

            PRINTING/COPYING 8,832.45 

Date:  09/09/2015, 8:48 AM Page:  2



WBC Opportunities

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

From 12/1/2014 Through 2/28/2015

            POSTAGE/FREIGHT 2,504.30 

            ACTIVITY SUPPLIES 2,215.71 

            MEDICAL/DENTAL SUPPLIES 2,872.95 

            CONTRACT LABOR 77,299.72 

            AUDIT 0.00 

            BANK CHARGES 1,249.16 

            DISABILITY SUPPLIES 0.00 

            FOOD DELIVERY/TRAVEL 437.84 

            STAFF TRAVEL 5,690.57 

            CLIENT TRANSPORTATION 71.00 

            MENTAL HEALTH 0.00 

            STAFF TRAINING 20,512.59 

            DISABILITY SERVICES 0.00 

            COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 5,195.82 

            COMPUTER MAINTENANCE 19,289.51 

            TELEPHONE-ADMINISTRATION 1,173.14 

            TELEPHONE-SITES 24,611.89 

            PARENT ACTIVITIES 2,066.23 

            STORAGE 1,018.00 

            ADVERTISING 31.50 

            MARKETING 1,416.75 

            DUES 2,397.15 

            SUBSCRIPTIONS 2,311.63 

            FROZEN MEALS 13,302.33 

            RAW FOOD 149,483.78 

            FOOD-RQUIRED STAFF 13,624.27 

            SCHOOL DIST REIMB 30,561.52 

            FOOD PRGS OVERAGES 0.00 

            MEETINGS/BOARD/AGENCY 1,328.71 

            MEDICAL EXPENSE 0.00 

            DENTAL EXPENSE 0.00 

            VEHICLE OPERATING EXPENSE 6,844.03 

            VEHICLE REPAIR/MAINT. 7,027.36 

            ADMIN EXPENSE 17,100.00 

            IN-KIND EDUCATION 270,846.46 

            IN-KIND DISABILITY 4,955.00 

            IN-KIND HEALTH 719.10 

            IN-KIND FACILITIES 0.00 

            IN-KIND NUTRITION 2,928.36 

            IN-KIND OTHER 130.00 

            IN-KIND SOC SER./P.I. 152,890.99 

            IN-KIND COMMUNITY VOL 6,032.00 

            IN-KIND SUPPLIES 20,949.64 

            INTEREST EXPENSE 138,630.72 

            MORTGAGE PAYMENTS 17,261.06 

            SERVICE CHARGES/PENALTIES 1,318.28 

            LEGAL & PROFESSIONAL FEES 14,380.76 

            INSPECTIONS/FEES 1,503.47 

            FEES/PERMITS 232.85 

            HOMELESS PREVENTION 9,359.00 

            UTILITY ASSISTANCE 102,169.43 

Date:  09/09/2015, 8:48 AM Page:  3



WBC Opportunities

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

From 12/1/2014 Through 2/28/2015

            HOUSEHOLD CRISIS 13,093.51 

            Employment Assistance 110.00 

            EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE 0.00 

            FUND RAISING EXPENSE 887.38 

            RESERVE FOR REPLACEMENT 0.00 

      Total Expenditures 3,174,394.93 

Net Revenues and Expenditures (150,946.67)

Date:  09/09/2015, 8:48 AM Page:  4



  Administrative Office:   604 High Tech Drive * Georgetown, Texas 78626 
(512) 763-1400  *  Fax: (512) 763-1411  *  www.wbco.net 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WBC Opportunities 
Senior Nutrition / Meals on Wheels 

 
City of Leander 

2014-2015 
Program Budget 

 
 

Utilities/Rent/Maintenance  8%  $            400.00  

Salaries/Benefits 47%  $         2,350.00  

Supplies/Equipment 9%  $            450.00  

Staff Training 1%  $               50.00  

Meals/Food Delivery 35%  $         1,750.00  

     $         5,000.00  
 

 
 
 









AGENDA ITEM # 17 

 
Executive Summary 

September 17, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Authorize Funding Agreement with Williamson County 
Children's Advocacy Center 
 
Background:  Section 13.05 of the City's Home Rule Charter states that a written 
contract for services shall be executed prior to any nonprofit, community service 
organization receiving city funds. Such contracts shall establish the terms, conditions and 
services to be provided, and shall require an annual audit of the nonprofit organization.   
 
Origination:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  FY 2015-16 General Fund / Police ($30,000; 01-40-5726) 
 
Recommendation:  Approval 
 
Attachments:  Funding Agreement; Budget Request; July 2015 Balance Sheet; 2014 
Audit 

 
Prepared by:   Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 



%
2a
w]

Williamson County
Chi ld ren's Advocacy Center

Breaking the (ycle of Abuse One Child at a Time

March 13,2015

Chief Greg Minton

Leander Police DePartment

200 West Willis

Leander, TX 78641

RE: FY 2016 Budget Submission

Dear Chief Minton,

It was so good to meet you, Mr. Cagle, and Mayor Fielder back h February' Now, in preparation for

your Fy 2016 budget suOmission, r,ie offer yo, tor. highlights from the past year at the WCCAC as

they relate to the CitY of Leander.

As part of our service to you, we are constantly analyzing and refining programs to better meet your

needs. We continue t, prrriO. Forensic tnteiviews,'Chiid & Family fherapy, and medical exams for our

young clients.

ln addition to these direct services, our outreach coordinator goes into the community to provide

training to equip school officials and first responders to better iecognize the warning signs of child abuse

and to be pro-active in their reporting to authorities'

statistics: The following statistics reflect countywide use of our services to child abuse victims, as well

as Leander-specific use, based upon victim residence'

FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY

Year ,bou 2006 ZAOT 2008 2009 2010 zAY 2012 2013 2014

fti'd.* 23 47 69 Tg 51 49 46 52 89 80

zrp cooes

,r,]ilil*, 351 510 034 650 o4B 651 503 553 686 682

our 2014 brochure with more details is enclosed for your review'

181 1 SE lnner Loop * Georgetown TX 78626 (512) 943-3701 
. Fax (512) 868-3970



Request: $30,000 FY 2016: The budget request is the same as last year's and is within the range

iii6,onn to as,ooo) requested from ail major cities in the county.

we enjoy our partnership with your department; we especially appreciate the participation of Detectives

Garrett, Jones, and Maiberry, as well as Lt Fletcher and your new Victim Services Coordinator, Mirna

Johnson in our monthfy CnifO protection feam meetings.'Again, thank you for your support, and that of

your officers. Know that, together, we are providing ai excellent service to these children and their

families.

Warmest regards,

'fnr-?*"; W*,"t ee#*{
Monica Benoit-BeattY

Executive Director

_Copy to:

,lKentCagle, CitY M an ager

P.O. Box 319

Leander, TX 78646

181'1 SE lnner Loop 
* Georgetown TX 78626 (512) 943-3701 

* Fax (512) 868-3970



 Williamson County Children's Advocacy Center
 Statement of Financial Position

 As of July 31, 2015

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

1150 · FIRST STATE BK-CHK & REPURCHASE 234,127.80

1165 · USB MONEY MARKET ACCT. 248,090.38

Total Checking/Savings 482,218.18

Accounts Receivable

1200 · GRANTS RECEIVABLE-CAC 11,334.11

1205 · ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE- SANE 2,803.00

1210 · GRANTS RECEIVABLE-VOCA 11,667.34

1240 · GRANTS RECEIVABLE - NCA 5,000.00

Total Accounts Receivable 30,804.45

Total Current Assets 513,022.63

Fixed Assets

1835 · LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS 779,083.31

1850 · FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 150,352.54

1899 · ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION -305,076.00

Total Fixed Assets 624,359.85

Other Assets

1950 · Capital Reserve 243,190.47

Total Other Assets 243,190.47

TOTAL ASSETS 1,380,572.95

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Credit Cards

2162 · FSB - VISA 2279 KF 312.87

2163 · FSB - VISA 2493 MB 853.88

Total Credit Cards 1,166.75

Other Current Liabilities

2150 · PAYROLL TAX LIABILITIES 318.92

2700 · DEFERRED REVENUE FROM GHF 45,833.33

Total Other Current Liabilities 46,152.25

Total Current Liabilities 47,319.00

Total Liabilities 47,319.00

Equity

2600 · UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 637,236.85

2610 · RETAINED EARNINGS 692,395.81

Net Income 3,621.29

Total Equity 1,333,253.95

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,380,572.95









































COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

FUNDING AGREEMENT 

This INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is executed by and between 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY CHILDREN'S ADVOCACY CENTER, 1811 SE Inner Loop, 
Georgetown, TX 78626, hereinafter referred to as "AGENCY" , and the CITY OF LEANDER, 
TEXAS, a home rule municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Texas, 
hereinafter referred to as the "City", P.O. Box 319, Leander, Texas 78646, acting by and 
through their duly authorized representatives. 

WHEREAS, the City of Leander is a local government as defined in 791.003 of the Texas 
Government Code, and 

WHEREAS, A G E N C Y is a Texas non-profit organization whose mission is to provide a safe 

place to report child abuse, reduce the emotional trauma for children and non-offending family 
members, and extend professional services that protect the integrity of an investigation; and 

WHEREAS, the goals of the Agency include (a) providing a child sensitive environment; (b) 
crisis intervention; (c) victim advocacy; (d) forensic interviewers; (e) medical and mental health 
referrals; and (f) investigation, prosecution, and treatment of child abuse cases; and 

WHEREAS, both A G E N C Y and the City desire to enter into this Agreement to provide for the 
use of funds granted by the City for the benefit of the Leander community; 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the covenants, conditions and 
undertakings hereinafter described, and the benefits to accrue to the citizens of the City, the 

parties contract, covenant and agree to provide certain governmental services and functions as 
follows: 

Section 1. Assistance. The City of Leander will provide assistance to the A G E N C Y to be used 
for services that support the goals of the A G E N C Y , in an amount not to exceed $30,000 (the 
"Grant") for the term of this Agreement. 

Section 2. Conflict of Interests. A G E N C Y covenants and agrees that it presently has no 

interest and will not acquire, direct or indirect, an interest, which conflicts with its efficient, 

diligent faithful performance of the terms of this contract and agreement. This agreement shall 
not be assigned or transferred by A G E N C Y without prior written consent of the City. 

Section 3. Agreement Period. This Agreement shall commence on October 1, 2015, and shall 

continue in effect until September 30, 2016 unless terminated in writing by the City or A G E N C Y 

by giving thirty days notice of termination to the other party. In the event of early termination by 



A G E N C Y , the A G E N C Y shall repay the City a pro rata share of the Grant, prorated over the 

one-year term of this Agreement. Terms governing repayment of the Grant shall survive the 

term of this Agreement until fulfilled. 

Section 4. Reporting. The A G E N C Y will provide the City with an annual report on the use of 

the funds or credit allocated to them by September 1 of each year. 

Section 5. Repayment of Funds. A G E N C Y shall repay the City the Grant, less any reductions 

as provided in this subsection, within ten (10) days of notice by the City in the event that 

A G E N C Y fails to use the Grant as provide in this Agreement. For each quarter that A G E N C Y 

uses the Grant as provided in this Agreement, A G E N C Y ' S obligation to repay the Grant shall be 

reduced by $7,500.00. 

Section 6. Amendments and Modifications. This Agreement may not be amended or modified 

except in writing executed by the City and the A G E N C Y and authorized by both parties. 

Section 7. Captions. The descriptive captions of this Agreement are for informational purposes 

only and shall in no way limit or effect the terms or conditions of the paragraphs. 

Section 8. Severability. The sections, paragraphs, clauses and phrases of this Agreement are 

severable and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section of the Agreement should 

be declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 

invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, or paragraphs, and 

sections of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHERE OF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their duly 

authorized agents and officers. 

SIGNED AND APPROVED this the day of September, 2015. 

CITY OF LEANDER A G E N C Y 

Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

Executive Director 

ATTEST: 

Debbie Haile, City Secretary 



AGENDA ITEM # 18 

 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 

September 17, 2015 
 
Subject: Consider Split Contract Award to Municipal Emergency Services and Rock-N-Rescue for Fire Safety 
Equipment    
 
Background: This process will provide a time savings for the fire department and the purchasing agent and 
money savings for the tax payers when buying fire department equipment.   The process allows for the city to 
take this competitive bid and compare for best bid prices or best product to other agreements that have been 
approved by the Leander City Council.  Those agreements include pricing for the City of Austin, Houston-
Galveston Area Council, City of Ft. Worth, State of Texas, and Buy Board Purchasing Agreements 
 
Two (2) qualified vendors submitted bids on August 20, 2015 for Fire Safety Equipment to equip new fire 
engines, replacement equipment, and fire fighters as needed.  Municipal Emergency Services was competitive 
on most items, however, Rock-N-Rescue was competitive on Item #33.  The initial 12-month term can be 
renewed for three (3) additional 12-month terms if the City’s opts to renew.   
 
Financial Consideration: FY 2014-2015 funds are budgeted in the Emergency Operations Department #01-
55-5217 $247,983.  FY 2015-16 funds are requested in the Emergency Operations Department #01-55-5217 
for $248,810. 
  
Recommendation:  Staff respectfully recommends that the Council award contracts for the specified 
equipment and terms allowing for a more cost and time effective process.  
 
Attachments: Bid tabulation and recommendation memo from Purchasing Agent. 
 
Prepared by: Bill Gardner, Fire Chief 
  Joy Simonton, Purchasing Agent 
 



SOLICITATION NUMBER 
S15-021 

SPECIFICATION NUMBER 

340-06 · 936-32 

JULY 2015 

 

 1 of 7 

   

 

CITY OF LEANDER 

INVITATION FOR BID 
FIRE SAFETY EQUIPMENT 

PART I 

GENERAL 

1. PURPOSE:  The City of Leander, herein after “City”, seeks to purchase from a qualified Individual, 
Firm or Corporation, herein “Respondent”, Fire Safety Equipment, as specified herein, on an as-
needed basis.   

The City seeks to maintain quality, reliability and efficiency within its fire engine fleet and safety 
equipment. With this goal in mind several manufacturers have been specified herein to establish 
the City’s minimum critical requirements and performance standards of this equipment. Any 
example shown is listed to show type and class of equipment desired only.    

Alternate equivalent manufacturers will be considered.   

Respondents are cautioned that any equipment which does not meet specifications in every aspect 
will not be considered or accepted.  City staff can approve or disapprove of alternate equivalent 
manufacturer recommendations. 
 

2. BACKGROUND:  The City of Leander anticipates adding several fire engines to its fleet over the next 
several years.  To prepare for these additional vehicles the City seeks a long term price agreement 
with one or more vendors to supply the supporting equipment needed for each vehicle. 

3. DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  By submitting a response to this solicitation, the 
Respondent agrees that the City’s standard Definitions, Terms and Conditions, in effect at the time 
of release of the solicitation, shall govern but shall be superseded by those terms and conditions 
specifically provided for otherwise within this solicitation, in a separate agreement or on the face of 
a purchase order.  The City’s Definitions, Terms and Conditions are herein made a part of this 
solicitation and can be found on the City’s website by visiting 
http://www.leandertx.gov/finance/page/purchasing.   

3.1. Any exception to or additional terms and conditions attached to the response will not be 
considered unless respondent specifically references them on the front of the Solicitation 
Document.  WARNING:  Exception to or additional terms and conditions may result in 
disqualification of the response. 

4. ATTACHMENTS:  Attachment A and B are herein made a part of this solicitation: 

4.1. Attachment A: Reference Form 

4.2. Attachment B:    Bid Form  

5. CLARIFICATION:  For questions or clarifications of specifications, you may contact: 

Joy Simonton 
Purchasing Agent 
City of Leander 
P.O. Box 319 

http://www.leandertx.gov/finance/page/purchasing


SOLICITATION NUMBER 
S15-021 

SPECIFICATION NUMBER 

340-06 · 936-32 

JULY 2015 

 

 2 of 7 

Leander, TX 78646 
Telephone: 512-528-2730 
jsimonton@leandertx.gov 

The individual listed above may be contacted by telephone or visited for clarification of the 
specifications only.  No authority is intended or implied that specifications may be amended or 
alterations accepted prior to solicitation opening without written approval of the City of Leander 
through the Purchasing Department. 

6. RESPONDENT REQUIREMENTS:  The opening of a solicitation shall not be construed as the 
City’s acceptance of such as qualified and responsive.   

6.1. Respondents shall be firms, corporations, individuals or partnerships normally engaged in the 
sale and distribution of the commodity specified herein. 

7. GOODS:  Respondent warrants and agrees that all materials supplied hereunder shall be NEW and 
manufactured and produced in compliance with the laws, regulations, codes, terms, standards, 
and/or requirements of all Federal, State, and local authorities, and all other authorities having 
jurisdiction, and that performance of goods shall be in accordance with the above laws, regulations, 
codes, terms, standards, and/or requirements, and agrees upon request, to furnish the City a 
certificate of compliance therewith in such forms as the City may require. 

8. ALTERNATE EQUIVALENT:  The City seeks to maintain quality, reliability and efficiency within its 
fire safety equipment. With this goal in mind several manufacturer’s have been specified herein to 
establish the City’s minimum critical requirements and performance standards of equipment. Any 
example shown is listed to show type and class of equipment desired only. Any alternate 
manufacturers offered must be equivalent as to function, basic design, type and quality of material, 
method of construction and any required dimensions. 

8.1. Alternate equivalent products will be considered.  Specifications and requests for alternate 
equivalent product consideration must be submitted via e-mail no later than 5:00 pm on July 
30, 2015 to: 

Joy Simonton 
jsimonton@leandertx.gov 

 
Written approval or denial of alternate equivalent shall be provided to Respondent no later than 
August 6, 2015 via the e-mail on the request.  

9. MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF BID:  A bid may be modified or withdrawn written notice 
provided to the Purchasing Agent prior to the date and time for the opening of the bids.   

9.1. If within 24 hours after bids are opened any respondent files written notice with Purchasing 
Agent and promptly demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of Purchasing Agent that 
there was a material and substantial mistake in the preparation of the bid, that respondent 
may withdraw the bid.  In this event, if the solicitation is re-issued, that respondent may be 
disqualified from rebidding the solicitation. 

10. AWARD:  The City reserves the right to enter into an Agreement or a Purchase Order with a single 
award, split awards, non-award, or use any combination that best serves the interest and at 
the sole discretion of the City.  Award announcement will be made upon City Council approval of 
staff recommendation and executed agreement.  Award announcement will appear on the City’s 
website at http://www.leandertx.gov/rfps.   

11. AGREEMENT TERM AND CANCELLATION:  The term “agreement” shall mean the executed 
contract awarded as a result of this solicitation and all exhibits thereto.   

11.1. At a minimum, the following documents will be incorporated into the agreement: 

mailto:jsimonton@leandertx.gov
mailto:jsimonton@leandertx.gov
http://www.leandertx.gov/rfps


SOLICITATION NUMBER 
S15-021 

SPECIFICATION NUMBER 

340-06 · 936-32 

JULY 2015 

 

 3 of 7 

11.1.1. Solicitation document, attachments and exhibits; 

11.1.2. Solicitation  addendums, if applicable; 

11.1.3. City’s Definitions, Terms and Conditions; 

11.1.4. Successful Respondent’s response documents. 

11.2. The initial term of the resulting agreement shall be one (1) consecutive twelve (12) month 
periods from the effective date. The agreement may be renewed for three (3) additional 
periods of time, not to exceed twelve (12) months each, provided both parties agree in writing 
prior to the expiration of the current term. 

11.3. The City reserves the right to review the Respondents’ performance at the end of each twelve 
(12) month period and cancel all or part of the agreement(s) or continue the agreement(s) 
through the next period. 

11.4. Respondent fails to perform its duties in a reasonable and competent manner, the City shall 
give written notice the Respondent of the deficiencies and the Respondent shall have thirty 
(30) days to correct such deficiencies. If the Respondent fails to correct the deficiencies with 
the thirty (30) days, the City may terminate the agreement by giving the Respondent written 
notice of termination and the reason for the termination. 

11.5. If the agreement is terminated, for any reason, the Respondent shall complete all outstanding 
deliveries after receipt of notice. 

12. PRICE INCREASE OR DECREASE:  A price increase shall not be permitted. 

 
13. DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE: Acceptance inspection should not take more than fifteen (15) 

working days.  The vendor will be notified within this time frame if the goods delivered are damaged 
or not in full compliance with the specifications.  Successful respondent shall repair any minor 
damages noted during this inspection period.  If any agreement or purchase order is canceled for 
non-acceptance, the needed good may be purchased elsewhere and the vendor may be charged 
full increase, if any, in cost and handling.  

14. QUANTITIES:  Any quantities shown on the solicitation are estimates only.  No guarantee of any 
minimum or maximum volume is made or implied.  The City shall only order the goods needed to 
satisfy operating requirements within budgetary constraints, which may be more or less than 
indicated. 

15. NON-APPROPRIATION:  The resulting Agreement is a commitment of the City’s current revenues 
only.  It is understood and agreed the City shall have the right to terminate the Agreement at the 
end of any City fiscal year if the governing body of the City does not appropriate funds sufficient to 
purchase the estimated yearly quantities, as determined by the City’s budget for the fiscal year in 
question.  The City may affect such termination by giving Vendor a written notice of termination at 
the end of its then current fiscal year. 

16. PROMPT PAYMENT POLICY:  Payments will be made in accordance with the Texas Prompt 
Payment Law, Texas Government Code, Subtitle F, Chapter 2251.  The City will pay Vendor within 
thirty days after the acceptance of the supplies, materials, equipment, or the day on which the 
performance of services was completed or the day, on which the City receives a correct invoice for 
the supplies, materials, equipment or services, whichever is later.  The Vendor may charge a late 
fee (fee shall not be greater than that which is permitted by Texas law) for payments not made in 
accordance with this prompt payment policy; however, this policy does not apply to payments made 
by the City in the event: 

16.1. There is a bona fide dispute between the City and Vendor concerning the supplies, materials, 
services or equipment delivered or the services performed that causes the payment to be 
late; or 



SOLICITATION NUMBER 
S15-021 

SPECIFICATION NUMBER 

340-06 · 936-32 

JULY 2015 

 

 4 of 7 

16.2. The terms of a federal agreement, grant, regulation, or statute prevent the City from making a 
timely payment with Federal Funds; or 

16.3. The is a bona fide dispute between the Vendor and a subcontractor or between a 
subcontractor and its suppliers concerning supplies, material, or equipment delivered or the 
services performed which caused the payment to be late; or 

16.4. The invoice is not mailed to the City in strict accordance with instructions, if any, on the 
purchase order or agreement or other such contractual agreement. 

 

PART II 

SCHEDULE 

1. SOLICITATION SCHEDULE:  It is the City’s intention to comply with the following solicitation 
timeline:  

1.1. Solicitation released July 16, 2015 

1.2. Deadline for alternate equivalent request  July 30, 2015 

1.3. City response to alternate equivalent request  August 6, 2015 

1.4. Deadline for questions August 11, 2015 

1.5. City responses to all questions or addendums August 13, 2015 

1.6. Responses for solicitation due at or before 3:00 PM August 20, 2015 

All questions regarding the solicitation shall be submitted in writing at or before 5:00 PM on 
the due date noted above.  A copy of all the questions submitted and the City’s response to the 
questions shall be posted on our webpage, http://www.leandertx.gov/rfps.  Questions shall be 
submitted to the City contact named herein. 

The City reserves the right to modify these dates.  Notice of date change will be posted to the City’s 
website. 

2. SOLICITATION UPDATES:  Respondents shall be responsible for monitoring the City’s website at 
http://www.leandertx.gov/rfps for any updates pertaining to the solicitation described 
herein.  Various updates may include addendums, cancelations, notifications, and any other 
pertinent information necessary for the submission of a correct and accurate response.  The City 
will not be held responsible for any further communication beyond updating the website. 

3. RESPONSE DUE DATE: Signed and sealed responses are due at or before 3:00 PM, on the date 
noted above to the Purchasing Department.  Ship via FedEx, UPS or other carrier or carry sealed 
responses to: 

Shipping Address (FedEx, UPS or hand delivery): 
 
Joy Simonton 
City of Leander 
Purchasing Department 
200 W. Willis Street 
Leander, TX 78641 
 
Mailing Address: 
 
Joy Simonton 
Purchasing Agent 

http://www.leandertx.gov/rfps
http://www.leandertx.gov/rfps


SOLICITATION NUMBER 
S15-021 

SPECIFICATION NUMBER 

340-06 · 936-32 

JULY 2015 

 

 5 of 7 

City of Leander 
P.O. Box 319 
Leander, TX 78646 
 
3.1. Responses received after this time and date shall not be considered. 

3.2. Sealed responses shall be clearly marked on the outside of packaging with the Solicitation 
title, number, due date and “DO NOT OPEN”. 

3.3. Facsimile or electronically transmitted responses are not acceptable. 

3.4. Late responses will be returned to Respondent unopened if return address is provided. 

3.5. Responses cannot be altered or amended after opening.   

3.6. No response can be withdrawn after opening without written approval from the City for an 
acceptable reason. 

3.7. The City will not be bound by any oral statement or offer made contrary to the written 
specifications. 

4. COSTS INCURRED:  Respondent shall acknowledge that the issuance of a solicitation shall in no 
way obligate the City to award a contract or to pay any costs associated with the preparation of a 
response to said solicitation.  The costs in developing and submitting proposals, preparing for and 
participating in oral presentations or any other similar expenses incurred by a Respondent are the 
sole responsibility of the Respondent and shall not be reimbursed by the City. 

 

PART III 

SPECIFICATIONS 

1. SCOPE: City seeks fulfillment and delivery of the fire safety equipment specified on the Bid Form, 
herein Attachment B.  Items shall be ordered on an as-needed basis.  

2. DELIVERY:  Delivery of equipment shall be to one of the several the City of Leander Fire 
Departments located in Leander, Texas 78641.  Delivery of equipment shall be made no later than 
ten (10) calendar days after receipt of City Purchase Order. 

3. PRICING:  Pricing shall be provided as a percentage off of manufacturer’s list price.  No additional 
fees shall be permitted.  Additional shipping fees shall not be permitted.  Contracted price per item 
shall be the only permitted charge to the City and shall include delivery.  City reserves the right to 
request, periodically, the successful respondent’s manufacturer invoices to verify contracted mark-
up is being charged. 

4. WARRANTY:  Manufacturer’s standard warranty shall apply.  The successful respondent shall 
warrant that products will conform to the specifications and/or all warranties as stated in the 
Uniform Commercial Code and be free from all defects in material, workmanship and title.  All 
warranty repairs or replacement will at the expense of the Successful Respondent to include 
shipping of items to and from Respondent. 

 
PART IV 

RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS 

The City of Leander makes no warranty that this checklist is a full comprehensive listing of every 
requirement specified in the solicitation.  This list is only a tool to assist participating Respondents in 
compiling their final responses.  Respondents are encouraged to carefully read the entire solicitation. 



SOLICITATION NUMBER 
S15-021 

SPECIFICATION NUMBER 

340-06 · 936-32 

JULY 2015 

 

 6 of 7 

Respondent shall submit one (1) executed (signed) original and two (2) copies of each response.  

For your bid to be responsive, all required attachments identified below shall be submitted with 
your proposal.  The Samples and/or copies shall be provided at the Respondent's expense, and shall 
become the property of the City. 

1. Responses shall be submitted on itemized, signed Bid Form provided herein as Attachment B.  
Failure to itemize or sign solicitation may result in disqualification.  Submission of responses on forms 
other that the City’s Solicitation Document may result in disqualification of the response. 

1.1. ALL FEES shall be included in price to include delivery to Leander, Texas.  No additional fees, 
such as shipping, shall be permitted. 

1.2. Alternate equivalent brands shall be noted if applicable with attached literature.   

2. Attachment A – Reference sheet. 

 

PART V 
 
 
1. CONFIDENTIALITY OF CONTENT:  All documents submitted in response to a solicitation shall be 

subject to the Texas Public Information Act.  Following an award, responses are subject to release as 
public information unless the response or specific parts of the response can be shown to be exempt 
from the Texas Public Information Act.  Pricing is not considered to be confidential under any 
circumstances. 
 
1.1 Information in a submittal that is legally protected as a trade secret or otherwise confidential 

must be clearly indicated with stamped, bold red letters stating "CONFIDENTIAL" on that section 
of the document.  The City will not be responsible for any public disclosure of confidential 
information if it is not clearly marked as such. 

 
1.2 If a request is made under the Texas Public Information Act to inspect information designated as 

confidential, the Respondent shall, upon request from the City, furnish sufficient written reasons 
and information as to why the information should be protected from disclosure.  The matter will 
then be presented to the Attorney General of Texas for final determination. 
 

2. ETHICS ORDINANCE AND DISCLOSURE STATEMENTS:  The City’s Ethics Ordinance requires 
persons seeking to enter discretionary contracts with the City or appearing before the City Council or 
another City board or body to disclose certain conflicts of interest.  The relevant sections of the Ethics 
Ordinance are set forth below.  The Ethics Ordinance can be found in Article 9.05, Chapter 9 of the 
City’s Code of Ordinances at the following link: 
http://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=leanderset 

Sec. 9.05.007     Persons doing business with the city 

(a)     Persons seeking discretionary contracts. 

(1)     For the purpose of assisting the city in the enforcement of provisions contained in this 
article, an individual or business entity seeking a discretionary contract from the city is 
required to disclose in connection with a proposal for a discretionary contract any conflict 
of interest. This is set forth in sections 9.05.004 and 9.05.005 of this article. Further, the 
individual or business entity agree to abide by the same ethical standards as set forth for 
public servants in this article. 

http://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=leanderset
http://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/DocViewer.jsp?docid=84&z2collection=leander#JD_9.05.004
http://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/DocViewer.jsp?docid=84&z2collection=leander#JD_9.05.005


SOLICITATION NUMBER 
S15-021 

SPECIFICATION NUMBER 

340-06 · 936-32 

JULY 2015 

 

 7 of 7 

(2)     Subsection (a) of this section will become a permanent footnote on documents contained 
in city bid packets for discretionary contracts. 

(b)    Disclosure of conflicts of interest by persons appearing before a board or city body. A person 
appearing before any city board or other city body for the purpose of doing business with the 
city shall disclose to that board or body any facts known to such person which may show or 
establish that:   

(1)     An employee or officer of the city that advises or makes presentations to the board or city 
body; or 

(2)     Any member of the board or city body; has or may have a conflict of interest pursuant to 
chapter 171, Tex. Loc. Gov’t. Code, or an interest which would violate the ethical 
standards set forth in this article, if he or she were to participate in the processing or 
consideration of the subject matter. 

Sec. 9.05.009(f)     Disclosure by persons appearing before a city body. Any person who appears 
before any city body who has had business dealings within the preceding 12-month period involving 
one or more transactions of five hundred dollars ($500.00) or more each quarter, or for a total of 
twenty-five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) or more, within the preceding 12-month period with a 
councilmember, commissioner, or business entity in which a councilmember or commissioner has a 
substantial interest, shall disclose such business dealings at the time of the appearance. Any person 
who shall intentionally or knowingly fail to make the aforesaid disclosure shall be guilty of a 
misdemeanor and shall be fined in accordance with this article. 

 



City of Leander Reference Sheet 

 1 of 1 

ATTACHMENT A 

RESPONDENT’S REFERENCE SHEET 

PLEASE COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS FORM WITH THE SOLICITATION RESPONSE 

SOLICITATION NUMBER:              

RESPONDENT’S NAME:         DATE:         
 

Provide the name, address, telephone number and E-MAIL of at least three (3) Municipal and/or 
Government agencies or firms of comparable size that have utilized similar service within the last two (2) 
years.  City of Leander references are not applicable.  References may be checked prior to award.  Any 
negative responses received may result in disqualification of submittal.  
 
 
1. Company’s Name       

 Name of Contact       

 Title of Contact       

 E-Mail Address       

 Present Address       

 City, State, Zip Code       

 Telephone Number (         )        Fax Number: (         )        

   

   

2. Company’s Name       

 Name of Contact       

 Title of Contact       

 E-Mail Address       

 Present Address       

 City, State, Zip Code       

 Telephone Number (         )        Fax Number: (         )        

   

   

3. Company’s Name       

 Name of Contact       

 Title of Contact       

 E-Mail Address       

 Present Address       

 City, State, Zip Code       

 Telephone Number (         )        Fax Number: (         )        

   

 

FAILURE TO PROVIDE THE REQUIRED INFORMATION WITH THE SOLICITATION RESPONSE MAY 
AUTOMATICALLY DISQUALIFY THE RESPONSE FROM CONSIDERATION FOR AWARD. 

 



Tax ID Number: ______________________________ 
 
Business Name:  ______________________________ 
 
Address: ______________________________ 
 
Address: ______________________________ 
 
Contact: ______________________________ 
 
Telephone: ______________________________ 
 
Entity Type: ______________________________ 
 
E-mail: ______________________________ 

 
    

        Newspaper         City’s Website              E-mail Announcement                 ESBD                    Other ____________________                     

    
        Yes            No                       

    
         Yes              No      Register at:   http://www.texasbidsystem.com    

 
CITY OF LEANDER BID FORM – ATTACHMENT B  

PURCHASING DEPARTMENT 
200 W. Willis Street • Leander, Texas  78641 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SO
LI

C
IT

A
TI

O
N

 IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

 

 HOW DID YOU HEAR 
ABOUT THIS 

SOLICITATION? 

Solicitation Number: #S15-021 Fire Safety 

Equipment 

Due Date:  August 20, 2015 

Time:   On or Before 3:00 PM CST 

Submit to:  City of Leander 
   Purchasing Division 
   200 W. Willis Street 
   Leander, TX 78641 
   jsimonton@leandertx.org 

 

R
ES

P
O

N
D

EN
T 

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

 
 

 FIRST TIME 
RESPONDING TO CITY 

OF LEANDER?  

 IS YOUR BUSINESS 
REGISTERED WITH 

TEXAS BID SYSTEM?  

        

ITEM # MANUFACTURER NAME
UNIT OF 

MEASURE
PRICE

APPROVED "OR EQUAL" 

ALTERNATE EQUIVALENT 

MANUFACTURE NAME

1 AKRON % Off List %

2 AMEREX % Off List %

3 ANSUL % Off List %

4 AQUA LUNG % Off List %

5 CHEMGUARD % Off List %

6 CMC % Off List %

7 CUTTERS EDGE % Off List %

8 ELKHART BRASS % Off List %

9 ESS % Off List %

10 FERNO % Off List %

11 FIRE HOOKS UNLIMITED % Off List %

12 FIREQUIP % Off List %

http://www.texasbidsystem.com/
mailto:jsimonton@leandertx.org


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13 FORCE 6 % Off List %

14 FOX FURY % Off List %

15 HANNAY REELS % Off List %

16 HARRINGTON, INC % Off List %

17 HERBERT % Off List %

18 HONDA % Off List %

19 INDIAN FIRE PUMPS % Off List %

20 JUNKIN % Off List %

21 KASK % Off List %

22 KO CURTAIN % Off List %

23 KOCHEK % Off List %

24 LAERDAL % Off List %

25 LEATHERHEAD TOOLS % Off List %

26 LONE STAR AXE, LLC % Off List %

27 MK DIAMOND % Off List %

28 MUSTANG SURVIVAL % Off List %

29 NATIONAL FOAM % Off List %

30 NRS % Off List %

31 NUPLA % Off List %

32 OHD % Off List %

33 OS SYSTEMS % Off List %

34 PAC MOUNT % Off List %

35 PELICAN PRODUCTS % Off List %

36 PETZL % Off List %

37 PMI % Off List %

38 RED HEAD BRASS % Off List %

39 RIT SOLUTIONS % Off List %

40 S.M. SMITH CO. % Off List %



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Print Authorized Individual Name:  _____________________________________ 
 
Authorized Signature:    _____________________________________ 
 
Date:    _____________________________________ 
 
 

   

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
ED

 
SI

G
N

A
TU

R
E 

41 S&H FIRE PRODUCTS % Off List %

42 SCOTT SAFETY % Off List %

43 SIMULAIDS % Off List %

44 SKYHOOK RESCUE SYSTEMS % Off List %

45 STEARNS % Off List %

46 STREAMLIGHT % Off List %

47 TEAM EQUIPMENT % Off List %

48 TELE-LITE % Off List %

49 TEMPEST % Off List %

50 TRUE NORTH % Off List %

51 UNDERWATER KINETICS % Off List %

52 UNIFIRE % Off List %

53 VIZCON % Off List %

54 YATES % Off List %

55 ZIAMATIC % Off List %



 

 

  

INTEROFFICE MEMO 

 

DATE: August 26, 2015 

TO: Bill Gardner 

FROM: Joy Simonton 

RE: Recommendation for Award for Solicitation #S15-021; Fire Safety Equipment 

 

The Purchasing Division recommends Municipal Emergency Services and Rock-N-Rescue for a split 
award of a 12-month agreement with three (3) 12-month renewals for Fire Safety Equipment on an as-
needed basis in accordance with the city’s solicitation process.   

Two (2) responses were received.  One (1) HUBS was notified of the solicitation.   

 

Joy Simonton, Purchasing Agent 

 

 

CC: FILE 



S15-021 Tabulation for Fire Safety Equipment

ITEM # MANUFACTURER NAME
UNIT OF 

MEASURE
PRICE PRICE

1 AKRON % Off List 42% AWARD No Bid

2 AMEREX % Off List 43% AWARD No Bid

3 ANSUL % Off List 43% AWARD No Bid

4 AQUA LUNG % Off List No Bid NO AWARD No Bid NO AWARD

5 CHEMGUARD % Off List 43% AWARD No Bid

6 CMC % Off List 22% AWARD No Bid

7 CUTTERS EDGE % Off List 22% AWARD No Bid

8 ELKHART BRASS % Off List 43% AWARD No Bid

9 ESS % Off List 41% AWARD No Bid

10 FERNO % Off List 16% AWARD No Bid

11 FIRE HOOKS UNLIMITED % Off List 25% AWARD No Bid

12 FIREQUIP % Off List 45% AWARD No Bid

13 FORCE 6 % Off List No Bid NO AWARD No Bid NO AWARD

14 FOX FURY % Off List 21% AWARD No Bid

15 HANNAY REELS % Off List 20% AWARD No Bid

16 HARRINGTON, INC % Off List 43% AWARD No Bid

17 HERBERT % Off List No Bid NO AWARD No Bid NO AWARD

18 HONDA % Off List No Bid NO AWARD No Bid NO AWARD

19 INDIAN FIRE PUMPS % Off List 35% AWARD No Bid

20 JUNKIN % Off List 22% AWARD 1%

21 KASK % Off List No Bid NO AWARD No Bid NO AWARD

22 KO CURTAIN % Off List 21% AWARD No Bid

23 KOCHEK % Off List General 52%; LDH 47% AWARD No Bid

24 LAERDAL % Off List No Bid NO AWARD No Bid NO AWARD

25 LEATHERHEAD TOOLS % Off List 43% AWARD No Bid

26 LONE STAR AXE, LLC % Off List No Bid NO AWARD No Bid NO AWARD

27 MK DIAMOND % Off List 54%; Saws 21% AWARD No Bid



S15-021 Tabulation for Fire Safety Equipment

28 MUSTANG SURVIVAL % Off List 20% AWARD No Bid

29 NATIONAL FOAM % Off List 21% AWARD No Bid

30 NRS % Off List 20% AWARD 15%

31 NUPLA % Off List 43% AWARD No Bid

32 OHD % Off List
9519-4000:11%; Other 

8%
AWARD No Bid

33 OS SYSTEMS % Off List No Bid 10% AWARD

34 PAC MOUNT % Off List 17% AWARD No Bid

35 PELICAN PRODUCTS % Off List 42% AWARD No Bid

36 PETZL % Off List 32% AWARD
18%; ExoSystems 

10%

37 PMI % Off List Varies: 20-32% AWARD 15%

38 RED HEAD BRASS % Off List No Bid NO AWARD No Bid NO AWARD

39 RIT SOLUTIONS % Off List 27% AWARD No Bid

40 S.M. SMITH CO. % Off List 43% AWARD No Bid

41 S&H FIRE PRODUCTS % Off List 32% AWARD No Bid

42 SCOTT SAFETY % Off List
Core 33%; Parts 25%;

Camera 11%
AWARD No Bid

43 SIMULAIDS % Off List 22% AWARD 1%

44 SKYHOOK RESCUE SYSTEMS % Off List No Bid NO AWARD No Bid NO AWARD

45 STEARNS % Off List 41% AWARD No Bid

46 STREAMLIGHT % Off List 50% AWARD No Bid

47 TEAM EQUIPMENT % Off List Saws 27%; Parts 22% AWARD No Bid

48 TELE-LITE % Off List 17% AWARD No Bid

49 TEMPEST % Off List 33% AWARD No Bid

50 TRUE NORTH % Off List 27% AWARD No Bid

51 UNDERWATER KINETICS % Off List 43% AWARD No Bid

52 UNIFIRE % Off List 22% AWARD No Bid

53 VIZCON % Off List 14% AWARD No Bid

54 YATES % Off List 20% AWARD
10%; SpecPak 5%; 

Kits 5%

55 ZIAMATIC % Off List 32% AWARD No Bid



AGENDA ITEM # 19 

 
Executive Summary 

 September 17, 2015 

Agenda Subject:   Public Hearing on a Proposal to Adopt a Tax Rate for FY 2015-16. 
 
Background:    This is the second of two required public hearings on the tax rate. The first 
hearing was held on September 14, 2015.  If a taxing entity desires to consider a possible tax rate 
that would exceed either the effective tax rate or rollback tax rate, whichever is lower, state 
“Truth-in-Taxation” laws require two public hearings.  The proposed rate need not be the final 
rate that the governing body actually adopts, but the final rate cannot exceed the proposed rate 
which for FY 2015-16, the proposed rate is 63.292 cents per $100 which is the 2.0 cents below 
the current rate. 

As background, the effective tax rate is generally equal to the prior year’s taxes divided 
by the current taxable value of properties that were also on the tax roll in the prior year.  The 
rollback rate allows a taxing entity to raise the same amount of M&O money as raised in the 
prior year, plus 8 percent.  The rollback debt service rate is the rate needed to pay the entity’s 
debt service for the upcoming year.  The rates are as follows:  

 
 ETR Calculation Current Rate  Proposed Rate 

Effective Tax Rate $0.614859 per $100 $0.65292 $0.63292 

Effective Operating Tax Rate $0.392394 per $100 $0.41864 $0.40364 

Effective Maximum Operating Tax Rate $0.423785 per $100   

Debt Rate  $0.229280 per $100 $0.23428 $0.22928 

Rollback Rate  $0.653065 per $100 $0.65292 $0.63292 

  
Origination: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director  
 
Attachments:  Effective & Rollback Rate Calculations; Public Notice 
 
Recommendation:     At the conclusion of the public hearing, the Mayor is required to announce 
the date, time, and location of the vote on the tax rate.  The vote on the tax rate will occur on 
Monday, September 21, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. at the Pat Bryson Municipal Hall, 201 North Brushy 
Street, Leander, Texas. 

 
Prepared by:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director    



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 1/10

2015 Effective Tax Rate Worksheet
City of Leander

 

See pages 13 to 16 for an explanation of the effective tax rate.

1. 2014 total taxable value. Enter the amount of 2014 taxable value on the 2014
tax roll today. Include any adjustments since last year's certification; exclude
Section 25.25(d) onethird overappraisal corrections from these adjustments.
This total includes the taxable value of homesteads with tax ceilings (will deduct
in line 2) and the captured value for tax increment financing (will deduct taxes in
line 14). $2,505,222,437

2. 2014 tax ceilings. Counties, Cities and Junior College Districts. Enter 2014 total
taxable value of homesteads with tax ceilings. These include the homesteads of
homeowners age 65 or older or disabled. Other units enter "0" If your taxing units
adopted the tax ceiling provision in 2014 or prior year for homeowners age 65 or
older or disabled, use this step. $196,957,692

3. Preliminary 2014 adjusted taxable value. Subtract line 2 from line 1. $2,308,264,745

4. 2014 total adopted tax rate. $0.652920/$100

5. 2014 taxable value lost because court appeals of ARB decisions reduced
2014 appraised value.
A. Original 2014 ARB values: $8,906,280
B. 2014 values resulting from final court decisions:  $7,909,361
C. 2014 value loss. Subtract B from A.   $996,919

6. 2014 taxable value, adjusted for courtordered reductions.
Add line 3 and line 5C. $2,309,261,664

7. 2014 taxable value of property in territory the unit deannexed after January
1, 2014. Enter the 2014 value of property in deannexed territory. $0

8. 2014 taxable value lost because property first qualified for an exemption in
2014. Note that lowering the amount or percentage of an existing exemption
does not create a new exemption or reduce taxable value. If the taxing unit
increased an original exemption, use the difference between the original
exempted amount and the increased exempted amount. Do not include value
lost due to freeport, "goodsintransit" exemptions.
A. Absolute exemptions. Use 2014 market value: $637
B. Partial exemptions. 2015 exemption amount or

2015 percentage exemption times 2014 value: + $5,257,869
C. Value loss. Add A and B.   $5,258,506



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 2/10

2015 Effective Tax Rate Worksheet (continued)
City of Leander

 

9. 2014 taxable value lost because property first qualified for agricultural
appraisal (1d or 1d1), timber appraisal, recreational/scenic appraisal or
public access airport special appraisal in 2015. Use only those properties
that first qualified in 2015; do not use properties that qualified in 2014.
A. 2014 market value: $1,380,057
B. 2015 productivity or special appraised value:  $2,636
C. Value loss. Subtract B from A.   $1,377,421

10. Total adjustments for lost value. Add lines 7, 8C and 9C. $6,635,927

11. 2014 adjusted taxable value. Subtract line 10 from line 6. $2,302,625,737

12. Adjusted 2014 taxes. Multiply line 4 by line 11 and divide by $100. $15,034,303

13. Taxes refunded for years preceding tax year 2014. Enter the amount of taxes
refunded during the last budget year for tax years preceding tax year 2014. Types
of refunds include court decisions, Section 25.25(b) and (c) corrections and
Section 31.11 payment errors. Do not include refunds for tax year 2014. This line
applies only to tax years preceding tax year 2014. $30,066

14. Taxes in tax increment financing (TIF) for tax year 2014. Enter the amount of
taxes paid into the tax increment fund for a reinvestment zone as agreed by the
taxing unit. If the unit has no 2015 captured appraised value in Line 16D, enter
"0." $105,726

15. Adjusted 2014 taxes with refunds. Add lines 12 and 13, subtract line 14. $14,958,643

16. Total 2015 taxable value on the 2015 certified appraisal roll today. This
value includes only certified values and includes the total taxable value of
homesteads with tax ceilings (will deduct in line 18). These homesteads
includes homeowners age 65 or older or disabled.
A. Certified values only: $3,010,679,608
B. Counties: Include railroad rolling stock values

certified by the Comptroller's office: + $0



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 3/10

2015 Effective Tax Rate Worksheet (continued)
City of Leander

 

16.
(cont.)

C. Pollution control exemption: Deduct the value of
property exempted for the current tax year for the
first time as pollution control property (use this line
based on attorney's advice):  $0

D. Tax increment financing: Deduct the 2015
captured appraised value of property taxable by a
taxing unit in a tax increment financing zone for
which the 2015 taxes will be deposited into the tax
increment fund. Do not include any new property
value that will be included in line 21 below.  $44,630,895

E. Total 2015 value. Add A and B, then subtract C
and D.   $2,966,048,713

17. Total value of properties under protest or not included on certified
appraisal roll.
A. 2015 taxable value of properties under protest.

The chief appraiser certifies a list of properties still
under ARB protest. The list shows the district's
value and the taxpayer's claimed value, if any or
an estimate of the value if the taxpayer wins. For
each of the properties under protest, use the
lowest of these values. Enter the total value. $64,714,293

B. 2015 value of properties not under protest or
included on certified appraisal roll. The chief
appraiser gives taxing units a list of those taxable
properties that the chief appraiser knows about but
are not included at appraisal roll certification.
These properties also are not on the list of
properties that are still under protest. On this list of
properties, the chief appraiser includes the market
value, appraised value and exemptions for the
preceding year and a reasonable estimate of the
market value, appraised value and exemptions for
the current year. Use the lower market, appraised
or taxable value (as appropriate). Enter the total
value. + $0  



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 4/10

2015 Effective Tax Rate Worksheet (continued)
City of Leander

 

17.
(cont.)

C. Total value under protest or not certified. Add A
and B.   $64,714,293

18. 2015 tax ceilings. Counties, cities and junior colleges enter 2015 total taxable
value of homesteads with tax ceilings. These include the homesteads of
homeowners age 65 or older or disabled. Other units enter "0." If your taxing
units adopted the tax ceiling provision in 2014 or prior year for homeowners age
65 or older or disabled, use this step. $259,020,485

19. 2015 total taxable value. Add lines 16E and 17C. Subtract line 18. $2,771,742,521

20. Total 2015 taxable value of properties in territory annexed after January 1,
2008. Include both real and personal property. Enter the 2015 value of property in
territory annexed. $30,845,229

21. Total 2015 taxable value of new improvements and new personal property
located in new improvements. "New" means the item was not on the appraisal
roll in 2014. An improvement is a building, structure, fixture or fence erected on
or affixed to land. A transportable structure erected on its owner's land is also
included unless it is held for sale or is there only temporarily. New additions to
existing improvements may be included if the appraised value can be
determined. New personal property in a new improvement must have been
brought into the unit after January 1, 2014 and be located in a new improvement.
New improvements do include property on which a tax abatement agreement
has expired for 2015. New improvements do not include mineral interests
produced for the first time, omitted property that is back assessed and increased
appraisals on existing property. $308,043,066

22. Total adjustments to the 2015 taxable value. Add lines 20 and 21. $338,888,295

23. 2015 adjusted taxable value. Subtract line 22 from line 19. $2,432,854,226

24. 2015 effective tax rate. Divide line 15 by line 23 and multiply by $100. $0.614859/$100

25. COUNTIES ONLY. Add together the effective tax rates for each type of tax the
county levies. The total is the 2015 county effective tax rate. $/$100

A county, city or hospital district that adopted the additional sales tax in November 2014 or in May 2015 must
adjust its effective tax rate. The Additional Sales Tax Rate Worksheet on page 39 sets out this adjustment. Do not
forget to complete the Additional Sales Tax Rate Worksheet if the taxing unit adopted the additional sales tax on
these dates.



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 5/10

2015 Rollback Tax Rate Worksheet
City of Leander

See pages 17 to 21 for an explanation of the rollback tax rate.
26. 2014 maintenance and operations (M&O) tax rate. $0.418640/$100

27. 2014 adjusted taxable value. Enter the amount from line 11. $2,302,625,737

28. 2014 M&O taxes.
A. Multiply line 26 by line 27 and divide by $100. $9,639,712
B. Cities, counties and hospital districts with

additional sales tax: Amount of additional sales
tax collected and spent on M&O expenses in 2014.
Enter amount from full year's sales tax revenue
spent for M&O in 2014 fiscal year, if any. Other
units, enter "0." Counties exclude any amount that
was spent for economic development grants from
the amount of sales tax spent. + $0

C. Counties: Enter the amount for the state criminal
justice mandate. If second or later year, the
amount is for increased cost above last year's
amount. Other units, enter "0." + $0

D. Transferring function: If discontinuing all of a
department, function or activity and transferring it
to another unit by written contract, enter the
amount spent by the unit discontinuing the function
in the 12 months preceding the month of this
calculation. If the unit did not operate this function
for this 12month period, use the amount spent in
the last full fiscal year in which the unit operated
the function. The unit discontinuing the function
will subtract this amount in H below. The unit
receiving the function will add this amount in H
below. Other units, enter "0." +/ $0  



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 6/10

2015 Rollback Tax Rate Worksheet (continued)
City of Leander

 

28.
(cont.)

E. Taxes refunded for years preceding tax year 2014:
Enter the amount of M&O taxes refunded during
the last budget year for tax years preceding tax
year 2014. Types of refunds include court
decisions, Section 25.25(b) and (c) corrections and
Section 31.11 payment errors. Do not include
refunds for tax year 2014. This line applies only to
tax years preceding tax year 2014. + $19,831

F. Enhanced indigent health care expenditures:
Enter the increased amount for the current year's
enhanced indigent health care expenditures above
the preceding tax year's enhanced indigent health
care expenditures, less any state assistance. + $0

G. Taxes in tax increment financing (TIF): Enter the
amount of taxes paid into the tax increment fund
for a reinvestment zone as agreed by the taxing
unit. If the unit has no 2015 captured appraised
value in Line 16D, enter "0."  $113,158

H. Adjusted M&O Taxes. Add A, B, C, E and F. For
unit with D, subtract if discontinuing function and
add if receiving function. Subtract G.   $9,546,385

29. 2015 adjusted taxable value.
Enter line 23 from the Effective Tax Rate Worksheet. $2,432,854,226

30. 2015 effective maintenance and operations rate.
Divide line 28H by line 29 and multiply by $100. $0.392394/$100

31. 2015 rollback maintenance and operation rate.
Multiply line 30 by 1.08. (See lines 49 to 52 for additional rate for pollution control
expenses. $0.423785/$100



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 7/10

2015 Rollback Tax Rate Worksheet (continued)
City of Leander

 

32. Total 2015 debt to be paid with property taxes and additional sales tax
revenue. 
"Debt" means the interest and principal that will be paid on debts that: 
(1) are paid by property taxes,
(2) are secured by property taxes,
(3) are scheduled for payment over a period longer than one year and
(4) are not classified in the unit's budget as M&O expenses.
A: Debt also includes contractual payments to other

taxing units that have incurred debts on behalf of
this taxing unit, if those debts meet the four
conditions above. Include only amounts that will be
paid from property tax revenue. Do not include
appraisal district budget payments. List the debt in
Schedule B: Debt Service. $6,964,040

B: Subtract unencumbered fund amount used to
reduce total debt. $608,965

C: Subtract amount paid from other resources. $0
D: Adjusted debt. Subtract B and C from A. $6,355,075

33. Certified 2014 excess debt collections. Enter the amount certified by the
collector. $0

34. Adjusted 2015 debt. Subtract line 33 from line 32. $6,355,075

35. Certified 2015 anticipated collection rate. Enter the rate certified by the
collector. If the rate is 100 percent or greater, enter 100 percent. 100.000000%

36. 2015 debt adjusted for collections. Divide line 34 by line 35. $6,355,075

37. 2015 total taxable value. Enter the amount on line 19. $2,771,742,521

38. 2015 debt tax rate. Divide line 36 by line 37 and multiply by $100. $0.229280/$100

39. 2015 rollback tax rate. Add lines 31 and 38. $0.653065/$100

40. COUNTIES ONLY. Add together the rollback tax rates for each type of tax the
county levies. The total is the 2015 county rollback tax rate. $/$100

 
A taxing unit that adopted the additional sales tax must complete the lines for the Additional Sales Tax Rate. A
taxing unit seeking additional rollback protection for pollution control expenses completes the Additional Rollback
Protection for Pollution Control.



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 8/10

2015 Notice of Effective Tax Rate
Worksheet for Calculation of Tax Increase/Decrease

 
Entity Name: City of Leander Date: 08/25/2015
 
      

1.2014 taxable value, adjusted for courtordered reductions.
Enter line 6 of the Effective Tax Rate Worksheet. $2,309,261,664    

2.2014 total tax rate.
Enter line 4 of the Effective Tax Rate Worksheet. 0.652920    

3.Taxes refunded for years preceding tax year 2014.
Enter line 13 of the Effective Tax Rate Worksheet. $30,066    

4.Last year's levy.
Multiply Line 1 times Line 2 and divide by 100.
To the result, add Line 3. $15,107,697    

5.2015 total taxable value. Enter Line 19 of
the Effective Tax Rate Worksheet. $2,771,742,521    

6.2015 effective tax rate.
Enter line 24 of the Effective Tax Rate Worksheet or Line 47
of the Additional Sales Tax Rate Worksheet. 0.614859    

7.2015 taxes if a tax rate equal to the effective tax rate is adopted.
Multiply Line 5 times Line 6 and divide by 100. $17,042,308    

8.Last year's total levy.
Sum of line 4 for all funds. $15,107,697 

9.2015 total taxes if a tax rate equal to the effective tax rate is adopted.
Sum of line 7 for all funds. $17,042,308 

10.Tax Increase (Decrease).
Subtract Line 8 from Line 9. $1,934,611 



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 9/10

City of Leander
Tax Rate Recap for 2015 Tax Rates

 

Description of Rate
Tax Rate
Per $100

Tax Levy
This is calculated using
the Total Adjusted

Taxable Value (line 19)
of the Effective Tax
Rate Worksheet

Additional Tax Levy
Compared to last year's
tax levy of 16,357,098

Additional Tax Levy
Compared to effective

tax rate levy of
17,042,308

Last Year's Tax Rate 0.652920 $18,097,261 $1,740,163 $1,054,953

Effective Tax Rate 0.614859 $17,042,308 $685,210 $0

Notice & Hearing Limit* 0.614859 $17,042,308 $685,210 $0

Rollback Tax Rate 0.653065 $18,101,280 $1,744,182 $1,058,972

Proposed Tax Rate 0.632920 $17,542,913 $1,185,814 $500,604

 
Effective Tax Rate Increase in Cents per $100
0.00 0.614859 17,042,308 685,210 0

0.50 0.619859 17,180,895 823,797 138,587

1.00 0.624859 17,319,483 962,384 277,174

1.50 0.629859 17,458,070 1,100,971 415,761

2.00 0.634859 17,596,657 1,239,559 554,349

2.50 0.639859 17,735,244 1,378,146 692,936

3.00 0.644859 17,873,831 1,516,733 831,523

3.50 0.649859 18,012,418 1,655,320 970,110

4.00 0.654859 18,151,005 1,793,907 1,108,697

4.50 0.659859 18,289,592 1,932,494 1,247,284

5.00 0.664859 18,428,180 2,071,081 1,385,871

5.50 0.669859 18,566,767 2,209,668 1,524,458

6.00 0.674859 18,705,354 2,348,256 1,663,046

6.50 0.679859 18,843,941 2,486,843 1,801,633

7.00 0.684859 18,982,528 2,625,430 1,940,220

7.50 0.689859 19,121,115 2,764,017 2,078,807

8.00 0.694859 19,259,702 2,902,604 2,217,394

8.50 0.699859 19,398,289 3,041,191 2,355,981

9.00 0.704859 19,536,877 3,179,778 2,494,568

9.50 0.709859 19,675,464 3,318,365 2,633,155

10.00 0.714859 19,814,051 3,456,953 2,771,743

10.50 0.719859 19,952,638 3,595,540 2,910,330

11.00 0.724859 20,091,225 3,734,127 3,048,917

11.50 0.729859 20,229,812 3,872,714 3,187,504

12.00 0.734859 20,368,399 4,011,301 3,326,091

12.50 0.739859 20,506,986 4,149,888 3,464,678

13.00 0.744859 20,645,574 4,288,475 3,603,265

13.50 0.749859 20,784,161 4,427,062 3,741,852

14.00 0.754859 20,922,748 4,565,650 3,880,440

14.50 0.759859 21,061,335 4,704,237 4,019,027

 
*Notice & Hearing Limit Rate: This is the highest tax rate that may be adopted without notices and a public hearing.
It is the lower of the rollback tax rate or the effective tax rate.
School Districts: The school tax rate limit is $1.50 for M&O, plus $0.50 for 'New' debt plus a rate for 'Old' debt. 'Old'
debt is debt authorized to be issued at an election held on or before April 1, 1991, and issued before September 1,
1992. All other debt is 'New' debt.



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 10/10

Tax Levy: This is calculated by taking the adjusted taxable value (line 19 of Effective Tax Rate
Worksheet), multiplying by the appropriate rate, such as the Effective Tax Rate and
dividing by 100.

For School Districts: This is calculated by taking the adjusted taxable value (line 34
of the Rollback Tax Rate Worksheet), multiplying by the appropriate rate, dividing by
100 and then adding this year's frozen tax levy on homesteads of the elderly.

 
Additional Levy
Last Year:

This is calculated by taking Last Year's taxable value (line 3 of Effective Tax Rate
Worksheet), multiplying by Last Year's tax rate (line 4 of Effective Tax Rate
Worksheet) and dividing by 100.

For School Districts: This is calculated by taking Last Year's taxable value,
subtracting Last Year's taxable value for the elderly, multiplying by Last Year's tax
rate, dividing by 100 and adding Last Year's tax ceiling.

 
Additional Levy
This Year:

This is calculated by taking the current adjusted taxable value, multiplying by the
Effective Tax Rate and dividing by 100.

For School Districts: This is calculated by taking the adjusted taxable value (line 34
of the Rollback Tax Rate Worksheet), multiplying by the Effective Tax Rate, dividing
by 100 and adding This Year's tax ceiling.

 
COUNTIES
ONLY:

All figures in this worksheet include ALL County Funds. Tax Levy amounts are the
sum of each Fund's Taxable Value X each Fund's Tax Rate.



8/25/2015 Notice of Proposed Tax Rate (Exceeds)

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 1/1

PROPOSED TAX RATE

PRECEDING YEAR'S TAX
RATE
EFFECTIVE TAX RATE

ROLLBACK TAX RATE

NOTICE OF 2015 TAX YEAR PROPOSED
PROPERTY TAX RATE FOR

City of Leander
A tax rate of $0.632920 per $100 valuation has been proposed by the governing body of City of
Leander. This rate exceeds the lower of the effective or rollback tax rate, and state law requires that
two public hearings be held by the governing body before adopting the proposed tax rate.

$0.632920 per $100

$0.652920 per $100

$0.614859 per $100

$0.653065 per $100

The effective tax rate is the total tax rate needed to raise the same amount of property tax revenue for
City of Leander from the same properties in both the 2014 tax year and the 2015 tax year. 

The rollback tax rate is the highest tax rate that City of Leander may adopt before voters are entitled
to petition for an election to limit the rate that may be approved to the rollback rate.

YOUR TAXES OWED UNDER ANY OF THE ABOVE RATES CAN BE CALCULATED AS FOLLOWS:

property tax amount = (rate) x (taxable value of your property) / 100

For assistance or detailed information about tax calculations, please contact: 

Deborah M. Hunt, CTA 
Williamson County tax assessorcollector 
904 S. Main Street, Georgetown, TX 78626 
5129431603 
proptax@wilco.org 
www.wilco.org 

You are urged to attend and express your views at the following public hearings on proposed tax rate: 
First Hearing: 09/14/2015 6:00 PM at Pat Bryson Municipal Hall, 201 N Brushy St, Leander, TX
78641 
Second Hearing: 09/17/2015 7:00 PM at Pat Bryson Municipal Hall, 201 N Brushy St, Leander, TX
78641



AGENDA ITEM # 20 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 17, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case #15-Z-013: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of 10.922 acres more or less out of the M.S. 
Hornsby Survey, generally located to the northwest corner of 
Crystal Falls Pkwy and Lakeline Blvd, WCAD ID R526317, 
R526318, & R514375. Currently, the property is zoned GC-3-B 
(General Commercial).  The applicant is proposing to zone the 
property to PUD (Planned Unit Development), Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Cunningham-Allen, Inc (Jana Rice) on behalf of KB 

Homes Lone Star, Inc. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

recommended approval of the applicant’s request including: 
1. A reduction in the density from 186 units to 84 units 
2. All dwellings will be single-story 

 
 The motion passed with a 5 to 1 vote (Commissioner Hines 

opposing) at the September 10, 2015 meeting. 
 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Proposed Zoning Map 
 4. Vicinity Map 
 5. Aerial Map 
 6. Proposed PUD Plan 
 7.   Letter of Intent 
 8. Notification Map 



AGENDA ITEM # 20 
 

 9. Neighborhood Correspondence 
 10. Applicant’s Proposed Amendment to the Conceptual Site 

Layout Plan. 
 11. Ordinance  
 12. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission September 10, 2015 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 09/11/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-013 

 
BLISS AT MASON HILLS PUD 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: KB Homes Lone Star, Inc. 
 
Current Zoning: GC-3-B (General Commercial)   
  
Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  
Size and Location: The property is located at northwest corner of Crystal Falls Pkwy and 

Lakeline Blvd and is approximately 10.922 acres in size. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFU-2-B Residential Under Construction (Mason Ranch Subdivision)  

EAST SFU/MH-2-B Proposed & Existing Residential (Mason Ranch & The 
Boulders at Crystal Falls Subdivisions) 

SOUTH GC-3-C Assisted Living Facility & Water Quality Pond 

WEST SFU-2-B 
GC-3-A 

Fire Station 
Undeveloped Land Zoned for Commercial 

        

  

 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a mixture of duplexes and apartments.  The intent of this zoning 
district is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility with adjacent 
single-family residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the region. 

  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 Establish high standards for development. 
 The Community Center land use node is intended to be located at the intersections of 

arterial streets or arterials and major collectors.  These nodes are approximately one half 
mile in diameter and incorporate approximately 125 acres.  These areas are intended for 
commercial, retail and office uses that primarily serve residents within the community.  
These areas are also intended for medium density multi-family and high density single-
family housing. Development within these nodes should be integrated through internal 
streets and should provide pedestrian and bicycle connections to adjacent residential 
neighborhoods. 
 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting the PUD (Planned Unit Development) district in order to allow for 
the development of duplexes and apartments at this location.  The properties to the north and east 
are part of the Mason Ranch Subdivision that is currently under construction.  The property to 
the south is developed as an assisted living facility and the property to the west includes the Fire 
Station and undeveloped land zoned for commercial uses.   
 
A portion of this property was annexed as part of the Mason Ranch Subdivision in 2001 and the 
remainder was annexed in 2007.  The portion of the property closest to the intersection of 
Lakeline Blvd and Crystal Falls Pkwy was zoned C-2 in 2004 and this district later converted to 
the current GC-3-B district with the adoption of the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  The 

 



Attachment # 1                 

remainder of the tract was rezoned to GC-3-B in 2008 as part of the Mason Ranch Subdivision 
zoning case. 
 
A PUD district can be an appropriate district in this situation because it offers the applicant the 
opportunity to design a zoning district that will provide for a mixture of duplexes and apartments 
while limiting the overall density.     
 
The applicant is proposing the MF-2-A (Multi-Family) and LC-2-A (Local Commercial) base 
zoning districts to accommodate the proposed development.  The proposal includes a total of 186 
units, comprised of seventeen duplexes (34 units) and two four story apartment buildings (152 
units), and local commercial uses closest to the intersection.  The current zoning district would 
permit a range of commercial uses including office, retail, and service.  There are no hours of 
operation limitations.   
 
The proposed LC use component permits all uses allowed in the LO (Local Office) use 
component as well as retail sales and services, restaurants, banks, and convenience stores.  The 
hours of operation: are limited to 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. Sunday through Thursday and 5:00 
a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Friday and Saturday.  The intent of the use component is to allow for uses that 
are limited in scale and offer services to neighboring residential neighborhoods.  Access should 
be provided by a collector or higher classification street.   
 
The current Type 3 site component does permit outdoor storage or display, outdoor 
entertainment, or outdoor fueling.  The change to a Type 2 site component would prohibit these 
outdoor uses.  The table below demonstrates the differences between the two site components. 
 
 

Site Standards Type 2 Type 3 

Outdoor Display and Storage Not Permitted 30% of gross floor area 
of primary structure 

Use of Overhead Commercial 
Service Doors Not Permitted Permitted 

Outdoor Fueling Not Permitted Permitted 

Outdoor Container Storage Not Permitted 20% of gross floor area 
of primary structure 

 
Additional Restrictions: 
 Increased setbacks from Crystal Falls Pkwy and requiring the duplexes to be located 

adjacent to the single-family neighborhood as a transition. 
 Limitations on the retail commercial building to 6,200 square feet in size. 
 Architectural Criteria 

‐ Apartments:  Require 7 design features and limit the percentage of stucco to no 
more than 50% of the exterior surface area of walls. 

‐ Duplexes:  Require 5 design features and limit the percentage of stucco to no 
more than 60% of the exterior surface area of walls. 

 



Attachment # 1                 

‐ Commercial:  Require 5 design features and limit the percentage of stucco to no 
more than 60% of the exterior surface area of walls.   

 Building height shall be limited to 35 feet for commercial buildings and duplexes, and 45 
feet for multi-family. 

 Construction of a masonry wall along Lakeline Blvd 
 Providing a public trail between the duplexes and Mason Ranch Subdivision to provide a 

connection. 
 
Additional Waiver: 
 Reduction in parking.  The applicant is proposing a senior project and has requested a 

reduction in the parking requirements.  An alternative parking plan will be required to 
demonstrate how the complex could provide parking if the project was no longer 
dedicated to seniors. 
 

This property is located within a Community Center Node as identified by the Future Land Use 
Map.  This land use node is intended to be located at the intersections of arterial streets or 
arterials and major collectors.  These nodes are approximately one half mile in diameter and 
incorporate approximately 125 acres.  These areas are intended for commercial, retail and office 
uses that primarily serve residents within the community.  These areas are also intended for 
medium density multi-family and high density single-family housing. Development within these 
nodes should be integrated through internal streets and should provide pedestrian and bicycle 
connections to adjacent residential neighborhoods. 
 
All nodes designated by the Future Land 
Use Plan seek to have the most intense 
development closest to the center of the 
node, and to have reduction in intensity of 
development as it moves out from the 
center of those nodes.  The graph to the 
right shows the target mix of land uses 
within the Community Center Node.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
The existing land use mix does not meet 
the target mix shown in the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Currently, the 
predominant land uses are low density 
residential and community commercial / 
retail.  The existing land use mix is shown 
in the graph to the right. 
 
 
  

 

30% 

15% 
20% 

35% 

Community Center  
Target Land Use Mix 

Community
Commercial/Retail
Office
Multi‐Family
High Density Single‐
Family

39% 

2% 11% 
16% 

32% 

Community Center  
Existing Land Use Mix  

Community
Commercial/Retail
Office
Public
High Density Single‐
Family
Low Density Single‐
Family



Attachment # 1                 

The proposed zoning change brings the 
land use mix closer to compliance with 
the Comprehensive Plan regarding the 
percentage of community commercial / 
retail and multi-family uses. The proposed 
land use mix is shown in the graph to the 
right. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed Bliss at Mason Hills PUD.  This PUD provides a 
transition between the neighborhood to the north and the intersection of two major 
thoroughfares. The proposed PUD includes higher standards of development such as the Type A 
architectural component, adding additional setbacks, public trail system, and a masonry wall 
along Lakeline Blvd.  The requested zoning district meets the intent statements of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 

 

29% 

2% 11% 
10% 

16% 

32% 

Community Center 
Proposed Land Use Mix Community

Commercial/Retail
Office
Public
Multi‐Family
High Density
Single‐Family
Low Density Single‐
Family



3B

2A

3A

3A

2A

3B

2A

3B

2B

2B

3B

2B

2B

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E 
BL

VD

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

BO
VI

NA
 D

R

FIR
ST

 V
IE

W

OV
ER

LA
ND

 D
R

WIGWAM

GREENING WAY

MULEDEER RUN

CARMINE DR

CHRISTINE DR

CRESSON TRL

GRAFORD ST

W
ILD

FIR
E

DEEPWOODS TRL

CO
LU

MB
IN

E 
LN

HOLLY HILL DR

UHLAND DR

MI
MO

SA
 LN

PRIMROSE LN

HOLLOWBACK DR

VI
ST

A 
DR

HUMBLE LIVE DR

REKLAW LN

BURR PKW
Y

QUARRY LOOP

BE
AS

LE
Y 

CV

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E 
BL

VD

FIR
ST VIEW

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-013  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - Bliss at Mason Hills PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

MASON CREEK.SEC 2

MASON RANCH

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 1

WHITESTONE
ES

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH V

WOODS AT 
WHITESTONE, SEC 1

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH IV

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E 
BL

VD

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

BOVINA DR

OV
ER

LA
ND

 D
R

CARMINE DR

GR
EE

NI
NG

 W
AY

CRESSON TRL

CHRISTINE DR

GRAFORD ST

MULEDEER RUN

W
ILD

FIR
E

UHLAND DR

MI
MO

SA
 LN

DEEPWOODS TRL

PRIMROSE LN

VISTA DR
HOLLOWBACK DR

HUMBLE LIVE DR

FIRST VIEW

HOLLY HILL DR

REKLAW LN

BE
AS

LE
Y 

CV

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E 
BL

VD

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-013  Attachment #3 Proposed Map - Bliss at Mason Hills PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Proposed
PUD



2A

3B

2A

3A

3B

2A

2B

3A

2A

2A

3B

3B

2A

2B 2B2B 2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

1B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

3B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E 
BL

VD

WIGWAM

S BAGDAD RD

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

SONNY DR

FIR
ST VIEW

MIRA VISTA

BO
VI

NA
 D

R

GREENING WAY

DEEPWOODS TRL

AM
BU

SH
 CA

NY
ON

PA
RK

WOOD
 DR

MULEDEER RUN

SEDONA

BURR PKWY

LA
UR

EL
 LN

APPLE ROCK

OAKWOOD DR

TAMARAC TRL

MASON CREEK BLVD

OV
ER

LA
ND

 D
R

IRON HORSE

UH
LA

ND
 D

R

PL
AN

O 
LN

OAK HOLLOW DR

BUFFALO GAP

CARMINE DR

CHRISTINE DR

PEREGRINE WAY

OLD QUARRY RD

HA
MI

LT
ON

S 
WA

Y

CRESSON TRL

SE
QU

OI
A 

DR

GRAFORD ST

PAWNEE

ARROYO GRANDE

LONG BOW DR

W
ILD

FIR
E

LA COSTA

CO
LU

MB
IN

E 
LN

RE
KL

AW
 LN

HOLLY HILL DR

LANTANA DR

PEORIA DR

AL
TO

N 
DR

NIGHTSHADE LN

LEADERS LN

BROOKS WAY

AD
RI

AN
 D

R

BIG HORN

QUARRY LOOP

HONEYSUCKLE DR

OS
PR

EY
 D

R

HUMBLE LIVE DR

OCOTILLO

TRADITIONS CT

SHAWNEE

LANTANA CT

BLUEBONNET CT

PINEWOOD CV

OLD QUARRY RD

SONNY DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

OLD QUARRY RD

LONG BOW DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-013  Attachment #4 Vicinity Map - Bliss at Mason Hills PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Community
Center Node

Neighborhood 
Center Node

Community
Center Node



N LAKELINE BLVD

BOVINA D
R

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

OV
ER

LA
ND

 D
R

CARMINE DR

CRESSON TRL

GR
EE

NI
NG

 W
AY

GRAFORD ST

WI
LD

FIR
E

MULEDEER RUN
CHRISTINE DR

UHLAND DR

WIGWAM

MI
MO

SA
 LN

LIONS DEN
ROWDY LOOP

DEEPWOODS TRL

HOLLOWBACK DR

PRIMROSE LN

LOYAL FRIEND DR

HUMBLE LIVE DR

REKLAW LN

LOCAL REBEL ST

STANDING TALL DR

BE
AS

LE
Y C

V

N LAKELINE BLVD

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-013 Attachment #5
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Bliss at Mason Hills PUD

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



BLISS RESORT LIVING AT MASON HILLS 
(A SENIOR LIVING COMMUNITY) 

 
 

City of Leander, Texas 
PUD Planned Unit Development 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Owner:  KB home Lone Star, Inc. 

10800 Pecan Park, Suite 200 
Austin, Texas 78750 

 
Applicant:  Bliss at Mason Hills LLC 
   1229 Nichol Lane 

Nashville, TN 37205 
 
Engineer:  Cunningham Allen, Inc. 
   3103 Bee Caves Road, Suite 202 
   Austin, Texas 78746 
 
Architect:    Cornerstone Architects 

7000 Bee Caves Road, Suite 200 
Austin, Texas 78746 

 



 
Exhibit A 

Bliss Resort Living at Mason Hills Planned Unit Development 
 
A. 

 
Purpose and Intent 

The property consists of 10.922 acres, as described in Exhibit B (Field Notes),

 

 located 
near the Northwest corner of the intersection of Lakeline Boulevard and Crystal Falls 
Boulevard, Leander, Texas.  Bliss Resort Living at Mason Hills will be the premier 
age-restricted multi-family community in Central Texas consisting of 186 apartment 
homes specifically designed for active single-household residents age 55 and better 
with amenities comparable to higher-end luxury resorts. Scaling and massing of the 
buildings reflects the adjacent neighborhood and the project will be surrounded by 
walking paths, a bike trail, and tranquil gardens. 

The contents of this PUD further explain and illustrate the overall appearance and 
function desired for this neighborhood.  A Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
has been attached to this PUD, Exhibit C

 

, to illustrate the design intent for the property.  
The Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan is intended to serve as a guide to 
illustrate the general neighborhood vision and design concept and is not intended to 
serve as a final site plan.   

B. 
 

Applicability and Base Zoning 

All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply the City of Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance, except as established in this exhibit, titled Exhibit A
   

.   

For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, a base zoning 
district has been selected from the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 Base Districts: MF-2-A (Multi-Family) and LC-2-A (Local Commercial) 

 
The neighborhood within the PUD will comply with the modified development 
standards of this PUD.  In the case that this PUD does not address a specific City 
requirement, the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance shall apply.  In the event of a 
conflict between this PUD and the base zoning district found in the Leander Composite 
Zoning Ordinance, this PUD shall control. 

 
C. 
 

Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 

Exhibit C

 

 attached is a conceptual development plan intended to visually convey the 
design intent for the Bliss Resort Living at Mason Hills project.  The design of the 
community is not final, and is subject to refinement during the platting and site 
planning stages.  This PUD zoning document does not constitute plat or site plan 
approval of the attached plan. 



Bliss Resort Living at Mason Hills project is comprised of a gated multi-family and 
commercial development, which will consist of: 
1. DUPLEXES:  17 duplex style, single level casita buildings, adjacent to the 

neighboring single-family homes with an average size of 1,165 square feet and one 
or two car garages. 
 

2. APARTMENTS:  2 four-story buildings consisting of 76 units each featuring one-
bedroom and two-bedroom flats.   

 
3. MULTI-FAMILY CLUBHOUSE:  A 5,000 square foot clubhouse overlooking 

resort style pool and separate exercise and health facility for use by the multi-family 
residents (multi-family consists of the apartments and duplexes), their guests, 
potential residents, and guests invited by Bliss at Mason Hills management. 
 

4. COMMERCIAL:  The Commercial portion of the project is to be +/- 6,200 square 
feet of local commercial, retail, office, or restaurant space that would be suitable as 
affiliated uses to the project.  This area is not part of the gated community.  

 
D. 
 

Allowable Use 

The use shall be both 4 story apartment homes and single story duplexes combined in a 
multi-family residential development; as well as a mixed retail commercial building 
approximately 6,200 square feet in size.  The maximum number of units is limited to 
186. 

 
E. 
 

Lot Design Standards 

Bliss Senior Living at Mason Hills development will comply with the following 
setbacks: 

1. All building setbacks from Crystal Falls Parkway and N. Lakeline Blvd. 
will be a minimum of 25’. 

2. All building setbacks from north property line will be a minimum of 25’. 
3. Apartment building setbacks from Crystal Falls Parkway will be a 

minimum of 50’. 
 

F. 
 

Drive Design 

The Bliss Senior Living at Mason Hills community will incorporate the following drive 
standards. 
 

1. This project shall consist of private drives instead of public roadways.    The 
pavement width shall be a minimum of 26 feet in width-face of curb to face of 
curb. 
 

2. The access drive alignment, building pads and on street parking along the drives 
may vary to minimize disturbance to significant trees and natural topographic 
features.  Private drives will be maintained by the community association. 



 
3. The apartment buildings and duplexes will be privately gated. 

 
4. Drive lighting is required at the intersections between the internal drives and 

public streets. “Dark Sky” lighting will be provided throughout the development 
in accordance with the Texas section of the International Dark-Sky Association.  

 
5. Sidewalks will be provided, and are already installed, along the property lines 

that are adjacent to N. Lakeline Blvd and Crystal Falls Pkwy. 
 

G. 
 

Architectural Criteria 

The site will comply with the Type A Architectural Component and Type 2 Site 
Component of the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  The project will utilize the highest 
architectural standards defined by Type A.  The project with substantially comply with 
the renderings utilizing these architectural standards that are included as Exhibit D 
(Renderings). 
 

Apartments 
Design Features: 7 different design features including: 

1. Horizontal offsets – each building is divided into three 
residential wings, which are turned and offset horizontally. 
Residential unit porches also extend from each of the 
residential wing façades. 

2. Recesses - the residential wings are connected by two 
communal nodes, each expressed on the façade by varying 
material height, plan orientation, door and window opening 
rhythms and roof heights.  

3. Porches – each residential unit is provided with a covered 
porch.  Central nodes also feature several porches connected 
to communal spaces. 

4. Awnings – Porches on communal nodes will include 
awnings for shade. 

5. Varied Roof heights – roof heights are varied to express the 
communal nodes, and residential building volumes, 
residential unit porches, and exit stairs. 

6. Premium roof materials – Standing seam metal roofing will 
be used on communal porches, residential unit porches, high 
nodes, and exit stairs. 

7. Other design features – decorative metal brackets at roof 
overhangs and communal patio projections.  Architectural 
lighting will highlight design features at the patios and roof 
overhangs.  Communal patio awnings will feature expressed 
timber construction. 

Exterior Materials: At least 85% of the exterior surface area of walls will consist of 
masonry and no more than 50% of the exterior surface area of walls 
shall consist of painted or tinted stucco.  The remaining exterior wall 
surface will be comprised of cementitious-fiber plank siding. 
 Stone: native limestone in white and colors found in 



surrounding neighborhoods. 
 Stucco: to be determined, likely in a palette of browns, 

golds, grays and greens to reference the colors used in the 
duplexes. 

 Siding: used as an accent in a color to be determined, likely 
in a rich brown for a wood feel. 

The roof will be primarily a premium composition shingle at 4:12 
slope.  Standing seam metal roofing will be used on communal 
porches, residential unit porches, high nodes and exit stairs. 

Window and Door Openings: A minimum of 15% of the front primary building façade will consist 
of window or door openings.  Glazing shall have a maximum 
exterior reflectivity of 20%. 

Building Height: For areas adjacent to the duplexes, the buildings shall not exceed a 
height of 30 feet at a distance of 20 feet plus one foot for each one 
foot of setback beyond 20 feet. 
For areas adjacent to the roads, the building height exceeding 45 feet 
will include building setbacks increased one foot in distance for each 
two feet of additional building height in excess of 45 feet. 

  
Duplexes 
Design Features: 5 different design features including: 

1. Horizontal offsets – interior spaces are expressed as 
horizontal projections and varying roof plate heights. 

2. Recessed entry – primary entrance is set in from building 
facade  

3. Porches – each unit is provided with a covered porch.  
4. Awnings – each unit features one decorative awning with a 

standing seam roof and architecturally expressed brackets. 
5. Wing Wall – a low, stone wall ties into a wood gate and 

screen between the street and the courtyard adjacent to the 
unit entry. 

Exterior Materials: Exterior surface area of walls will consist of 100% masonry and no 
more than 60% of the exterior surface area of walls shall consist of 
painted or tinted stucco.  
 Stone: native limestone in white and colors found in 

surrounding neighborhoods. 
 Stucco: to be determined, likely in a palette of browns, 

grays, golds and greens. 
The roof will be a premium composition shingle at 4:12 slope, and 
standing seam metal roofing will be used on decorative awnings. 

Window and Door Openings: A minimum of 15% of the front primary building façade will consist 
of window or door openings.  Glazing shall have a maximum 
exterior reflectivity of 20%. 

Building Height: Buildings shall not exceed a height of 35 feet. 
  
Commercial 
Design Features: 5 different design features including: 

1. Breezeway – four of the storefront entrances on the front of 
the building are within a covered exterior space featuring 
tapered stone columns and expressed timber construction. 



2. Porches – a deep, wide covered porch is provided on the 
south end of the building for a potential outdoor dining 
space. 

3. Awnings – decorative awnings shade the storefront 
entrances on each side of the tower element. 

4. Varied roof heights – the breezeway and tower element roofs 
have different roof heights than the main roof. 

5. Premium roofing materials – all roofs and awnings will be 
standing seam metal. 

Exterior Materials: At least 85% of the exterior surface area of walls will consist of 
masonry and no more than 50% of the exterior surface area of walls 
shall consist of painted or tinted stucco.  The remaining exterior wall 
surface will be comprised of cementitious-fiber plank siding. 
 Stone: native limestone in white and colors found in 

surrounding neighborhoods. 
 Stucco: to be determined, likely in a palette of browns, 

golds, grays and greens to reference the colors used in the 
duplexes. 

 Siding: used as an accent in a color to be determined, likely 
in a rich brown for a wood feel. 

 The roof will be standing seam metal at 4:12 slope.  
Window and Door Openings: A minimum of 15% of the front primary building façade will consist 

of window or door openings.  Glazing shall have a maximum 
exterior reflectivity of 20%. 

Building Height: Building shall not exceed a height of 35 feet. 
  
Multi-Family Clubhouse 
Design Features: 6 different design features including: 

1. Porte-cochere – grand entrance at the front of the building 
where residents and visitors can meet their transportation out 
of the elements via a covered driveway drop-off area.  The 
porte-cochere will feature tapered stone columns and 
expressed timber construction. 

2. Porches – a deep, wide covered porch is provided on the rear 
of the building for a potential outdoor living dining space. 

3. Recessed entry – the main entry is tucked into the building 
façade and connects to the porte-cochere. 

4. Architectural Details – decorative metal brackets and deep 
rooflines will be used on the roof elements. 

5. Varied roof heights – the porte-cochere has a different roof 
height than the main roof. All roofs and awnings will be 
standing seam metal. 

Exterior Materials: At least 85% of the exterior surface area of walls will consist of 
masonry and no more than 50% of the exterior surface area of walls 
shall consist of painted or tinted stucco.  The remaining exterior wall 
surface will be comprised of cementitious-fiber plank siding. 
 Stone: native limestone in white and colors found in 

surrounding neighborhoods. 
 Stucco: to be determined, likely in a palette of browns, 

golds, grays and greens to reference the colors used in the 



duplexes. 
 Siding: used as an accent in a color to be determined, likely 

in a rich brown for a wood feel. 
 The roof will be standing seam metal at 4:12 slope.  

Window and Door Openings: A minimum of 15% of the front primary building façade will consist 
of window or door openings.  Glazing shall have a maximum 
exterior reflectivity of 20%. 

Building Height: Building shall not exceed a height of 35 feet. 
 

 Parking Requirements 
1. Duplexes 

 Each duplex shall include one single car garage unit and one two-car garage 
unit. 
 

 Each single car garage unit shall provide one garage enclosed parking space 
plus 1.5 additional off street parking spaces.  (Driveway may be counted 
toward provision of off street parking). 
 

 Two Car Garage Units:  Each two-car garage unit shall provide a minimum of 
two garage enclosed parking spaces plus 2 additional off street parking spaces.  
(Driveway may be counted toward provision of off street parking). 

 
 Garage parking will be provided for 100% of the duplexes. 

 
2. Apartments 

 Each of the apartment buildings will have a mix of 1 bedroom flats and 2 
bedroom flats.  Parking for the 1 bedroom units shall be 1.25 spaces per unit 
and 1.5 spaces for the 2 bedroom units.  With the project being age restricted, 
single person households having only one or no cars will occupy most units.   
 

 As long as the units are rented to a head of household or spouse that is at least 
fifty-five (55) years of age, the off-street parking may be reduced as listed 
above.  Should the property no longer be used for a senior project, then the off 
street parking requirements shall comply with the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance.  An alternative parking plan shall be provided as part of the site 
development permit demonstrating that the parking requirements can be met 
should the use change.  The owner of the property shall contact the City and 
notify the City of the property’s change of use from a senior project. 
 

 Bliss at Mason Hills will also be providing transportation services for its 
residents via van and/or car service.  Therefore, the parking ratios will more 
than exceed the parking need for all of the multi-family units. 
 

 32 garages shall be provided for the Apartments. These are in addition to the 
34 garages provided for the duplexes, providing 35.48% of the units with 
garages. 

 
   



3. Commercial 
 The commercial space will have a parking ratio of 1 space per every 200 

square feet. 
 

4. Multi-family Clubhouse 
 The multi-family clubhouse is only for the use of residents, their guests, 

potential residents and invited guests of the Bliss at Mason Hills management.  
While the use does not require any additional parking, 4 visitor/potential 
resident spaces will be provided.  

 
 

H. 
 

Walls, Fencing and Landscaping 

1. Bliss Resort Living at Mason Hills will utilize a masonry wall that matches the 
existing walls already installed in the Mason Hills development along Lakeline 
Boulevard as described in Exhibit E (Lakeline Masonry Wall), and may utilize 
wrought iron or decorative tubular metal fencing around the remaining multi-family 
portion of the site and where views into adjacent open space and buffers are desired.  
The masonry wall along Lakeline Boulevard provides full landscape screening  

 
2. A walking path for use by the public will be constructed between the duplex units 

and the Mason Hills single-family lots that are adjacent to the northern property 
boundary. 

 
3. Bliss Resort Living at Mason Hills shall comply with the applicable landscape 

standards for multi-family and local commercial districts as listed in Article VI of 
the Composite Zoning Ordinance. 

 
4. Minimum landscape requirements per every 600 square feet of landscaped area 

shall be 2 two-inch shade trees of at least 2” caliper, and 5 five-gallon shrubs. 
 





Exhibit C

Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 



50’ Flats Building Setback
from Crystal Falls Parkway

CEXHIBIT C - CONCEPTUAL SITE LAYOUT AND LAND USE PLAN



Exhibit D 
 

Renderings 
 
 













Exhibit E 
 

Lakeline Masonry Wall 
 

Single Width Limestone Screenwall Construction Details 
 

Screenwall Design Details: 
Limestone Screenwalls to match pattern and design already in Mason Hills.  Limestone to be 
a blend of white, cream, tan, and caverock.  Stone to be sawn at top and bottom.  Stone 
pattern to consist of 4” and 8” tall stone placed in a random ashlar pattern.  Stone wall face to 
be placed flush vertically.  Stone at back of wall to vary vertically with thickness or wall.  No 
formal cap to be placed at top of wall.  Mortar joints to range between minimum 3/8” to 
maximum 5/8”.  Mortar to be raked back approximately 1/4” to 1/2” from face of stone.  
Total wall height to average 6’ tall grade. 
 
Screenwall Installation Details: 
Concrete footing to include #5 rebar reinforcing with #3 stirrups at 18” on center.  Drilled 
piers to be placed in footing as required by site conditions.  If solid rock is encountered the 
footing will be doweled into rock with #5 rebar. 
 
Post Tension System 
Post Tension System to be placed at 4’ on center.  System to be composed of a 5/8” X18” J-
Blot, a 5/8” coupler, a 5/8” galvanized rod, and a galvanized steel washer with nut. 
 



MASON CREEK.SEC 2

MASON RANCH

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 1

WHITESTONE
ES

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH V

R4
19

63
0

R514373

R5
26

31
7

R324977

R4
84

29
3

R514375

R524376

R526318

R365578

R514374

R483269

R5
26

34
1

R524347

R524377

R5
24

26
0

R412
799

R526366

R484818

R524
375

R5
26

37
8

R5
26

37
7

R483255

R526375

R3
37

29
7

R337299

R5
26

33
3

R337298

R483257

R483256

R5
26

38
4

R526332

R526381

R526374

R526376

R5
26

38
5

R526379

R526369

R526324

R5
26

38
3

R337300

R4
83

25
9

R526342

R398
984

R412802

R526356

R526373

R5
26

36
8

R526348

R483
258

R412792

R526350

R526380

R4
83

26
0

R3
37

30
1

R526370R526371

R526372

R412801

R526330

R412798

R5
26

38
7

R526351

R526331

R398
98

3

R526325

R526343

R526353
R526354

R5
26

38
8

R3
99

00
0

R526349

R526382

R526358
R526359

R3
37

30
2

R526345

R526352

R526326
R526360

R526365
R526364

R526363R526362R526361

R5
26

36
7

R526355

R526357

R526336

R526346

R526344

R526
334

R3
98

98
2

R526337

R398985

R483264

R526347

R526328

R526329

R398993

R526327

R526338
R526339

R526
335

R398991R5
26

32
3

R5
26

38
9

R398992

R399002

R399004

R412800

R399001

R398989

R398987

R398988

R398990 R399003

R483265

R398986

R483266

R5
26

39
0

R412797

R3
98

99
9

R3
98

98
1

R5
26

38
6

R337296

R483261

R337293

R483262

R399005

R526391

R483263

R526392R526393R526394

R412809

R506402

R412810

R526403

R398237

N LAKELINE BLVD

BO
VI

NA
 D

R

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

CARMINE DR

CRESSON TRL

GRAFORD ST

GR
EE

NI
NG

 W
AY

MULEDEER RUN

HUMBLE LIVE DR

LOCAL REBEL ST

CHRISTINE DR

UHLAND DR

DUSTY BND

BE
AS

LE
Y 

CV

N LAKELINE BLVD

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-013  

Attachment #7
Notification Map
Bliss at Mason Hills PUD

CITY MAPË

Public Notification Boundary
Subject Property

City Limits
WCAD Parcels

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 8













ASSISTED LIVING

EXHIBIT C - CONCEPTUAL SITE LAYOUT

rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 10PRELIMINARY - This document has not been reviewed by City Staff



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING SEVERAL PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM GC-3-B (GENERAL COMMERCIAL) TO PUD (PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcels of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property:”  That certain parcels of land being 10.922 acres, more or less, located 
in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “B”, generally 
located to the northwest corner of Crystal Falls Pkwy and Lakeline Blvd; legally described as 
10.922 acres more or less out of the Moses S. Hornsby Survey, Abstract 292, more particularly 
described in Document Number 2013078190 Official Public Records of Williamson County, 
Texas, and identified by tax identification numbers R526317, R526318 and R514375.  
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from GC-3-B (General Commercial) to PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
known as the Bliss at Mason Hills PUD.  The PUD shall be developed and occupied in 
accordance with this Ordinance, the PUD plan attached as Exhibits “A”, “B”, “C”, “D”, and “E” 
which are hereby adopted and incorporated herein for all purposes, and the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance to the extent not amended by this Ordinance.  In the event of a conflict between the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance and the requirements for the Property set forth in this Ordinance, 
this Ordinance shall control.   
 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 17th day of September, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 1st day of October, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



BLISS RESORT LIVING AT MASON HILLS 
(A SENIOR LIVING COMMUNITY) 

 
 

City of Leander, Texas 
PUD Planned Unit Development 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Owner:  KB home Lone Star, Inc. 

10800 Pecan Park, Suite 200 
Austin, Texas 78750 

 
Applicant:  Bliss at Mason Hills LLC 
   1229 Nichol Lane 

Nashville, TN 37205 
 
Engineer:  Cunningham Allen, Inc. 
   3103 Bee Caves Road, Suite 202 
   Austin, Texas 78746 
 
Architect:    Cornerstone Architects 

7000 Bee Caves Road, Suite 200 
Austin, Texas 78746 

 



 
Exhibit A 

Bliss Resort Living at Mason Hills Planned Unit Development 
 
A. 

 
Purpose and Intent 

The property consists of 10.922 acres, as described in Exhibit B (Field Notes),

 

 located 
near the Northwest corner of the intersection of Lakeline Boulevard and Crystal Falls 
Boulevard, Leander, Texas.  Bliss Resort Living at Mason Hills will be the premier 
age-restricted multi-family community in Central Texas consisting of 186 apartment 
homes specifically designed for active single-household residents age 55 and better 
with amenities comparable to higher-end luxury resorts. Scaling and massing of the 
buildings reflects the adjacent neighborhood and the project will be surrounded by 
walking paths, a bike trail, and tranquil gardens. 

The contents of this PUD further explain and illustrate the overall appearance and 
function desired for this neighborhood.  A Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
has been attached to this PUD, Exhibit C

 

, to illustrate the design intent for the property.  
The Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan is intended to serve as a guide to 
illustrate the general neighborhood vision and design concept and is not intended to 
serve as a final site plan.   

B. 
 

Applicability and Base Zoning 

All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply the City of Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance, except as established in this exhibit, titled Exhibit A
   

.   

For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, a base zoning 
district has been selected from the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 Base Districts: MF-2-A (Multi-Family) and LC-2-A (Local Commercial) 

 
The neighborhood within the PUD will comply with the modified development 
standards of this PUD.  In the case that this PUD does not address a specific City 
requirement, the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance shall apply.  In the event of a 
conflict between this PUD and the base zoning district found in the Leander Composite 
Zoning Ordinance, this PUD shall control. 

 
C. 
 

Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 

Exhibit C

 

 attached is a conceptual development plan intended to visually convey the 
design intent for the Bliss Resort Living at Mason Hills project.  The design of the 
community is not final, and is subject to refinement during the platting and site 
planning stages.  This PUD zoning document does not constitute plat or site plan 
approval of the attached plan. 



Bliss Resort Living at Mason Hills project is comprised of a gated multi-family and 
commercial development, which will consist of: 
1. DUPLEXES:  17 duplex style, single level casita buildings, adjacent to the 

neighboring single-family homes with an average size of 1,165 square feet and one 
or two car garages. 
 

2. APARTMENTS:  2 four-story buildings consisting of 76 units each featuring one-
bedroom and two-bedroom flats.   

 
3. MULTI-FAMILY CLUBHOUSE:  A 5,000 square foot clubhouse overlooking 

resort style pool and separate exercise and health facility for use by the multi-family 
residents (multi-family consists of the apartments and duplexes), their guests, 
potential residents, and guests invited by Bliss at Mason Hills management. 
 

4. COMMERCIAL:  The Commercial portion of the project is to be +/- 6,200 square 
feet of local commercial, retail, office, or restaurant space that would be suitable as 
affiliated uses to the project.  This area is not part of the gated community.  

 
D. 
 

Allowable Use 

The use shall be both 4 story apartment homes and single story duplexes combined in a 
multi-family residential development; as well as a mixed retail commercial building 
approximately 6,200 square feet in size.  The maximum number of units is limited to 
186. 

 
E. 
 

Lot Design Standards 

Bliss Senior Living at Mason Hills development will comply with the following 
setbacks: 

1. All building setbacks from Crystal Falls Parkway and N. Lakeline Blvd. 
will be a minimum of 25’. 

2. All building setbacks from north property line will be a minimum of 25’. 
3. Apartment building setbacks from Crystal Falls Parkway will be a 

minimum of 50’. 
 

F. 
 

Drive Design 

The Bliss Senior Living at Mason Hills community will incorporate the following drive 
standards. 
 

1. This project shall consist of private drives instead of public roadways.    The 
pavement width shall be a minimum of 26 feet in width-face of curb to face of 
curb. 
 

2. The access drive alignment, building pads and on street parking along the drives 
may vary to minimize disturbance to significant trees and natural topographic 
features.  Private drives will be maintained by the community association. 



 
3. The apartment buildings and duplexes will be privately gated. 

 
4. Drive lighting is required at the intersections between the internal drives and 

public streets. “Dark Sky” lighting will be provided throughout the development 
in accordance with the Texas section of the International Dark-Sky Association.  

 
5. Sidewalks will be provided, and are already installed, along the property lines 

that are adjacent to N. Lakeline Blvd and Crystal Falls Pkwy. 
 

G. 
 

Architectural Criteria 

The site will comply with the Type A Architectural Component and Type 2 Site 
Component of the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  The project will utilize the highest 
architectural standards defined by Type A.  The project with substantially comply with 
the renderings utilizing these architectural standards that are included as Exhibit D 
(Renderings). 
 

Apartments 
Design Features: 7 different design features including: 

1. Horizontal offsets – each building is divided into three 
residential wings, which are turned and offset horizontally. 
Residential unit porches also extend from each of the 
residential wing façades. 

2. Recesses - the residential wings are connected by two 
communal nodes, each expressed on the façade by varying 
material height, plan orientation, door and window opening 
rhythms and roof heights.  

3. Porches – each residential unit is provided with a covered 
porch.  Central nodes also feature several porches connected 
to communal spaces. 

4. Awnings – Porches on communal nodes will include 
awnings for shade. 

5. Varied Roof heights – roof heights are varied to express the 
communal nodes, and residential building volumes, 
residential unit porches, and exit stairs. 

6. Premium roof materials – Standing seam metal roofing will 
be used on communal porches, residential unit porches, high 
nodes, and exit stairs. 

7. Other design features – decorative metal brackets at roof 
overhangs and communal patio projections.  Architectural 
lighting will highlight design features at the patios and roof 
overhangs.  Communal patio awnings will feature expressed 
timber construction. 

Exterior Materials: At least 85% of the exterior surface area of walls will consist of 
masonry and no more than 50% of the exterior surface area of walls 
shall consist of painted or tinted stucco.  The remaining exterior wall 
surface will be comprised of cementitious-fiber plank siding. 
 Stone: native limestone in white and colors found in 



surrounding neighborhoods. 
 Stucco: to be determined, likely in a palette of browns, 

golds, grays and greens to reference the colors used in the 
duplexes. 

 Siding: used as an accent in a color to be determined, likely 
in a rich brown for a wood feel. 

The roof will be primarily a premium composition shingle at 4:12 
slope.  Standing seam metal roofing will be used on communal 
porches, residential unit porches, high nodes and exit stairs. 

Window and Door Openings: A minimum of 15% of the front primary building façade will consist 
of window or door openings.  Glazing shall have a maximum 
exterior reflectivity of 20%. 

Building Height: For areas adjacent to the duplexes, the buildings shall not exceed a 
height of 30 feet at a distance of 20 feet plus one foot for each one 
foot of setback beyond 20 feet. 
For areas adjacent to the roads, the building height exceeding 45 feet 
will include building setbacks increased one foot in distance for each 
two feet of additional building height in excess of 45 feet. 

  
Duplexes 
Design Features: 5 different design features including: 

1. Horizontal offsets – interior spaces are expressed as 
horizontal projections and varying roof plate heights. 

2. Recessed entry – primary entrance is set in from building 
facade  

3. Porches – each unit is provided with a covered porch.  
4. Awnings – each unit features one decorative awning with a 

standing seam roof and architecturally expressed brackets. 
5. Wing Wall – a low, stone wall ties into a wood gate and 

screen between the street and the courtyard adjacent to the 
unit entry. 

Exterior Materials: Exterior surface area of walls will consist of 100% masonry and no 
more than 60% of the exterior surface area of walls shall consist of 
painted or tinted stucco.  
 Stone: native limestone in white and colors found in 

surrounding neighborhoods. 
 Stucco: to be determined, likely in a palette of browns, 

grays, golds and greens. 
The roof will be a premium composition shingle at 4:12 slope, and 
standing seam metal roofing will be used on decorative awnings. 

Window and Door Openings: A minimum of 15% of the front primary building façade will consist 
of window or door openings.  Glazing shall have a maximum 
exterior reflectivity of 20%. 

Building Height: Buildings shall not exceed a height of 35 feet. 
  
Commercial 
Design Features: 5 different design features including: 

1. Breezeway – four of the storefront entrances on the front of 
the building are within a covered exterior space featuring 
tapered stone columns and expressed timber construction. 



2. Porches – a deep, wide covered porch is provided on the 
south end of the building for a potential outdoor dining 
space. 

3. Awnings – decorative awnings shade the storefront 
entrances on each side of the tower element. 

4. Varied roof heights – the breezeway and tower element roofs 
have different roof heights than the main roof. 

5. Premium roofing materials – all roofs and awnings will be 
standing seam metal. 

Exterior Materials: At least 85% of the exterior surface area of walls will consist of 
masonry and no more than 50% of the exterior surface area of walls 
shall consist of painted or tinted stucco.  The remaining exterior wall 
surface will be comprised of cementitious-fiber plank siding. 
 Stone: native limestone in white and colors found in 

surrounding neighborhoods. 
 Stucco: to be determined, likely in a palette of browns, 

golds, grays and greens to reference the colors used in the 
duplexes. 

 Siding: used as an accent in a color to be determined, likely 
in a rich brown for a wood feel. 

 The roof will be standing seam metal at 4:12 slope.  
Window and Door Openings: A minimum of 15% of the front primary building façade will consist 

of window or door openings.  Glazing shall have a maximum 
exterior reflectivity of 20%. 

Building Height: Building shall not exceed a height of 35 feet. 
  
Multi-Family Clubhouse 
Design Features: 6 different design features including: 

1. Porte-cochere – grand entrance at the front of the building 
where residents and visitors can meet their transportation out 
of the elements via a covered driveway drop-off area.  The 
porte-cochere will feature tapered stone columns and 
expressed timber construction. 

2. Porches – a deep, wide covered porch is provided on the rear 
of the building for a potential outdoor living dining space. 

3. Recessed entry – the main entry is tucked into the building 
façade and connects to the porte-cochere. 

4. Architectural Details – decorative metal brackets and deep 
rooflines will be used on the roof elements. 

5. Varied roof heights – the porte-cochere has a different roof 
height than the main roof. All roofs and awnings will be 
standing seam metal. 

Exterior Materials: At least 85% of the exterior surface area of walls will consist of 
masonry and no more than 50% of the exterior surface area of walls 
shall consist of painted or tinted stucco.  The remaining exterior wall 
surface will be comprised of cementitious-fiber plank siding. 
 Stone: native limestone in white and colors found in 

surrounding neighborhoods. 
 Stucco: to be determined, likely in a palette of browns, 

golds, grays and greens to reference the colors used in the 



duplexes. 
 Siding: used as an accent in a color to be determined, likely 

in a rich brown for a wood feel. 
 The roof will be standing seam metal at 4:12 slope.  

Window and Door Openings: A minimum of 15% of the front primary building façade will consist 
of window or door openings.  Glazing shall have a maximum 
exterior reflectivity of 20%. 

Building Height: Building shall not exceed a height of 35 feet. 
 

 Parking Requirements 
1. Duplexes 

 Each duplex shall include one single car garage unit and one two-car garage 
unit. 
 

 Each single car garage unit shall provide one garage enclosed parking space 
plus 1.5 additional off street parking spaces.  (Driveway may be counted 
toward provision of off street parking). 
 

 Two Car Garage Units:  Each two-car garage unit shall provide a minimum of 
two garage enclosed parking spaces plus 2 additional off street parking spaces.  
(Driveway may be counted toward provision of off street parking). 

 
 Garage parking will be provided for 100% of the duplexes. 

 
2. Apartments 

 Each of the apartment buildings will have a mix of 1 bedroom flats and 2 
bedroom flats.  Parking for the 1 bedroom units shall be 1.25 spaces per unit 
and 1.5 spaces for the 2 bedroom units.  With the project being age restricted, 
single person households having only one or no cars will occupy most units.   
 

 As long as the units are rented to a head of household or spouse that is at least 
fifty-five (55) years of age, the off-street parking may be reduced as listed 
above.  Should the property no longer be used for a senior project, then the off 
street parking requirements shall comply with the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance.  An alternative parking plan shall be provided as part of the site 
development permit demonstrating that the parking requirements can be met 
should the use change.  The owner of the property shall contact the City and 
notify the City of the property’s change of use from a senior project. 
 

 Bliss at Mason Hills will also be providing transportation services for its 
residents via van and/or car service.  Therefore, the parking ratios will more 
than exceed the parking need for all of the multi-family units. 
 

 32 garages shall be provided for the Apartments. These are in addition to the 
34 garages provided for the duplexes, providing 35.48% of the units with 
garages. 

 
   



3. Commercial 
 The commercial space will have a parking ratio of 1 space per every 200 

square feet. 
 

4. Multi-family Clubhouse 
 The multi-family clubhouse is only for the use of residents, their guests, 

potential residents and invited guests of the Bliss at Mason Hills management.  
While the use does not require any additional parking, 4 visitor/potential 
resident spaces will be provided.  

 
 

H. 
 

Walls, Fencing and Landscaping 

1. Bliss Resort Living at Mason Hills will utilize a masonry wall that matches the 
existing walls already installed in the Mason Hills development along Lakeline 
Boulevard as described in Exhibit E (Lakeline Masonry Wall), and may utilize 
wrought iron or decorative tubular metal fencing around the remaining multi-family 
portion of the site and where views into adjacent open space and buffers are desired.  
The masonry wall along Lakeline Boulevard provides full landscape screening  

 
2. A walking path for use by the public will be constructed between the duplex units 

and the Mason Hills single-family lots that are adjacent to the northern property 
boundary. 

 
3. Bliss Resort Living at Mason Hills shall comply with the applicable landscape 

standards for multi-family and local commercial districts as listed in Article VI of 
the Composite Zoning Ordinance. 

 
4. Minimum landscape requirements per every 600 square feet of landscaped area 

shall be 2 two-inch shade trees of at least 2” caliper, and 5 five-gallon shrubs. 
 



Exhibit B 
 

Field Notes 
 
 









Exhibit C

Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 



50’ Flats Building Setback
from Crystal Falls Parkway



Exhibit D 
 

Renderings 
 
 













Exhibit E 
 

Lakeline Masonry Wall 
 

Single Width Limestone Screenwall Construction Details 
 

Screenwall Design Details: 
Limestone Screenwalls to match pattern and design already in Mason Hills.  Limestone to be 
a blend of white, cream, tan, and caverock.  Stone to be sawn at top and bottom.  Stone 
pattern to consist of 4” and 8” tall stone placed in a random ashlar pattern.  Stone wall face to 
be placed flush vertically.  Stone at back of wall to vary vertically with thickness or wall.  No 
formal cap to be placed at top of wall.  Mortar joints to range between minimum 3/8” to 
maximum 5/8”.  Mortar to be raked back approximately 1/4” to 1/2” from face of stone.  
Total wall height to average 6’ tall grade. 
 
Screenwall Installation Details: 
Concrete footing to include #5 rebar reinforcing with #3 stirrups at 18” on center.  Drilled 
piers to be placed in footing as required by site conditions.  If solid rock is encountered the 
footing will be doweled into rock with #5 rebar. 
 
Post Tension System 
Post Tension System to be placed at 4’ on center.  System to be composed of a 5/8” X18” J-
Blot, a 5/8” coupler, a 5/8” galvanized rod, and a galvanized steel washer with nut. 
 







AGENDA ITEM # 21 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 17, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-016: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of a parcel of land located at 1001 Crystal Falls 
Parkway for 1.58 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel R331474.  
Currently, the property is zoned LO-1-B (Local Office). The 
applicant is proposing to zone the property to LC-2-B (Local 
Commercial), Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Mike Siefert on behalf of Lookout Partners, LP.  

 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

recommended approval of LC-2-A (Local Commercial) with a 4 to 
2 vote (Commissioners Saenz and Hines opposing) at the 
September 10, 2015 meeting). 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Vicinity Map 
 4.   Aerial Map 
 5. Proposed Zoning Map 
 6.   Notification Map 
 7.   Letter of Intent 
 8.   Neighborhood Correspondence 
 9. Ordinance 
 10. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission September 10, 2015 
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 09/11/2015 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-016 

ATELIER AT CRYSTAL FALLS 
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Lookout Partners, LP. 
 
Current Zoning: LO-1-B (Local Office) 
    
Proposed Zoning: LC-2-B (Local Commercial) 
  
Size and Location: The property is located at the northwest corner of the intersection of 

Crystal Falls Pkwy. and S. Bagdad Rd and is 1.58 acres more or less in 
size. 

 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, AICP, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 

ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH GC-3-C Developed Office/Retail Center and Abacus School 

EAST GC-3-C Developed Office/Retail Center and Abacus School 

SOUTH SFU-2-B Developed Single Family Subdivision: Boulders at Crystal 
Falls 

WEST SFU-2-B Developed Single Family Subdivision: Mason Creek 
        

 
  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
USE COMPONENT:   

LC – LOCAL COMMERCIAL:   
Features: Any use in LO plus retail sales and services, restaurants, banks, nursery or greenhouse, 

grocery sales, pharmacies, fitness centers, dance and music academies, artist studio, colleges 
and universities, bed and breakfast.  Hours of operation: 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. Sun.-Thurs., 
5:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 

Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact commercial, retail, personal services and 
office uses located in close proximity to their primary customers, which cater to the everyday 
needs of the nearby residents, and which may be located near residential neighborhoods.  
Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification street. 

 
SITE COMPONENT:   

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with HC and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENT:   

TYPE B:   
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% all stories; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
  
  

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Separate, and/or create transitions, or buffer areas between existing, conflicting or 

incompatible land uses. 
 Strive for a fiscal balance of land uses that will create a positive impact upon the City of 

Leander’s budget and overall tax base. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
The applicant is requesting to zone the property from LO-1-B (Local Office) district to LC-2-B 
(Local Commercial) district.  The property is located at the northwest corner of the intersection 
of Crystal Falls Pkwy and S. Bagdad Rd.  Immediately across S. Bagdad Rd. from this property 
is the newly constructed Abacus School and an Walgreens. Constructed single family homes are 
to the west and south of the property, located in the Mason Creek and Boulders at Crystal Falls 
subdivisions. 
 
The subject property is located in a Community Center Node. The Community Center land use 
node is intended to be located at the intersections of arterial streets or arterials and major 
collectors.  These nodes are approximately one half mile in diameter and incorporate 
approximately 125 acres.  These areas are intended for commercial, retail and office uses that 
primarily serve residents within the community.  These areas are also intended for medium 
density multi-family and high density single-family housing. Development within these nodes 
should be integrated through internal streets and should provide pedestrian and bicycle 
connections to adjacent residential neighborhoods. 
 
All nodes designated by the Future Land Use Plan seek to have the most intense development 
closest to the center of the node, and to have reduction in intensity of development as it moves 
out from the center of those nodes.  The graph to the right shows the target mix of land uses 
within the Community Center Node.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30% 

15% 
20% 

35% 

Community Center - Target 
Land Use Mix 

Regional
Commercial/Retail
Office

Multi-Family

High Density Single-Family

3 
 



Attachment # 1                 

The existing land use mix for this Community Center Node is illustrated in the chart to the right. 
The existing land use mix does not meet the target mix shown in the Comprehensive plan. 
Currently, the predominant land uses are low density single family and regional 
commercial/retail. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The applicant’s request would 
alter the existing land use mix by 
increasing the Regional 
Commercial/Retail to 32% and 
reducing the Office to 0% as 
illustrated in the chart to the 
right. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The intent statements of the Local Commercial Use Component from the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance speaks to allowing for the development of small scale, limited impact commercial, 
retail, personal services and office uses located in close proximity to their primary customers, 
which cater to the everyday needs of the nearby residents, and which may be located near 
residential neighborhoods. Access should be provided by a collector or high classification street. 
Additionally, the hours of operation are restricted from 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. Sunday thru 
Thursday, and between 5:00 a.m. and 11:00 p.m. Friday and Saturday. The LO Use Component 
restricts the hours of operation for businesses as well. These hours of operation would be 
restricted from 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. Sunday thru Thursday, and between 7:00 a.m. to 11:00 
p.m. Friday and Saturday. 
 

30% 

68% 

2% 
Existing Land Use Mix 

Regional
Commercial/Retail

Low Density Single-
Family

Office

32% 

68% 

0% 
Proposed Land Use Mix 

Regional
Commercial/Retail
Low Density Single-
Family
Office

4 
 



Attachment # 1                 

A summary of permissible land uses for each Use Component is listed below in Table 1: 
 
Table 1: 

  Use Components 
 Permitted Uses LO LC 

Community Service Yes Yes 
Day Care Centers Yes Yes 
Offices Yes Yes 
Parks & Community Buildings Yes Yes 
Place of Worship Yes Yes 
Public Buildings Yes Yes 
Schools Yes Yes 
Veterinarian Office Yes Yes 
Artisan Activities No Yes 
Banks No Yes 
Bed and Breakfast No Yes 
Vocational Schools No Yes 
Cultural Facilities, Art Gallery No Yes 
Florist Shop, Nursery No Yes 
Funeral Home No Yes 
Grocery and Convenience 
Stores No Yes 
Medical Clinics No Yes 
Personal Services No Yes 
Pharmacies No Yes 
Restaurants No Yes 
Retail sales No Yes 

 
The existing Type 1 and the requested Type 2 Site Components do not permit outdoor storage, 
display, or outdoor entertainment 
 
The existing Type 1 Site Component requires 150% of the standard landscape requirements for 
area and planting materials. It also limits the first floor buildings to 10,000 square feet, and states 
that no buildings shall contain more than 20,000 square feet. It also limits building heights to 35 
ft. All restaurant uses are required to provide outdoor seating.  Additionally, all site development 
such as signage and lighting shall be to a pedestrian scale. No light standards outside of the 
public ROW shall exceed 16 ft in height. No signage is mounted on a building shall exceed six 
feet in height. The Type 1 Site Component would not permit drive thru service lanes. 
 
The Type 2 Site Component would limit buildings to 60,000 square feet of floor area and 
individual users to 40,000 square feet. The Type 2 Site Component would also permit drive thru 
service lanes. 
 

5 
 



Attachment # 1                 

The Type B Architectural Component requires at least 85% of the exterior surface area walls to 
be comprised of masonry for the first floor and 50% masonry is required on each additional story 
thereafter. The Architectural Component would require four design features for street facing 
façades.  This component is intended to provide high building standards and ensure compatibility 
between non-residential and residential uses. 
 
The Type A Architectural Component would require 85% masonry on all stories and five 
architectural design features for street facing façades. This component is intended to help provide 
for harmonious land use transitions by applying this component to a less restrictive Use or Site 
component adjacent to a more restrictive use or site component. 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends denial of the requested LC-2-B zoning district and recommends approval of 
the LC-2-A zoning district.  The LC Use Component is intended to provide a land use transition 
from more intense commercial districts or arterial streets to residential development, and the 
Type 2 Site Component provides additional protection for neighborhoods when less restrictive 
districts are adjacent to them.  This property fronts onto S. Bagdad Rd and Crystal Falls Pkwy 
and would provide buffering from the Abacus School and Walgreens on the opposite side of S. 
Bagdad Rd. Additionally, this property is located on two arterial roads and this request would 
help to provide for a transition from a more intensely developed area of the City to a residential 
community on the west side of S. Bagdad Rd.  This request meets the intent statements of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance. The applicant indicated that they would be willing to accept a 
restriction prohibiting the use of a drive thru as a condition to the Type 2 Site Component. 

6 
 



1B

2A

S BAGDAD RD

SEDONA

OLD BAGDAD RD

CRYSTA
L F

ALLS PKWY

DEEPWOODS TRL

FOOTHILLS

MASON CREEK BLVD

WIGWAM

TW
ISTED OAK DR

LA
UR

EL
 LN

CA
RT

O 
ST

SHAMROCK DR

CHICKORY CT

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-016  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - Atelier at Crystal Falls

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



^

2A

1B

3B

1B

2A

2A
2A

S BAGDAD RD

S W
ES

T D
R

GL
AS

S 
DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

WIGWAM

LOS VISTA DR

COUNTY GLEN

DU
BL

IN
 D

R

BONITA VERDE DR

EMERALD ISLE DR

OAKWOOD DR

PA
RK

WOOD
 DR

IR
EL

AN
D 

DR

APPLE ROCK

TULA TRL

FOOTHILLS

HI
GH

 C
HA

PA
RR

AL
 D

R
SEDONA

LA
UR

EL
 LN

TYRONE DR

HONEYSUCKLE DR

KILLARNEY DR

DEEPWOODS TRL

IRON HORSE

TAMARAC TRL

GRE
EN

ING
 W

AY

MA
SO

N 
CR

EE
K 

BL
VD

LONDONDERRY DR

SHAMROCK DRSE
QU

OI
A D

R

NEWCASTLE LN

HO
NE

YB
EE

 LN

ALSATIAN LN

TIE
RR

A A
LT

O 
ST

OLD BAGDAD RD

SHEILA DR

MULEDEER RUN

CALLE ST

PEREGRINE WAY

NIGHTSHADE LN

HERNANDOS LOOP
WICKLOW DR

REDBUD LN

LIMERICK LN

CA
RT

O 
ST

DARBEY LN

COTT
ON PA

TC
H TR

L

OCOTILLO

GR
EY

BA
CK

 D
R

SHAWNEE

VO
LE

NT
E L

N

ROCKROSE CT

CHICKORY CT

SORREL CT

PINEWOOD CV

TALKING STICK

SUNFLOWER CT

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-016  Attachment #3 Vicinty Map - Atelier at Crystal Falls

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Community
Center Node



MASON CREEK.SEC 1

MASON CREEK.SEC 5

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH III COUNTY GLEN,SEC 8

S BAGDAD RD

OLD BAGDAD RD

CRYSTA
L F

ALLS PKWY

DEEPWOODS TRL

MASON CREEK BLVD

TW
ISTED OAK DR

FOOTHILLS

CHICKORY CT

WIGWAM

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-016  Attachment #5 Proposed Zoning Map - Atelier at Crystal Falls

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Proposed LC-2-B



S BAGDAD RD

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

LOS VISTA DR

IR
EL

AN
D 

DR

SEDONA

LA
UR

EL
 LN

WIGWAM

PA
RK

WOOD D
R

BONITA VERDE DR

FOOTHILLS

TIE
RR

A A
LT

O 
ST

OLD BAGDAD RD

DEEPWOODS TRL

MASON CREEK BLVD

GREENING WAY

SHAMROCK DR

TAMARAC TRL

MADRONE TRL

CA
RT

O 
ST

TWISTED OAK DR

SHAWNEE

BENT OAK CV

CHICKORY CT

SUNFLOWER CT

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-016 Attachment #5
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Atelier at Crystal Falls

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



R430858 R332046

R495154

R468161

R438991

R475161

R331474

R096004

R448775

R031771

R512597

R468162

R468164

R468163

R468165
R031842

R475160

R035604R035605 R035603R035606
R035599

R031843

R035607

R369589

R102654

R002653

R3
70

95
0

R3
70

94
8

R448774

R035600

R370953

R370947R3
70

94
9

R370952

R035595

R430798

R370951

R448773
R002612

R399009

R399010

R430
847

R399008

R430
848R448776

R448
768

R448771

R0
026

64

R3
99

00
7

R448777 R430849

R002
665

R448770
R0

83
62

7

R002621

R0
02

64
6

R002610

R0
02

66
6

R0
02

64
4 R002652

R002677

R448772

R002662

R002615

R002647

R002661

R0
02

67
1

R002649

R002656

R002651

R002657

R002648

R0
02

66
7

R0
02

67
0

R002619

R002616

R002654

R083639

R0
02

66
9

R002623

R002628

R002620 R002659

R035596

R002658

R002626

R0
02

67
2

R002618

R002627

R002625

R002609

R002602

R399011

R002622

R448778

R399012
R0

02
62

9

R430797

R0
02

60
8

R448769

R0
02

67
6

R0
83

64
0

R083638R083628

R448767

R430850R448779

R002294

R083641

R002674

R430796

R002310

R490925

R083626

R083642

R002281

S BAGDAD RD

OLD BAGDAD RD

CRYSTA
L F

ALLS PKWY

SEDONA

MADRONE TRL

DEEPWOODS TRL

FOOTHILLS

MASON CREEK BLVD

TW
ISTED OAK DR

WIGWAM

SHAMROCK DR

BE
NT

 O
AK

 C
V

CHICKORY CT CA
RT

O 
ST

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-016
Attachment #6
Notification Map
Atelier at Crystal Falls

CITY MAPË

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Notification Boundary
Subject Property

WCAD Parcels
City Limits



msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 7

































Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

 
ORDINANCE NO # 

 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
LO-1-B (LOCAL OFFICE) TO LC-2-B (LOCAL COMMERCIAL); 
MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following tract of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain parcel of land being 1.58 acres, more or less, located at 
1001 Crystal Falls Parkway, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in 
Exhibit “A”, legally described as Lot 1, Block J, Woods of Whitestone Subdivision; identified by 
tax identification number R331474. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from LO-1-B (Local Office) to LC-2-B (Local Commercial) as shown in 
Exhibit “A”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 17th day of September, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 1st day of October, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



S BAGDAD RD

SEDONA

OLD BAGDAD RD

CRYSTA
L F

ALL
S PKWY

DEEPWOODS TRL

FOOTHILLS

MASON CREEK BLVD

WIGWAM

TW
ISTED OAK DR

LA
UR

EL
 LN

CA
RT

O 
ST

SHAMROCK DR

CHICKORY CT

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-016  Exhibit A
SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.





AGENDA ITEM # 22 

 
 Executive Summary 

 September 17, 2015 

Agenda Subject:    Public Hearing on the Proposed Budget for FY 2015-16  

 
Background:    Prior to adoption of the proposed budget for FY 2015-16, a public hearing is 

required.  

       
FY 2015-16 

BUDGET SUMMARY 
Recommended 
Expenditures 

General Fund 27,443,426 
Capital Project Funds        33,266,566  
Debt Service Fund          6,981,720  
Special Revenue Funds              771,025  
Internal Service Fund              240,500  
Golf Fund          1,454,568  
Utility Fund        20,432,700  
Utility Internal Service Fund 0 
Utility Capital Project Funds        15,421,956  

TOTAL All Funds      106,012,461  
 
RECOMMENDED TAX RATE 
Maintenance & Operations   $0.40364 
Debt Service   $0.22928 
Total $0.63292 per $100 valuation 
 
This budget will raise more total property taxes than last year’s budget by $3,398,000 or 22.1%, 

and of that amount, $2,147,255, is tax revenue to be raised from new property added to the tax 

roll this year.   

Origination:      Robert G. Powers, Finance Director  

Financial Consideration:   n/a 

Recommendation:    

 
Attachments:   n/a 

  

Prepared by: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 



AGENDA ITEM # 22 (Action)  

 
 Executive Summary 

 September 17, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:    An Ordinance Adopting the FY 2015-16 Annual Budget 

 
Background:    After the public hearing on the proposed budget for FY 2015-16, the 

City Council can adopt the proposed budget, with or without amendments.  State law 

requires that a budget be adopted before the governing body can set the tax rate.  State 

law also states that adoption of a budget that raises more revenue from property taxes 

than in the previous year will require a separate vote of the governing body to ratify the 

property tax increase reflected in the budget.  The increase in property tax revenue is 

$3,398,000 or 22.1%, and of that amount, $2,147,255 is tax revenue to be raised from 

new property added to the tax roll this year. 

 

Origination:      Robert G. Powers, Finance Director  

 
Financial Consideration:   See attached proposed budget 

 
Recommendation:   Motion #1 – move to ratify the property tax increase reflected in the 

proposed budget.  Motion #2 – move to approve the proposed budget for FY 2015-16  

 
Attachments:   Ordinance adopting the FY 2015-16 Annual Budget 

  

Prepared by: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR 
THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2015, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 
2016; APPROPRIATING THE VARIOUS AMOUNTS THEREOF, AND REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Manager of the City of Leander, Texas (“City”) has submitted to the City 
Council a proposed budget of the revenues and the expenditures for FY 2015-16 to conduct the affairs of 
the City and has provided a complete financial plan for FY 2015-16; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed budget has been compiled from detailed information obtained from the 

several departments, divisions, and offices of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has received the City Manager’s proposed budget, a copy of which 
has been filed with the City Secretary; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has conducted a public hearing on the budget, as provided by law. 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1.  The FY 2015-16 Annual Budget, beginning October 1, 2015, and ending September 
30, 2016, a copy which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, is hereby adopted with the following changes: 

 
a) General Fund Non-Departmental Transfer to CIP (01-53-9008) is increased by $1,767,000 

from $1,000,000 to $2,767,000; General Capital Projects revenue Transfer In (40-00-4900) increased by 
$1,767,000 to $2,767,000. 

 
b) General Fund Police Support Services is increased by $139,000 for the addition of one school 

resource officer in the following accounts - personnel (01-42-5120) ($63,840); capital outlay-vehicles (01-
42-7000) ($56,100); minor equipment (01-42-5217) ($12,530); supplies (01-42-5250) ($2,920); uniforms 
(01-42-5280) ($2,510); and training (01-42-6380) ($1,100); 

 
c) $84,000 is re-allocated within the General Fund from Public Works Contract Labor (01-21-

5600) to Engineering Personnel (01-22-5120 et seq.). 
 
d) General Capital Projects Fund (40-04-8386) is increased by $165,000 from $400,000 to 

$565,000 for the San Gabriel Parkway roadway project. 
 
e) $550,000 is appropriated in General Capital Projects Fund (40-04-8402) for the Police 

Department Sally Port and parking lot project. 
 
f)  $75,000 is appropriated in General Capital Projects Fund (40-04-5709) for the Regional Animal 

Shelter Expansion design fees. 
 
g) Police Grants Victims Services Fund is amended to reflect an additional $83,238 in anticipated 

grant revenue and $34,226 transfer from General Fund for the City’s match originally budgeted in 
Criminal Investigations (01-44.)  The expenditure budget is increased by $117,464 from $49,000 to 
$166,464. 

 
Section 2.  The sums shown on Exhibit “A” as amended, are hereby appropriated from the 

respective funds for the payment of expenditures on behalf of the City as established in the approved 



budget document for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2016. 
 
Section 3.  The city manager is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations, when necessary, 

between accounts within the same budgetary fund for purposes of fiscal control, efficiency and sound 
management practices. 
 

Section 4.  Ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 

Section 5.  This ordinance shall be and remain in full force and effect from and after its final 
passage and publication as herein provided. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 17th day of September, 2015. 
  
 
      CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:     
 
 
______________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary  





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Elected Officials 
 

 Christopher Fielder  Mayor 

 Andrea Navarrette  Mayor Pro Tem 

 Michelle Stephenson  Place 2 

 Shanan Shepherd  Place 3 

 Ron Abruzzese  Place 4 

 Jeff Seiler  Place 5 

 Troy Hill  Place 6 

 

Appointed Officials 
 

 Kent Cagle  City Manager 

 Paige Saenz  City Attorney 

 Travis Lucas  Presiding Judge 

 Cathy Riedel  Associate Judge 

 

Directors 
 

 Tom Yantis  Assistant City Manager 

 Debbie Haile  City Secretary 

 Mark Willis  Economic Development Director 

 Wayne Watts  Engineering Director 

 Robert Powers  Finance Director 

 Bill Gardner  Fire Chief 

 Cindy Hignite  Human Resources Director 

 Stephen Bosak  Parks & Recreation Director 

 Greg Minton  Chief of Police 

 Patrick Womack  Public Works Director 

 



 

 

i 
 

 
 
 
 
 
August 1, 2015 
 
 
 
The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
Leander City Hall 
Leander, Texas 78641 
 
I am pleased to present to you the proposed budget for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2015 
and ending September 30, 2016. The budget has been prepared to meet only our basic needs and 
attempts to maintain the existing service levels of our growing community. If the current rate of 
growth continues it is likely that we will be over 60,000 residents at the 2020 census and we will 
probably be the fastest growing city in the nation over 50,000 people.  Our priorities for this year are 
to 1) fund a compensation plan to retain and attract a high quality workforce, 2) adequately fund an 
infrastructure maintenance program, 3) improve our technological and management skill sets to 
address service level needs before adding personnel, 4) prepare and implement an aggressive 
economic development program to attract primary jobs, 5) ensure connectivity between the Capital 
Metro station and the future Austin Community College Campus, 6) Improve the Old Town area 
around City Hall, and 7) continue tax rate reduction. 
 
 In the first Quarter of FY 2016 we expect to see several high profile public works projects begin 
construction that were delayed from FY 2015 including; the widening of Old 2243 West from US 183 
to Lakeline, construction of Fire Station #4, completion and widening of Municipal Drive, the 
widening of Bagdad Road from 2243 north to CR 280, extension of sidewalks on Bagdad Road from 
Crystal Falls Parkway to Bledsoe Park and a right turn lane on Crystal Falls and US 183.   These 
projects are funded from the Williamson County Bond Program, City Certificates of Obligation and 
excess Fund Balances. 
 
The General Fund proposed budget, before transfers, includes projected current revenues that 
exceed budgeted operating expenditures by $100,000.  After transfers in from the Utility Fund of 
$1,250,000 and transfers out to Capital Projects ($1,000,000) and the Vehicle Reserve Fund 
($350,000), the budget is balanced.  The transfer to Capital Projects is undesignated at this time until 
we receive the bids for the Old 2243 / Hero Way and North Bagdad Road roadway projects.  Our 
fiscal condition remains strong.  Development-related fees are expected to exceed budget by 
$2,370,000.  In 2014, we issued a 1,142 single family building permits, and through June 2015, we’ve 
issued 878.  We expect to reach approximately 1,200 in the current year and have budgeted for 
1,300 single family permits in 2016.   
 
The Austin area continues to experience rapid growth in jobs as unemployment drops to one of the 
lowest rates in the nation.  These new jobs continue to fuel a housing boom in Leander and we have 
increased our staffing and capabilities in Building Inspection, Construction Inspection and 
Engineering in 2015 and we are proposing one more Construction Inspector in 2016.  However, if 
the rate of growth continues to accelerate, we may need to add more positions in mid-year of 2016.  
While we manage our record setting growth, we have prepared a budget that can quickly respond to 



 

 

ii 
 

an economic slowdown. 30% of our General Fund revenue is elastic and development related.  
Therefore, not all ongoing revenue is committed to recurring costs and we remain conservative in 
our revenue forecasts.  As mentioned above, $1,350,000 has been set aside for Capital Projects and 
a transfer to the Vehicle Replacement Fund.  In addition, we continue to aggressively increase the 
street maintenance budget in Public Works. 
 
Staff continues to prepare a multi-year financial forecast for the General Fund, Utility Fund, Water 
Impact Fee Fund and the Wastewater Impact Fee Fund.  In the General Fund, our current level of 
service can be maintained over the six year planning period (FY15-16 Budget plus five forecast 
years), but we will not be able to add staffing at the rate requested by Department Directors.  
However, our revenue forecasts remain conservative and the six year forecast is positive. 
 
The Utility Fund forecast continues to improve with our rapid growth.  While our debt service 
increases every year through 2020, our growth in the number of connections has outpaced the 
growth in our fixed costs.  Even with increases in the cost of raw water and debt service, we will not 
need a rate increase for 2015-16.  However, we will need sustained growth through 2020 to avoid 
future rate increases.   
 
 
GENERAL FUND REVENUES 
 
Forecasted General Fund revenues are up 22% from the 2014-15 adopted budget and 5% from the 
current year estimate. The recommended tax rate of 63.292 cents per $100 valuation represents a 
2.0 cent decrease in the tax rate from the current rate of 65.292 cents.  The tax rate is comprised of 
a maintenance and operations rate of 40.364 cents and a debt service rate of 22.928 cents.   
 
The City added approximately $340 million in new property this past year compared to $190 million 
in 2014.   Our tax base (before tax freeze adjustments) has increased by 24% from $2.515 billion to 
$3.120 billion in net taxable value. 
 
The primary increases in General Fund revenues are in the areas of development-related fees, sales 
taxes, and property taxes due to new construction and revaluations.  Development-related fees are 
estimated to increase by 27% compared to the 2015 revised budget, but that estimate is 19% below 
what we actually expect to receive in the current year.  Sales tax receipts for the current year are up 
over 19% from last year.  However we have budgeted only a 7.5% increase in order to stay 
consistent with our budgeting policy. 
 
The following chart illustrates growth in the property tax base over the past several years. 
 



 

 

iii 
 

 
 
 
Sales tax receipts in the current year have increased by more than 19% overall above last year at this 
time.  Although we are behind in sales tax per capita comparisons with other Texas cities, we believe 
that the way to climb up that ladder is with continued emphasis on infrastructure improvements, 
targeted economic development strategies and an emphasis on supporting quality growth.  
 

 
 
 
As the next chart reveals, building permit revenue remained very strong in FY 2014-15. With over 
13,000 lots with some form of approval, over 3,000 already platted for development and more 
subdivisions in the planning stages, we do not forecast any slowdown in the near term.  
 

1,583,083 1,646,995 1,690,381 1,756,755 
1,890,349 

2,051,455 

2,484,771 

3,120,122 

FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 

PROPERTY TAX BASE 
TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE 

(000's) 

1,743,161 
1,948,789 2,029,703 

2,181,537 

2,586,122 

2,986,133 

3,475,000 
3,735,000 

FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 

SALES TAX COLLECTIONS 
 



 

 

iv 
 

 
 
We anticipate ending this current fiscal year with a fund balance surplus of $2,532,600 above the 
25% required.  Although next year’s proposed budget is balanced without using any reserves, the 
anticipated ending surplus above required would drop to $1,906,000 due to the fact that an 
increased operating budget requires a greater reserve. 
  
 
GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 
 
General Fund expenditures for FY 2016 are recommended at $27,537,426.  After subtracting non-
recurring transfers, the proposed current operating budget is $26,187,426 which is an 11.2% 
increase compared to the adopted 2014-15 budget and 10.2% when compared to the amended 
budget. 
 
Significant enhancements in the General Fund include five (5) new positions - an additional patrol 
officer, a public safety systems administrator in Information Technology, a construction inspector in 
Engineering, a recreation supervisor in Parks, and an additional crew leader in Public Works. The 
current year budget was amended to include three positions – an additional building inspector, a 
newly created zoning compliance officer position, and an additional construction inspector in 
Engineering. 
 
Funds are also included for the following – Fire Department personal protective equipment and 
SCBA replacements ($194,810); Fire Station alerting system ($80,000) to improve response times; 
and updating the Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Master Plan ($18,000). 
 
The Public Works budget includes $750,667 for various street and drainage repairs such as Lion 
Drive ($134,000); Riva Ridge ($75,000); Bonita Verde ($62,000); Los Vista ($62,000); CR 290 
Intersection ($200,000); CR 177 ($170,000); and High Chaparral/Calle area ($75,000). 
 
 
 

807,643 863,906 899,251 

1,149,405 

1,923,685 

3,084,031 

3,760,000 3,685,000 

FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 

BUILDING PERMIT REVENUE 



 

 

v 
 

UTILITY FUND REVENUES 
 
Revenues in the Utility Fund are projected to increase approximately $1,655,000 or 9.4%, from the 
adopted FY 2014-2015 Budget.  The revenue increase is based on new customers, and no rate 
increase is recommended for FY 2015-16.  However, we remain mindful of the fact that growth in 
our customer base, equal to or in excess of 7.5%, is needed to avoid future rate increases in the near 
term.  As you know, our annual debt service requirements have increased from $3.6 million in 2011 
and will rise to $12.8 million in 2020.  In addition to this increase in debt service, we must deal with 
ordinary inflation in electricity, chemicals and repairs to infrastructure that will age over that time 
period. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
  
UTILITY FUND EXPENDITURES 
 
Utility Fund expenditures before transfers are expected to decrease by $272,524 or 3% primarily 
due to the construction of the T.O.D. / Hero Way waterline ($700,000).  The budget also includes the 
addition of a three positions – a second plant operator for WWTP No. 2 now under construction as 
part of the Travisso development, and an additional crew leader and maintenance worker.  Also 

0 

200,000 

400,000 

600,000 

800,000 

1,000,000 

1,200,000 

1,400,000 

WATER SALES 
FY 2013-14 

FY 2014-15 

100,000 

150,000 

200,000 

250,000 

300,000 

350,000 

400,000 

SEWER CHARGES FY 2013-14 

FY 2014-15 



 

 

vi 
 

included is $250,000 set aside for potential redevelopment needs in the Old Town area as well as 
$105,000 to change the chemical feed system at the Wastewater Treatment plant from chlorine gas 
to liquid chlorine to improve safety. 
 
Below is the current and future debt service for the Utility Fund showing the impact of the BCRUA 
contract revenue debt that began in FY 2012 and the Brushy Creek Regional Wastewater System 
(BCRWWS) which began in FY 2013. 
 

 
 
GOLF FUND 
 
The recommended budget for the Golf Fund is based upon anticipated play of 24,000 rounds.  No 
rate adjustments are requested at this time (the last rate increase was in February 2015).  We 
continue our commitment to bring the course to a break even status that does not rely on a General 
Fund subsidy.  The critical variable to positive financial performance is the number of rounds played.  
We have all seen the tremendous physical and aesthetic improvements to the course over the past 
couple of years.  We are confident that we are on the proper path towards reaching our goal of 
25,000 to 30,000 annual rounds. 
 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 
 
CIP projects that have been, or are expected to be completed in the current year, include Municipal 
Drive and Lakeline Boulevard from Crystal Falls to Nameless Road.  In addition, funds received from 
the Bryson development agreement contributed towards realigning the complicated intersection of 
US 183 and 183A by the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (CTRMA.)  These projects serve 
important transportation needs, but are also important to our future commercial development.  In 
addition, the new baseball complex at Benbrook Ranch Park is nearing completion. 
 
Several projects budgeted in the current year will carry over into FY 2015-16.  These include the next 
extension of the Bagdad sidewalk program; intersection improvements at US 183 and Crystal Falls 

 $-    

 $2,000,000  

 $4,000,000  

 $6,000,000  

 $8,000,000  

 $10,000,000  

 $12,000,000  

 $14,000,000  

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

UTILITY FUND DEBT 

BCRWWS 

BCRUA 

Existing Debt 





CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

FY 2015-16 

ANNUAL BUDGET 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION Page  SECTION Page 
Budget Message    Regional Water Plant 168 

Budget Process & Calendar   Capital Project Funds 173 

City Organizational Chart    City limits & ETJ map 174 

Operating Funds 1   Residential Development map 175 

 General Fund 2  General Purpose Capital Projects 177 

 City Manager 8   Traffic Impact Analysis 178 

 City Secretary 12   General Capital Projects 182 

 Finance  16   $21m 2007 GO Bonds 186 

 City Council 20   $6m 2010 GO Bonds 190 

 Library 24   Bond Series 2015 192 

 Urban Design 28   Park Dedication Fund 196 

 Economic Development 32  Utility Fund Capital Projects 199 

 Human Resources 36   Water Impact Fee 200 

 Information Technology 40   Wastewater Impact Fee 204 

 Municipal Court 44   Utility CIP 208 

 Municipal Court Judge 48   $9.2m 2007 Utility CO’s 212 

 Planning 50  Internal Service Funds 215 

 Public Works – Streets 54   General Fund Equipment 216 

 Engineering 60   General Fund Vehicle Reserve 220 

 Parks & Recreation 66   Utility Fund Vehicle Reserve 226 

 Police Department   Special Revenue Funds 229 

  Administration 72   Bryson Farmstead 230 

  Uniform Services 76   Leander Clean Up 234 

  Support Services 82   Public Arts 236 

  Animal Services  86   Hotel-Motel Tax 240 

  Criminal Investigation 90   Park Grants 242 

 Code Enforcement 94   Police Grants 246 

 Fire Department    Court Security 250 

  Preparedness & Wellness 98   Court Technology 254 

  Fire Administration 102   Parks & Recreation Special Revenue 258 

  Emergency Operations 108   Fire Rescue Revenue 262 

  Prevention & Life Safety 114   Police STEP 266 

 Building Inspection 118   Police Forfeiture 270 

 Non-Departmental 124   Police Special Revenue 272 

 Golf Fund 128   Tax Reinvestment Zone No. 1 274 

 Grounds Maintenance 134   Leander Development Authority 278 

 Grill 138  Debt Service Funds 281 

 Pro Shop 140   General Interest & Sinking 282 

 Non-Departmental 143   Utility Fund Debt Service 286 

 Utility Fund 144  Schedules 291 

 Utility Billing 148   Personnel Summary 292 

 Water Maintenance 154   Outstanding Debt Summary 295 

 Wastewater Maintenance 160    

 Non-Departmental 166    

     



 
 

BUDGET PROCESS 
 
 
The City Charter establishes the fiscal year, which begins October 1 and ends September 30 of the 
following year.  The Charter also requires the City Manager to submit a proposed budget no later 
than August 1 prior to the start of the next fiscal year.  The budget process begins each year in the 
early spring.  The Finance Department projects revenue estimates for the coming year and then, 
after preliminary meetings with the Finance Director, department directors submit their requested 
budgets to the City Manager. 
 
After receiving the budget requests, the City Manager and Finance Director conduct a series of 
meetings in May and early June with each director to review and discuss their budget requests.   
 
By law, appraisal districts must certify the tax roll by July 25.  This is usually the last potential variable 
in putting together the City Manager’s proposed budget to the City Council. 
 
 
 
 

BUDGET CALENDAR 
FY 2015-16 

 
 

 
August 1  City Manager Proposed Budget Due to City Council 
 
 
September 3 Regular City Council Meeting to Discuss Proposed Tax Rate & Schedule Two 

Public Hearings 
 
 
September 10 Publish Notice of Proposed Tax Rate & Public Hearings Schedule 
 
 
September 14  Special Called Council Meeting – 1st Public Hearing on Proposed Tax Rate 
 
 
September 17 Regular City Council Meeting – Hold Public Hearing on Budget; 2nd Public 

Hearing on Proposed Tax Rate; Vote on Budget & First Reading on Tax Rate 
 
 
September 24 Special Called City Council Meeting – Second (& Final) Reading on Tax Rate; 

Adopt Tax Rate 
 



CITIZENS OF 
LEANDER 

MAYOR & CITY 
COUNCIL 

MUNICIPAL  

JUDGE 

CITY  

MANAGER 

FIRE 

PREPAREDNESS 
& WELLNESS 

EMERGENCY 
OPERATIONS 

PREVENTION & 
LIFE SAFETY 

CODE 
ENFORCEMENT 

FINANCE 

ACCOUNTING & 
PAYROLL 

MUNICIPAL 
COURT 

PURCHASING 

UTILITY  

BILLING 

CITY SECRETARY PUBLIC WORKS 

STREET 
MAINTENANCE 

WATER 
DISTRIBUTION 

WATER 
TREATMENT 

WASTEWATER 
COLLECTION 

WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT 

HUMAN 
RESOURCES 

INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY 

ASSISTANT CITY 
MANAGER 

PLANNING 

ENGINEERING 

BUILDING 
INSPECTION 

PARKS & 
RECREATION 

GOLF COURSE LIBRARY 
PARKS & 

RECREATION 

POLICE 

UNIFORM 
SERVICES 

SUPPORT 
SERVICES 

ANIMAL 
CONTROL 

CRIMINAL 
INVESTIGATION 

CITY  

ATTORNEY 

City of Leander, Texas 
Organization Chart 

FY 2015-16 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 



OPERATING  
FUNDS 

1



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

General Fund-01

Beginning Fund Balance 4,727,833 7,734,755 7,582,835 8,919,250 8,919,250 8,452,962

Revenues 18,652,977 21,923,509 21,484,911 22,333,661 25,122,126 26,287,426

Expenditures

CITY MANAGER 565,691 464,623 291,861 285,011 278,476 302,337

CITY SECRETARY 121,512 178,793 196,324 203,174 209,265 204,423

FINANCE 372,210 386,504 473,666 473,666 464,175 486,346

CITY COUNCIL 31,583 49,847 27,595 27,595 41,005 43,224

LIBRARY 528,817 563,855 575,182 575,182 583,372 610,667

URBAN DEVELOPMENT 179,630 239,192 75,415 75,415 51,800 0

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 183,561 113,301 259,625 259,625 232,218 422,861

HUMAN RESOURCES 0 0 225,314 225,314 229,397 269,823

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 0 0 250,899 250,899 274,270 766,116

MUNICIPAL COURT 214,747 234,406 304,632 304,632 281,553 370,427

MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE 44,561 43,001 49,750 49,750 45,550 0

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SVCS 264,819 400,887 590,795 590,795 593,473 510,425

PUBLIC WORKS 1,283,227 1,480,747 2,211,409 2,211,409 2,254,403 2,570,130

ENGINEERING 557,922 888,175 1,171,800 1,216,800 1,165,088 1,490,279

PARKS & RECREATION 900,670 915,964 1,260,450 1,260,450 1,267,180 1,312,111

POLICE DEPARTMENT 4,396,198 4,893,008 5,402,250 5,402,250 5,578,626 5,857,350

ANIMAL CONTROL 221,398 193,157 296,912 296,912 290,457 260,389

CODE ENFORCEMENT 58,773 144,717 144,311 144,311 136,261 145,363

FIRE DEPARTMENT 3,074,621 3,727,002 5,138,607 5,235,607 5,191,113 5,476,482

BLDG INSPECTIONS 349,193 468,169 583,790 662,540 807,580 982,978

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 2,556,923 3,135,142 4,010,294 4,010,294 3,706,152 4,105,695

Total Expenditures 15,906,055 18,520,490 23,540,881 23,761,631 23,681,414 26,187,426

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 2,746,922 3,403,019 (2,055,970) (1,427,970) 1,440,712 100,000

Transfers In 1,360,000 1,360,000 1,360,000 1,360,000 1,360,000 1,250,000

Transfers Out (1,100,000) (3,578,524) (1,267,000) (3,267,000) (3,267,000) (1,350,000)

Net Transfers In / (Out) 260,000 (2,218,524) 93,000 (1,907,000) (1,907,000) (100,000)

Ending Fund Balance 7,734,755 8,919,250 5,619,865 5,584,280 8,452,962 8,452,962

(less) Reserve Policy-25% (3,976,514) (4,630,123) (5,885,220) (5,940,408) (5,920,354) (6,546,857)

Over / (Under) Reserve Policy 3,758,241 4,289,128 (265,355) (356,128) 2,532,609 1,906,106

Operating Reserve (days) 177 176 87 86 130 118

FY 2015

2



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

01 -GENERAL FUND

REVENUES

ADMINISTRATIVE

01-00-4002 ANIMAL CONTROL REDEMPTION FEES 3,830 3,270 3,200 3,200 3,290 3,200

01-00-4010 ANIMAL REGISTRATION FEES 1,745 902 1,000 1,000 1,135 1,000

01-00-4020 CTRMA / BRYSON MOU 300,000 0 0 0 0 0

01-00-4069 TIRZ REIMBURSEMENT 130,000 130,000 130,000 130,000 130,000 0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 435,575 134,172 134,200 134,200 134,425 4,200

FINES

01-00-4120 CITY PERCENTAGE-STATE COSTS 22,555 34,193 24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000

01-00-4140 JUVENILE CASE MANAGER FEE 18,339 24,626 22,000 22,000 22,000 22,000

01-00-4155 MUNICIPAL COURT RECEIPTS-FINES 193,404 242,358 330,000 330,000 240,000 265,000

01-00-4160 NOTARY / FILING FEES 5 5 0 0 275 275

01-00-4190 SPECIAL COURT FEES 25,865 31,766 28,000 28,000 25,000 25,000

01-00-4195 STATE ARREST FEES 25,991 32,379 30,000 30,000 25,000 25,000

TOTAL FINES 286,159 365,326 434,000 434,000 336,275 361,275

FRANCHISE FEES

01-00-4230 FRANCHISE FEES 1,216,222 1,387,165 1,225,200 1,225,200 1,485,000 1,586,000

01-00-4250 MUNICIPAL FEES 57,707 54,336 67,500 67,500 70,000 70,000

TOTAL FRANCHISE FEES 1,273,929 1,441,501 1,292,700 1,292,700 1,555,000 1,656,000

SPECIAL FEES

01-00-4302 BOOK / MDSE SALES 1,135 819 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

01-00-4316 CONTRIBUTIONS - LIBRARY 1,040 1,057 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

01-00-4317 COPIER / PRINTER FEES 11,692 14,398 10,000 10,000 12,000 10,000

01-00-4327 FINES & FEES LIBRARY 13,024 12,727 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500

01-00-4343 INTER LIBRARY LOANS 285 308 250 250 500 250

01-00-4346 LIBRARY CARDS 4,774 4,361 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500

01-00-4348 LONE STAR 0 0 0 0 0 0

FY 2015

3



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01-00-4351 GRANTS - LIBRARY 0 4,800 0 0 0 0

01-00-4371 RENTAL FEES 2,706 3,984 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000

TOTAL SPECIAL FEES 34,656 42,454 32,250 32,250 34,500 32,250

MISCELLANEOUS

01-00-4400 ACCIDENT REPORT COPIES 2,824 2,174 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500

01-00-4412 ASPHALT PENALTIES 1,442 4,342 0 0 0 0

01-00-4415 CASH OVER/UNDER 38 54 0 0 0 0

01-00-4420 CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION FEES 1,722,884 2,139,556 700,000 823,750 2,150,000 1,700,000

01-00-4421 COPIES & OPEN RECORDS REQUEST 164 70 25 25 300 25

01-00-4426 COUNTY GLEN ROW VACATE 361 0 0 0 0 0

01-00-4427 CREDIT CARD FEES COLLECTED 6,882 8,298 7,800 7,800 7,800 7,800

01-00-4435 DONATIONS 4TH OF JULY 13,200 12,995 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

01-00-4443 FD CIVIL DEFENSE FEMA REIMB 125,104 0 0 0 0 0

01-00-4446 FIRE- GRANTS 0 12,999 0 25,000 26,800 0

01-00-4447 FIRE SAFER GRANT 90,207 190,285 230,751 230,751 230,751 114,431

01-00-4448 GARBAGE COLLECTIONS 1,242,712 1,490,311 1,852,000 1,852,000 1,905,000 2,000,250

01-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 5,979 25,707 8,500 8,500 25,000 8,500

01-00-4455 MAPS 300 380 100 100 360 100

01-00-4465 ORDINANCES 30 100 0 0 0 0

01-00-4467 OTHER REVENUE 21,179 8,929 5,000 5,000 25,000 5,000

01-00-4478 PROFESSIONAL FEES 36,430 51,015 12,500 12,500 55,000 45,000

01-00-4479 PROPERTY DAMAGE CLAIMS 0 214 0 0 0 0

01-00-4489 SALE OF ASSETS 4,684 14,200 5,000 5,000 85,000 5,000

01-00-4492 TOD UDO REIMBURSEMENT 3,855 0 0 0 0 0

01-00-4494 TOD-PLAN REVIEW FEES 2,000 0 0 0 0 0

01-00-4498 WILLIAMSON CO. F.D. CONTRIBU 30,728 32,793 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 3,311,002 3,994,422 2,863,176 3,011,926 4,552,511 3,927,606

PERMITS & LICENSES

01-00-4520 BUILDING PERMITS 1,765,805 2,888,989 2,890,000 2,890,000 3,550,000 3,520,000

01-00-4521 BLDG PLAN REVIEW FEES 157,880 195,042 165,000 165,000 210,000 165,000

01-00-4522 CODE ENFORCEMENT FEES 6,774 187 500 500 9,820 500

01-00-4525 FIRE REVIEW FEE 7,100 12,137 9,600 9,600 95,000 96,000

01-00-4527 FIRE PERMITS FEE 0 400 0 0 8,000 8,500

01-00-4528 MPN TECHNOLOGY FEE 0 2,270 10,000 10,000 25,000 20,000

4



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01-00-4530 LIQUOR PERMITS 3,135 3,301 3,135 3,135 7,350 6,000

01-00-4545 LEGAL REVIEW FEES 42,701 85,051 25,000 25,000 70,000 45,000

01-00-4546 PLAN REVIEW FEE - K.FRIESE 943 1,898 0 0 250 0

01-00-4555 SITE DEVELOPMENT FILING FEE 72,313 78,357 75,000 75,000 125,000 75,000

01-00-4562 SPECIAL EVENTS PD 1,027 733 500 500 500 500

01-00-4565 SUBDIVISION FILING FEE 157,831 298,365 92,500 92,500 195,000 137,500

01-00-4595 ZONING FILING FEE 43,869 146,279 30,000 30,000 50,000 45,000

TOTAL PERMITS & LICENSES 2,259,377 3,713,009 3,301,235 3,301,235 4,345,920 4,119,000

POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE

01-00-4620 LEOSE-TRAINING 0 2,902 2,900 2,900 2,995 2,995

01-00-4625 LISD - INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 281,234 223,994 233,100 233,100 245,000 245,000

01-00-4630 LISD - POLICE OVERTIME 33,787 47,715 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

01-00-4640 MEDICAL VICTIMS/AG OFFICE 2,591 1,195 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500

01-00-4655 PSAP SUPPLY RESTRICTED 750 1,500 750 750 1,500 1,500

01-00-4660 RESTITUTION REVENUE 0 0 0 0 150 0

01-00-4690 WARRANT FEES 23,173 27,276 26,000 26,000 22,500 26,000

01-00-4695 WRECKER PERMIT FEE 675 550 600 600 600 600

TOTAL POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE 342,211 305,132 314,850 314,850 324,245 327,595

RECREATION FEES

01-00-4718 CONCERTS & EVENTS 7,665 8,575 12,500 12,500 8,000 8,500

01-00-4720 CONCESSIONS PARKS & REC. 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-00-4730 FIELD RENTAL 37,962 43,952 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000

01-00-4760 MOVIES IN THE PARK REVENUE 2,600 2,832 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

01-00-4770 PARK FACILITY USE FEES 6,025 7,390 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000

01-00-4771 PARK PERMITS 100 50 500 500 500 500

01-00-4772 RECREATION PROGRAMS (145) 0 0 0 0 0

01-00-4780 SWIMMING POOL FEES 16,746 11,171 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000

TOTAL RECREATION FEES 70,952 73,970 77,000 77,000 72,500 73,000

5



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

TAXES

01-00-4821 BEVERAGE TAX 6,425 5,520 5,500 5,500 8,750 6,500

01-00-4837 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX 7,903,476 8,816,361 10,060,000 10,060,000 10,150,000 11,975,000

01-00-4850 DELINQUENT PROPERTY TAX 60,130 3,004 45,000 45,000 95,000 45,000

01-00-4870 PENALTY & INTEREST 55,765 42,506 25,000 25,000 38,000 25,000

01-00-4880 SALES TAX 1% 2,613,321 2,986,133 2,900,000 3,600,000 3,475,000 3,735,000

TOTAL TAXES 10,639,117 11,853,524 13,035,500 13,735,500 13,766,750 15,786,500

TRANSFERS

01-00-4970 TRANSFER IN UTILITY FUND 1,360,000 1,360,000 1,360,000 1,360,000 1,360,000 1,250,000

TOTAL TRANSFERS 1,360,000 1,360,000 1,360,000 1,360,000 1,360,000 1,250,000

TOTAL REVENUES 20,012,977 23,283,509 22,844,911 23,693,661 26,482,126 27,537,426

6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

7



CITY MANAGER 
 

The City Manager is the City’s chief executive officer appointed by the City Council and responsible for 
the proper administration of the business affairs of the City.  The City Manager’s duties include 
executing laws and/or policies established by the City Council; submitting an annual budget for their 
approval; and providing strategic leadership and professional management for the entire organization. 
 
Beginning in FY 2015, a new budget unit for Human Resources (HR) was established and the associated 
personnel and expenses are now accounted for in that unit. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Issued $28 million in Certificates of Obligation for capital improvement projects 

 Issued $5.2 million special assessment revenue bonds for Oak Creek Public Improvement District 

 Completed Lakeline extension Phase II 

 Selected architect and Construction-Manager-at-Risk for Fire Station #4 

 Completed Wholesale Wastewater Agreement with Liberty Hill 

 Completed Water & Wastewater Agreement with City of Jonestown 

 Completed Comprehensive Plan Update 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Complete plan for relocation of Fire Station #1 and repurpose existing station to consolidate and 
house Development Services 

 Develop connectivity plan for ACC campus to Capital Metro site 

 Develop Old Town incentives plan 

 Economic Development 

 Assist City Council with creation of bond task force 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
No significant changes have occurred in staff levels or budget for this department from the prior year. 

 

8



 
 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

CITY MANAGER 1 1 1 1 

HR ADMINISTRATOR 1 1 0 0 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 0 1 0 0 

HR GENERALIST 0 1 0 0 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 1 0 0 0 

RECEPTIONIST 1 0 0 0 

ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER * 0 0 * * 

TOTAL 4 4 1 1 

* See Planning and Development Services Department 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

City Manager’s Office www.leandertx.gov/citymanager (512) 528-2700 

  

CITY MANAGER 

Administration 
Strategic 

Planning 

Community 

Engagement 

9



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

CITY MANAGER

PERSONNEL

01-01-5110 SUPERVISION 279,015 192,998 190,035 190,035 200,615 197,637

01-01-5120 OPERATIONS 90,058 115,318 0 0 0 0

01-01-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 4,350 3,810 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800

01-01-5153 LONGEVITY 768 840 180 180 180 240

01-01-5155 CAR ALLOWANCE 12,590 7,865 7,800 7,800 7,800 7,800

01-01-5180 FICA 18,204 14,247 7,049 7,049 7,350 7,049

01-01-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 24,598 18,120 8,809 8,809 8,116 9,685

01-01-5186 MDC 5,460 4,432 2,897 2,897 2,900 3,008

01-01-5188 TMRS 44,584 35,412 22,219 22,219 23,550 24,073

01-01-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 36 834 207 207 207 207

01-01-5192 WORKERS COMP 843 586 415 415 408 388

01-01-5199 SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL PERSONNEL 480,506 394,462 241,411 241,411 252,926 251,887

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-01-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 1,662 354 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

01-01-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 6,324 8,713 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 7,986 9,067 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-01-5503 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0 86 0 0 100 0

01-01-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 13 258 250 250 250 250

01-01-5555 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 5,826 3,468 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 5,839 3,812 250 250 350 250

10



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-01-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 58,192 41,843 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 58,192 41,843 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-01-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 236 0 0 0 0 0

01-01-5915 POSTAGE 674 297 200 200 200 200

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 910 297 200 200 200 200

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-01-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 3,087 3,283 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000

01-01-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 2,415 2,347 500 500 500 500

01-01-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 6,514 9,002 10,500 10,500 10,500 10,500

01-01-6999 CONTINGENCY 242 511 25,000 18,150 0 25,000

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 12,258 15,142 42,000 35,150 17,000 42,000

TOTAL CITY MANAGER 565,691 464,623 291,861 285,011 278,476 302,337

11



 

CITY SECRETARY 
 

The City Secretary serves as custodian of official City records and public documents and provides 
administrative support as required to the City Manager, Mayor and City Council. As the Records 
Management Officer, the City Secretary is responsible for responding to requests for release of open 
records for the City in accordance with the Texas Public Information Act.  All meetings of the City Council 
and City Boards & Commissions are posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act.  The City 
Secretary serves as administrator for all City elections and issues liquor permits for businesses serving 
alcohol within the city limits.  All ordinances, resolutions, contracts, easements, deeds, bonds and other 
documents requiring City certification are sealed and attested by the City Secretary. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Continued recertification with Texas Municipal Clerks Certification Program 

 Continued working with Leander City Council 

 Continued working with Boards and Commissions 

 Remained active with Capital Chapter of the Texas Municipal Clerks 

 Updated Leander Code of Ordinances with Franklin Legal Publishing 

 Began implementation of Laserfiche for cloud based document management 

 Maintained Records Retention Facility to make records readily available to staff 

 Continued filling open records requests according to State Law 

 Conducted General Election and two Special Elections in May 2015 

 Began training Deputy City Secretary 

 Implemented The City of Leander Facebook page 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Continue work on Texas Registered Municipal Clerks Recertification Program 

 Update all Boards and Commissions to ensure they are in active status 

 Maintain applications to keep all City Boards and Commissions current and full 

 Attend seminars to stay updated on Legislative issues concerning municipalities 

 Keep Code of Ordinances updated with Franklin Legal Publishing 

 Continue scanning of all documents into Laserfiche for cloud based  document management 

 Maintain all City Liquor Permits to ensure they are paid and up to date 

 Work with Williamson and Travis County to conduct May General Election 

 Coordinate semi-annual retreats for City Council 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
City Council members serve three-year terms. Municipal elections are held the second Saturday in May 
in two out of every three years.  A General election is scheduled for May 2016.  This FY 16 budget 
includes a reclassification of the Administrative Assistant position to Deputy City Secretary. 

12



 
 

 

 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

CITY SECRETARY 1 1 1 1 

DEPUTY CITY SECRETARY 0 0 0 1 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 0 0 1 0 

TOTAL 1 1 2 2 

 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Open Records Requests 

 City Liquor Permits 

 Taxicab Permits 

112 
27 
1 

260 
29 
2 

300 
32 
2 

 

 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

City Secretary 

Williamson County Elections 

Travis County Elections 

Texas Ethics Commission 

Texas Secretary of State                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

www.leandertx.gov/citysecretary 

www.wilco.org 

www.traviscountyclerk.org 

www.ethics.state.tx.us  

www.sos.state.tx.us 

 (512) 528-2743 

 (512) 943-1630 

 (512) 854-4996 

 (800) 252-8683 

 (512) 463-5650 

 

  

CITY SECRETARY 

City Council 

Support 
Elections 

Records 
Management & 

Public Information 
Code of Ordinances 

13

http://www.wilco.org/
http://www.traviscountyclerk.org/
http://www.ethics.state.tx.us/
http://www.sos.state.tx.us/


FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

CITY SECRETARY

PERSONNEL

01-02-5110 SUPERVISION 66,299 69,250 68,567 68,567 71,220 70,633

01-02-5120 OPERATIONS 0 31,440 39,713 39,713 40,925 47,501

01-02-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 900 1,905 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800

01-02-5153 LONGEVITY 720 780 1,255 1,255 1,200 1,320

01-02-5180 FICA 4,196 6,282 6,903 6,903 7,110 7,121

01-02-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 5,241 9,340 10,826 10,826 11,853 13,923

01-02-5186 MDC 1,004 1,469 1,614 1,614 1,660 1,665

01-02-5188 TMRS 7,850 11,354 12,381 12,381 12,381 13,326

01-02-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 9 414 414 414 414 414

01-02-5192 WORKERS COMP 140 142 231 231 222 215

TOTAL PERSONNEL 86,358 132,377 143,704 143,704 148,785 157,918

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-02-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 0 1,086 0 6,850 6,850 0

01-02-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,124 818 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 1,124 1,904 1,000 7,850 7,850 1,000

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-02-5555 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 0 0 0 0 0 0

14



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-02-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 3,496 1,034 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,350

01-02-5626 EQUIPMENT LEASES 0 0 3,000 3,000 3,000 4,650

01-02-5628 ELECTION EXPENSE 19,265 28,104 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000

01-02-5672 RECORDS MANAGEMENT 5,634 8,388 21,000 21,000 21,000 13,435

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 28,395 37,526 45,350 45,350 45,350 39,435

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-02-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 552 0 0 0 0 0

01-02-5912 COURT RECORDING FEES 168 200 200 200 200 200

01-02-5915 POSTAGE 145 1,047 150 150 150 150

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 865 1,247 350 350 350 350

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-02-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 340 190 220 220 230 220

01-02-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 2,298 1,105 500 500 1,500 1,500

01-02-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,133 4,443 5,200 5,200 5,200 4,000

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 4,771 5,738 5,920 5,920 6,930 5,720

TOTAL CITY SECRETARY 121,512 178,793 196,324 203,174 209,265 204,423

15



FINANCE 
 

The Finance Department’s primary responsibilities include Accounting, Accounts Payable, Payroll, 
Purchasing, and Budget.  The department provides financial reporting to city management and to the 
City Council and assists other departments by providing the information and/or resources they need to 
accomplish their respective missions.  The department is also responsible for debt and cash 
management as well as overseeing internal financial controls throughout the organization.  The 
department also has working relationships with the Williamson and Travis Central appraisal districts and 
both the Williamson and Travis County tax offices. The City’s fiscal year begins October 1 and ends 
September 30.  The City’s Home Rule Charter requires the City Manager to submit a proposed budget to 
the City Council by August 1.  The Finance Department provides assistance to the city manager in 
preparing the Annual Budget and is responsible for producing the final document. 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Received unqualified opinion for the FY 2013-14 audit 

 Automated payment import interface with third-party software ( MyPermitNow and Park Pro) 

 Completed vendor database update with EFT payment information for recurring payment 
vendors and e-mail notification of vendor payment through Incode TOP system 

 Prepared RFP for Bank Depository Services and awarded depository to Frost Bank 

 Prepared RFP for PID Administration Services for Oak Creek Public Improvement District 

 Prepared RFP for Utility Bill Printing and Mailing 

 Issued an additional 13 formal solicitations 

 Enhanced vendor registration pages on the website 

 Hosted citywide Purchasing Policy training session 

 Implemented contract management software 

 Maintained bond credit rating (Moody’s Aa3) and S&P (AA-) 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Support long-range capital budget planning 

 Maintain Financial Management Policy 

 Increase purchasing policy and credit card policy efficiencies through staff training 

 Improve open enrollment collaboration and insurance billing reconciliation 

 Develop comprehensive payroll procedures manual 

 Develop work order ticket tracking system to measure volume of service requests for credit 
cards system assistance and special orders 

 Update all disclosure regulation language on the website and in solicitations to comply with new 
laws 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
No significant changes have occurred in staff levels or budget for this department from the prior year. 

 

16



 
 

 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 

BUDGET 

FY 2014 

BUDGET 

FY 2015 

BUDGET 

FY 2016 

PROPOSED 

FINANCE DIRECTOR 1 1 1 1 

PURCHASING AGENT 1 1 1 1 

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT 0 0 1 1 

ASSISTANT TO FINANCE DIRECTOR 1 1 1 0 

ACCOUNTING CLERK 1 1 1 1 

PAYROLL CLERK 0 0 0 1 

TOTAL 4 4 5 5 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Investments 

 Payroll Processing (Employee Checks) 

 Accounts Payable checks issued 

 Purchase Orders Processed 

$31,736,937 
5,020 
3,121 
2,464 

$45,370,000 
5,600 
3,400 
2,753 

$35,000,000 
5,800 
3,600 
3,000 

 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Accounts Payable 

Accounting 

Purchasing 

Payroll 

Williamson County Tax Office 

Travis County Tax Office 

Williamson Central Appraisal District 

Travis Central Appraisal District 

www.leandertx.gov/finance 

 

 

 

www.wilco.org 

www.co.travis.tx.us 

www.wcad.org 

www.traviscad.org 

 (512) 528-2728 

 (512) 528-2719 

 (512) 528-2730 

 (512) 528-2726 

 (512) 943-1603 

 (512) 854-9473 

 (512) 930-3787 

 (512) 834-9317 

FINANCE 

Accounting Payroll Purchasing Budget 

17

http://www.leandertx.gov/finance
http://www.wilco.org/


FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

FINANCE

PERSONNEL

01-03-5110 SUPERVISION 94,920 110,205 110,573 110,573 114,825 114,444

01-03-5120 OPERATIONS 130,847 109,057 196,343 196,343 142,545 161,639

01-03-5140 OVERTIME 788 207 250 250 250 150

01-03-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 315 445 420 420 420 420

01-03-5153 LONGEVITY 1,380 960 935 935 900 1,080

01-03-5155 CAR ALLOWANCE 5,040 4,840 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800

01-03-5180 FICA 14,004 13,686 19,287 19,287 15,955 17,142

01-03-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 19,588 18,536 26,833 26,833 20,768 27,846

01-03-5186 MDC 3,339 3,201 4,539 4,539 4,675 4,095

01-03-5188 TMRS 26,906 24,941 34,691 34,691 34,690 32,763

01-03-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 560 630 1,035 1,035 1,035 828

01-03-5192 WORKERS COMP 530 401 639 639 431 529

TOTAL PERSONNEL 298,218 287,109 400,345 400,345 341,294 365,736

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-03-5204 BUDGET EXPENSE 22,140 20,950 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000

01-03-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 4,177 0 800 800 2,110 0

01-03-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 6,539 4,815 7,200 7,200 8,000 6,000

01-03-5252 SOFTWARE 0 264 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 32,855 26,028 20,000 20,000 22,110 18,000

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-03-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 14,374 20,884 14,800 14,800 16,951 17,800

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 14,374 20,884 14,800 14,800 16,951 17,800

18



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-03-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 9,980 38,200 20,300 20,300 67,100 68,300

01-03-5602 ALARM MONITORING 240 803 240 240 500 500

01-03-5608 BRINKS ARMORED CAR SERVICE 5,170 5,355 5,220 5,220 5,220 5,220

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 15,390 44,358 25,760 25,760 72,820 74,020

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-03-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 566 453 676 676 615 715

01-03-5911 CREDIT CARD MERCHANT FEES 0 600 600 600 600 600

01-03-5915 POSTAGE 1,588 1,529 1,600 1,600 1,600 1,600

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 2,153 2,582 2,876 2,876 2,815 2,915

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-03-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,549 1,004 1,635 1,635 1,635 1,000

01-03-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 1,715 1,132 2,750 2,750 1,050 1,125

01-03-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 5,957 3,407 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,750

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 9,221 5,543 9,885 9,885 8,185 7,875

TOTAL FINANCE 372,210 386,504 473,666 473,666 464,175 486,346

19



CITY COUNCIL 
 

The City Government of Leander is dedicated to providing its citizens with the highest quality of service 
through the effective and efficient use of all available resources.  The City of Leander is a home rule 
municipality which operates under a Council-Manager form of government.  All powers of the City are  
vested in the City Council which enacts legislation, adopts budgets, approves the issuance of municipal 
bonds, adopts all city ordinances, plans for capital improvements, purchasing and selling property and 
establishing the tax rate.  The City Council appoints and works closely with the City Manager to 
formulate the City’s annual budget. 
 
The Mayor and City Council members serve 3-year terms.  Regular meetings are held on the first and 
third Thursday of each month at 7:00 p.m. at Pat Bryson Municipal Hall. 
 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Completed Lakeline Boulevard Phase II extension 

 Construction Reagan Boulevard waterline 

 Completed US183/183A intersection 

 Completed engineering design for construction on Old 2243 from US183 to Lakeline Blvd 

 Completed Municipal Drive 

 Selected Architect and Construction Manager-at-Risk for Fire Station #4 

 Reduced Tax Rate by $0.015 

 Maintained Water & Sewer Rates 

 Completed Wholesale Wastewater Agreement with Liberty Hill 

 Completed Water & Wastewater Agreement with City of Jonestown 

 Purchased South San Gabriel Park Property 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Prepare for 2016 Bond Election 

 Establish connectivity to ACC prior to commencement of classes 

 Establish Joint Agreement with WBCO & Williamson County to relocate & expand Senior Center 

 Complete Bagdad Sidewalks from Crystal Falls Pkwy to Robin Bledsoe Park 

 Begin Construction of Old 2243 West / Hero Way from US 183 to Lakeline Blvd 

 Begin Construction of Bagdad Road to from Old 2243 West / Hero Way to CR 280 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
The budget includes funds to improve the Council Chamber audio system as well as funds for additional 
training.   

  

20



 
 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

City Council 

Meeting Agendas 

www.leandertx.gov/citycouncil 

www.leandertx.gov/citysecretary 

 (512) 528-2743 

 (512) 528-2743 

 

  

CITY COUNCIL 

Legislative Budget 
Inter-Governmental 

Relations 

Policy 

& Governance 

21



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

CITY COUNCIL

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-05-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 0 0 0 0 3,025 1,500

01-05-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 2,614 17,131 0 0 8,500 0

01-05-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,047 6,296 1,000 1,000 2,500 1,000

01-05-5390 MEETINGS 4,741 5,607 6,200 6,200 6,200 6,200

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 8,402 29,034 7,200 7,200 20,225 8,700

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-05-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 0 0 0 0 0 5,000

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 0 0 0 0 0 5,000

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-05-5732 ENVISION CENTRAL TEXAS 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 0 0

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-05-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-05-5915 POSTAGE 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-05-5916 WIRELESS CARDS 0 0 0 0 0 3,240

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 0 0 0 0 0 3,240

22



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-05-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 9,520 9,845 9,895 9,895 10,280 6,784

01-05-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-05-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 13,661 8,946 10,500 10,500 10,500 19,500

01-05-6850 INTERNAL SERVICE FUND CHARGES 0 2,023 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 23,181 20,813 20,395 20,395 20,780 26,284

TOTAL CITY COUNCIL 31,583 49,847 27,595 27,595 41,005 43,224

23



LIBRARY 
 

The Mission of the Leander Public Library is to enlighten and enrich the citizens of Leander and the 
surrounding community by providing services and resources needed for self-directed personal growth, 
satisfying leisure experiences, and cultural understanding, and to promote literacy, lifelong learning, and 
love of reading.  The Leander Public Library operates in an 18,000 square foot facility that serves the City 
of Leander and the surrounding areas by providing more than 50,000 books, audiobooks, downloadable 
e-books and e-audiobooks, films, and music for all ages. Additionally, weekly programs offered include 
five children’s story times, after school STEAM Club, computer classes, GED and ESL classes, as well as 
other events on a monthly basis such as, Teen Gaming Nights, Book Clubs, Leander Writer’s Guild, 
Craftastic Saturdays, Summer Reading Program, and various special events throughout the year like Mini 
Comic-Con, Teddy Bear Picnic, Winter Wonderland, and family movie festivals.  Free wi-fi is available 
along with twenty-four computers for the public to access the Internet, desktop publishing, and online 
databases including Mango Languages, Chilton’s Car Repair, Legal Forms, and TexShare’s 51 databases 
provided by the Texas State Library.  Along with two study rooms, the Library has two conference rooms 
that may be rented for community events.  The Library is open 74 hours a week, employs 12 full and part 
time staff members including two degreed librarians, has more than 20,000 registered patrons and 
averages about 10,000 visitors each month.  The City contracts with Library Systems and Services (LSSI) 
to operate the library. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Awarded $500 grant for after school STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts, Math) Club 

 Implemented Books on Wheels program to deliver library materials to home bound residents in 
conjunction with Meals on Wheels 

 Acquired Early Literacy Station for the Children’s Area 

 Updated library’s three-year Strategic Plan 

 Increased collection size by 9% and added seven new programs and events 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Replace server and upgrade Wi-Fi access points with usage reporting capabilities for Texas State 
Library statistical report 

 Promote collection enhancements to increase overall circulation by 5% 

 Purge outdated collection and patron information databases 

 Provide at least one continuing education and/or training course to each staff member 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
Budget increase is due primarily to necessary replacement of the library’s server, which is out of 
maintenance support, and an upgrade of wi-fi access points.  

 

24



 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Number of visitors 

 Registered patrons  

 Programs & special events  

 Circulation  

 Collection development 

159,192 
24,197 

646 
141,034 

59,693 

160,000 
26,800 

655 
145,000 

62,400 

162,000 
16,000* 

660 
148,000 
60,000* 

 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Main Library/Circulation Desk 

Children and Teen Services 

Director/Administration 

Library Systems & Services (LSSI) 

Texas State Library & Archives 

www.leandertx.gov/library 

 

 

www.lssi.com 

www.tsl.state.tx.us 

   (512) 259-5259 

 ext 228 

 ext 224 

 (800) 638-8725 

 (512) 463-5455 

 

 

 

  

LIBRARY 

Collection 

Services 
Programs Classes 

Community 

Meeting Rooms 

25

http://www.lssi.com/


FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

PUBLIC LIBRARY

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-06-5503 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 8,094 22,803 10,000 10,000 10,000 8,500

01-06-5555 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 27,600 27,467 27,600 27,600 35,520 35,520

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 35,694 50,270 37,600 37,600 45,520 44,020

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-06-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 491,797 507,747 536,102 536,102 536,102 565,167

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 491,797 507,747 536,102 536,102 536,102 565,167

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-06-5810 TELEPHONE 7 (586) 0 0 0 0

01-06-5911 CREDIT CARD MERCHANT FEES 395 782 480 480 500 480

01-06-5915 POSTAGE 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 401 196 480 480 500 480

GRANTS

01-06-6003 LONE STAR EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-06-6007 TEXAS BOOK FESTIVAL EXPENSE 0 4,660 0 0 0 0

TOTAL GRANTS 0 4,660 0 0 0 0

26



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-06-6311 SUMMER READING PROGRAM 925 982 1,000 1,000 1,250 1,000

01-06-6999 CONTINGENCY 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 925 982 1,000 1,000 1,250 1,000

TOTAL PUBLIC LIBRARY 528,817 563,855 575,182 575,182 583,372 610,667

27



URBAN DESIGN 
 

The Urban Design office was created to oversee all aspects of development-related issues within the 
City’s SmartCode planning area.  This area encompasses the land surrounding the Capital Metro transit 
station, Old Town, and adjacent areas that are planned as walkable neighborhoods.  The Urban Design 
department also provided support to the Leander Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) Board of 
Directors and oversaw administrative functions of the TIRZ.  The duties of the Urban Design office have 
been transferred to the Planning & Development Services Department. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Worked with Austin Community College (ACC) to include construction of the Leander campus on 
the November 2014 ballot 

 Funding for the ACC Leander campus was approved by voters 

 Completed T.O.D. marketing and branding study 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 The duties of the Urban Design office have been transferred to the Planning & Development 
Services Department 

 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
Funding for activities and tasks associated with the T.O.D. have been transferred to the Planning & 
Development Services Department. 

 

 

  

28



 
 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

URBAN DESIGN OFFICER 1 1 0 0 

TOTAL 1 1 0 0 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 See Planning and Development Services    

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Urban Design www.leandertx.gov/urbandesign    (512) 528-2832 

URBAN DESIGN 

Transit-Oriented 

Development 

Inter-governmental 

Relations 

Tax Increment 

Reinvestment Zone 

SmartCode 

Regulations 

29



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

URBAN DEVELOPMENT

PERSONNEL

01-07-5110 SUPERVISION 115,181 39,472 0 0 0 0

01-07-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 2,400 400 0 0 0 0

01-07-5153 LONGEVITY 420 480 0 0 0 0

01-07-5155 CAR ALLOWANCE 7,560 840 0 0 0 0

01-07-5180 FICA 6,154 1,127 0 0 0 0

01-07-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 7,539 1,053 0 0 0 0

01-07-5186 MDC 1,772 582 0 0 0 0

01-07-5188 TMRS 14,460 4,740 0 0 0 0

01-07-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 9 0 0 0 0 0

01-07-5192 WORKERS COMP 313 48 0 0 0 0

TOTAL PERSONNEL 155,808 48,742 0 0 0 0

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-07-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 76 0 0 0 0 0

01-07-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 115 20 1,000 1,000 500 0

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 191 20 1,000 1,000 500 0

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-07-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 0 0 500 500 0 0

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 0 0 500 500 0 0

30



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-07-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 16,197 190,045 66,000 66,000 46,000 0

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 16,197 190,045 66,000 66,000 46,000 0

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-07-5915 POSTAGE 76 203 200 200 0 0

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 76 203 200 200 0 0

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-07-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 195 0 715 715 300 0

01-07-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 0 0 3,500 3,500 3,500 0

01-07-6223 URBAN DEVELOPMENT EXPENSE 5,077 0 0 0 0 0

01-07-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,086 181 3,500 3,500 1,500 0

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 7,357 181 7,715 7,715 5,300 0

TOTAL URBAN DEVELOPMENT 179,630 239,192 75,415 75,415 51,800 0

31



ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
 

The Economic Development Department was established to develop policies and programs that help 
existing business to expand and new business to relocate to Leander in order to create employment, 
increase the city’s tax base, and improve the overall economic well-being of the community.  Success is 
measured by increased employment opportunities, increased capital investment and diversification of 
the economic base.  By working closely with the Greater Leander Chamber of Commerce, the Greater 
Austin Chamber of Commerce, Williamson County Economic Development Partnership, local civic and 
business leaders, real estate professionals and regional developers, the department leverages resources 
to enhance the community’s strengths, minimize its weaknesses, seize opportunities and diminish 
threats to economic health. The department coordinates the City’s sponsorship of the Leander Car Show 
in Old Town the first Sunday of every month. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Maintained the Economic Indicators Database and Primary Employer’s Directory 

 Continued social media presence 

 Hired a new Economic Development Director 

 Reviewed and rewrote the city Economic Development Ordinance 

 Began work with consulting firm to develop an improved available property marketing tool 

 Began exploring potential TIF district(s) and developed a potential Old Town incentive plan 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Increase property tax base, and increase sales tax and permit fee revenue 

 Recruit at least one new base business to the city 

 Improve the Economic Development Department’s web page, especially in regards to available 
property representation 

 Establish at least one new TIF district 

 Establish an Old Town incentive program 

 Improve networking channels to develop prospect leads 

 Attain Economic Developer certification for the Economic Development Manager 

 Work with the Mayor to develop the vision/direction for the Mayor’s Economic Development 
Committee 

 Change the schedule of the Leander Car Show to Saturday and add a Farmers Market 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
Additional funds are included for economic impact analyses, marketing and recruiting.  

32



 
 

 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 1 1 1 1 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT MANAGER 1 1 1 1 

TOTAL 2 2 2 2 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Residential Permits          

 Commercial / Industrial Permits               

 Sales Tax Receipts  

600 
      60 

2,986,133 

1,000 
100 

3,475,000 

1,200 
 

3,870,000 

 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Economic Development 

Leander Car Show 

Greater Leander Chamber of 
Commerce 

www.leandertx.gov/ed 

 

www.leandercc.org 

 (512) 528-2855 

 (512) 528-2855 

 (512) 259-1907 

 

  

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

Business Retention 

& Expansion 

Business 

Relocations 

Entrepreneurial 
Development 

Tourism 

33

http://www.leandertx.gov/ed


FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

PERSONNEL

01-08-5110 SUPERVISION 32,406 0 96,847 96,847 50,000 110,001

01-08-5120 OPERATIONS 51,423 52,825 52,404 52,404 54,010 53,976

01-08-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 1,800 1,270 3,000 3,000 1,950 3,000

01-08-5153 LONGEVITY 60 120 225 225 180 240

01-08-5155 CAR ALLOWANCE 6,540 4,840 9,600 9,600 6,800 10,800

01-08-5180 FICA 5,607 3,658 10,049 10,049 6,820 10,783

01-08-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 5,780 5,225 10,826 10,826 7,385 12,179

01-08-5186 MDC 1,370 855 2,350 2,350 1,595 2,581

01-08-5188 TMRS 10,584 6,507 18,023 18,023 12,720 20,654

01-08-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 18 207 414 414 504 414

01-08-5192 WORKERS COMP 352 285 337 337 244 333

01-08-5199 SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS 0 0 0 0 10,000 0

TOTAL PERSONNEL 115,941 75,792 204,075 204,075 152,208 224,961

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-08-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 0 0 300 300 2,000 1,500

01-08-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 16 0 0 0 0 2,000

01-08-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 262 1,263 1,150 1,150 2,000 2,000

01-08-5280 UNIFORMS 0 91 0 0 0 350

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 278 1,354 1,450 1,450 4,000 5,850

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-08-5503 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 5,029 527 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

01-08-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 0 0 500 500 500 500

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 5,029 527 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500

34



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-08-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 0 0 0 0 30,000 23,950

01-08-5671 ECONOMIC IMPACT STUDIES 50,951 10,000 12,500 12,500 0 25,000

01-08-5740 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-08-5770 OPPORTUNITY AUSTIN 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 10,000 5,000

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 55,951 15,000 17,500 17,500 40,000 53,950

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-08-5915 POSTAGE 0 9 1,000 1,000 250 6,000

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 0 9 1,000 1,000 250 6,000

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-08-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 645 5,515 4,600 4,600 4,760 14,600

01-08-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 580 4,222 9,000 9,000 9,000 45,000

01-08-6204 ECONOMIC DEV. PROMOTIONS 3,112 4,697 14,500 14,500 14,500 45,000

01-08-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,025 6,184 5,000 5,000 5,000 25,000

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 6,362 20,618 33,100 33,100 33,260 129,600

TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 183,561 113,301 259,625 259,625 232,218 422,861

35



 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

The Human Resources (HR) partners with all the departments to attract, retain, support and develop a 
diverse and competent workforce that enables the City departments achieve their business needs.  
 
HR strives to ensure that Leander’s citizens have a competent and productive workforce, committed to 
the delivery of quality service. HR is responsible for administering various employee benefit programs, 
the Personnel Policy, Wellness initiatives, the Employee Compensation plan, job descriptions, and risk 
management. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Conducted annual open enrollment for employee benefits 

 Managed the 3rd annual comprehensive health and wellness program for eligible full time 
employees 

 Continued Professional recertification training 

 Developed and performed the Performance Management Training for all Supervisors, Managers 
and Department Heads. Training on the system continues for new supervisors and refresher 
training for those employees who desire more information about the evaluation process 

 Hired HR Generalist position 

 Developed and produced the “Bright Idea” monthly publication for all employees. The 
publication provides inspirational thoughts, information about benefits and employee birthdays 
for the month 

 Enhanced the “New Hire” program using various presentation methods 

 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Continue to support the Wellness Program initiative 

 Continue ongoing effort to update existing personnel policies 

 Continue effort to implement compliance initiatives for Health Care related provisions 

 Continue recertification credits for the Professional in Human Resources (PHR) 

 Purchase and implement a HR Information system 

 

 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
The budget reflects the reclassification of the HR Generalist position to HR Manager.  Also, additional 
funds are included for training and contract labor.   

36



 
 

 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR 0 0 1 1 

HR MANAGER 0 0 0 1 

HR GENERALIST 0 0 1 0 

TOTAL 0 0 2 2 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Employment Applications Processed 

 Workers Compensation Claims 

 Days lost due to workers comp injuries 

 # of employees who actually missed work 

 FMLA Leave Requests processed 

 Open jobs posted  

 Employee turnover rate % 

773 
20 

11.6 
6 

11 
37 

11% 

424 
11 

9.45 
3 

19 
31 

10.63% 

500 
15 
10 

3 
8 

25 
15% 

 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Human Resources Office 

Employment 

www.leandertx.gov/hr 

www.leandertx.gov/hr/jobs 

 (512) 528-2711 

 (512) 528-2708 

 

  

HUMAN  

RESOURCES 

Recruitment 
Employee Benefit 

Programs 
Wellness Initiative 

Employee 
Compensation 

37

http://www.leandertx.gov/ed


FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

HUMAN RESOURCES

PERSONNEL

01-09-5110 SUPERVISION 0 0 73,828 73,828 78,250 80,038

01-09-5120 OPERATIONS 0 0 45,760 45,760 52,800 62,508

01-09-5140 OVERTIME 0 0 0 0 400 0

01-09-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 0 0 1,800 1,800 1,800 2,220

01-09-5153 LONGEVITY 0 0 505 505 480 600

01-09-5180 FICA 0 0 7,557 7,557 8,200 8,048

01-09-5182 INSURANCE BENEFITS 0 0 12,470 12,470 5,167 6,246

01-09-5186 MDC 0 0 1,767 1,767 1,920 1,882

01-09-5188 TMRS 0 0 13,554 13,554 14,815 15,060

01-09-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 0 0 414 414 414 414

01-09-5192 WORKERS COMP 0 0 253 253 245 243

TOTAL PERSONNEL 0 0 157,908 157,908 164,491 177,259

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-09-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 0 0 7,472 7,472 7,472 6,472

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 0 0 7,472 7,472 7,472 6,472

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-09-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 0 0 49,740 49,740 46,740 64,782

01-09-5626 EQUIPMENT LEASES 0 0 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 0 51,540 51,540 48,540 66,582

38



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-09-5915 POSTAGE 0 0 250 250 250 250

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 0 0 250 250 250 250

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-09-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 0 0 695 695 695 695

01-09-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 0 0 915 915 915 920

01-09-6320 WELLNESS PROGRAM 0 0 0 0 500 6,565

01-09-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 0 0 6,534 6,534 6,534 11,080

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 0 0 8,144 8,144 8,644 19,260

0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL HUMAN RESOURCES 0 0 225,314 225,314 229,397 269,823

39



INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
 

The Information Technology Department provides services related to information technology to City of 
Leander staff.  Department responsibilities include maintaining a stable electronic work environment; 
collaborating with other staff to use information technology to better serve City employees.  Identify 
emerging technologies to meet the City's changing needs; protect the City's investment in technology; 
and provide training to staff on the proper use of software programs and equipment. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Creation of IT Department 

 Implementation of Cloud Base Spam Blocker Solution 

 Implementation of Cloud Base IT Support Help Desk System 

 Implementation of Cloud Base Records Management System for City Secretary Office 

 Implementation of Cloud Base Recreation Software Solution for Parks and Recreation 

 Implementation of RMS/CAD solution for Police 

 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Develop, enhance, and manage the City's enterprise networks to provide high speed, 
transparent, and highly functional connectivity between all City buildings 

 Provide advanced technical support for workstations and network 

 Identify and propose software and hardware changes/upgrades which will increase user and 
network efficiency 

 Provide vision, leadership, and framework for evaluating emerging technologies and implement 
proven information technology solutions 

 Guarantee a reliable communication and computer infrastructure foundation on which to 
efficiently conduct business operations today and in the future 

 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
The budget includes funding to replace and upgrade Internet access points in various facilities.  Also, 
funding for replacement of PC workstations has been consolidated in this budget.  Phase 2 of the fiber 
optic connectivity project between municipal buildings is also included. 

40



 
 

 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY MANAGER 0 1 1 1 

PUBLIC SAFETY SYSTEMS 
ADMINISTRATOR 

0 0 0 1 

TOTAL 0 1 1 2 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Number of Physical Servers 

 Number of Virtual Servers 

 Number of Network Printers  

 Number of Tickets Created 

20 
14 
22 

N/A 

22 
22 
23 

1,944 

23 
22 
26 

1,944 

 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Information Technology Manager www.leandertx.gov/ (512) 528-2717 

 

  

INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY 

Network 
Management 

End-user Support Strategic Planning Network Security 

41

http://www.leandertx.gov/ed


FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

PERSONNEL

01-10-5110 SUPERVISION 0 0 84,999 84,999 93,500 93,253

01-10-5120 OPERATIONS 0 0 0 0 0 61,254

01-10-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 0 0 1,800 1,800 1,800 3,600

01-10-5153 LONGEVITY 0 0 0 0 0 60

01-10-5155 CAR ALLOWANCE 0 0 4,800 4,800 4,800 6,600

01-10-5180 FICA 0 0 5,679 5,679 6,330 9,993

01-10-5182 INSURANCE BENEFITS 0 0 8,809 8,809 8,654 15,290

01-10-5186 MDC 0 0 1,328 1,328 1,480 2,337

01-10-5188 TMRS 0 0 10,186 10,186 11,435 18,942

01-10-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 0 0 207 207 207 387

01-10-5192 WORKERS COMP 0 0 190 190 174 302

TOTAL PERSONNEL 0 0 117,998 117,998 128,380 212,018

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-10-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 0 0 0 0 134 128,512

01-10-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0 3,500 255,697

01-10-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 0 0 1,000 1,000 2,500 2,700

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 0 0 1,000 1,000 6,134 386,909

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-10-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 0 0 5,185 5,185 12,500 24,174

01-10-5555 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 0 0 24,600 24,600 24,600 32,280

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 0 0 29,785 29,785 37,100 56,454

42



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-10-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 0 0 100,000 100,000 100,000 106,050

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 0 100,000 100,000 100,000 106,050

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-10-5915 POSTAGE 0 0 0 0 1 0

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 0 0 0 0 1 0

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-10-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 0 0 116 116 655 685

01-10-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 0 0 2,000 2,000 2,000 4,000

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 0 0 2,116 2,116 2,655 4,685

TOTAL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 0 0 250,899 250,899 274,270 766,116

43



MUNICIPAL COURT 
 

The Municipal Court has criminal jurisdiction over Class C misdemeanor offenses and City ordinances 
that are punishable by fine only.  The Court, like most municipal courts, is not a court of record – 
meaning any appeal to the county level would require a new trial.  The Court adheres to the Texas Code 
of Criminal Procedure and the Code of Judicial Conduct.  More people come into contact with municipal 
courts than all other courts combined in the state of Texas.  Consequently, timely and fair disposition of 
each case with patience, courtesy, and integrity helps to foster the public’s confidence and trust in the 
court system.  Both the municipal judge and associate judge are appointed by the city manager.  The 
court administrator is also appointed by the city manager. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Annual Warrant Roundup 

 Fillable PDF forms on Court Website  

 Customer Service Forms available for customers 

 Awarded honorable mention at the Municipal Traffic Safety Initiatives for 2014 

 Implementation of paperlite application with case management software  

 Implemented the Scofflaw program (denial of registration of vehicle if outstanding warrant) 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 All warrants issued will be electronically filed instead of having hard copies in the clerk’s office. 
PD will still receive hard copies of the warrants 

 Implement Insite website to allow customers to look up their cases and make payments online 
(would also allow persons to see if they have an outstanding warrant in municipal court) 

 Host regional training for Incode Court Management Software 

 Work with TxDot and the Leander Schools to provide safety programs for youth 

 Participate in the Municipal Traffic Safety Initiatives for 2015 

 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
The budget reflects the consolidation of the budget for the Presiding and Associate Judges. 
 

 

  

44



 
 

 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

COURT ADMINISTRATOR 1 1 1 1 

DEPUTY COURT CLERK 3 3 3 3 

TOTAL 4 4 4 4 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Cases Filed 

 Cases Cleared 

 Warrants Issued 

 Warrants Cleared 

 Contested cases (trial related) 

 Average Collection Rate 

 % of cases closed versus filed                             

5,760 
5,206 

677 
843 
264 
80% 
90% 

4,500 
4,200 

650 
750 
350 
81% 
90% 

5,000 
4,600 

650 
750 
400 
80% 
90% 

 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Municipal Court 

Juvenile Cases 

Jury Information 

Trial Information 

www.leandertx.gov/municipalcourt    (512) 259-1239 

 (512) 528-2716 

 (512) 528-2718 

 (512) 528-2714 

 

  

MUNICIPAL 

COURT 

Docket & Case-Flow 

Management 

Juvenile Case 

Management 

Mandatory State 

Reporting 

Collections & 

Warrant Processing 

45



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

MUNICIPAL COURT

PERSONNEL

01-11-5110 SUPERVISION 57,662 59,826 59,937 59,937 61,530 61,734

01-11-5120 OPERATIONS 86,656 103,326 103,270 103,270 106,500 107,369

01-11-5130 PART-TIME 1,992 0 0 0 0 0

01-11-5153 LONGEVITY 1,680 1,860 2,180 2,180 2,100 2,340

01-11-5180 FICA 8,240 9,150 10,254 10,254 10,550 10,567

01-11-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 19,518 23,259 23,981 23,981 23,145 26,813

01-11-5186 MDC 1,970 2,140 2,398 2,398 2,465 2,471

01-11-5188 TMRS 17,081 18,210 18,391 18,391 19,050 19,776

01-11-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 103 830 828 828 828 828

01-11-5192 WORKERS COMP 298 282 343 343 335 319

TOTAL PERSONNEL 195,202 218,882 221,582 221,582 226,503 232,217

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-11-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 3,138 0 0 0 0 0

01-11-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,397 1,733 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800

01-11-5280 UNIFORMS 0 41 0 0 0 200

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 4,535 1,775 1,800 1,800 1,800 2,000

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-11-5503 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-11-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 634 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 634 0 0 0 0 0

46



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-11-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 0 0 26,500 26,500 0 41,500

01-11-5601 MUNICIPAL JUDGE 0 0 0 0 0 38,160

01-11-5618 COURT INTERPRETERS 280 265 700 700 700 800

01-11-5650 LEGAL FEES 0 0 40,000 40,000 37,500 40,000

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 280 265 67,200 67,200 38,200 120,460

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-11-5911 CREDIT CARD MERCHANT FEES 4,718 6,994 5,000 5,000 6,000 6,000

01-11-5915 POSTAGE 3,628 1,884 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 8,346 8,878 8,000 8,000 9,000 9,000

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-11-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 200 262 300 300 300 300

01-11-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 2,838 2,603 3,250 3,250 3,250 3,250

01-11-6207 JURY FEES 288 72 500 500 500 500

01-11-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,424 1,671 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,700

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 5,751 4,607 6,050 6,050 6,050 6,750

TOTAL MUNICIPAL COURT 214,747 234,406 304,632 304,632 281,553 370,427

47



MUNICIPAL COURT 

JUDGE 
 

The Municipal Court Judge is appointed by the city manager and is the presiding judge over the City’s 
Municipal Court which has criminal jurisdiction over Class C misdemeanor offenses and City ordinances 
that are punishable by fine only.  The Court, like most municipal courts, is not a court of record – 
meaning any appeal to the county level would require a new trial.  The Court must adhere to the Texas 
Code of Criminal Procedure and the Code of Judicial Conduct.  More people come into contact with 
municipal courts than all other courts combined in the state of Texas.  Consequently, timely and fair 
disposition of each case with patience, courtesy, and integrity helps to foster the public’s confidence and 
trust in the court system.  The city manager may also appoint associate judges to assist the presiding 
judge with the Court’s caseload. 

 

 

 
 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

PRESIDING JUDGE 1 1 1 1 

ASSOCIATE JUDGE 1 1 1 1 

TOTAL 2 2 2 2 

 

 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
The Presiding Judge and the Associate Judge are not classified as employees, but rather are paid by 
contract.  The budget for the cost of these contractual amounts has been combined with the Municipal 
Court budget for FY 2015-16. 

 

  

MUNICIPAL  COURT 

JUDGE 

Preside Over Court 

Dockets 

Issue Warrants, 

Summons, Writs 

Render  

Judgments 

Assess 

Fines & Fees 

48



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-12-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 9,063 6,531 12,200 12,200 8,000 0

01-12-5601 MUNICIPAL JUDGE 34,848 35,970 37,050 37,050 37,050 0

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 43,911 42,501 49,250 49,250 45,050 0

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-12-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 650 500 500 500 500 0

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 650 500 500 500 500 0

TOTAL MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE 44,561 43,001 49,750 49,750 45,550 0

49



PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

The Planning and Development Services Department is responsible for receiving, processing and 
reviewing, as well as maintaining official records for all subdivision applications, zoning requests, site 
development permit applications, variance requests and annexation requests. The department 
coordinates interdepartmental review of plans and prepares reports for the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, City Council and Board of Adjustment. The department prepares periodic updates to the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan and provides land use and development information to the public and to 
other City departments. The department is responsible for maintaining advanced level training for all 
departmental personnel, and for coordinating planning efforts with outside planning agencies. The 
department also contributes to the 911 addressing process with the GIS Coordinator, the Fire 
Department and outside agencies for all areas within the City’s planning jurisdiction. 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Processed 28 zoning related applications through July 

 Processed 85 subdivision related applications through July 

 Processed 24 site development applications through July 

 Managed the Comprehensive Plan Update process 

 Updated the Composite Zoning ordinance to implement Comprehensive Plan priorities 

 Updated the Transportation Plan 

 Updated the Subdivision Ordinance to implement Comprehensive Plan priorities 

 Provided support for joint work sessions with the City Council and P&Z Commission 

 Maintained and updated the Future Residential Development map 

 Maintained professional certifications for all professional planning staff 

 Received the Planning Excellence award from the American Planning Association 

 Provided training to Planning and Zoning Commissioners 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Provide timely processing and review of development applications 

 Support the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council with thorough and accurate 
analysis of planning cases 

 Implement the recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan Update 

 Provide support for at least two joint work sessions between City Council and Planning & Zoning 
Commission 

 Maintain professional certifications for all professional planning staff 

 Provide training opportunities for all Planning & Zoning Commissioners 

 Receive the Planning Excellence award from the American Planning Association 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
The Urban Design department was incorporated into the Planning and Development Services 
department.  The Building Inspections department now reports to the Assistant City Manager.  The prior 
year budget included funds for the Comprehensive Plan Update ($150,000).    

50



 
 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER 0 0 1 1 

DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 0 1 0 0 

PLANNING DIRECTOR 1 0 0 0 

SENIOR PLANNER 0 1 1 1 

PLANNING COORDINATOR 1 1 1 1 

PLANNER 1 1 1 1 

TOTAL 3 4 4 4 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Subdivision Applications Processed  

 Zoning Application Processed 

 Site Development Applications Processed 

85 
40 
29 

90 
30 
28 

75 
25 
25 

 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Planning & Development Services 
 
Williamson County Engineer 
 
Williamson Co. Health District 
 
Williamson County Clerk 
 
Travis County Transportation & 
Natural Resources 
 
Travis County Clerk 

www.leandertx.gov/planning 
 
www.wilco.org 
 
www.wcchd.org 
 
www.wilco.org 
 
 
www.co.travis.tx.us/tnr 
 
www.traviscountyclerk.org 

 (512) 528-2750 
 
 (512) 943-3330 
 
 (512) 943-3620 
  
 (512) 943-1515 
 
 
 (512) 854-9383 
 
 (512) 854-9188 

  

PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT 

SERVICES 

Comprehensive 

Planning 
Subdivisions Annexations 

Site Development 

& Zoning 

51

http://www.leandertx.gov/planning
http://www.wcchd.org/
http://www.wilco.org/
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/tnr


FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

PERSONNEL

01-20-5110 SUPERVISION 44,540 107,766 137,353 137,353 135,255 134,551

01-20-5120 OPERATIONS 112,997 175,297 175,681 175,681 183,000 182,557

01-20-5140 OVERTIME 275 112 0 0 800 0

01-20-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 600 1,905 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800

01-20-5153 LONGEVITY 612 720 1,040 1,040 960 1,200

01-20-5155 CAR ALLOWANCE 1,840 4,840 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800

01-20-5180 FICA 9,538 17,441 19,861 19,861 18,775 18,435

01-20-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 14,884 22,052 25,049 25,049 20,874 24,357

01-20-5186 MDC 2,269 4,079 4,650 4,650 4,390 4,711

01-20-5188 TMRS 18,577 32,050 35,593 35,593 33,920 37,698

01-20-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 39 838 828 828 838 828

01-20-5192 WORKERS COMP 225 482 660 660 581 608

TOTAL PERSONNEL 206,397 367,582 407,315 407,315 405,993 411,545

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-20-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 0 1,141 1,100 1,100 1,650 1,100

01-20-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 3,764 0 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500

01-20-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 1,604 2,547 2,000 2,000 3,000 2,000

01-20-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,404 3,407 2,300 2,300 2,300 2,800

01-20-5253 ORDINANCE MANUAL 0 787 1,000 1,000 500 1,000

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 7,772 7,882 7,900 7,900 8,950 8,400

52



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-20-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 0 400 800 800 3,750 800

01-20-5503 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 6,781 2,110 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

01-20-5555 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 3,206 3,694 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 9,987 6,204 5,800 5,800 8,750 5,800

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-20-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 21,595 0 150,000 150,000 150,000 55,000

01-20-5626 EQUIPMENT LEASES 0 0 2,280 2,280 2,280 2,280

01-20-5677 SUBDIVISION/COMMERCIAL REVIEW 2,500 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 24,095 0 152,280 152,280 152,280 57,280

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-20-5912 COURT RECORDING FEES 2,007 2,086 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

01-20-5915 POSTAGE 3,151 4,270 2,000 2,000 2,000 4,000

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 5,158 6,357 4,000 4,000 4,000 6,000

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-20-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 860 1,847 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,900

01-20-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 2,658 7,480 5,500 5,500 5,500 9,000

01-20-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 7,893 3,534 6,000 6,000 6,000 9,500

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 11,411 12,861 13,500 13,500 13,500 21,400

TOTAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SVCS 264,819 400,887 590,795 590,795 593,473 510,425

53



PUBLIC WORKS 
STREET MAINTENANCE 

 

The Street Maintenance Division within the Public Works Department maintains the city’s roadway and 

drainage infrastructure to provide public safety as well as enhance the community’s quality of life.  With 

over 18,911 acres within the city limit boundaries, this division maintains over 174 centerline miles of 

roadways - including bridges, guardrails, traffic signs, barricades, signals, and sidewalks;  73 miles of 

underground and 77 miles of open channel storm sewer systems; and 164 acres of drainage detention 

facilities.  The division is also responsible for right-of-way mowing along arterial roadways and medians, 

building maintenance for various municipal buildings, traffic signs and markings, and vehicle 

maintenance of the City’s fleet.  The Public Works Department also conducts the annual Spring Clean-Up 

Day for residents at its facility on Municipal Drive. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Completed Pavement Management Study, Sign Retro-reflectivity Study & Streetlight Inventory 

 Replaced approximately 1,100 linear of Golf Course cart paths 

 Conducted the annual city-wide Fall Cleanup (scheduled for September 2015) 

 Installed 1,200 linear feet of sidewalk on Municipal Drive 

 Installed new truck lift at Public Works Facility 

 Remodeled Police Evidence Room to make it more secure 

 Constructed 450 square feet of additional office space at Public Works Facility 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Continue to expand the amount of mowing performed by outside contractors as the City grows 

 Continue golf cart path replacement 

 Continue drainage maintenance and improvements in older subdivisions 

 Begin contract for detention pond maintenance 

 Respond to emergency service requests within two hours 

 Respond to non-emergency service requests within 24 hours 

 Respond to requests for information within 48 hours 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
The budget reflects an increase in the street maintenance budget for several local streets as well as 
increased contract mowing of public rights-of-ways.  A new Crew Leader Position is also proposed.  The 
prior year budget included funds for a dump truck, tractor trailer and 4-post lift in the mechanic’ s shop. 

 

  

54



 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 1 1 1 1 

STREET SUPERVISOR 1 1 1 1 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 1 1 1 1 

MAINTENANCE II / CREWLEADER 4 3 4 5 

MAINTENANCE I 5 6 6 6 

MECHANIC 1 1 1 1 

MECHANIC / MAINTENANCE I 1 1 0 0 

TOTAL 14 14 14 15 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Street/Utility Cut Repairs 

 Signs Installed 

 Sidewalk Repairs (square feet) 

 Concrete Repairs (cubic yards) 

 Asphalt Placed (tons) 

 Vehicle Repairs 

3 
301 
300 
229 
102 
148 

6 
650 
460 
300 
210 
225 

15 
450 
475 
350 
225 
230 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Public Works Business Hours:  
7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. 
 
Police Dispatch 
After Hours (non-emergency) 

www.leandertx.gov/publicworks 
 
 
 

 (512) 259-2640 
 
  
 (512) 528-2800 

  

STREET 
MAINTENANCE 

Streets & Drainage 
Building 

Maintenance 

Sign & Signal 

Maintenance 

Fleet 

Maintenance 

55



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

PUBLIC WORKS

PERSONNEL

01-21-5110 SUPERVISION 106,357 111,481 110,573 110,573 115,265 114,444

01-21-5120 OPERATIONS 431,815 429,819 480,939 480,939 497,800 522,380

01-21-5140 OVERTIME 6,745 7,852 6,000 6,000 8,000 15,000

01-21-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 1,800 1,905 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800

01-21-5153 LONGEVITY 4,080 4,320 5,735 5,735 4,260 5,220

01-21-5155 CAR ALLOWANCE 5,040 4,840 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800

01-21-5180 FICA 32,843 33,369 36,260 36,260 37,575 40,106

01-21-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 78,470 74,566 80,825 80,825 74,973 96,446

01-21-5186 MDC 7,860 7,804 8,536 8,536 8,800 9,492

01-21-5188 TMRS 64,292 61,678 65,460 65,460 67,890 76,112

01-21-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 275 3,147 3,036 3,036 3,036 3,216

01-21-5192 WORKERS COMP 21,151 18,197 21,958 21,958 19,322 22,272

TOTAL PERSONNEL 760,728 758,978 825,922 825,922 843,521 911,288

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-21-5201 TRAFFIC CONTROL SUPPLIES 29,570 29,599 32,000 32,000 25,000 35,000

01-21-5214 CHEMICALS 4,194 7,226 8,000 8,000 6,000 8,000

01-21-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 12,422 10,419 13,600 13,600 13,600 13,600

01-21-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 61,843 44,595 44,000 44,000 85,000 69,000

01-21-5240 GAS & OIL 34,685 36,403 40,500 40,500 25,000 34,078

01-21-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,835 2,318 1,710 1,710 3,000 3,000

01-21-5252 SOFTWARE 1,983 0 8,520 8,520 10,650 8,154

01-21-5280 UNIFORMS 8,143 8,252 11,000 11,000 11,750 13,500

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 154,675 138,812 159,330 159,330 180,000 184,332

56



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-21-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 0 1,925 1,925 1,925 1,925 0

01-21-5503 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 3,486 9,003 10,000 10,000 25,000 6,000

01-21-5510 DRAINAGE MAINTENANCE 240 18,680 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500

01-21-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 23,334 25,432 24,000 24,000 24,000 26,000

01-21-5530 GROUND MAINTENANCE 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-21-5555 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 4,900 5,091 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200

01-21-5575 TRAFFIC LIGHT MAINTENANCE 1,739 29,487 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

01-21-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT 14,052 14,081 18,000 18,000 18,000 20,000

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 47,750 103,698 76,625 76,625 91,625 74,700

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-21-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 195,938 442,384 946,322 946,322 946,322 398,500

01-21-5605 CONTRACT SVCS - ROADWAY REHAB 0 0 0 0 0 750,667

01-21-5612 CONTRACT SVCS - MOWING 0 0 0 0 0 148,055

01-21-5626 EQUIPMENT LEASES 0 0 4,200 4,200 4,200 4,200

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 195,938 442,384 950,522 950,522 950,522 1,301,422

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-21-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 4,562 4,929 4,900 4,900 4,900 5,900

01-21-5810 TELEPHONE 7,576 6,425 6,840 6,840 6,840 6,840

01-21-5811 STREET LIGHTS 891 1,590 4,000 4,000 6,000 4,000

01-21-5914 PERMIT FEES 0 100 350 350 350 350

01-21-5915 POSTAGE 271 184 150 150 150 150

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 13,301 13,228 16,240 16,240 18,240 17,240

57



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-21-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 580 597 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200

01-21-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 2,356 1,284 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

01-21-6230 MEDICAL SCREENING 450 673 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

01-21-6308 LEANDER CLEAN UP 7,217 871 15,625 15,625 0 18,125

01-21-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 4,757 1,221 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500

01-21-6850 FLEET RESERVE FUND 0 3,000 15,825 15,825 15,825 55,323

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 15,360 7,646 39,150 39,150 23,525 81,148

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-21-7000 VEHICLES 0 0 118,620 118,620 118,620 0

01-21-7100 MAJOR EQUIPMENT 0 14,500 25,000 25,000 28,350 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 14,500 143,620 143,620 146,970 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS

01-21-8338 LHS PEDESTRIAN CROSSING 95,475 1,502 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 95,475 1,502 0 0 0 0

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 1,283,227 1,480,747 2,211,409 2,211,409 2,254,403 2,570,130

58



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

59



ENGINEERING 
 

The mission of the Engineering Department is to provide the community with safe, reliable, and 

adequate water supply; wastewater collection and treatment facilities; storm water collection and 

treatment systems; and transportation infrastructure that includes roadways, sidewalks, and traffic 

control devices.  The department administers each phase of the City's capital improvements projects 

including professional planning, design, construction, and inspection.  The department develops, 

manages, maintains reviews, approves, and inspects, as applicable, design and construction standards; 

all public works and private sector subdivision, commercial, and industrial infrastructure projects; 

statutory mapping including zoning, addressing, emergency services, city limits, ETJ, CCN, floodplain, 

aerial, water system, wastewater system, storm sewer system, and topography; infrastructure 

development and service agreements; and comprehensive water, wastewater, drainage, and 

thoroughfare master plans. 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Commenced construction of Municipal Dr. Roadway improvements for Elementary School #25 

 Hired Storm Water Inspector and initiated MS4 Storm Water Management Plan 

 Continued right-of-way acquisition for construction of Old 2243/Hero Way at US183 to Lakeline 

 Commenced updated design of Bagdad Road from Old 2243 to CR 280 

 Continued regional partnership by securing sites for Phase Two Deep Water Intake for BCRUA 

 Installed Traffic Signals at Bagdad Road/Municipal Drive for Elementary School #25 opening 

 Completed design of right turn lane at Crystal Falls Parkway and US183 

 Commenced and completed construction for Ridgmar Landing Waterline Improvements Project 

 Commenced construction of Ronald Reagan North Water Line Improvements, Phase 2 

 Commenced design of CR 269/Hero Way Water Line Improvement Project 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Update Water and Wastewater Masterplans and Impact Fee Study 

 Commence construction of Old 2243/Hero Way Roadway Improvements 

 Commence construction of Reagan EST/GST/Booster Pump Station 

 Complete construction of Ronald Reagan North WL – Phase 2 

 Commence CR269 Hero Way Water Line Improvements Project , Phase 1 

 Maintain regional partnerships in BCRUA and BCRWWS 

 Commence and complete South Brushy Creek WW Interceptor 

 Commence and complete San Gabriel 24 inch waterline (Bryson) 

 Commence and complete construction of Wedemeyer Main Lift Station, Phase one 

 Commence Bagdad Road North construction from Old 2243 West to CR 280 

 Commence and complete construction of right turn lane at Crystal Falls Parkway and US183 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
The budget includes a new Construction Inspector position, two vehicles and funding for various FEMA 
mapping updates. 

60



 
 

 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

ENGINEERING DIRECTOR  1 1 1 1 

ASSISTANT CITY ENGINEER  1 1 1 1 

GIS COORDINATOR 1 1 1 1 

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTOR 1 2 2 3 

STORMWATER INSPECTOR 0 0 1 1 

ENGINEER 0 0 0 2 

ENGINEER EIT 1 1 1 0 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 0 1 1 1 

TOTAL 5 7 8 10 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 % of subdivision reviews completed within two 
weeks of receipt 

 % of public works project reviews completed 
within two weeks of receipt 

 % of responses to citizen inquiries made within 
two business days 

 % of responses to consultant or contractor 
requests for information made within two 
business days 

 % of responses to City Council or staff requests 
for information made within two business days   

 90% 
 

N/A 
 

100% 
 

96% 
 
 

98% 
 

100% 
 

N/A 
 

100% 
 

100% 
 
 

100% 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Engineering www.leandertx.gov/engineering  (512) 528-2721 

  

ENGINEERING 

Design Inspection GIS & CIP 
Development 

Agreements 

61



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

ENGINEERING

PERSONNEL

01-22-5110 SUPERVISION 149,069 195,284 199,258 199,258 199,500 192,187

01-22-5120 OPERATIONS 186,048 297,333 364,309 409,309 442,100 506,211

01-22-5140 OVERTIME 0 187 0 0 400 0

01-22-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 1,800 1,905 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800

01-22-5153 LONGEVITY 1,500 1,800 2,185 2,185 2,220 2,760

01-22-5155 CAR ALLOWANCE 8,460 9,015 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000

01-22-5156 FUEL ALLOWANCE 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-22-5180 FICA 20,483 29,679 35,491 35,491 38,550 43,662

01-22-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 22,976 35,503 46,154 46,154 45,000 69,534

01-22-5186 MDC 4,919 6,941 8,360 8,360 9,020 10,323

01-22-5188 TMRS 40,005 55,708 63,976 63,976 69,675 82,169

01-22-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 45 1,465 1,629 1,629 1,629 2,043

01-22-5192 WORKERS COMP 1,536 1,375 3,359 3,359 3,959 4,583

TOTAL PERSONNEL 436,840 636,195 735,521 780,521 822,853 924,272

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-22-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 0 0 0 0 7,000 0

01-22-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 2,332 2,607 15,500 15,500 12,500 10,500

01-22-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 2,613 4,444 3,000 3,000 5,000 6,000

01-22-5240 GAS & OIL 2,752 5,221 5,000 5,000 7,200 7,200

01-22-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 916 2,304 1,650 1,650 3,000 2,000

01-22-5280 UNIFORMS 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 8,613 14,576 25,150 25,150 34,700 25,700

62



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-22-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 7,326 8,223 17,510 17,510 17,510 47,510

01-22-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT 1,426 410 1,500 1,500 2,000 2,000

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 8,752 8,633 19,010 19,010 19,510 49,510

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-22-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 6,907 0 165,000 165,000 50,000 165,000

01-22-5604 AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY 4,181 4,181 4,621 4,621 4,621 4,621

01-22-5677 SUBDIVISION/COMMERCIAL REVIEW 11,174 7,223 0 0 0 0

01-22-5678 SUBDIVISION CONSTRUCTION EXP 73,401 181,560 180,000 180,000 180,000 240,000

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 95,663 192,964 349,621 349,621 234,621 409,621

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-22-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 1,941 2,221 2,810 2,810 2,810 5,000

01-22-5810 TELEPHONE 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-22-5915 POSTAGE 759 257 1,000 1,000 500 1,000

01-22-5916 WIRELESS CARDS 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 2,701 2,478 3,810 3,810 3,310 6,000

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-22-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,568 811 2,000 2,000 2,000 4,300

01-22-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 1,173 823 1,000 1,000 1,500 1,500

01-22-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,612 5,193 5,000 5,000 7,500 8,000

01-22-6850 FLEET RESERVE FUND 0 3,000 2,688 2,688 2,688 5,376

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 5,353 9,828 10,688 10,688 13,688 19,176

63



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-22-7000 VEHICLES 0 23,502 28,000 28,000 25,906 56,000

01-22-7100 MAJOR EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0 10,500 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 23,502 28,000 28,000 36,406 56,000

TOTAL ENGINEERING 557,922 888,175 1,171,800 1,216,800 1,165,088 1,490,279

64



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

65



PARKS & RECREATION 
 

The Parks & Recreation Department (PARD) manages 9 parks totaling 316 acres, maintains municipal 
building landscapes, oversees library and golf course operations and serves as liaison to the Parks & 
Recreation Advisory Board, Public Arts Commission, Library Foundation Board and Veterans Park 
Committee.   
Facilities include an amphitheater, lighted basketball court, Mason Homestead, 2 lighted multi-purpose 
athletic fields, 3 lighted baseball fields, 5 pavilions, skate park, swimming pool, 5 playscapes, 5 
soccer/football fields, 5 picnic areas, trails, water playscape, 5 restrooms and a restroom/concession 
building.   
Special invents include: Kite Festival; Spring Egg-Stravaganza; Liberty Fest; Bluegrass Festival; Veterans 
Day Festivities and Christmas Parade & Tree Lighting,   Recreation programs include: Swimming lessons; 
water aerobics;  fitness classes; Lego, art & science camps; active adult day trips; movies in the park and 
Christmas tree recycling. 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Completed additional improvements at the Mason Homestead (Split-rail fencing, planted trees) 

 Held Veterans Park Grounds Breaking Festival and VFW Fundraiser Events 

 Completed initial improvements in Veterans Park 

 Completed construction of the TPWD funded North Branch Brushy Creek Trail segment 

 Received a $400,000 TPWD grant for Lakewood Park 

 Increased program and facility use revenues 

 Completed construction on the Benbrook Ranch Park Baseball Complex 

 Acquired 44 acres of parkland on the South San Gabriel River 

 Acquired 3.46 acres of land for the Brushy Creek Main Branch Trail 

 Implemented a management software system for facility rentals and program registration 

 Completed landscaping projects at City Hall and on East Crystal Falls Parkway 

 Resumed Full Moon Concert Series with sponsorship from In & Out Burgers 

 Dedicated the Gabriel & Jayne Serna Fields in Bledsoe Park 

 Introduced an Annual Program Guide 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Establish a baseball program and begin play on the new baseball fields in Benbrook Ranch Park 

 Construct segments of the North Branch Brushy Creek Trail (Oak Creek, Village @ Leander 
Station TOD) 

 Construct a segment of the Brushy Creek Main Trail (Stewart Crossing, Marbella) 

 Construction a segment of the South Branch Brushy Creek Trail (Carneros Ranch) 

 Begin construction at Lakewood Community Park 

 Continue fund raising for Veterans Park 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
Funds are included for a Recreation Supervisor position.  Also, funds for Liberty Fest have been 
transferred from Non-Departmental to this budget. 

 

66



 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

PARKS & RECREATION DIRECTOR 1 1 1 1 

MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR 1 1 1 1 

RECREATION SUPERVISOR 0 0 0 1 

ATHLETICS/RECREATION PROGRAMMER 1 1 1 1 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT  1 1 1 1 

MAINTENANCE II / CREW LEADER  2 2 3 3 

MAINTENANCE I / PARKS  4 4 5 5 

MAINTENANCE II / JANITORIAL 1 1 1 1 

MAINTENANCE I  / JANITORIAL  1 1 1 1 

TOTAL 12 12 14 15 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Parks Maintained 

 Number of Park Acres 

 Special events  

 Recreation programs  

 Maintenance of Municipal landscapes 

 Janitorial Services to Municipal buildings                                                        

9 
267 

5 
13 

8 
9 

9 
316 

6 
9 
7 
9 

9 
330 

6 
9 
7 
9 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

General Information 

Programs, Events & Facility Rental 

Park Maintenance 

Bledsoe Park Pool (June thru August) 

Public Arts Commission 

Crystal Falls Golf Club 

Leander Public Library 

www.leandertx.gov/parksrec 

 

 (512) 528-9909 

 (512) 528-9909 

 (512) 528-9909 

 (512) 528-9909 

 (512) 528-9909 

(512) 259-5855 

(512) 259-5259 

PARKS 

& RECREATION 

Recreation 

Programs & Special 
Events 

Janitorial  

Services 

Park 

Maintenance 
Facility Rentals 

67



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

PARKS & RECREATION

PERSONNEL

01-23-5110 SUPERVISION 134,572 150,462 150,037 150,037 154,600 225,287

01-23-5120 OPERATIONS 326,020 330,103 389,553 389,553 395,000 379,744

01-23-5140 OVERTIME 5,224 6,964 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000

01-23-5153 LONGEVITY 2,940 2,760 3,595 3,595 3,480 4,140

01-23-5155 CAR ALLOWANCE 5,040 4,840 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800

01-23-5180 FICA 28,772 30,238 33,771 33,771 35,050 37,849

01-23-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 61,908 62,828 75,338 75,338 72,863 85,250

01-23-5186 MDC 6,887 7,072 7,898 7,898 8,200 8,852

01-23-5188 TMRS 54,663 54,626 60,452 60,452 63,310 70,989

01-23-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 373 2,290 2,925 2,925 2,925 9,095

01-23-5192 WORKERS COMP 6,382 6,446 8,431 8,431 7,502 8,068

TOTAL PERSONNEL 632,781 658,629 743,800 743,800 754,730 841,074

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-23-5202 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 0 40 0 0 0 0

01-23-5214 CHEMICALS 24,015 16,737 23,500 23,500 23,500 20,000

01-23-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 0 770 0 0 0 1,530

01-23-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 4,152 1,780 8,500 8,500 8,500 17,650

01-23-5220 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 15,817 16,902 15,000 15,000 17,500 16,200

01-23-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 699 30,352 33,500 33,500 33,500 34,535

01-23-5240 GAS & OIL 14,972 14,753 14,500 14,500 12,500 14,500

01-23-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,564 3,196 4,000 4,000 4,000 5,250

01-23-5252 SOFTWARE 0 0 0 0 0 1,152

01-23-5280 UNIFORMS 5,912 6,819 7,000 7,000 7,500 7,500

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 69,132 91,351 106,000 106,000 107,000 118,317

68



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-23-5503 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 46,052 10,744 30,500 30,500 25,000 30,280

01-23-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 4,388 3,917 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000

01-23-5530 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 30,384 5,260 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,250

01-23-5550 RIGHT-OF-WAY MAINTENANCE 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-23-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT 2,151 3,827 6,200 6,200 6,200 6,200

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 82,976 23,748 50,700 50,700 45,200 50,730

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-23-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 81,034 98,283 293,300 293,300 293,300 66,350

01-23-5612 CONTRACT SVCS - MOWING 0 0 0 0 0 88,210

01-23-5626 EQUIPMENT LEASES 0 0 0 0 0 2,400

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 81,034 98,283 293,300 293,300 293,300 156,960

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-23-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 3,786 4,898 3,825 3,825 3,825 4,540

01-23-5810 TELEPHONE 8,010 6,848 7,320 7,320 7,320 7,760

01-23-5911 CREDIT CARD MERCHANT FEES 421 1,068 800 800 1,100 1,100

01-23-5915 POSTAGE 68 162 100 100 100 125

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 12,285 12,976 12,045 12,045 12,345 13,525

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-23-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 575 1,234 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,400

01-23-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 1,979 3,378 4,350 4,350 4,350 4,350

01-23-6309 LIBERTY FEST 0 0 0 0 0 70,000

01-23-6313 MOVIES IN THE PARK 2,636 2,798 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

01-23-6314 CONCERTS & EVENTS 8,614 9,700 23,700 23,700 23,700 24,700

69



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01-23-6315 SENIOR RECREATION 545 731 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

01-23-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 4,677 4,702 5,900 5,900 5,900 5,900

01-23-6850 FLEET RESERVE FUND 0 8,435 15,455 15,455 15,455 15,455

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 19,025 30,977 54,605 54,605 54,605 125,805

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-23-7100 MAJOR EQUIPMENT 3,436 0 0 0 0 5,700

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 3,436 0 0 0 0 5,700

TOTAL PARKS & RECREATION 900,670 915,964 1,260,450 1,260,450 1,267,180 1,312,111

70



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

71



POLICE 

ADMINISTRATION 
 

The Leander Police Department strives to be a full-service public safety agency and is committed to 
providing wide range of police services to our community.  It is the responsibility of the police 
department to address crime, the fear of crime, public disorder, and neighborhood problems that 
detract from the overall quality of life in our community. 
The Police Administration is specifically responsible for departmental service delivery, overall leadership 
and staff development, budgetary planning and monitoring, general policy development and initiation, 
and the oversight of all department operations and administrative functions. 
 

 
 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Moved Command Staff and several other staff members to the partially developed second floor 
of the police station to free up existing office space for personnel additions in Criminal 
Investigations and victim Services 

 Initiated F.T.O. (Field Training Officer) Incentive Pay for Field Training Officers and 
Communications Training Officers 

 Transitioned obsolete CAD and Records Management System to Sungard OSSI. This project was a 
significant leap forward in improving the efficiency and regionalizing the police departments 
information sharing 

 Expanded social media presence and launch tip411 on the public side to enhance crime fighting 
capabilities of the department 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Continue to work with City Manager and City Staff to develop a competitive pay structure for 
police personnel in an effort to remain competitive in the region 

 Develop incentive pay for bilingual (Spanish and American Sign Language) proficient personnel 

 Further develop the Professional Standards Division to handle recruiting, hiring, training, 
promotions, and internal investigation matters 

 Develop Smart 9-1-1 system for enhanced information available to communications and 
responding public safety personnel  

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
The budget reflects funds for the annual maintenance and support of the new Computer Aided Dispatch 
(CAD) system purchased in the prior year. 

 

72



 
 
 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

CHIEF OF POLICE 1 1 1 1 

ASSISTANT POLICE CHIEF 1 1 1 1 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE MANAGER 1 1 1 1 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 1 1 1 1 

ADMIN ASSISTANT / RECORDS 0 1 1 1 

CALL TAKER 1 0 0 0 

TOTAL 5 5 5 5 

 
 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Calls for Police Service 

 Sworn Personnel  

 Non-sworn Personnel 

 Open Records Requests 

17,567 
38 
16 

246 

19,560 
40 
17 

300 

23,574 
41 
17 

354 

 
 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Chief of Police 

Assistant Chief of Police 

Administrative Assistant 

Open Records Requests 

www.leandertx.gov/police 

 

 (512) 528-2816 

 (512) 528-2802 

 (512) 528-2809 

 (512) 528-2806 

 

  

POLICE 
ADMINISTRATION 

Command 

Leadership 
Records 

Fiscal 

Planning 

Strategic 

Planning 

73



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

POLICE ADMINISTRATION

PERSONNEL

01-40-5110 SUPERVISION 192,153 204,284 203,630 203,630 213,760 213,177

01-40-5120 OPERATIONS 120,501 126,851 134,358 134,358 137,085 132,468

01-40-5140 OVERTIME 1,717 1,572 0 0 250 0

01-40-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 2,736 2,896 2,736 2,736 2,736 2,736

01-40-5153 LONGEVITY 3,000 3,840 3,830 3,830 4,140 4,440

01-40-5154 CERTIFICATION PAY 3,000 3,175 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

01-40-5180 FICA 19,626 20,159 21,432 21,432 22,380 22,027

01-40-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 27,051 30,517 29,394 29,394 32,515 36,498

01-40-5186 MDC 4,679 4,715 5,032 5,032 5,235 5,228

01-40-5188 TMRS 37,299 37,869 38,588 38,588 40,425 41,830

01-40-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 306 1,035 1,035 1,035 1,035 1,035

01-40-5192 WORKERS COMP 3,596 3,266 4,061 4,061 3,841 3,794

01-40-5199 SUPPLEMENTAL  BENEFITS 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL PERSONNEL 415,663 440,178 447,096 447,096 466,402 466,233

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-40-5202 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 0 128 0 0 0 0

01-40-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 7,660 35,892 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500

01-40-5280 UNIFORMS 620 1,103 1,000 1,000 1,000 2,500

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 8,279 37,122 8,500 8,500 8,500 10,000

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-40-5503 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 23,670 38,584 33,300 33,300 33,300 42,088

01-40-5555 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 69,565 78,857 133,736 133,736 133,736 156,741

01-40-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT 370 661 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 93,605 118,102 168,036 168,036 168,036 199,829

74



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-40-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-40-5626 EQUIPMENT LEASES 9,533 8,336 19,110 19,110 19,110 12,345

01-40-5726 CHILDREN'S ADVOCACY CENTER 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 39,533 38,336 49,110 49,110 49,110 42,345

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-40-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-40-5810 TELEPHONE 14,644 981 18,240 6,240 6,000 0

01-40-5911 CREDIT CARD MERCHANT FEES 0 184 100 100 50 0

01-40-5915 POSTAGE 2,399 2,451 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 17,043 3,616 20,840 8,840 8,550 2,500

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-40-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,422 1,589 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,000

01-40-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 3,040 2,848 4,100 4,100 4,100 4,350

01-40-6209 OTHER (MEDICAL VICTIMS) 49 0 0 0 0 0

01-40-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,676 3,635 3,650 3,650 3,650 3,650

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 7,187 8,072 9,850 9,850 9,850 10,000

TOTAL POLICE ADMINISTRATION 581,311 645,426 703,432 691,432 710,448 730,907

75



POLICE 
UNIFORM SERVICES 

 

The Uniform Patrol Division is the most recognizable unit of the police department, operating 24 hours 
a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year. Officers drive highly visible patrol vehicles, which are essentially 
their “mobile offices” - equipped with the latest audio / video recording system, speed detection 
equipment, and communications / data technology that allows them to do their job more effectively 
and efficiently. These officers are the first responders who provide proactive police patrols, enforce 
federal, state, and local laws, as well as providing assistance to citizens in need. In short, the Patrol 
Division performs initial investigations into offenses and prevents and deters crime through their 
presence. In order to effectively provide coverage throughout the city, the Uniform Patrol Division 
utilizes four shifts working in 12-hour rotations with both day and night shift coverage. 

 
 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Expand patrol services by adding 2 additional officers to staff 

 Deployed a joint use collision scene / crime scene investigation trailer equipped with temporary 
signage, barricades, cones, and scene lighting for CID and Traffic Unit use 

 Personal (Body Camera) Program expansion by adding "body cams" for all patrol use 

 Continued TASER Equipment replacement program with incremental replacements 

 Continued Mobile Data Terminal replacement program with incremental replacements 

 Continued Handheld Radio replacement program with incremental replacements 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Expand patrol services by adding 4 additional officers to staff and associated vehicles 

 Expand the DigiTICKET (Electronic Ticket Writer) program by 2 units 

 Add 1x Radar Trailer / Message Board for better traffic control and public education. 

 Participation in the Central Texas Regional SWAT 

 
 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
The budget includes the addition of one patrol officer and vehicle.  Also, an additional $37,000 is 
budgeted for the newly formed Central Texas Regional SWAT Team. 

 

  

76



 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

LIEUTENANT 1 1 1 1 

SERGEANT 4 5 5 5 

OFFICER 14 15 15 16 

OFFICER I / CHAPLAIN * * * * 

WARRANT OFFICER 0 1 1 1 

CORPORAL 4 4 4 4 

TOTAL 23 26 26 27 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Traffic Violations 

 Total Collisions 

5,093 
675 

3,816 
832 

5,100 
900 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Uniform Services Lieutenant 
Patrol Shift Sergeants (4)  

www.leandertx.gov/police  (512) 528-2810 
(512) 528-2820 
(512) 528-2826 
(512) 528-2842 
(512) 528-2825 

 

UNIFORM 

SERVICES 

Patrol Warrants Traffic High Risk Team 

77



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

UNIFORM SERVICES

PERSONNEL

01-41-5110 SUPERVISION 67,401 68,316 68,424 68,424 75,180 75,394

01-41-5120 OPERATIONS 1,186,907 1,334,449 1,471,378 1,471,378 1,455,000 1,490,865

01-41-5140 OVERTIME 50,098 50,989 65,249 65,249 80,000 65,249

01-41-5141 OVERTIME - STEP 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-41-5142 OVERTIME - SCHOOL 37,164 41,034 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000

01-41-5151 STIPEND PAY 4,800 0 0 0 0 0

01-41-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 936 991 936 936 936 936

01-41-5153 LONGEVITY 8,040 8,880 9,435 9,435 9,180 10,140

01-41-5154 CERTIFICATION PAY 12,375 18,850 18,000 18,000 22,500 33,500

01-41-5180 FICA 81,242 92,132 98,954 98,954 103,825 103,236

01-41-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 148,439 150,306 173,719 173,719 160,349 195,681

01-41-5186 MDC 19,423 21,547 23,152 23,152 24,280 24,143

01-41-5188 TMRS 161,085 172,641 177,212 177,212 187,550 193,383

01-41-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 378 5,406 5,742 5,742 5,742 5,769

01-41-5192 WORKERS COMP 25,901 26,653 28,341 28,341 28,222 26,012

TOTAL PERSONNEL 1,804,191 1,992,193 2,180,542 2,180,542 2,192,764 2,264,308

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-41-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 0 2,216 0 0 0 0

01-41-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 27,894 48,931 47,220 47,220 47,220 47,530

01-41-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 13,417 21,943 26,698 26,698 26,698 26,759

01-41-5240 GAS & OIL 112,092 112,595 125,000 125,000 95,000 112,750

01-41-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 132 1,024 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,300

01-41-5280 UNIFORMS 35,964 46,368 36,256 36,256 36,256 46,008

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 189,499 233,078 236,374 236,374 206,374 234,347

78



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-41-5484 SHOOTING RANGE MAINTENANCE 1,556 7,041 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,500

01-41-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 3,787 4,538 8,500 8,500 8,500 9,288

01-41-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT 37,829 37,578 36,650 36,650 30,000 37,000

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 43,171 49,157 50,150 50,150 43,500 51,788

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-41-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 6,650 1,041 0 0 500 0

01-41-5663 PHYSICALS/WELLNESS CONTRACT 0 15,024 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 6,650 16,065 0 0 500 0

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-41-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 0 842 0 0 0 0

01-41-5810 TELEPHONE 5 0 0 0 0 0

01-41-5916 WIRELESS CARDS 9,702 10,807 12,100 12,100 12,100 15,180

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 9,707 11,649 12,100 12,100 12,100 15,180

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-41-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 0 350 350 350 350 540

01-41-6209 OTHER (MEDICAL VICTIMS) 198 0 0 0 0 0

01-41-6212 RECRUITING 987 6,412 13,500 3,272 13,500 0

01-41-6316 COMMUNITY POLICING 101 195 0 0 0 0

01-41-6321 CENTRAL TX REGIONAL SWAT 0 0 0 0 0 37,000

01-41-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 25,623 29,653 31,650 31,650 31,650 49,100

01-41-6382 LEOSE & TRAINING 0 1,020 2,900 2,900 3,242 2,900

01-41-6850 FLEET RESERVE FUND 68,252 145,202 210,090 210,090 210,090 280,317

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 95,161 182,831 258,490 248,262 258,832 369,857

79



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-41-7000 VEHICLES 53,046 96,543 108,486 108,486 114,500 64,600

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 53,046 96,543 108,486 108,486 114,500 64,600

INTEREST

01-41-9226 INTEREST CAPITAL LEASE 1,193 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL INTEREST 1,193 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL UNIFORM SERVICES 2,202,617 2,581,516 2,846,142 2,835,914 2,828,570 3,000,080

80



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

81



POLICE 

SUPPORT SERVICES 
 

The Support Services Division provides the most diverse of the Department’s services, which include 
Communications, Community Services, School Resource Officers, Records, Animal Control, CALEA 
Accreditation Management, and a number of additional administrative services and programs like 
recruiting, hiring process, training, etc. Programs coordinated by personnel in Support Services include 
the Citizens Police Academy, Police Explorers youth program, National Night Out, and the Annual Blue 
Santa, as well as many other crime prevention and community education programs. 
 

 
 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Developed and deployed a Citizen's on Patrol Program 

 Computer Server upgrade from existing equipment to faster and larger resources 

 Upgraded computers in Communications Dispatch Center to coincide with new CAD / Records 
Management system 

 Increased training budget allocation for Communications personnel to comply with State of 
Texas licensing and certification law changes requiring certain mandatory training for 
certification levels  

 Created C.T.O. (Communications Training Officer) incentive pay 

 
 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Establish a Professional Standards Division to centralize a number of functions that have been 
distributed to other members of the department, including, internal investigations, recruiting, 
hiring, training, promotional process, etc.  

 
 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
Funds are included for a vehicle to be assigned to the Community Services Officer. 

 

82



 
 
 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

LIEUTENANT 1 1 1 1 

TCO MANAGER 1 1 1 1 

TCO SUPERVISOR 2 2 2 2 

TELECOMMUNICATION OFFICER  III 1 2 2 2 

TELECOMMUNICATION OFFICER  II 3 3 3 3 

TELECOMMUNICATION OFFICER  I 3 2 2 2 

SERGEANT 2 2 1 1 

OFFICER III – COMMUNITY SERVICES 0 0 1 1 

OFFICER III 1 0 0 0 

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER / SGT 0 0 1 1 

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER 2 2 2 2 

EVIDENCE TECHNICIAN 1 0 0 0 

TOTAL 17 15 16 16 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Increase Applicant Pool for Entry Level positions 

 Increase National Night Out Event Participation 

61 Apps 
11 Events 

56 Apps 
14 Events 

60 Apps 
19 Events 

 
 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Support Services Lieutenant 

Support Services (PSD) 

School Resources Division 

Communications Manager 

Community Services Officer 

www.leandertx.gov/police 

  

  

  

  

 (512) 528-2804 

 (512) 528-2932 

 (512) 996-1381 

(512) 528-2834 

(512) 528-2800 

 

SUPPORT 

SERVICES 

Communications 
School Resource 

Officers 

Community 

Services 

Professional 

Standards 

83



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

SUPPORT SERVICES

PERSONNEL

01-42-5110 SUPERVISION 67,144 69,106 68,424 68,424 75,180 75,394

01-42-5120 OPERATIONS 683,814 662,665 764,914 764,914 805,000 778,263

01-42-5130 PART-TIME 0 9,225 0 0 4,000 0

01-42-5140 OVERTIME 35,275 48,265 6,400 6,400 41,500 6,400

01-42-5151 STIPEND PAY 3,500 0 0 0 0 0

01-42-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 858 986 936 936 936 936

01-42-5153 LONGEVITY 5,400 5,040 6,445 6,445 5,700 6,720

01-42-5154 CERTIFICATION PAY 16,250 17,000 16,500 16,500 18,000 18,000

01-42-5180 FICA 48,671 48,196 53,544 53,544 58,085 54,914

01-42-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 80,801 79,434 90,475 90,475 102,087 114,266

01-42-5186 MDC 11,650 11,272 12,569 12,569 13,585 12,843

01-42-5188 TMRS 93,786 88,479 96,000 96,000 104,930 102,765

01-42-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 774 3,228 3,459 3,459 3,459 3,459

01-42-5192 WORKERS COMP 7,478 5,634 7,895 7,895 6,897 7,356

TOTAL PERSONNEL 1,055,401 1,048,528 1,127,561 1,127,561 1,239,359 1,181,316

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-42-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 0 0 0 12,000 10,590 0

01-42-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 6,541 13,157 18,285 18,285 18,285 7,460

01-42-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,979 2,492 3,600 3,600 3,600 3,600

01-42-5251 OFFICE SUPPLIES - PSAP 0 608 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500

01-42-5280 UNIFORMS 4,347 2,931 5,500 5,500 5,500 6,000

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 13,868 19,188 28,885 40,885 39,475 18,560

84



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-42-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 0 0 0 0 0 2,250

01-42-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 32,373 24,055 31,650 31,650 31,650 37,005

01-42-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT 0 28 0 0 500 3,500

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 32,373 24,084 31,650 31,650 32,150 42,755

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-42-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 10,547 10,086 13,500 13,500 13,500 16,346

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 10,547 10,086 13,500 13,500 13,500 16,346

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-42-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 0 50 250 250 350 325

01-42-6211 PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS 13,975 19,812 21,550 21,550 21,550 29,400

01-42-6212 RECRUITING 0 0 0 10,228 5,000 13,000

01-42-6316 COMMUNITY POLICING 3,992 10,183 10,000 10,000 10,000 12,500

01-42-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 8,723 7,889 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 26,691 37,934 42,800 53,028 47,900 66,225

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-42-7000 VEHICLES 0 0 0 0 0 55,000

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 0 0 0 55,000

TOTAL SUPPORT SERVICES 1,138,879 1,139,819 1,244,396 1,266,624 1,372,384 1,380,202

85



ANIMAL SERVICES 
 

Animal Services (formerly Animal Control) is primarily responsible for proactive patrol and control of 
loose domesticated animals, and for enforcing established State laws and local ordinances that protect 
citizens from dangerous animals. Animal Services investigates reports of animal bites, animal cruelty, 
and further protects domestic animals from abuse and neglect. 

 
 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Began the transition of "Animal Control" to "Animal Services" Division in an effort to modify our 
approach to service delivery and philosophy for a growing community with changing needs 

 Completely revamped the Animal Services fleet graphics to create a better brand and represent 
Animal Services in a positive manner. This simple change was received well by the public, 
resulting in multiple positive comments 

 Participated in multiple public education and community event opportunities 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Increase training opportunities for ASO personnel beyond basic services, focusing on customer 
service, problem solving and communication 

 Continue to increase animal registrations 

 Continue practices that reduce and minimize animals transported to Williamson County Regional 
Shelter when possible 

 
 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 

The City’s share of the Regional Animal Shelter dropped from $153,000 in the prior year to $110,558 in 
FY 15/16. 

 

86



   

 
 

 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

ANIMAL SERVICES SUPERVISOR 0 0 1 1 

ANIMAL SERVICES OFFICER I 0 0 0 1 

ANIMAL SERVICES OFFICER II 1 1 0 0 

ANIMAL SERVICES OFFICER III 1 1 1 0 

TOTAL 2 2 2 2 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Animal Registration / Tags  

 %  Transported to Regional Animal Shelter 

149 
16% 

375 
15% 

450 
15% 

 
 
 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Animal Services Supervisor  
Animal Services Officer 
Williamson County Regional Animal 
Shelter 

www.leandertx.gov/police  
 
 
http://pets.wilco.org 

 (512) 528-2844 
(512) 528-2844 

  
(512) 943-3322 

  

ANIMAL SERVICES 

Investigate 

Animal Abuse 
Registration 

Citations 

& Impound 
Patrol 

87



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

ANIMAL CONTROL

PERSONNEL

01-43-5120 OPERATIONS 70,102 51,834 96,483 96,483 86,190 96,483

01-43-5140 OVERTIME 1,451 1,078 3,500 3,500 4,500 3,500

01-43-5153 LONGEVITY 540 660 650 650 600 720

01-43-5180 FICA 4,244 3,039 6,239 6,239 5,590 6,244

01-43-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 10,043 7,689 12,470 12,470 16,384 13,923

01-43-5186 MDC 1,018 711 1,459 1,459 1,305 1,460

01-43-5188 TMRS 8,321 5,903 11,190 11,190 10,100 11,684

01-43-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 18 240 495 495 495 495

01-43-5192 WORKERS COMP 1,529 1,320 1,862 1,862 694 1,726

TOTAL PERSONNEL 97,266 72,474 134,348 134,348 125,858 136,235

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-43-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 0 1,273 2,350 2,350 2,350 1,000

01-43-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 421 497 500 500 1,500 1,000

01-43-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 0 30 200 200 200 500

01-43-5280 UNIFORMS 208 331 500 500 1,285 1,000

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 629 2,131 3,550 3,550 5,335 3,500

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-43-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 0 0 500 500 750 500

01-43-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT 5,545 285 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 5,545 285 2,000 2,000 2,250 2,000

88



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-43-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-43-5709 REGIONAL ANIMAL SHELTER 117,259 117,539 153,226 153,226 153,226 110,558

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 117,259 117,539 153,226 153,226 153,226 110,558

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-43-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 0 0 100 100 100 220

01-43-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 0 0 0 0 0 1,000

01-43-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 700 729 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,500

01-43-6850 FLEET RESERVE FUND 0 0 2,688 2,688 2,688 5,376

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 700 729 3,788 3,788 3,788 8,096

TOTAL ANIMAL CONTROL 221,398 193,157 296,912 296,912 290,457 260,389

89



POLICE 
CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIONS 

 

The Criminal Investigations Division (CID) conducts follow-up investigations into crimes against people 
and property. CID is comprised of Detective Sergeants, Investigators, Victim Services Unit and the Crime 
Scene Technician. This division is also responsible for investigating narcotics related activity and 
associated crimes, as well as all juvenile crime. CID works closely with other law enforcement agencies, 
the prosecutor's offices, and is responsible for sex offender registration and criminal intelligence 
information. 
 

 
 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Created 2 Detective (Corporal Level) positions by upgrading two existing Investigator (Officer 
Level) positions 

 Hired a Victims Services Coordinator (Grant Augmented) position and created volunteer 
substructure to provide more immediate and appropriate services to victims of crime  

 Equipped the Crime Scene / Evidence Tech and Detectives with scene lighting capabilities that 
will allow for better scene management and broad lighting coverage of crime scenes that must 
be processed, but which are located in low-light or dark conditions  

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Expand Digital Evidence Storage Capacity for L3 Body-cam videos 

 Upgrade Audio / Video systems in interview rooms to L3 system 

 Provide all C.I.D. sworn personnel with rifles and TASERs for instances where they are in uniform 
and / or respond to emergencies 

 Expand cold evidence storage with the purchase of two refrigerated evidence lockers 

 Add glass door in the main hallway to reduce unnecessary traffic and noise in the CID area 

 Expand crime scene lighting, by adding an additional "power moon" LED system  

 
 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 

The budget reflects an increase of personnel costs due to the transfer of one position from Uniform 
Services to CID in mid-2015. 

 

90



 
 

 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 
BUDGET 

FY 2014 
BUDGET 

FY 2015 
BUDGET 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

LIEUTENANT 1 1 1 1 

SERGEANT / CID 3 3 3 3 

OFFICER III / CORP 1 1 2 2 

VICTIM SERVICES COORDINATOR 0 0 1 1 

EVIDENCE TECHNICIAN 0 1 0 0 

CRIME SCENE SPECIALIST 0 0 1 1 

TOTAL 5 6 8 8 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Cases Assigned to Detectives 

 Sex Offender Compliance Checks 

 Child Protective Services (CPS) Reports/Referrals 

209 
28 

444 

212 
33 

340 

225 
37 

400 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

CID Lieutenant  
Crimes Against Persons Detective 
Property Crimes Detective 
Victim Services Coordinator 
Crime Scene/Evidence Control 

  
 
 
 
 
 

(512) 528-2814 
(512) 528-2812 
(512) 528-2839 
(512) 528-2817 
(512) 528-2872 
(512) 528-2818 

 

 

CRIMINAL 

INVESTIGATIONS 

Evidence / Property 

Handling & Control  
Investigations 

91



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION

PERSONNEL

01-44-5110 SUPERVISION 67,145 68,443 68,590 68,590 75,360 75,577

01-44-5120 OPERATIONS 251,353 281,999 288,700 288,700 343,500 371,550

01-44-5140 OVERTIME 5,441 7,881 7,065 7,065 14,500 7,065

01-44-5151 STIPEND PAY 0 0 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000

01-44-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 936 991 936 936 936 936

01-44-5153 LONGEVITY 3,000 4,020 4,395 4,395 4,080 4,920

01-44-5154 CERTIFICATION PAY 6,000 7,938 7,500 7,500 6,000 7,500

01-44-5180 FICA 18,949 21,232 26,345 26,345 24,636 32,274

01-44-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 38,787 42,717 48,433 48,433 45,883 63,096

01-44-5186 MDC 4,541 4,966 6,161 6,161 5,760 7,548

01-44-5188 TMRS 38,921 41,491 47,134 47,134 44,500 60,397

01-44-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 45 1,242 1,523 1,523 1,242 1,818

01-44-5192 WORKERS COMP 5,526 4,962 6,138 6,138 5,467 6,894

TOTAL PERSONNEL 440,643 487,881 516,920 516,920 575,864 643,575

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-44-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 5,551 4,663 11,950 11,950 11,950 33,706

01-44-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 5,145 4,144 16,500 16,500 16,500 6,500

01-44-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 538 1,273 1,550 1,550 1,550 2,500

01-44-5280 UNIFORMS 3,249 7,037 7,800 7,800 7,800 3,400

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 14,483 17,117 37,800 37,800 37,800 46,106

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-44-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 622 973 1,500 1,500 1,500 2,000

01-44-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT 2,051 3,353 3,200 3,200 3,200 4,200

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 2,673 4,327 4,700 4,700 4,700 6,200

92



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-44-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 0 0 0 0 0 0

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-44-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 0 1,250 1,360 1,360 1,360 3,780

01-44-6206 INVESTIGATIVE EXPENSE 5,550 5,133 5,500 5,500 5,500 4,700

01-44-6209 OTHER (MEDICAL VICTIMS) 2,400 1,700 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,800

01-44-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 7,642 8,839 12,500 12,500 12,500 13,000

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 15,592 16,923 23,360 23,360 23,360 26,280

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-44-7000 VEHICLES 0 0 25,500 25,500 25,500 0

01-44-7100 MAJOR EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0 0 24,000

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 25,500 25,500 25,500 24,000

TOTAL CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION 473,391 526,247 608,280 608,280 667,224 746,161

93



CODE ENFORCEMENT 
 

Code Enforcement works with property owners to comply with local ordinances that have been 
established to maintain a clean and safe community.  Code Enforcement strives for voluntary compliance 
from property owners, but will utilize all legal avenues to abate dangerous structures and sites in order 
to protect the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of Leander. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Assign inspectors to specific geographical territories and responsibilities 

 Create a schedule of neighborhoods streets requiring weekly, monthly, or semi-annually spot 
inspections 

 Implement a records management system to track violations, web-based complaint reporting, 
and data analysis 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Established a core group of volunteers from the community and faith-based groups to support 
with community cleanup projects 

 Continued reduction of cases progressing to municipal court by striving for voluntary compliance 

 Voluntary compliance with a success ratio of 85% compliance after first courtesy notice and 
personal site visits 

 Continue to abate nuisances with Abatement funding and filing of liens to recover the city’s 
costs 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 

No significant changes have occurred in staff levels or budget for this department from the prior year. 

 

  

94



 
 

 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 

BUDGET 

FY 2014 

BUDGET 

FY 2015 

BUDGET 

FY 2016 

PROPOSED 

CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER 1 2 2 2 

TOTAL 1 2 2 2 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Complaints resolved without legal action 

 Complaints resolved through Municipal Court 
*Bandit signs have been improved by code change 

4441* 
43 

 

2000 
2 

 

3,000 
3 

 

 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Code Enforcement www.leandertx.gov/ce  (512) 528-2742 

 

CODE  

ENFORCEMENT 

Hazard & Nuisance 

Mitigation 
Inspections 

Code Review 

& Administration 

Community 

Relations 

95

http://www.leandertx.gov/finance


FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

CODE ENFORCEMENT

PERSONNEL

01-48-5110 SUPERVISION 31,627 0 0 0 0 0

01-48-5120 OPERATIONS 5,873 79,861 84,827 84,827 87,000 87,160

01-48-5140 OVERTIME 94 1,132 1,000 1,000 1,000 3,000

01-48-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 500 1,170 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200

01-48-5153 LONGEVITY 60 0 135 135 120 240

01-48-5180 FICA 2,133 4,951 5,369 5,369 5,565 5,493

01-48-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 5,580 10,330 10,826 10,826 10,480 12,179

01-48-5186 MDC 511 1,158 1,256 1,256 1,300 1,285

01-48-5188 TMRS 4,404 9,041 9,630 9,630 10,050 10,280

01-48-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 9 428 704 704 704 414

01-48-5192 WORKERS COMP 218 362 916 916 394 376

TOTAL PERSONNEL 51,010 108,433 115,863 115,863 117,813 121,627

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-48-5240 GAS & OIL 1,573 4,498 3,800 3,800 3,500 3,800

01-48-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,421 772 400 400 400 400

01-48-5252 SOFTWARE 0 449 400 400 400 1,500

01-48-5280 UNIFORMS 57 365 400 400 400 500

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 3,051 6,084 5,000 5,000 4,700 6,200

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-48-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT 1,940 474 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 1,940 474 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

96



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-48-5620 ABATEMENT 1,762 3,955 14,700 14,700 5,000 5,000

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 1,762 3,955 14,700 14,700 5,000 5,000

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-48-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGERS 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-48-5915 POSTAGE 438 74 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

01-48-5916 WIRELESS CARDS 0 0 960 960 960 960

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 438 74 1,960 1,960 1,960 1,960

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-48-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 0 0 200 200 200 200

01-48-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 146 40 400 400 400 1,500

01-48-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 426 441 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500

01-48-6850 FLEET RESERVE FUND 0 3,000 2,688 2,688 2,688 5,376

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 572 3,481 4,788 4,788 4,788 8,576

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-48-7000 VEHICLES 0 22,217 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 22,217 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CODE ENFORCEMENT 58,773 144,717 144,311 144,311 136,261 145,363

97



FIRE 

PREPAREDNESS & WELLNESS 
 

Preparedness and Wellness is responsible for the education and training of the Fire Department as well 
as the safety, health, and accident review for fire department events and emergencies.  This division 
serves as Emergency Management and Homeland Security preparing the City as a whole for man- made 
and natural disasters.   The expanded role of this division is to serve in preparedness, response, and 
mitigation of hazards for the community.  This division serves as the liaison with the Williamson 
County/Cities Health Department for overall wellness and safety of the community in diseases, 
outbreaks, immunizations, and exposures.  In prior years through FY 2014, this budget unit reflected only 
Emergency Management (non-personnel) expenditures. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Completed a Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan for the City of Leander  

 Provided NIMS basic and advanced training for all city staff resulting in an increase in city-wide 
NIMS compliance from 43% to 95% 

 Developed and implemented the department’s Risk Management Plan 

 Developed and implemented the department’s Infection Control Plan 

 Updated the Department’s HIPAA policy and provided training to all staff 

 Implemented a Fire Department Health and Safety Committee 

 Implemented a mental wellness program for department employees 

 Implemented nutritional training for department employees 

 Develop competency-based training with a focus on emphasizing the critical importance of 
individual accountability and skills for mastering each employee’s craft 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Review and revise Multi-Hazard Emergency Management Plan 

 Develop a strategy for implementing the Multi-Year Training and Exercise Plan (three-year 
planning cycle) to prioritize emergency management training needs and capabilities from 
departments citywide 

 Serve as the lead coordinator for all EOC training, develop minimum training requirements and 
standards, and ensure all EOC responders are trained as appropriate 

 Implement a Department Continuity of Operations plan 

 Increase firefighter education regarding their health and safety responsibilities and emphasize 
the importance of injury prevention 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
The budget reflects the transfer of the Volunteer Coordinator position from Preparedness & Wellness to 
Fire Administration. 

98



 

 
 

 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 

BUDGET 

FY 2014 

BUDGET 

FY 2015 

BUDGET 

FY 2016 

PROPOSED 

ADMINISTRATIVE BATTALION CHIEF 1 1 1 1 

TRAINING INSTRUCTOR 1 1 1 1 

VOLUNTEER COORDINATOR 0 1 1 * 

FIREFIGHTER (PT) 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 

TOTAL 2.5 3.5 3.5 2.5 

* see Fire Administration 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Meet all NIMS training requirements  

 EOC activations 

 Hours of Training Delivered 

 Community CPR/First Aid Training Provided 

 Community Fire Extinguisher Training Provided 

 Disaster Awareness/Education Programs 

 Lost Time Injury of Firefighters 

 Cadets In Recruit Class 

 Cadets Completing Recruit Class 

43% 
12 

6040 
500 

67 
2 
1 

12 
8 

85% 
20 

8000 
50 
20 

3 
1 

15 
12 

90% 
25 

7700 
150 

50 
5 
0 

20 
15 

 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Fire Department www.leandertx.gov/fire  (512) 528-2848 

 

  

PREPAREDNESS 

& WELLNESS 

Training 
Community 

Education 

Emergency 
Management & 

Homeland Sercurity 

Firefighter Health & 
Safety 

99



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

PREPAREDNESS & WELLNESS

PERSONNEL

01-49-5110 SUPERVISION 0 0 82,481 82,481 83,545 84,132

01-49-5120 OPERATIONS 0 0 94,097 94,097 97,975 63,475

01-49-5130 PART-TIME 0 0 14,658 14,658 1,000 14,658

01-49-5140 OVERTIME 0 0 0 0 6,000 0

01-49-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 0 0 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356

01-49-5153 LONGEVITY 0 0 1,075 1,075 1,020 1,140

01-49-5154 CERTIFICATION PAY 0 0 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

01-49-5180 FICA 0 0 12,193 12,193 11,560 10,401

01-49-5182 INSURANCE BENEFITS 0 0 24,676 24,676 13,486 15,774

01-49-5186 MDC 0 0 2,852 2,852 2,705 2,433

01-49-5188 TMRS 0 0 20,216 20,216 20,500 17,764

01-49-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 0 0 828 828 257 621

01-49-5192 WORKERS COMP 0 0 2,570 2,570 2,199 2,275

TOTAL PERSONNEL 0 0 260,002 260,002 244,603 217,029

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-49-5202 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 0 0 2,100 2,100 500 2,100

01-49-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 1,500 350 4,300 4,300 500 4,100

01-49-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 0 18 6,200 6,200 500 13,500

01-49-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 0 0 12,225 12,225 5,000 5,150

01-49-5230 RADIO EQUIPMENT 1,662 0 0 0 0 0

01-49-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 118 2,153 7,500 7,500 5,000 6,500

01-49-5252 SOFTWARE 0 0 0 0 0 500

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 3,280 2,521 32,325 32,325 11,500 31,850

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-49-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 731 22,173 25,700 25,700 25,700 29,700

01-49-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 0 0 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01-49-5555 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 0 0 11,500 11,500 11,500 11,500

01-49-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT 0 0 1,500 1,500 1,500 0

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 731 22,173 39,700 39,700 39,700 42,200

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-49-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 0 26,835 1,750 26,750 25,000 7,750

01-49-5663 PHYSICALS/WELLNESS CONTRACT 0 0 20,300 20,300 10,000 38,800

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 26,835 22,050 47,050 35,000 46,550

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-49-5810 TELEPHONE 4,647 10,700 10,680 10,680 10,680 10,680

01-49-5915 POSTAGE 0 0 550 550 550 0

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 4,647 10,700 11,230 11,230 11,230 10,680

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-49-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 100 185 12,365 12,365 12,365 14,150

01-49-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 2,695 0 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000

01-49-6306 EMERGENCY MGMT FIRES 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-49-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 650 2,567 55,930 55,930 55,930 55,430

01-49-6381 TRAINING SCHOOL EXPENSE 0 0 5,630 5,630 5,630 5,630

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 3,445 2,752 77,925 77,925 77,925 79,210

TOTAL PREPAREDNESS & WELLNESS 12,104 64,981 443,232 468,232 419,958 427,519



FIRE 

ADMINISTRATION 
 

The Leander Fire Department is a values driven organization dedicated to protecting lives and property 
from fire or other types of disaster. Its organizational values are – Compassion, Courtesy, Respect, 
Professionalism, Loyalty, Teamwork, Innovation, Honesty and Open Communication.  The Department 
consists of both full-time paid staff and volunteers; three stations located throughout the community; 
and a modern training facility.  The department also serves as the City’s Emergency Operations Center in 
the event of an emergency.  The department provides first responder services and maintains a close 
working relationship with Williamson County EMS.  The Department also provides fire protection service 
in the City’s extra-territorial jurisdiction under a contract with Williamson County.  It also works with 
neighboring jurisdictions via mutual aid agreements. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Develop new multiyear strategic plan 

 Plan for implement new fire station locations 

 Develop and monitor long term funding sources from grant, contracts, and cost recovery 
programs 

 Update Master Planning Documents 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Update new multiyear strategic plan 

 Plan for future fire station location and property  

 Evaluate additional service needs to match growing community needs 

 Evaluate additional service needs for a changing community and determine the response for 
those needs 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
The budget reflects the transfer of the Volunteer Coordinator position from Preparedness and Wellness. 

 

  

102



 
 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 

BUDGET 

FY 2014 

BUDGET 

FY 2015 

BUDGET 

FY 2016 

PROPOSED 

FIRE CHIEF 1 1 1 1 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 1 1 1 1 

VOLUNTEER COORDINATOR * 0 0 0 1 

TOTAL 2 2 2 3 

* see Preparedness & Wellness 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Master Plan updated to match growth rates 

 Budget matches cost of services 

 Monthly reports to City Manager 

 Meet obligation and reporting for grants 

 
 
 
 
 

90% 
50% 

100% 
80% 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Fire Department www.leandertx.gov/fire  (512) 528-2848 

 

  

FIRE 
ADMINISTRATION 

Emergency Response 

Operations 

Emergency 
Preparedness & 

Wellness 

Prevention 

& Life Safety 
Strategic Planning 

103



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

FIRE ADMINISTRATION

PERSONNEL

01-50-5110 SUPERVISION 404,394 538,745 114,395 114,395 119,515 114,444

01-50-5120 OPERATIONS 1,297,110 1,467,649 42,638 42,638 43,850 83,514

01-50-5130 PART-TIME 0 18,994 0 0 0 0

01-50-5140 OVERTIME 224,718 174,813 500 500 500 500

01-50-5151 STIPEND PAY 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-50-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 5,868 7,497 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800

01-50-5153 LONGEVITY 8,880 10,380 845 845 1,260 1,020

01-50-5154 CERTIFICATION PAY 38,767 27,693 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500

01-50-5180 FICA 114,917 131,507 9,949 9,949 10,250 11,761

01-50-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 196,203 207,149 10,826 10,826 15,168 12,336

01-50-5186 MDC 27,553 30,756 2,337 2,337 2,400 2,818

01-50-5188 TMRS 226,724 245,641 17,915 17,915 18,513 22,547

01-50-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 534 7,269 414 414 414 621

01-50-5192 WORKERS COMP 27,212 28,316 1,885 1,885 1,716 1,747

TOTAL PERSONNEL 2,572,881 2,896,409 205,004 205,004 216,886 254,608

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-50-5202 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 0 289 500 500 500 500

01-50-5214 CHEMICALS 1,300 0 0 0 0 0

01-50-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 0 16,876 600 600 600 1,200

01-50-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 86,772 30,407 4,600 4,600 4,660 1,500

01-50-5220 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 1,017 0 0 0 0 0

01-50-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 3,716 3,419 300 300 300 450

01-50-5222 MEDICAL SUPPLIES 17,592 18,815 0 0 0 0

01-50-5240 GAS & OIL 38,776 38,838 0 0 0 0

01-50-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,712 3,139 3,800 3,800 3,800 4,800

01-50-5252 SOFTWARE 12,637 3,028 1,550 1,550 1,550 1,300

01-50-5280 UNIFORMS 8,254 17,718 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 172,777 132,530 11,350 11,350 11,410 9,750

104



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-50-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 1,495 4,143 500 500 500 500

01-50-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 227 542 0 0 0 0

01-50-5525 FIRE STATION MAINTENANCE 24,382 99,435 21,700 21,700 21,700 21,350

01-50-5555 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 30,433 43,633 0 0 5,000 0

01-50-5570 RADIO REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 5,192 4,900 0 0 0 0

01-50-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT 31,777 53,711 1,500 1,500 1,500 0

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 93,506 206,364 23,700 23,700 28,700 21,850

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-50-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 0 1,674 10,500 10,500 10,500 11,000

01-50-5626 EQUIPMENT LEASES 28,552 9,038 9,060 9,060 9,060 2,160

01-50-5663 PHYSICALS/WELLNESS CONTRACT 17,348 10,307 0 0 0 0

01-50-5675 INOCULATIONS 1,050 1,100 5,500 5,500 5,500 0

01-50-5771 RADIO COMMUNICATIONS - COUNTY 24,948 31,262 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 71,898 53,381 25,060 25,060 25,060 13,160

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-50-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-50-5810 TELEPHONE 32,274 29,865 30,740 30,740 30,740 29,360

01-50-5915 POSTAGE 227 443 300 300 300 700

01-50-5916 WIRELESS CARDS 9,481 11,923 0 0 1,380 1,380

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 41,982 42,230 31,040 31,040 32,420 31,440

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-50-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 3,297 9,249 1,089 1,089 1,089 1,089

01-50-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 1,729 774 1,700 1,700 1,700 6,300

01-50-6302 APPRECIATION OF VOLUNTEERS 125 277 3,200 3,200 3,200 3,200

105



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01-50-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 36,377 45,580 0 0 0 0

01-50-6381 TRAINING SCHOOL 3,933 3,545 0 0 0 0

01-50-6850 FLEET RESERVE FUND 0 70,392 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 45,461 129,817 5,989 5,989 5,989 10,589

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-50-7305 CAPITAL LEASE - FIRE VEHICLES 23,963 73,754 0 0 0 0

01-50-7311 PERSONAL PROTECTIVE WEAR LEASE 34,908 38,824 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 58,871 112,578 0 0 0 0

TRANSFERS

01-50-9000 TRANSFER OUT 0 88,711 87,371 87,371 87,371 86,720

TOTAL TRANSFERS 0 88,711 87,371 87,371 87,371 86,720

INTEREST

01-50-9226 INTEREST CAPITAL LEASE 5,142 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL INTEREST 5,142 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL FIRE ADMINISTRATION 3,062,517 3,662,021 389,514 389,514 407,836 428,117

106



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

107



FIRE 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS 
 

Emergency Operations Division is responsible for responding to emergency events to the citizens, guest, 
and neighboring communities when requested.  The Emergency Operations Division deals with fires, 
wildfires, medical emergencies, technical rescues, vehicle accidents, and daily functions.  Daily functions 
include preplanning for fires, hydrant testing, and equipment testing/maintenance. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Purchased new engine to retire unreliable apparatus to allow for more reliable service delivery 
to the public and reduce maintenance costs 

 Secured site and began design for new Fire Station #4 

 Modified the hiring process to make it more of a value to the organization in selecting 
candidates to serve the public while putting less burden to staff to deliver the process 

 Modified the discipline process to line up with current trends in liability in progressive discipline 
to stay in front of issues 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Reduce response times with the addition of new stations and staffing 

 Fully develop monthly training program for specialty stations  

 Expand Technology to meet increases for service 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
This budget reflects the full year funding for twelve positions added in late 2015 for staffing of new Fire 
Station #4.  Finds are also included for an automated station alerting system to improve response times. 

 

  

108



 
 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 

BUDGET 

FY 2014 

BUDGET 

FY 2015 

BUDGET 

FY 2016 

PROPOSED 

ASSISTANT CHIEF 0 1 1 1 

BATTALION CHIEF 3 3 3 3 

LIEUTENANT 7 6 9 9 

DRIVER / PUMP OPERATOR 8 9 12 12 

FIREFIGHTER 10 9 15 15 

TOTAL 28 28 40 40 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

Response times: 

 Arrival within 4 minutes 90% of the time for 
population density at least 1,000/sq. mile. 

 Arrival within 5 minutes 80% of the time for 
population density 500-999 persons/sq. mile. 

 Arrival within 9 minutes 80% of the time for 
population density 0-499 persons/sq. mile. 

 Number Preplans Completed 
 

 
 

20% 
 

30% 
 

70% 

 
 

18% 
 

40% 
 

60% 

 
 

35% 
 

45% 
 

80% 

 

 

 

  

EMERGENCY 
OPERATIONS 

Emergency Response 

Operations 

Emergency 

Management 

Prevention 

& Inspections 
Training 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Fire Department www.leandertx.gov/fire  (512) 528-2848 

109



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS

PERSONNEL

01-55-5110 SUPERVISION 0 0 258,387 335,975 359,000 344,872

01-55-5120 OPERATIONS 0 0 1,423,892 1,346,304 1,386,550 1,859,118

01-55-5140 OVERTIME 0 0 163,978 163,978 160,000 158,405

01-55-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 0 0 3,744 3,744 3,744 3,744

01-55-5153 LONGEVITY 0 0 10,655 10,655 9,120 11,340

01-55-5154 CERTIFICATION PAY 0 0 21,100 21,100 23,000 43,800

01-55-5180 FICA 0 0 115,601 115,601 119,515 150,116

01-55-5182 INSURANCE BENEFITS 0 0 178,282 178,282 162,116 263,211

01-55-5186 MDC 0 0 27,036 27,036 27,950 35,110

01-55-5188 TMRS 0 0 207,007 207,007 215,900 280,983

01-55-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 0 0 6,156 6,156 6,156 8,280

01-55-5192 WORKERS COMP 0 0 27,765 27,765 31,131 32,641

TOTAL PERSONNEL 0 0 2,443,603 2,443,603 2,504,182 3,191,620

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-55-5202 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 0 0 300 300 300 300

01-55-5214 CHEMICALS 0 0 1,300 1,300 1,300 6,270

01-55-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 0 0 18,739 18,739 18,379 33,075

01-55-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 0 0 247,983 247,983 247,983 248,810

01-55-5221 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 0 0 1,220 1,220 1,220 3,720

01-55-5222 MEDICAL SUPPLIES 0 0 22,752 22,752 22,752 14,820

01-55-5240 GAS AND OIL 0 0 42,500 42,500 35,000 43,590

01-55-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 0 0 2,000 2,000 2,000 0

01-55-5252 SOFTWARE 0 0 500 500 500 1,000

01-55-5280 UNIFORMS 0 0 30,550 30,550 30,550 41,540

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 0 0 367,844 367,844 359,984 393,125

110



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-55-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 0 0 6,885 6,885 9,242 8,000

01-55-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS AND MAINT 0 0 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

01-55-5525 FIRE STATION MAINTENANCE 0 0 33,200 33,200 33,200 28,450

01-55-5555 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 0 0 43,950 43,950 43,950 51,445

01-55-5570 RADIO REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 0 0 39,356 39,356 39,356 18,000

01-55-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS AND MAINT 0 0 32,500 32,500 35,000 42,700

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 0 0 160,891 160,891 165,748 153,595

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-55-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 0 0 0 0 0 3,600

01-55-5771 COUNTY RADIO COMMUNICATIONS 0 0 33,580 33,580 36,500 42,750

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 0 33,580 33,580 36,500 46,350

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-55-5915 POSTAGE 0 0 300 300 300 0

01-55-5916 WIRELESS CARDS 0 0 12,160 12,160 12,160 12,456

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 0 0 12,460 12,460 12,460 12,456

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-55-6201 DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS 0 0 1,934 1,934 1,934 0

01-55-6202 ADVERTISING AND PRINTING 0 0 3,350 3,350 3,350 3,350

01-55-6380 TRAVEL AND TRAINING 0 0 500 500 2,500 0

01-55-6850 FLEET RESERVE FUND 0 0 441,875 441,875 441,875 422,845

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 0 0 447,659 447,659 449,659 426,195

111



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-55-7305 FIRE VEHICLES 0 0 580,000 652,000 563,068 0

01-55-7500 CAPITAL OUTLAY - BUILDINGS 0 0 0 0 24,745 80,000

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 580,000 652,000 587,813 80,000

TOTAL EMERGENCY OPERATIONS 0 0 4,046,037 4,118,037 4,116,346 4,303,341

112



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

113



FIRE 

PREVENTION & LIFE SAFETY 
 

Prevention and Life Safety Division is the proactive approach to keep the City of Leander a safe and 
sustainable city.  This division manages the review, planning, and permitting of construction projects 
under the fire codes and ordinances.  The division also does inspections of construction and existing 
buildings for safety. This division also handles fire investigations, arson cases, and works with customers 
to get recovery started after a fire in their home or business.  This division also oversees the community 
outreach, prevention education, and fire department support teams. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Completed a Community Wildfire Protection Plan 

 Prepared and started an electronic review process with the builders 

 Started a process to keep building inspections current - especially day cares, schools, and 
churches 

 Began the process for After the Fire care 

 Worked to create a county-wide fire investigation team 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Expand capabilities for annual fire investigations 

 Expand capabilities for electronic permit and plan submission by builders and developers 

 Increase fire investigation resources  

 Improve education programs in the elementary schools  

 Develop a more comprehensive community fire prevention and awareness program.  

 Update processes and policies for division 

 Review and make current Fire Codes compared to regional codes 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
The budget reflects $51,000 in funds for third party fire inspection services to keep pace with rapid 
growth. 

 

114



 
 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 

BUDGET 

FY 2014 

BUDGET 

FY 2015 

BUDGET 

FY 2016 

PROPOSED 

FIRE MARSHAL 1 1 1 1 

SENIOR FIRE INSPECTOR 0 1 1 1 

FIRE INSPECTOR (PART-TIME) 0.5 0.5 1.0 1.0 

TOTAL 1.5 2.5 3.0 3.0 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Inspections Performed 

  Plan Reviews Performed 

 Investigation Conducted 

 Cause of fire or ignition determined 

 Public Education Program Participants 

1,253 
749 

30  
New 

7,478 
 

1,200 
900 

 58  
New 

6,500 

1,400 
1,100 

70 
New 

7,000 

 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Fire Department www.leandertx.gov/fire  (512) 528-2848 

 

PREVENTION & LIFE 
SAFETY 

Emergency Response 

Operations 

Emergency 

Management 

Prevention 

& Inspections 
Training 

115



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

PREVENTION & LIFE SAFETY

PERSONNEL

01-56-5110 SUPERVISION 0 0 96,325 96,325 97,050 98,251

01-56-5120 OPERATIONS 0 0 53,282 53,282 57,850 54,080

01-56-5130 PART TIME 0 0 29,940 29,940 15,250 31,153

01-56-5140 OVERTIME 0 0 4,300 4,300 800 4,300

01-56-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 0 0 936 936 936 936

01-56-5153 LONGEVITY 0 0 530 530 480 600

01-56-5154 CERTIFICATION PAY 0 0 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400

01-56-5180 FICA 0 0 11,498 11,498 10,850 11,887

01-56-5182 INSURANCE BENEFITS 0 0 14,114 14,114 13,497 15,667

01-56-5186 MDC 0 0 2,400 2,400 2,535 2,780

01-56-5188 TMRS 0 0 15,953 15,953 17,800 17,862

01-56-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 0 0 621 621 621 927

01-56-5192 WORKERS COMP 0 0 2,787 2,787 2,166 2,632

TOTAL PERSONNEL 0 0 235,086 235,086 222,235 243,475

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-56-5202 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 0 0 500 500 500 400

01-56-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 0 0 5,900 5,900 5,900 2,750

01-56-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 0 0 4,423 4,423 4,423 8,380

01-56-5221 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 0 0 3,800 3,800 3,800 3,800

01-56-5240 GAS AND OIL 0 0 800 800 800 0

01-56-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 0 0 300 300 300 0

01-56-5252 SOFTWARE 0 0 550 550 550 750

01-56-5280 UNIFORMS 0 0 150 150 150 0

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 0 0 16,423 16,423 16,423 16,080

116



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-56-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 0 0 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

01-56-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS AND MAINT 0 0 500 500 500 250

01-56-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS AND MAINT 0 0 1,500 1,500 1,500 0

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 0 0 3,000 3,000 3,000 1,250

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-56-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 0 0 0 0 0 51,000

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 0 51,000

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-56-5915 POSTAGE 0 0 50 50 50 0

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 0 0 50 50 50 0

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-56-6201 DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS 0 0 4,665 4,665 4,665 4,800

01-56-6202 ADVERTISING AND PRINTING 0 0 600 600 600 900

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 0 0 5,265 5,265 5,265 5,700

TOTAL PREVENTION & LIFE SAFETY 0 0 259,824 259,824 246,973 317,505

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 17,006,055 22,099,014 24,807,881 27,028,631 26,948,414 27,537,426

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 3,006,922 1,184,494 (1,962,970) (3,334,970) (466,288) 0

117



BUILDING 

INSPECTIONS 
 

The Building Inspections Department reviews commercial and residential plans for building code and 
ordinance compliance, as well as maintains all construction activity records.  The department is 
responsible for issuing permits, collecting water and wastewater capital recovery (impact) fees, water 
tap fees and deposits for all new and remodel construction.  The department’s primary function is to 
inspect buildings, plumbing, electrical and mechanical systems within the city limits for compliance with 
adopted building codes and standards. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Implement web-based permit request and issuance 

 Increase web-based plan review submissions 

 Assign geographic territory to inspectors and redistribution of work load. 

 Commence process to adopt 2015 codes   

 Maintained one business day turnaround from request to inspection, 99 % of the time. 

 Residential staff successful reviewed and approved 95% of single family new application within 
ten business days 

 Inspectors performed 20,584 inspections last year 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

  Update sign ordinance in conjunction with to match the city growth pattern 

 Adopt the 2015 Building Codes and the 2013 NEC 

 Maintain the quality of the Building Departments customer service 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
Funds are included for a Chief Building Inspector as well as funding for third-party inspection services to 
keep pace with rapid growth.  An additional vehicle is included for the Zoning Compliance Officer. 

 

  

118



 
 

 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 

BUDGET 

FY 2014 

BUDGET 

FY 2015 

BUDGET 

FY 2016 

PROPOSED 

BUILDING OFFICIAL 1 1 1 1 

CHIEF BUILDING INSPECTOR 0 0 0 1 

SENIOR INSPECTOR  1 3 4 3 

PLAN REVIEWER 1 1 1 1 

PERMITS CLERK  2 2 2 2 

ZONING COMPLIANCE OFFICER 0 0 1 1 

RECEPTIONIST 0 0 1 1 

TOTAL 5 7 10 10 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 New Single-family Residential Permits 

 New Commercial Permits 

 Remodel Permits (Commercial and Residential) 

 Inspections with 24 hours (percent) 

 Turnaround time for commercial plan review 
(workdays) 

 Turnaround time for residential plan review 
(workdays) 

1,142 
24 
27 

99% 
 

20-days 
 

10-days 

1,200 
40 
25 

99% 
 

20-days 
 

15-days 

1,200 
25 
35 

99% 
 

10-days 
 

15-days 

 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Permits www.leandertx.gov/permits  (512) 528-2748 

 

 

BUILDING 
INSPECTIONS 

Permits Plan Review Inspections 
Code 

Review 

119

http://www.leandertx.gov/finance


FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

BUILDING INSPECTIONS

PERSONNEL

01-51-5110 SUPERVISION 75,514 77,131 77,351 77,351 89,950 80,001

01-51-5120 OPERATIONS 172,985 206,799 308,031 361,781 342,000 404,416

01-51-5140 OVERTIME 178 33 2,000 2,000 500 2,000

01-51-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 2,292 2,731 2,292 2,292 2,292 4,442

01-51-5153 LONGEVITY 1,380 1,620 1,625 1,625 1,500 1,620

01-51-5180 FICA 15,352 17,475 24,260 24,260 29,050 29,855

01-51-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 20,535 27,329 44,726 44,726 47,187 66,232

01-51-5186 MDC 3,675 4,087 5,674 5,674 6,800 6,982

01-51-5188 TMRS 29,129 31,762 43,454 43,454 52,480 55,869

01-51-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 276 1,324 1,675 1,675 1,675 1,909

01-51-5192 WORKERS COMP 1,056 898 1,621 1,621 1,695 1,766

TOTAL PERSONNEL 322,372 371,189 512,709 566,459 575,129 655,092

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-51-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 0 2,888 2,050 2,050 5,050 0

01-51-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 250 527 0 0 1,070 2,400

01-51-5240 GAS & OIL 4,401 7,565 6,200 6,200 6,000 6,000

01-51-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,913 3,535 3,500 3,500 3,500 9,500

01-51-5252 SOFTWARE 0 379 200 200 200 1,000

01-51-5280 UNIFORMS 585 528 500 500 500 1,550

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 8,149 15,422 12,450 12,450 16,320 20,450

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-51-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 0 16,746 26,000 26,000 26,000 30,305

01-51-5503 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 2,242 2,586 2,680 2,680 2,680 2,680

120



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01-51-5555 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 1,991 115 2,000 2,000 2,000 0

01-51-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT 1,932 1,151 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,500

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 6,165 20,597 31,880 31,880 31,880 34,485

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-51-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 0 216 0 0 22,500 110,000

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 216 0 0 22,500 110,000

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-51-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-51-5810 TELEPHONE 448 440 0 0 0 0

01-51-5911 CREDIT CARD MERCHANT FEES 6,345 14,815 5,000 5,000 115,000 115,000

01-51-5915 POSTAGE 64 98 100 100 100 150

01-51-5916 WIRELESS CARDS 0 4,514 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,250

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 6,856 19,867 8,100 8,100 118,100 118,400

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-51-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 285 1,269 1,100 1,100 1,100 2,000

01-51-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 303 764 800 800 800 800

01-51-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,980 1,466 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000

01-51-6850 FLEET RESERVE FUND 0 3,570 10,751 10,751 10,751 10,751

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 3,568 7,069 18,651 18,651 18,651 19,551

121



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CAPITAL OUTLAY

01-51-7000 VEHICLES 2,083 33,808 0 25,000 25,000 25,000

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 2,083 33,808 0 25,000 25,000 25,000

TOTAL BUILDING INSPECTIONS 349,193 468,169 583,790 662,540 807,580 982,978

122



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

123



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01 -GENERAL FUND

NON DEPARTMENTAL

PERSONNEL

01-53-5005 EAP PROGRAM 4,387 3,652 4,800 4,800 4,200 4,800

01-53-5010 SECTION 125 EXPENSE 5,002 5,319 5,100 5,100 5,400 5,400

01-53-5120 OPERATIONS 0 31,358 0 0 0 0

01-53-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 0 555 0 0 0 0

01-53-5155 CAR ALLOWANCE 0 2,280 0 0 0 0

01-53-5180 FICA 0 1,891 0 0 0 0

01-53-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE INSURANC 10,769 11,641 5,500 5,500 11,500 5,500

01-53-5186 MDC 0 442 0 0 0 0

01-53-5188 TMRS 0 3,727 0 0 0 0

01-53-5199 SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS 0 125 240,090 240,090 0 343,000

TOTAL PERSONNEL 20,158 60,990 255,490 255,490 21,100 358,700

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

01-53-5202 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 0 421 0 0 0 0

01-53-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 0 38,789 0 0 0 0

01-53-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 735 691 0 0 0 0

01-53-5240 GAS & OIL 169 103 250 250 550 250

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 904 40,004 250 250 550 250

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

01-53-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 3,442 15,012 0 0 0 0

01-53-5502 HVAC MAINTENANCE 2,657 3,114 700 700 6,500 700

01-53-5503 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 7,523 12,310 60,000 60,000 60,000 10,000

124



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

01-53-5504 ADAMS HOUSE EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-53-5555 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 26,164 35,031 0 0 0 0

01-53-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT 170 1,173 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 39,956 66,640 61,700 61,700 67,500 11,700

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

01-53-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 14,000 32,709 25,000 25,000 25,000 0

01-53-5607 AUDITOR FEES 32,050 35,515 33,050 33,050 23,350 19,570

01-53-5619 WEBSITE 30,685 3,900 20,000 20,000 3,600 20,000

01-53-5626 EQUIPMENT LEASES 4,947 4,802 11,955 11,955 11,955 7,275

01-53-5629 GARBAGE COLLECTION EXPENSE 1,234,060 1,506,611 1,852,000 1,852,000 1,908,000 2,050,000

01-53-5650 LEGAL FEES 152,407 153,016 110,000 110,000 165,000 165,000

01-53-5680 APPRAISAL & TAX COLLECTION 102,859 97,053 113,033 113,033 121,145 128,840

01-53-5713 CAMPO 900 1,945 1,945 1,945 1,945 1,945

01-53-5719 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000

01-53-5725 WILLIAMSON CO. HEALTH DISTRICT 0 56,445 69,607 69,607 69,607 74,535

01-53-5740 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS 25,876 79,821 25,000 25,000 75,000 35,000

01-53-5743 HEB REBATE 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-53-5747 GATEWAY SHOPPING CTR. REBATE 217,988 232,859 250,000 250,000 265,000 290,000

01-53-5790 WBCO 5,000 9,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 1,835,772 2,228,676 2,531,590 2,531,590 2,689,602 2,812,165

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

01-53-5800 UTILITIES 264,678 281,731 283,080 283,080 283,000 297,150

01-53-5802 UTILITIES PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 41,284 42,455 33,600 33,600 33,600 35,280

01-53-5810 TELEPHONE 7,805 21,820 21,600 21,600 22,200 21,600

01-53-5811 STREET LIGHTS 148,658 189,177 190,000 190,000 200,000 210,000

01-53-5910 BANK FEES 9,012 9,949 9,600 9,600 9,600 9,600

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 471,436 545,132 537,880 537,880 548,400 573,630

125



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

01-53-6203 ANNEXED TERRITORY DEBT 0 0 0 0 0 0

01-53-6205 INSURANCE (PROP & LIABILITY) 97,060 121,990 127,500 127,500 132,500 145,750

01-53-6304 COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES 1,680 1,965 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500

01-53-6309 LIBERTY FEST 51,829 69,746 70,000 70,000 70,000 0

01-53-6901 BAD DEBT EXPENSE 38,128 0 0 0 0 0

01-53-6999 CONTINGENCY 0 0 422,384 422,384 195,000 200,000

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 188,696 193,701 623,384 623,384 401,000 349,250

TRANSFERS

01-53-9000 TRANSFER OUT 905,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000

01-53-9005 TRANSFER OUT - GOLF 195,000 193,000 0 0 0 0

01-53-9008 TRANSFER TO CIP 0 3,035,524 917,000 2,917,000 2,895,000 1,000,000

TOTAL TRANSFERS 1,100,000 3,578,524 1,267,000 3,267,000 3,245,000 1,350,000

TOTAL NON DEPARTMENTAL 3,656,923 6,713,666 5,277,294 7,277,294 6,973,152 5,455,695

126



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

127



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Golf Fund-05

Beginning Fund Balance (23,570) (12,099) (16,004) (11,984) (11,984) 0

Revenues 1,167,151 1,151,413 1,369,021 1,369,021 1,208,550 1,454,568

Expenditures

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 560,190 550,132 550,316 550,316 532,438 603,937

GRILL 194,153 183,852 169,616 169,616 185,614 186,553

PRO SHOP 577,758 587,455 606,664 606,664 597,599 622,293

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 18,579 22,859 42,425 42,425 22,540 41,785

Total Expenditures 1,350,680 1,344,298 1,369,021 1,369,021 1,338,191 1,454,568

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) (183,529) (192,885) 0 0 (129,641) 0

Transfers In 195,000 193,000 0 0 141,625 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 195,000 193,000 0 0 141,625 0

Ending Fund Balance (12,099) (11,984) (16,004) (11,984) 0 0

Fund Summary:  The Golf Fund is an enterprise fund that has been establised to be self-
sufficient.  The revenue it earns through green fees, merchandise and food and beverage 
sales remain in the fund to pay the expenses related to operating the Golf Course. 

Fund Summary:  The Golf Fund is an enterprise fund that has been establised to be self-
sufficient.  The revenue it earns through green fees, merchandise and food and beverage 
sales remain in the fund to pay the expenses related to operating the Golf Course. 

128



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

05 -GOLF COURSE FUND

REVENUES

SPECIAL FEES

05-00-4300 BEER REVENUES 86,743 81,563 86,000 86,000 90,000 90,000

05-00-4301 ATM REVENUE 114 23 250 250 0 100

05-00-4305 BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 0 35 0 0 100 0

05-00-4310 CART RENTAL 238,731 243,843 308,460 308,460 270,000 328,368

05-00-4320 DRINKS 43,297 42,809 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000

05-00-4325 DRIVING RANGE REVENUES 29,387 31,082 30,000 30,000 30,000 33,000

05-00-4330 FOOD SALES 66,640 62,701 66,000 66,000 65,000 66,000

05-00-4340 GPS SYSTEM 53,299 53,557 69,000 69,000 54,000 69,000

05-00-4342 HANDICAP FEES 1,618 1,864 1,800 1,800 1,900 1,900

05-00-4345 GREEN FEES 455,206 467,587 577,911 577,911 475,000 635,000

05-00-4347 LOCKER ROOM FEES 480 1,460 1,100 1,100 1,500 1,200

05-00-4350 MEMBERSHIPS 41,572 47,701 50,000 50,000 45,000 50,000

05-00-4360 PRO SHOP SALES 83,392 80,246 83,500 83,500 82,000 83,500

05-00-4365 RAINCHECKS REDEEMED 1,718 2,198 0 0 1,000 1,000

05-00-4370 RENTAL CLUBS 5,145 4,769 4,500 4,500 5,000 5,000

05-00-4380 TOURNAMENT FEES 54,848 25,028 45,000 45,000 40,000 45,000

05-00-4381 TOURNAMENTS FOOD & BEVERAGE 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SPECIAL FEES 1,162,188 1,146,465 1,368,521 1,368,521 1,205,500 1,454,068

MISCELLANEOUS

05-00-4405 CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0

05-00-4415 CASH OVER/UNDER (30) 1 0 0 0 0

05-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 2 0 0 0 0 0

05-00-4466 OUTSIDE EVENTS 723 1,179 500 500 500 500

05-00-4467 OTHER REVENUE 1,006 3,768 0 0 50 0

05-00-4489 SALE OF ASSETS 0 0 0 0 2,500 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 1,700 4,948 500 500 3,050 500

129



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

TAXES

05-00-4880 SALES TAX 1% 3,263 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL TAXES 3,263 0 0 0 0 0

TRANSFERS

05-00-4900 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 195,000 193,000 0 0 0 0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 195,000 193,000 0 0 0 0

TOTAL REVENUES 1,362,151 1,344,413 1,369,021 1,369,021 1,208,550 1,454,568

130



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

131



CRYSTAL FALLS 

GOLF CLUB 
 

Crystal Falls Golf Club is an 18-hole golf course owned and operated by the City of Leander.  Our mission 
is to offer a unique Hill Country golf course that is consistently in good shape, while offering excellent 
customer service, all at a fair price.  Crystal Falls Golf Club will promote the game of golf while holding on 
to the traditions and values that make golf a great sport.  Because we are a municipal facility, we’re here 
to accommodate every person that comes through our doors and offer them fun activities in a unique 
family atmosphere. Whether it’s an individual, a group of 100, or our regular guests, we focus on making 
sure that their experience is enjoyable and consistent. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Received a 4.1/5 overall customer rating through GolfNow.com  

 One of our major goals is good customer service.  Customer service is providing a quality product 
at a reasonable and fair price; having a friendly, knowledgeable, and professional staff; 
maintaining a good pace of play that enhances a customer’s experience.  Based on the review 
above, we are accomplishing our goal, but we are not done.  We must continue to improve our 
service, and we must stay consistent.   

 The Hill Country Amateur Championship is still going strong.  In 2015, we actually exceeded our 
field limit again.  We are expecting to have another full field this year. 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Continue to improve our customer service. We have always done a good job with service 
because it is the most important part of our operation and we must always look for ways to 
improve. This will be our #1 priority and goal this year.  Be more consistent; continue to make 
sure our guests find the same quality of service and conditions every time they visit our facility. 
No surprises. Better communication among staff and our guests.  Because of its importance, 
improving customer service will always be one of our goals. 

 Increase rounds. If the weather cooperates and we offer a consistent quality product with 
exceptional service we should reach this goal.  Hopefully, Mother Nature and our growing 
economy will help us in our endeavors. 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
There are no significant changes to the FY 2015-16 budget other than personnel costs have increased 
slightly due to the implementation of the City’s pay for performance plan and the results of the market-
based compensation study.  In addition, an aerator is budgeted in the Grounds Maintenance Division. 

132



 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 

BUDGET 

FY 2014 

BUDGET 

FY 2015 

BUDGET 

FY 2016 

PROPOSED 

MAINTENANCE     

GOLF COURSE SUPERINTENDENT 1 1 1 1 

ASSISTANT COURSE SUPERINTENDENT 1 1 1 1 

GREENSKEEPER I 4 4 4 3.5 

MECHANIC - GOLF MAINTENANCE 1 1 1 1 

GRILL     

GRILL MANAGER  1 1 1 1 

GRILL ATTENDANT  2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 

GRILL ATTENDANT - SEASONAL  0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 

PRO SHOP     

GENERAL MANAGER  1 1 1 1 

HEAD GOLF PRO 1 1 1 1 

ASSISTANT GOLF PRO  1 1 1 1 

PRO SHOP ATTENDANT  3.0 2.7 2.7 2.7 

CART ATTENDANT 2.5 3.3 3.3 3.3 

TOTAL 19.5 19.5 19.5 19.0 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Rounds Played 

 Course Revenue 

 Merchandise Sales  

 Food and Beverage Sales 

20,998 
$874,205 

$82,073 
$188,310 

19,500 
$846,337 

$82,000 
$180,000 

24,000 
$1,137,987 

$83,500 
$200,500 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Crystal Falls Golf Course www.leandertx.gov/golf  (512) 259-5855 

  

GOLF 

Food & Beverage 

Sales 

Course 

Maintenance 

Tournaments 

Lessons & Programs 

Tee Times & 

Pro Shop 

133



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

05 -GOLF COURSE FUND

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE

PERSONNEL

05-01-5110 SUPERVISION 104,923 112,212 111,430 111,430 113,105 114,412

05-01-5120 OPERATIONS 137,810 122,239 120,567 120,567 118,000 124,184

05-01-5130 PART-TIME 0 2,259 11,569 11,569 2,760 11,569

05-01-5140 OVERTIME 0 3,020 0 0 1,500 0

05-01-5153 LONGEVITY 840 1,200 1,610 1,610 1,560 1,860

05-01-5180 FICA 14,220 14,417 15,201 15,201 15,526 15,626

05-01-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 32,890 29,000 30,379 30,379 28,032 33,960

05-01-5186 MDC 3,391 3,372 3,555 3,555 3,630 3,654

05-01-5188 TMRS 28,113 26,331 25,977 25,977 26,625 27,899

05-01-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 418 1,268 1,449 1,449 1,449 1,449

05-01-5192 WORKERS COMP 5,618 4,646 5,404 5,404 5,451 4,949

TOTAL PERSONNEL 328,223 319,964 327,141 327,141 317,638 339,562

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

05-01-5214 CHEMICALS 20,596 22,698 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000

05-01-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 732 3,566 800 800 800 800

05-01-5218 FERTILIZER 20,038 27,906 18,000 18,000 19,500 18,000

05-01-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 5,444 5,739 5,000 5,000 7,000 5,000

05-01-5224 SAND & SOIL 5,660 4,541 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000

05-01-5226 SEED & SOIL 2,860 4,295 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000

05-01-5240 GAS & OIL 11,060 8,262 9,000 9,000 7,000 9,000

05-01-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 37 229 250 250 250 250

05-01-5280 UNIFORMS 0 0 500 500 500 900

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 66,428 77,237 64,550 64,550 66,050 64,950

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

05-01-5460 MAJOR EQUIPMENT 5,500 0 0 0 0 0

05-01-5480 PUMP STATION MAINTENANCE 0 680 3,000 3,000 1,500 3,000

134



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

05-01-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 22,497 17,429 7,000 7,000 7,000 9,000

05-01-5530 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 6,624 6,254 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000

05-01-5545 IRRIGATION REPAIRS & MAINT 6,269 4,817 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000

05-01-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT 898 83 900 900 900 900

05-01-5590 WATER WELL MAINTENANCE 1,357 1,055 5,000 5,000 1,250 5,000

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 43,145 30,318 29,900 29,900 24,650 31,900

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

05-01-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 217 2,563 3,500 3,500 3,875 3,500

05-01-5626 EQUIPMENT LEASES 69,112 50,458 60,300 60,300 60,300 69,600

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 69,329 53,020 63,800 63,800 64,175 73,100

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

05-01-5800 UTILITIES 18,941 20,343 32,000 32,000 25,000 26,000

05-01-5805 UTILITIES - WATER 28,250 34,500 29,000 29,000 31,000 29,000

05-01-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 0 0 0 0 0 0

05-01-5810 TELEPHONE 1,512 1,517 1,560 1,560 1,560 1,560

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 48,702 56,359 62,560 62,560 57,560 56,560

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

05-01-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 882 645 965 965 965 965

05-01-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 0 0 0 0 0 0

05-01-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 3,480 1,236 1,400 1,400 1,400 1,400

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 4,362 1,881 2,365 2,365 2,365 2,365

135



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CAPITAL OUTLAY

05-01-7100 MAJOR EQUIPMENT 0 11,353 0 0 0 35,500

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 11,353 0 0 0 35,500

TOTAL GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 560,190 550,132 550,316 550,316 532,438 603,937

136



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

137



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

05 -GOLF COURSE FUND

GRILL

PERSONNEL

05-21-5110 SUPERVISION 38,307 39,744 39,329 39,329 40,990 40,706

05-21-5130 PART-TIME 43,418 42,689 43,332 43,332 43,500 44,645

05-21-5153 LONGEVITY 120 180 240 240 240 300

05-21-5180 FICA 5,272 5,304 5,159 5,159 5,225 5,310

05-21-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 5,241 5,225 5,413 5,413 5,214 6,089

05-21-5186 MDC 1,261 1,240 1,206 1,206 1,225 1,242

05-21-5188 TMRS 9,115 8,210 4,434 4,434 6,500 6,758

05-21-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 339 718 977 977 977 982

05-21-5192 WORKERS COMP 1,920 1,497 1,826 1,826 2,043 1,771

TOTAL PERSONNEL 104,993 104,809 101,916 101,916 105,914 107,803

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

05-21-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 0 166 150 150 150 150

05-21-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 2,956 3,663 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

05-21-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 57 156 0 0 0 0

05-21-5301 CONDIMENTS 2,062 2,038 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,200

05-21-5302 DRINKS 18,833 19,747 16,000 16,000 20,000 17,000

05-21-5303 BEERS 31,895 28,511 20,000 20,000 28,000 30,000

05-21-5304 FOOD 27,861 23,094 23,000 23,000 23,000 24,000

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 83,664 77,374 64,150 64,150 76,150 76,350

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

05-21-5503 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 1,761 0 150 150 150 150

05-21-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 1,245 338 1,800 1,800 1,800 2,000

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 3,006 338 1,950 1,950 1,950 2,150

138



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

05-21-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 1,150 950 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 1,150 950 0 0 0 0

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

05-21-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,340 322 1,500 1,500 1,500 150

05-21-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 0 60 100 100 100 100

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 1,340 382 1,600 1,600 1,600 250

TOTAL GRILL 194,153 183,852 169,616 169,616 185,614 186,553

139



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

05 -GOLF COURSE FUND

PRO SHOP

PERSONNEL

05-31-5110 SUPERVISION 73,766 76,537 75,804 75,804 79,010 78,458

05-31-5120 OPERATIONS 205,269 188,934 182,874 182,874 171,525 183,065

05-31-5130 PART-TIME 15,959 46,795 56,546 56,546 57,000 58,123

05-31-5153 LONGEVITY 3,360 3,720 4,185 4,185 4,080 3,840

05-31-5156 FUEL ALLOWANCE 1,890 1,815 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800

05-31-5180 FICA 17,753 18,890 19,915 19,915 20,105 20,168

05-31-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 32,918 33,610 34,807 34,807 29,243 38,992

05-31-5186 MDC 4,250 4,418 4,658 4,658 4,700 4,717

05-31-5188 TMRS 33,109 31,397 29,430 29,430 28,500 30,998

05-31-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 627 1,838 2,273 2,273 2,273 2,277

05-31-5192 WORKERS COMP 6,666 5,382 6,828 6,828 6,914 6,156

TOTAL PERSONNEL 395,567 413,337 419,120 419,120 405,150 428,594

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

05-31-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 2,500 0 1,000 1,000 1,000 500

05-31-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 375 2,106 500 500 500 500

05-31-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 1,810 2,299 2,750 2,750 2,750 2,500

05-31-5240 GAS & OIL 17,342 15,660 17,000 17,000 16,000 17,000

05-31-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 787 816 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

05-31-5305 MERCHANDISE 54,337 56,231 58,450 58,450 58,450 58,450

05-31-5306 RANGE BALLS 384 500 500 500 500 500

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 77,535 77,612 81,200 81,200 80,200 80,450

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

05-31-5503 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 1,032 1,742 2,500 2,500 2,500 3,500

05-31-5505 CART REPAIRS & PARTS 149 0 700 700 700 700

140



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

05-31-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 1,120 1,816 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

05-31-5555 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 4,701 5,958 7,600 7,600 7,600 8,600

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

05-31-5611 GHIN - HANDICAP SERVICES 1,035 1,228 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100

05-31-5626 EQUIPMENT LEASES 52,714 44,927 52,800 52,800 58,705 58,705

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 53,749 46,154 53,900 53,900 59,805 59,805

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

05-31-5800 UTILITIES 10,883 11,854 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000

05-31-5810 TELEPHONE 7,374 7,060 7,540 7,540 7,540 7,540

05-31-5915 POSTAGE 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 18,257 18,914 19,540 19,540 19,540 19,540

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

05-31-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 2,032 1,986 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

05-31-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 2,615 191 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 4,647 2,177 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

141



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CAPITAL OUTLAY

05-31-7601 GPS SYSTEM 23,304 23,304 23,304 23,304 23,304 23,304

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 23,304 23,304 23,304 23,304 23,304 23,304

TOTAL PRO SHOP 577,758 587,455 606,664 606,664 597,599 622,293

142



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

05 -GOLF COURSE FUND

NON DEPARTMENTAL

PERSONNEL

05-53-5010 SECTION 125 EXPENSE 385 782 625 625 625 625

05-53-5199 SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS 0 (4) 23,300 23,300 0 19,160

TOTAL PERSONNEL 385 779 23,925 23,925 625 19,785

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

05-53-5911 CREDIT CARD MERCHANT FEES 18,194 22,080 18,500 18,500 21,915 22,000

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 18,194 22,080 18,500 18,500 21,915 22,000

TOTAL NON DEPARTMENTAL 18,579 22,859 42,425 42,425 22,540 41,785

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,350,680 1,344,298 1,369,021 1,369,021 1,338,191 1,454,568

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 11,471 114 0 0 (129,641) 0

143



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Utility Fund-20

Beginning Fund Balance 9,178,940 7,247,086 6,410,623 6,410,623 6,410,623 3,722,867

Revenues 16,192,077 18,019,791 17,688,500 19,763,500 20,333,613 19,343,500

Expenditures

UTILITY BILLING 656,237 875,003 912,880 912,880 953,494 926,797

WATER MAINTENANCE 5,417,535 5,818,840 5,244,365 6,318,530 5,941,112 5,478,984

WASTEWATER MAINTENANCE 1,675,833 1,518,804 1,930,478 1,966,313 1,869,992 2,153,599

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 127,950 247,472 929,651 929,651 606,705 174,680

REGIONAL WATER PLANT 282,867 279,079 280,915 2,005,915 2,007,455 291,705

Total Expenditures 8,160,422 8,739,198 9,298,289 12,133,289 11,378,758 9,025,765

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 8,031,655 9,280,593 8,390,211 7,630,211 8,954,855 10,317,735

Transfers In 290,000 59,200 59,200 59,200 59,200 1,089,200

Transfers Out (10,253,509) (10,176,256) (10,669,411) (11,699,411) (11,701,811) (11,406,935)

Net Transfers In / (Out) (9,963,509) (10,117,056) (10,610,211) (11,640,211) (11,642,611) (10,317,735)

Ending Fund Balance 7,247,086 6,410,623 4,190,623 2,400,623 3,722,867 3,722,867

(less) Reserve Policy-25% (2,040,106) (2,184,800) (2,324,572) (3,033,322) (2,844,690) (2,256,441)

Over / (Under) Reserve Policy 5,206,981 4,225,824 1,866,051 (632,699) 878,178 1,466,426

Operating Reserve (days) 324 268 165 72 119 151

Fund Summary:  The Utility Fund is an enterprise fund intended to be self-sufficient.  
Revenues derived from water and sewer charges to customers pay for operating the 
City's utility system which includes water and wastewater treatment systems, water 
distribution and wastewater collection systems.  Rates are also calculated to generate 
sufficient revenue to pay for any utility system debt. 

Fund Summary:  The Utility Fund is an enterprise fund intended to be self-sufficient.  
Revenues derived from water and sewer charges to customers pay for operating the 
City's utility system which includes water and wastewater treatment systems, water 
distribution and wastewater collection systems.  Rates are also calculated to generate 
sufficient revenue to pay for any utility system debt. 



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

20 -UTILITY FUND

REVENUES

ADMINISTRATIVE

20-00-4014 BCRUA REIMBURSEMENT 661,014 314,854 335,000 2,410,000 2,060,000 335,000

20-00-4015 BCRWWS REIMBURSEMENT 31,133 23,225 0 0 5,940 0

20-00-4030 BULK WATER SALES 560 805 500 500 500 500

20-00-4040 LATE CHARGES/PENALTY FEES 206,760 292,501 320,000 320,000 280,000 280,000

20-00-4060 SEWER SALES 3,337,902 3,843,850 3,650,000 3,650,000 4,065,000 4,065,000

20-00-4075 WASTEWATER TAP FEES 55,625 99,050 70,000 70,000 90,000 90,000

20-00-4080 WATER CONNECTIONS 232,151 196,139 160,000 160,000 190,000 160,000

20-00-4087 WATER RESERVE 708,618 760,430 805,000 805,000 825,000 885,000

20-00-4090 WATER SALES 10,612,298 11,979,206 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,275,000 13,045,000

20-00-4095 WATER TAP FEES 225,623 420,005 300,000 300,000 450,000 425,000

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 16,071,684 17,930,064 17,640,500 19,715,500 20,241,440 19,285,500

MISCELLANEOUS

20-00-4405 CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0

20-00-4415 CASH OVER/UNDER (105) 8 0 0 0 0

20-00-4427 CREDIT CARD FEES COLLECTED 35,558 39,358 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000

20-00-4437 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 0 0 0 0 25,000 0

20-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 8,778 15,837 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000

20-00-4467 OTHER REVENUE 76,135 34,524 0 0 17,805 10,000

20-00-4489 SALE OF ASSETS 28 0 0 0 1,368 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 120,393 89,727 48,000 48,000 92,173 58,000

145



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

TRANSFERS

20-00-4900 TRANSFER IN 290,000 59,200 59,200 59,200 59,200 1,089,200

TOTAL TRANSFERS 290,000 59,200 59,200 59,200 59,200 1,089,200

TOTAL REVENUES 16,482,077 18,078,991 17,747,700 19,822,700 20,392,813 20,432,700

146



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

147



UTILITY BILLING 
 

 
The Utility Billing division provides billing and collection for water, wastewater and residential solid 
waste services.  The Utility Fund is a self-supporting enterprise fund.  Rates adopted by the City Council 
are established to ensure financial stability and self-sufficiency.  Utility Billing is often the first point of 
contact for new residents with the City of Leander.  This division handles all utility account related 
services including new utility services, billing, collection, customer service, transfers and account 
closures. The department is also responsible for the meter inventory and related maintenance to include 
purchasing and storage. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Continue to maintain up-to-date meter reading routes to accommodate new subdivisions in 
relation to the  growth 

 Implemented customer telephone notification process for delinquent customer accounts 

 Successfully decreased service interruptions by 40% with the telephone notification process.  

 Established a meter reading pilot- program to assist in vendor selection 

 Selected new meter vendor and related equipment by means of meter proposal processing. 

 Coordinated with the purchasing agent to solicit Utility Billing office remodel 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Continue to improve internal daily operations 

 Maintain the correct sequencing of routes to accommodate growth 

 Update departmental policies and procedures 

 Update utility ordinances in accordance with specific costs/fees 

 Implement E-billing for customer convenience and bill delivery assurance 

 Undergo a successful office remodel 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 

Meter purchase costs have decreased due to more competitive bids received in 2015.  Merchant card 
service fees ($50,000), previously budgeted in Non-Departmental, are now accounted for in this budget. 

 

  

148



 
 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 

BUDGET 

FY 2014 

BUDGET 

FY 2015 

BUDGET 

FY 2016 

PROPOSED 

UTILITY BILLING SUPERVISOR  1 1 1 1 

BILLING ASSISTANT 0 1 1 1 

UTILITY CLERK 4 3 3 3 

METER READER  3 3 3 3 

FIELD TECHNICIAN 0 1 1 1 

TOTAL 8 9 9 9 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Utility Bills Printed 

 Water Accounts 

 Sewer Accounts 

128,575 
10,803 
10,426 

140,000 
12,080 
11,800 

154,000 
13,650 
13,334 

 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Account Services 

Online Payments 

After Hours – Non Emergency 

Al Clawson Disposal, Inc. 

Pedernales Electric (PEC) 

www.leandertx.gov/utilities 

www.leandertx.gov/payments 

 

www.clawsondisposal.com 

www.peci.com 

 (512) 259-1142 

 

 (512) 528-2800 

 (512) 259-1709 

 (512) 331-8883 

  

UTILITY BILLING 

New Account 

Services 
Meter Reading 

Billing 

& Collections 

Customer 

Service 

149

http://www.leandertx.gov/utilities
http://www.clawsondisposal.com/


FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

20 -UTILITY FUND

UTILITY BILLING

PERSONNEL

20-01-5110 SUPERVISION 48,161 55,246 57,200 57,200 58,950 58,916

20-01-5120 OPERATIONS 178,612 232,442 244,620 244,620 244,310 242,166

20-01-5140 OVERTIME 7,902 11,887 8,000 8,000 9,000 8,000

20-01-5153 LONGEVITY 1,080 900 1,485 1,485 1,140 1,860

20-01-5154 CERTIFICATION PAY 0 235 0 0 215 0

20-01-5180 FICA 14,228 17,173 19,340 19,340 19,800 19,278

20-01-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 34,899 41,889 45,659 45,659 50,075 54,211

20-01-5186 MDC 3,397 4,240 4,523 4,523 4,630 4,509

20-01-5188 TMRS 27,211 33,042 34,684 34,684 35,750 36,077

20-01-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 216 1,880 2,047 2,047 2,047 2,047

20-01-5192 WORKERS COMP 2,155 2,278 3,325 3,325 3,024 2,878

TOTAL PERSONNEL 317,862 401,211 420,883 420,883 428,941 429,942

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

20-01-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 3,042 4,299 21,000 21,000 21,000 4,000

20-01-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 872 659 0 0 0 0

20-01-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 1,031 3,019 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

20-01-5240 GAS & OIL 10,471 10,703 10,320 10,320 9,500 11,880

20-01-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,010 3,683 7,800 7,800 7,800 7,800

20-01-5280 UNIFORMS 1,315 1,935 1,600 1,600 1,600 1,950

20-01-5298 WATER METERS 145,778 246,018 244,774 244,774 245,000 200,000

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 166,521 270,316 288,494 288,494 287,900 228,630

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

20-01-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 0 11,508 8,000 8,000 8,925 14,920

20-01-5503 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 279 734 13,500 13,500 13,500 3,500

20-01-5555 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 87,009 52,378 67,028 67,028 67,028 73,485

150



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

20-01-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT 44 745 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

20-01-5585 WATER METER REPAIRS 1,440 2,177 2,500 2,500 12,500 12,500

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 88,771 67,542 92,028 92,028 102,953 105,405

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

20-01-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 9,625 17,932 10,200 10,200 25,000 10,710

20-01-5626 EQUIPMENT LEASES 3,081 4,483 6,480 6,480 6,480 3,660

20-01-5652 DEBT COLLECTIONS 0 0 0 0 3,000 3,100

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 12,706 22,416 16,680 16,680 34,480 17,470

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

20-01-5800 UTILITIES 6,435 6,525 12,000 12,000 12,000 9,000

20-01-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 1,209 3,596 3,120 3,120 3,120 3,120

20-01-5810 TELEPHONE 5,069 7,765 7,275 7,275 7,300 7,275

20-01-5910 BANK FEES 0 0 0 0 0 0

20-01-5911 CREDIT CARD MERCHANT FEES 0 0 0 0 0 50,000

20-01-5915 POSTAGE 42,187 60,563 52,800 52,800 57,900 59,554

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 54,901 78,449 75,195 75,195 80,320 128,949

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

20-01-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 25 0 0 0 0 0

20-01-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 3,555 518 2,150 2,150 2,150 2,150

20-01-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 595 3,270 3,500 3,500 6,000 3,500

20-01-6850 FLEET RESERVE FUND 0 11,715 10,750 10,750 10,750 10,751

20-01-6901 BAD DEBT EXPENSE 3,089 1,289 3,200 3,200 0 0

20-01-6999 CONTINGENCY 40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 7,304 16,793 19,600 19,600 18,900 16,401

151



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CAPITAL OUTLAY

20-01-7000 VEHICLES 8,173 18,277 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 8,173 18,277 0 0 0 0

TOTAL UTILITY BILLING 656,237 875,003 912,880 912,880 953,494 926,797

152



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

153



PUBLIC WORKS 
WATER MAINTENANCE 

 

The Water Maintenance division within the Public Works Department maintains the city’s utility 

infrastructure to protect public health and safety while conserving natural resources.  This division 

operates and maintains the water distribution system and is responsible for the Sandy Creek Water 

Treatment Plant owned by the City, but operated by the Brazos River Authority (BRA).  The water 

distribution system includes 184 miles of transmission and distribution lines, storage tanks, pumps, 

valves, hydrants, meters and other associated appurtenances.  The City also is a partner in the Brushy 

Creek Regional Utility Authority (BCRUA) which operates a regional water treatment plant. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Began fire hydrant painting program and painted 500 hydrants 

 Performed leak detection on 24 miles of water distribution lines 

 Implemented system with other departments to install larger 1” residential meters 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Continue the fire hydrant painting program 

 Continue waterline leak detection surveys and repairs 

 Implement a valve and hydrant preventive maintenance program 

 Improve SCADA communications with new antennas and controller units 

 Install 5 additional gate valves in Timberline West Section 1 to minimize service shut-offs during 
leak repairs  

 Respond to emergency service requests within two hours 

 Respond to non-emergency service requests within 24 hours 

 Respond to requests for information within 48 hours 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
The budget includes funds for a third two-man water distribution and wastewater collection system 
repair crew, a new crew truck, valve turning machine, and hydraulic power saw.  The prior year budget 
included funds for the construction of the Hero Way waterline ($700,000.) 

 

  

154



 
 

 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 

BUDGET 

FY 2014 

BUDGET 

FY 2015 

BUDGET 

FY 2016 

PROPOSED 

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT  0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 

WATER & WASTEWATER SUPT. 0 0 0.5 0.5 

UTILITY OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR  0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 

CREW LEADER I  1.0 1 1 2 

UTILITY MAINTENANCE I            1 1 1 2 

W/WW SERVICE TECH  1 1 1 1 

TOTAL 4 4 4.5 6.5 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Major Water Leak Repairs 

 Minor Water Leak Repairs 

 Fire Hydrant Repairs  

 Fire Hydrants Painted 

21 
16 
10 

 

12 
19 

7 
500 

18 
30 
10 

250 

 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Public Works Business Hours: 
7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. 
 
Police Dispatch 
After Hours (non-emergency) 

www.leandertx.gov/publicworks 
 
 
 

  
 (512) 259-2640 
 
  
 (512) 528-2800 

  

WATER 

MAINTENANCE 

Water 

Distribution 

Sandy Creek 

Water Treatment Plant 

155



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

20 -UTILITY FUND

WATER MAINTENANCE

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES

PERSONNEL

20-02-5110 SUPERVISION 70,201 72,446 143,219 107,384 104,050 107,206

20-02-5120 OPERATIONS 108,626 99,524 108,834 108,834 105,000 180,165

20-02-5140 OVERTIME 12,683 13,543 18,000 18,000 11,500 18,000

20-02-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 0 0 0 0 0 0

20-02-5153 LONGEVITY 480 720 1,300 1,300 720 1,160

20-02-5154 CERTIFICATION PAY 3,638 2,410 2,150 2,150 2,370 2,900

20-02-5180 FICA 11,535 11,727 17,008 17,008 14,010 19,236

20-02-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 23,067 23,483 29,698 29,698 25,908 47,946

20-02-5186 MDC 2,775 2,743 3,977 3,977 3,275 4,499

20-02-5188 TMRS 22,486 22,347 30,347 30,347 25,305 36,277

20-02-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 305 1,656 2,043 2,043 2,043 2,430

20-02-5192 WORKERS COMP 4,298 3,790 5,635 5,635 6,539 5,713

TOTAL PERSONNEL 260,094 254,389 362,211 326,376 300,720 425,532

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

20-02-5214 CHEMICALS 0 0 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

20-02-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 2,221 3,521 3,000 3,000 4,500 6,700

20-02-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 55,539 43,245 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000

20-02-5223 SAFETY EQUIPMENT 1,308 545 2,000 2,000 0 2,000

20-02-5228 FIRE HYDRANT MATERIALS 19,163 12,309 37,000 37,000 30,000 37,000

20-02-5229 NEW INSTALLATIONS 0 2,500 0 0 0 0

20-02-5240 GAS & OIL 35,539 34,724 39,000 39,000 26,000 34,000

20-02-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 566 3,191 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

20-02-5280 UNIFORMS 3,632 4,048 5,600 5,600 5,600 6,000

20-02-5298 WATER METERS 0 300 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 117,968 104,383 170,600 170,600 150,100 169,700

156



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

20-02-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 0 783 785 785 785 785

20-02-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 4,012 7,779 7,000 7,000 12,500 9,000

20-02-5555 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 1,361 1,800 7,790 7,790 7,790 8,000

20-02-5580 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT 8,151 9,666 10,000 10,000 10,000 12,000

20-02-5585 WATER METER REPAIRS 6,066 1,200 5,000 5,000 2,500 5,000

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 19,590 21,228 30,575 30,575 33,575 34,785

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

20-02-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 15,260 38,062 48,750 48,750 48,750 29,625

20-02-5609 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 757 560 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500

20-02-5626 EQUIPMENT LEASES 24,198 2,017 0 0 0 0

20-02-5670 RATE STUDY CONSULTING 0 21,325 0 0 20,000 0

20-02-5688 WATER SUPPLY CHARGES 2,216,457 2,155,735 2,490,000 2,490,000 2,300,000 2,525,000

20-02-5698 WATER TESTING TDH 12,405 16,869 12,000 12,000 13,500 14,000

20-02-5757 SANDY CREEK WTP O&M 981,889 1,034,171 1,122,071 1,122,071 1,322,000 1,048,296

20-02-5760 REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM 583,394 514,996 800,000 800,000 450,000 800,000

20-02-5765 LCRA ANNUAL CAPITAL COSTS 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 3,834,360 3,783,735 4,475,321 4,475,321 4,156,750 4,419,421

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

20-02-5800 UTILITIES 99,183 114,267 110,000 110,000 115,000 130,000

20-02-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 3,681 4,041 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,500

20-02-5810 TELEPHONE 2,370 1,228 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

20-02-5914 PERMIT FEES 26,650 22,056 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000

20-02-5915 POSTAGE 239 245 200 200 200 200

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 132,123 141,836 141,200 141,200 146,200 161,700

157



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

20-02-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 10,375 15,413 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500

20-02-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 470 5,065 2,675 2,675 2,675 2,675

20-02-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 3,151 4,806 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

20-02-6850 FLEET RESERVE FUND 1,973 6,945 14,783 14,783 14,783 20,159

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 15,968 32,229 34,958 34,958 34,958 40,334

CAPITAL OUTLAY

20-02-7000 VEHICLES 0 0 25,500 25,500 23,609 57,500

20-02-7100 MAJOR EQUIPMENT 102 0 0 0 0 16,012

20-02-7701 SCADA EQUIPMENT 2,450 790 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 2,552 790 29,500 29,500 27,609 77,512

CAPITAL PROJECTS

20-02-8305 42" BCRUA TRANSMISSION MAIN 11,829 0 0 0 0 0

20-02-8320 HERO WAY WATERLINE 49,896 45,808 0 700,000 710,650 0

20-02-8385 RAW WATER INTAKE CONTINGENCY 973,155 1,087,655 0 300,000 225,000 150,000

20-02-8620 TRAVISSO MUD 21 WATERLINE 0 242,989 0 110,000 110,000 0

20-02-8627 RIDGMAR LANDING WATERLINE 0 103,798 0 0 45,550 0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 1,034,880 1,480,249 0 1,110,000 1,091,200 150,000

TOTAL WATER MAINTENANCE 5,417,535 5,818,840 5,244,365 6,318,530 5,941,112 5,478,984

158



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

159



PUBLIC WORKS 
WASTEWATER MAINTENANCE 

 

 
The Wastewater Maintenance division within the Public Works Department maintains the city’s utility 

infrastructure to protect public health and safety while conserving natural resources. This division 

operates and maintains the wastewater collection and treatment systems. The wastewater collection 

system includes 148 miles of collection lines, 16 lift stations (with 4 more under design or construction), 

and 2,521 manholes.  The wastewater treatment plant is rated for 2.25 million gallons per day (mgd).  

The first phase of the Travisso Water Reclamation Plant (WRP) is scheduled to begin operations in fall 

2015.  The City is also a partner in the Brushy Creek Regional Wastewater System (BCRWWS).   

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Performed smoke testing of approximately 2,500 connections and associated lines (over 20%) of 
the wastewater collection system to reduce infiltration and inflow 

 Implemented a quarterly lift station cleaning program to reduce fats, oil, and grease 

 Placed the Travisso WRP and 5 new lift stations into service 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Place four new lift stations into operation 

 Continue smoke testing the wastewater collection system to reduce infiltration and inflow 

 Place the Travisso reclaimed water irrigation system into operation 

 Switch from chlorine gas to liquid bleach at the Leander WWTP 

 Respond to emergency service requests within 2 hours 

 Respond to non-emergency service requests within 24 hours 

 Respond to requests for information within 24 hours 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
Funds are included to add a second operator for the Travisso Water Reclamation Plant.   Cost increases 
also include switching from gas to liquid chemicals at the Leander WWTP ($85,000) and the purchase of a 
new pipeline inspection camera ($12,500.) 

 

  

160



 
 

 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 

BUDGET 

FY 2014 

BUDGET 

FY 2015 

BUDGET 

FY 2016 

PROPOSED 

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT  0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 

WATER & WASTEWATER SUPT. 0 0 0.5 0.5 

UTILITY OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR  0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 

WASTEWATER PLANT OPERATOR 3 3 4 5 

CREW LEADER I  1 1 1 1 

UTILITY MAINTENANCE I            1 1 1 1 

W/WW SERVICE TECH  1 1 1 1 

TOTAL 7 7 8.5 9.5 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Wastewater force main repairs 

 Wastewater Service Repairs 

 Wastewater Service Blockages Cleared 

 Lift Station & Pump Service 

 Pump & Motor Repairs 

14 
189 

39 

14 
153 

9 
25 

9 

21 
230 

14 
36 
14 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Public Works Business Hours:  
7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. 
 
Police Dispatch 
After Hours (non-emergency) 

 
www.leandertx.gov/publicworks 
 
 
 

  
 (512) 259-2640 
 
  
 (512) 528-2800 

  

WASTEWATER 
MAINTENANCE 

Wastewater 

Collection 

Wastewater 

Treatment Plant 

161



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

20 -UTILITY FUND

WASTEWATER MAINTENANCE

PERSONNEL

20-03-5110 SUPERVISION 70,201 72,446 71,542 107,377 104,050 107,206

20-03-5120 OPERATIONS 207,035 244,901 280,140 280,140 286,500 337,905

20-03-5140 OVERTIME 21,766 24,383 23,000 23,000 25,000 23,000

20-03-5152 PHONE ALLOWANCE 0 0 0 0 450 0

20-03-5153 LONGEVITY 720 960 2,230 2,230 1,500 2,880

20-03-5154 CERTIFICATION PAY 6,816 4,756 4,350 4,350 6,000 7,100

20-03-5180 FICA 18,125 20,451 23,638 23,638 26,205 26,132

20-03-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 37,841 40,334 44,200 44,200 47,197 47,127

20-03-5186 MDC 4,372 4,783 5,529 5,529 6,130 6,111

20-03-5188 TMRS 35,185 38,342 42,287 42,287 47,335 48,902

20-03-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 27 630 2,664 2,664 2,664 2,898

20-03-5192 WORKERS COMP 5,745 5,366 7,048 7,048 2,739 6,964

TOTAL PERSONNEL 407,834 457,351 506,628 542,463 555,770 616,225

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

20-03-5214 CHEMICALS 113,151 87,591 150,000 150,000 150,000 180,000

20-03-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 21,468 2,815 20,000 20,000 20,000 11,000

20-03-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 23,820 21,146 36,000 36,000 58,000 36,000

20-03-5223 SAFETY EQUIPMENT 358 1,017 2,000 2,000 50 3,000

20-03-5250 OFFICE SUPPLIES 421 308 500 500 500 700

20-03-5280 UNIFORMS 3,335 4,048 3,100 3,100 3,100 3,600

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 162,551 116,924 211,600 211,600 231,650 234,300

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

20-03-5503 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 2,550 405 14,000 14,000 14,000 4,000

20-03-5520 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 251,415 44,918 160,000 160,000 90,000 110,000

162



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

20-03-5555 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 0 22,054 14,750 14,750 14,750 10,000

20-03-5580 VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 872 3,089 3,000 3,000 3,000 4,000

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 254,837 70,466 191,750 191,750 121,750 128,000

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

20-03-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 66,294 36,947 45,000 45,000 35,000 87,250

20-03-5609 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 2,390 728 0 0 2,500 3,000

20-03-5622 BRUSHY CREEK WASTEWATER 357,333 398,639 450,000 450,000 445,000 490,000

20-03-5626 EQUIPMENT LEASES 42,143 3,530 0 0 0 0

20-03-5630 DISPOSAL SERVICES 0 433 0 0 0 0

20-03-5631 CONTRACT SVCS - SLUDGE HAULING 44,459 70,950 120,000 120,000 80,000 120,000

20-03-5670 RATE STUDY CONSULTING 0 0 0 0 8,000 0

20-03-5698 WATER TESTING TDH 28,888 24,340 30,000 30,000 20,000 30,000

20-03-5725 WILLIAMSON CO. HEALTH DISTRICT 20,000 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 561,507 535,567 645,000 645,000 590,500 730,250

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

20-03-5800 UTILITIES 233,236 254,656 275,000 275,000 275,000 300,000

20-03-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 1,242 1,901 2,000 2,000 1,500 2,500

20-03-5810 TELEPHONE 0 1,487 750 750 2,250 2,000

20-03-5914 PERMIT / CCN FEES 10,685 11,779 10,100 10,100 13,250 10,100

20-03-5915 POSTAGE 6 21 150 150 50 200

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 245,169 269,844 288,000 288,000 292,050 314,800

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

20-03-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 222 0 2,500 2,500 250 2,500

20-03-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 283 626 2,000 2,000 650 2,000

163



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

20-03-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 1,907 2,105 5,000 5,000 2,500 5,000

20-03-6850 FLEET RESERVE FUND 0 3,000 0 0 0 3,024

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 2,412 5,731 9,500 9,500 3,400 12,524

CAPITAL OUTLAY

20-03-7000 VEHICLES 0 0 28,000 28,000 24,872 0

20-03-7100 MAJOR EQUIPMENT 0 54,755 0 0 0 67,500

20-03-7701 SCADA EQUIPMENT 41,523 8,167 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 41,523 62,922 78,000 78,000 74,872 117,500

TOTAL WASTEWATER MAINTENANCE 1,675,833 1,518,804 1,930,478 1,966,313 1,869,992 2,153,599

164



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

165



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

20 -UTILITY FUND

NON DEPARTMENTAL

PERSONNEL

20-04-5010 SECTION 125 EXPENSE 442 845 420 420 650 650

20-04-5199 SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS 0 62 37,721 37,721 0 38,850

TOTAL PERSONNEL 442 907 38,141 38,141 650 39,500

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

20-04-5607 AUDITOR FEES 10,700 11,010 11,010 11,010 19,000 11,010

20-04-5650 LEGAL FEES 4,835 118,958 40,000 40,000 7,500 12,600

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 15,535 129,968 51,010 51,010 26,500 23,610

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

20-04-5911 CREDIT CARD MERCHANT FEES 38,751 48,012 45,000 45,000 50,000 0

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 38,751 48,012 45,000 45,000 50,000 0

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

20-04-6205 INSURANCE (PROP & LIABILITY) 73,221 63,955 70,500 70,500 78,700 86,570

20-04-6303 CENTRAL TEXAS UTILITIES D.A. 0 0 0 0 0 0

20-04-6383 CTSUD CCN EXPENSE 0 4,630 0 0 855 0

20-04-6811 BOND INSURANCE & ISSUANCE 0 0 0 0 0 0

20-04-6902 AMORTIZATION EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 0 0

20-04-6903 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 10,298 0 0 0 0 0

20-04-6904 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 83,519 68,585 70,500 70,500 79,555 86,570

166



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CAPITAL OUTLAY

20-04-7710 CTSUD CCN 0 0 725,000 725,000 450,000 25,000

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 725,000 725,000 450,000 25,000

TRANSFERS

20-04-9000 TRANSFER OUT 1,360,000 1,360,000 1,360,000 1,360,000 1,360,000 1,250,000

20-04-9006 TRANSFER TO BCRUA DEBT SVC 4,785,481 5,272,361 5,743,721 5,743,721 5,743,721 6,047,310

20-04-9007 TRANSFER TO BCRWWS DEBT SVC 770,139 770,139 770,139 770,139 770,139 770,139

20-04-9008 TRANSFER TO CIP 51,992 0 0 505,000 1,030,000 250,000

20-04-9009 TRANSFER TO G/F  ENGINEER SVCS 0 0 0 525,000 0 0

20-04-9010 TRANSFER TO UT DEBT SERVICE 3,285,898 2,773,756 2,795,551 2,795,551 2,797,951 3,089,486

TOTAL TRANSFERS 10,253,509 10,176,256 10,669,411 11,699,411 11,701,811 11,406,935

INTEREST

20-04-9200 INTEREST PAYMENTS 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL INTEREST 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL NON DEPARTMENTAL 10,391,756 10,423,728 11,599,062 12,629,062 12,308,516 11,581,615

167



REGIONAL 
WATER PLANT 

 

 
The City of Leander is a partner with the cities of Cedar Park and Round Rock in the Brushy Creek 

Regional Utility Authority (BCRUA).  The BCRUA placed the initial 17mgd water treatment plant into 

operation in the summer of 2012.  By interlocal agreement among the parties, City of Leander employs 

the superintendent and plant operators.  The City’s Engineering Director oversees this division. 

 

 

FY 2014-15 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 Placed 17.8mgd water treatment facility out of service 

 Assumed maintenance responsibilities for the raw water pump station; raw water transmission 
main; water plant facility; and treated water transmission main (including two delivery stations – 
one in Leander and the other in Cedar Park) during non-operational period 

 

FY 2015-16 OBJECTIVES 

 

 Continue to resolve outstanding punch list and warranty items relating to plant construction 

 Coordinate relocation of the temporary floating intake barge to place back into service 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 
The budget provides for the personnel costs to employ a plant superintendent and three water 
treatment plant operators.  The City is reimbursed by the BCRUA for these expenses. 

 

  

168



 
 

 

PERSONNEL SUMMARY 
FY 2013 

BUDGET 

FY 2014 

BUDGET 

FY 2015 

BUDGET 

FY 2016 

PROPOSED 

SUPERINTENDENT  1 1 1 1 

WATER PLANT OPERATORS  3 3 3 3 

TOTAL 4 4 4 4 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FY 2014 
ACTUAL 

FY 2015 
ESTIMATED 

FY 2016 
PROPOSED 

 Treatment Production    

 

 

PROGRAM & SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION 

Engineering Department 

Brushy Creek Regional Utility 
Authority 

www.leandertx.gov/engineering 

www.bcrua.org 

 (512) 528-2760 

 (512) 218-3234 

 

 

 

REGIONAL 

WATER PLANT 

Control Feed Permit Compliance Test Operation Check 

169

http://www.leandertx.gov/engineering
http://www.bcrua.org/


FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

20 -UTILITY FUND

REGIONAL WATER PLANT

PERSONNEL

20-05-5110 SUPERVISION 73,767 75,477 74,861 74,861 78,040 77,482

20-05-5120 OPERATIONS 129,475 129,869 130,141 130,141 133,120 133,395

20-05-5140 OVERTIME 1,147 0 0 0 250 0

20-05-5153 LONGEVITY 60 300 650 650 540 780

20-05-5154 CERTIFICATION PAY 6,026 3,175 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

20-05-5180 FICA 11,849 12,323 12,936 12,936 13,110 13,309

20-05-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 27,416 24,005 27,377 27,377 21,713 30,409

20-05-5186 MDC 2,862 2,882 3,025 3,025 3,110 3,113

20-05-5188 TMRS 24,122 23,016 23,202 23,202 24,050 24,906

20-05-5190 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 433 828 828 828 828 828

20-05-5192 WORKERS COMP 4,190 4,069 4,895 4,895 4,694 4,483

TOTAL PERSONNEL 281,347 275,944 280,915 280,915 282,455 291,705

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

20-05-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES (346) 2,567 0 0 0 0

20-05-5240 GAS & OIL 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT (346) 2,567 0 0 0 0

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

20-05-5650 LEGAL FEES 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 0 0

170



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES

20-05-5807 CELL PHONE / PAGER 0 568 0 0 0 0

TOTAL UTILITIES,PERMITS & FEES 0 568 0 0 0 0

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

20-05-6201 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0

20-05-6202 ADVERTISING & PRINTING 1,520 0 0 0 0 0

20-05-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 346 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 1,866 0 0 0 0 0

CAPITAL OUTLAY

20-05-7400 LAND, EASEMENTS, ROW 0 0 0 1,725,000 1,725,000 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 0 1,725,000 1,725,000 0

TOTAL REGIONAL WATER PLANT 282,867 279,079 280,915 2,005,915 2,007,455 291,705

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 18,512,812 18,915,454 19,967,700 23,832,700 23,080,569 20,432,700

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** (2,030,735) (836,463) (2,220,000) (4,010,000) (2,687,756) 0

171



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

172



CAPITAL  PROJECT 
FUNDS 

173



RM
1431

N 
US 18
3

BA
GD

AD
 R

D

RM 2243

E SAN
GABRIEL

PKWY

W SANGABRIELPKWY US 183

LOOP 332

W SH 29

W WHITESTONE BLVD

N U
S 1

83
S U

S 
18

3
N 

BE
LL

 B
LV

D

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

OLD 2243 WEST

S BAGDAD RD

N LAKELINE BLVD

CRYSTAL
FALLSPKWY

E WHITESTONE BLVD

RM 2243

W SH 29
183A

CR
 27

9

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

¬«2

¬«7
¬«6

¬«4

¬«5
¬«1
¬«3

Approximate Area as of April 29, 2015:
City Limits:                            29.54 Square Miles
E.T.J. outside of City Limits: 33.02 Square Miles
Total City Limits and E.T.J.:  62.56 Square Miles

City of Jonestown, Texas

City of Cedar Park, Texas

City Of Leander, Texas

Ë
0 3,500 7,000

Feet

Legend
Projects
Major Roads
County Line
City Of Leander - City Limits
City of Leander - 2 Mile and Voluntary E.T.J.

Major Projects:
1 - Bagdad Rd / CR 279
2 - Benbrook Ranch Park Ballfields
3 - Old 2243 West
4 - S. Brushy Creek WW Interceptor
5 - San Gabriel Pkwy
6 - Reagan 24" Waterline
7 - Reagan EST / GST / Booster Station174



Tr
av

iss
o

+/
- 3

,2
42

 Lo
ts

W
ed

em
ey

er
+/

- 1
,2

79
 Lo

ts

Br
ys

on
+/

- 1
,4

74

Tr
av

iss
o

+/
- 3

,2
42

 Lo
ts

Liv
el

y
+/

- 1
,1

60
 Lo

ts

Ra
nc

ho
 S

ie
nn

a
+/

- 7
24

 Lo
ts

Ma
so

n 
Ra

nc
h

 +
/- 

77
9 

Lo
ts

Pa
lm

er
a 

Bl
uf

f
+/

- 5
01

 Lo
ts Pa
lm

er
a 

Ri
dg

e
+/

- 5
36

 Lo
ts

Oa
k 

Cr
ee

k
+/

- 4
46

 Lo
ts

Gr
ea

tw
oo

d
+/

- 1
24

 Lo
ts

Ma
rb

el
la

+/
- 2

17
 Lo

ts

Ca
rn

er
o'

s R
an

ch
 +

/- 
31

5 
Lo

ts

Cr
ys

ta
l S

pr
in

gs
+/

- 2
66

 Lo
ts

Bl
uf

fs
 a

t C
ry

st
al

 F
al

ls
+/

- 8
27

 Lo
ts

Gr
an

d 
Me

sa
, S

ec
  8

 +
/- 

12
4 

Lo
ts

Pe
ca

n 
Cr

ee
k

+/
- 1

48
 Lo

ts

Ha
wk

es
 L

an
di

ng
+/

- 2
60

 Lo
ts

Re
ag

an
's 

Ov
er

lo
ok

+/
- 4

7 
Lo

ts

Bo
rh

o
+/

- 1
80

 Lo
ts

St
ew

ar
t C

ro
ss

in
g

+/
- 2

23
 Lo

ts

Le
an

de
r C

ro
ss

in
g

+/
- 1

20

Ma
ya

 V
ist

a
+/

- 1
28

 Lo
ts

Ma
gn

ol
ia

 C
re

ek
+/

- 1
08

 Lo
ts

Ha
zle

w
oo

d
 +

/- 
16

9 
Lo

ts

Ca
ta

lin
a 

Ra
nc

h
+/

- 1
10

 Lo
ts

Fa
irw

ay
s a

t C
ry

st
al

 F
al

ls
Se

ct
 6

+/
- 9

8 
Lo

ts

No
rth

sid
e 

Me
ad

ow
+/

- 5
8 

Lo
ts

Co
nn

el
ly

's 
Cr

os
sin

g
+/

- 6
0 

Lo
ts

Sa
va

nn
a 

Ra
nc

h
+/

- 1
16

 Lo
ts

Pa
rk

er
 T

ra
ct

+/
- 7

Ho
rs

es
ho

e 
Co

ve
+/

- 1
5

183A
RM

 22
43

CR 279

W 
SH

 29

S US 183

RONALD W REAGAN BLVD

US 183

S BAGDAD RD

OL
D 

22
43

 W
ES

T

CR
YS

TA
L F

AL
LS

 PK
WY

N LAKELINE BLVD

E C
RY

ST
AL

 FA
LL

S P
KW

Y

N BELL BLVD

BAGDAD RD
N BAGDAD RD

N US 183

CI
TY

 O
F L

EA
ND

ER
, T

EX
AS

Fu
tu

re
 R

es
ide

nt
ial

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t M

ap
Up

da
te

d J
uly

 1
7,

 2
01

5
E

Lo
t c

ou
nt

s s
ho

wn
 ar

e f
ro

m 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 pr

eli
mi

na
ry

 
da

ta
.  

Fin
al 

lot
 co

un
ts 

ma
y d

iffe
r u

po
n 

fin
al 

pla
t o

f 
th

e p
ro

pe
rty

.  
Th

is 
da

ta
 is

 ba
se

d o
n a

pp
ro

ve
d p

lan
s. 

Ac
tiv

e S
ub

div
isi

on
s

Cit
y L

im
its

ET
J

2,
00

0
0

2,
00

0
4,

00
0

6,
00

0
Fe

et

Te
xt

Te
xt

CI
TY

 O
F 

LE
AN

DE
R 

CO
NT

AC
TS

Ma
rk

 W
illi

s, 
MB

A,
 C

Ec
D

Ec
on

om
ic 

De
ve

lop
me

nt
 D

ire
cto

r
51

2-
52

8-
28

52
mw

illi
s@

lea
nd

er
tx.

go
v

To
m 

Ya
nt

is,
 A

IC
P

As
sis

ta
nt

 C
ity

 M
an

ag
er

51
2-

52
8-

27
32

tya
nt

is@
lea

nd
er

tx.
go

v 

+/
-

18
0

lot
s

Bo
rh

o
+/

-
82

7
lot

s
Blu

ffs
 at

 C
ry

sta
l F

all
s

+/
-

1,
47

4
lot

s
Br

ys
on

+/
-

31
5

lot
s

Ca
rn

er
o's

 R
an

ch
+/

-
11

0
lot

s
Ca

ta
lin

a R
an

ch
+/

-
60

lot
s

Co
nn

ell
y's

 C
ro

ss
ing

+/
-

26
6

lot
s

Cr
ys

ta
l S

pr
ing

s
+/

-
98

lot
s

Fa
irw

ay
s a

t C
ry

sta
l F

all
s 

Se
c 6

+/
-

79
lot

s
Gr

an
d M

es
a, 

Se
c 8

+/
-

12
4

lot
s

Gr
ea

tw
oo

ds
+/

-
26

0
lot

s
Ha

wk
es

 La
nd

ing
+/

-
16

9
lot

s
Ha

zle
wo

od
+/

-
15

lot
s

Ho
rse

sh
oe

 C
ov

e
+/

-
12

0
lot

s
Le

an
de

r C
ro

ss
ing

+/
-

1,
16

0
lot

s
Liv

ely
+/

-
10

8
lot

s
Ma

gn
oli

a C
re

ek
+/

-
21

7
lot

s
Ma

rb
ell

a
+/

-
77

9
lot

s
Ma

so
n R

an
ch

+/
-

12
8

lot
s

Ma
ya

 V
ist

a
+/

-
58

lot
s

No
rth

sid
e M

ea
do

w
+/

-
44

6
lot

s
Oa

k C
re

ek
+/

-
53

6
lot

s
Pa

lm
er

a R
idg

e
+/

-
50

1
lot

s
Pa

lm
er

a B
luf

f
+/

-
7

lot
s

Pa
rk

er
 Tr

ac
t

+/
-

14
8

lot
s

Pe
ca

n C
re

ek
+/

-
72

4
lot

s
Ra

nc
ho

 S
ien

na
+/

-
47

lot
s

Re
ag

an
's 

Ov
er

loo
k

+/
-

11
6

lot
s

Sa
va

nn
a R

an
ch

+/
-

22
3

lot
s

St
ew

ar
t C

ro
ss

ing
+/

-
3,

24
2

lot
s

Tr
av

iss
o

+/
-

1,
27

9
lot

s
W

ed
em

ey
er

+/
-1

3,
81

6
LO

TS
TO

TA
L

SU
MM

AR
Y 

TA
BL

E

175



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

176



GENERAL  PURPOSE 
CAPITAL  PROJECTS 

177



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

TIA Fund-12

Beginning Fund Balance 1,407,600 26,157 448,208 452,932 452,932 155,632

Revenues 1,813,764 1,181,520 45,000 45,000 200,700 45,000

Expenditures

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 3,565,207 627,752 45,000 420,000 370,000 95,000

Total Expenditures 3,565,207 627,752 45,000 420,000 370,000 95,000

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) (1,751,443) 553,768 0 (375,000) (169,300) (50,000)

Transfers In 370,000 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 (48,000) (48,000) 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 370,000 0 0 (48,000) (48,000) 0

Ending Fund Balance 26,157 579,925 448,208 29,932 235,632 105,632

(less) Restricted Revenue 0 (126,993) 0 (80,000) 0

Net Available Fund Balance 26,157 452,932 448,208 29,932 155,632 105,632

Fund Summary:  The Traffic Impact Fee fund was established by ordinance to provide 
developers the option to pay the City an "in-lieu of" fee rather than construct 
improvements to substandard streets if the street abutted the property being developed.  
The fund also establishes a fee to be paid by developers for the impact their 
development will have on traffic conditions. 

Fund Summary:  The Traffic Impact Fee fund was established by ordinance to provide 
developers the option to pay the City an "in-lieu of" fee rather than construct 
improvements to a substandard street if that street abutted the property being 
developed.  The fund also establishes a fee to be paid by developers for the impact their 
development will have on traffic conditions. 

178



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

12 -TIA FUND

REVENUES

ADMINISTRATIVE

12-00-4062 TIA FEE IN LIEU 129,396 176,030 45,000 45,000 120,000 45,000

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 129,396 176,030 45,000 45,000 120,000 45,000

MISCELLANEOUS

12-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 966 413 0 0 700 0

12-00-4486 SUBSTANDARD STREET IMPROVEMENT 83,403 69,116 0 0 80,000 0

12-00-4499 WILLIAMSON COUNTY 1,000,000 500,000 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 1,084,369 569,529 0 0 80,700 0

POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE

12-00-4625 LISD - INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 600,000 435,961 0 0 0 0

TOTAL POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE 600,000 435,961 0 0 0 0

TRANSFERS

12-00-4900 TRANSFER IN 370,000 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 370,000 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL REVENUES 2,183,764 1,181,520 45,000 45,000 200,700 45,000

179



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

12 -TIA FUND

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

12-01-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 0 6,974 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 6,974 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000

CAPITAL PROJECTS

12-01-8005 LAKELINE BLVD IMPROVEMENTS 0 11,560 0 0 0 0

12-01-8334 CR 179 RECONSTRUCTION 3,565,207 609,218 0 0 0 0

12-01-8387 MUNICIPAL DRIVE / BAGDAD SGNL 0 0 0 375,000 325,000 50,000

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 3,565,207 620,778 0 375,000 325,000 50,000

TRANSFERS

12-01-9008 TRANSFER TO CIP 0 0 0 48,000 48,000 0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 0 0 0 48,000 48,000 0

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 3,565,207 627,752 45,000 468,000 418,000 95,000

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,565,207 627,752 45,000 468,000 418,000 95,000

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** (1,381,442) 553,768 0 (423,000) (217,300) (50,000)

180



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

181



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

General Purpose CIP-40

Beginning Fund Balance 444,645 (416,285) 561,150 (500,602) (500,602) 2,322,484

Revenues 4,030,025 1,254,322 0 127,000 227,030 0

Expenditures

GRANTS 5,185,768 291,235 0 0 1,170 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS 5,187 3,881,942 561,150 2,934,150 938,346 2,185,000

Total Expenditures 5,190,955 4,174,163 561,150 2,934,150 939,516 2,210,000

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) (1,160,930) (2,919,841) (561,150) (2,807,150) (712,486) (2,210,000)

Transfers In 300,000 2,835,524 0 3,558,327 3,558,327 1,000,000

Transfers Out 0 0 0 (22,755) (22,755) (25,000)

Net Transfers In / (Out) 300,000 2,835,524 0 3,535,572 3,535,572 975,000

Ending Fund Balance (416,285) (500,602) 0 227,820 2,322,484 1,087,484

Fund Summary:  The General Purpose Capital Projects fund is used to account for a 
variety of capital projects in which the source of funds is restricted to that purpose.  Most 
recently, the fund is being used to account for the construction of Mel Mathis Avenue.  
TxDot is contributing matching funds for the project. 

Fund Summary:  The General Purpose Capital Projects fund is used to account for a 
variety of capital projects in which the source of funds is restricted to that purpose.  
Recent projects include the construction of Mel Mathis Avenue, East Crystal Falls 
intersection at US 183 and design for improvements to 2243.  Funds previously budgeted 
in 2015 have been carried over to 2016.  These include Bagdad Road sidewalks 
($800,000), the US 183 & Crystal Falls intersection ($500,000), and initial funding 
($485,000) for Pat Bryson Hall renovation project.  Also included is a $25,000 transfer to 
the Public Arts fund as a result of Fire Station No. 4 construction. 

182



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

40 -GENERAL CAP PROJ

REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS

40-00-4436 DEVELOPERS CONTRIBUTION 0 1,254,121 0 127,000 127,000 0

40-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 25 201 0 0 500 0

40-00-4456 LAKELINE BLVD ROW 0 0 0 0 0 0

40-00-4457 MM PRJT CR273 & SAN GABRIEL T 4,030,000 0 0 0 99,530 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 4,030,025 1,254,322 0 127,000 227,030 0

TRANSFERS

40-00-4900 TRANSFER IN 300,000 2,835,524 0 3,558,327 3,558,327 1,000,000

TOTAL TRANSFERS 300,000 2,835,524 0 3,558,327 3,558,327 1,000,000

TOTAL REVENUES 4,330,025 4,089,846 0 3,685,327 3,785,357 1,000,000

183



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

40 -GENERAL CAP PROJ

CAPITAL PROJECTS

CAPITAL OUTLAY

40-02-7364 LAKELINE BLVD EXTENSION ROW 49,680 985 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 49,680 985 0 0 0 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS

40-02-8335 LEANDER T 5,136,088 291,235 0 0 1,170 0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 5,136,088 291,235 0 0 1,170 0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 5,185,768 292,220 0 0 1,170 0

40 -GENERAL CAP PROJ

CAPITAL PROJECTS

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

40-04-5650 LEGAL FEES 0 0 0 0 5,000 0

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 5,000 0

184



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

CAPITAL OUTLAY

40-04-7400 LAND, EASEMENTS, ROW 0 237,550 0 0 0 0

40-04-7501 POLICE CAD SYSTEM 0 370,592 140,000 140,000 170,000 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 608,142 140,000 140,000 170,000 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS

40-04-8005 LAKELINE EXTENSION 0 34,445 0 0 47,510 0

40-04-8013 BAGDAD SIDEWALKS 0 0 0 900,000 100,000 800,000

40-04-8022 US183 & CRYSTAL FALLS 0 0 0 448,000 0 500,000

40-04-8026 US183/183A INTERSECTION 0 1,250,013 0 0 0 0

40-04-8028 BAGDAD (N) STREET AND DRAINAGE 0 99,093 0 0 40,000 0

40-04-8321 CITY HALL REMODEL 0 0 0 140,000 140,000 0

40-04-8324 PAT BRYSON REMODEL 0 0 0 485,000 0 485,000

40-04-8342 E. CRYSTAL FALLS ROADWAY 0 479,014 0 0 10,836 0

40-04-8385 OLD 2243 WEST / HERO WAY 5,187 1,411,235 421,150 421,150 0 0

40-04-8386 SAN GABRIEL PARKWAY 0 0 0 325,000 350,000 400,000

40-04-8402 POLICE BLDG IMPROVEMENTS 0 0 0 75,000 75,000 0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 5,187 3,273,800 421,150 2,794,150 763,346 2,185,000

TRANSFERS

40-04-9000 TRANSFER OUT 0 0 0 22,755 22,755 25,000

TOTAL TRANSFERS 0 0 0 22,755 22,755 25,000

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 5,187 3,881,942 561,150 2,956,905 961,101 2,210,000

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,190,955 4,174,163 561,150 2,956,905 962,271 2,210,000

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** (860,930) (84,317) (561,150) 728,422 2,823,086 (1,210,000)

185



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

$21M 2007 GO Bonds-52

Beginning Fund Balance 244,640 0 0 0 0 0

Revenues 48,627 0 0 0 0 0

Expenditures

2007 BOND PROJECTS 293,267 0 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 293,267 0 0 0 0 0

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) (244,640) 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ending Fund Balance 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fund Summary:  In 2006, voters approved bonds for the construction of various roadway, 
public safety, and municipal facilty improvements.  The City issued bonds in 2007 and this 
fund was established to account for the expenditure of those funds. 

Fund Summary:  In 2006, voters approved bonds for the construction of various roadway, 
public safety, and municipal facilty improvements.  The City issued bonds in 2007 and this 
fund was established to account for the expenditure of those funds. 

186



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

52 -21M BOND SERIES 2007

REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS

52-00-4436 DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTION E CRY F 48,587 0 0 0 0 0

52-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 39 0 0 0 0 0

52-00-4467 OTHER REV-BAGDAD SIDEWALK GRAN 0 0 0 0 0 0

52-00-4499 WILLIAMSON COUNTY 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 48,627 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL REVENUES 48,627 0 0 0 0 0

52 -21M BOND SERIES 2007

21M BOND SERIES 2007

CAPITAL PROJECTS

52-07-8021 SAN GABRIEL PKWY INTERSECTION 293,267 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 293,267 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 21M BOND SERIES 2007 293,267 0 0 0 0 0

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 293,267 0 0 0 0 0

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** (244,640) 0 0 0 0 0

187



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

53 -6M BOND SERIES 2010

REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS

53-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 4,092 527 0 0 82 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 4,092 527 0 0 82 0

TRANSFERS

53-00-4900 TRANSFER IN 135,000 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 135,000 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL REVENUES 139,092 527 0 0 82 0

188



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

189



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

$6M 2010 GO Bonds-53

Beginning Fund Balance 4,113,941 2,056,623 0 237,105 237,105 0

Revenues 4,092 527 0 0 82 0

Expenditures

2010 BOND PROJECTS 2,196,410 1,820,045 0 250,000 237,187 0

Total Expenditures 2,196,410 1,820,045 0 250,000 237,187 0

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) (2,192,318) (1,819,518) 0 (250,000) (237,105) 0

Transfers In 135,000 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 135,000 0 0 0 0 0

Ending Fund Balance 2,056,623 237,105 0 (12,895) 0 0

Fund Summary:  In 2010, the City issued the remaining $6,000,000 of voter-approved 
bonds from the 2006 election to finish various roadway projects.  This fund was 
established to account for those projects. 

Fund Summary:  In 2010, the City issued the remaining $6,000,000 of voter-approved 
bonds from the 2006 election to finish various roadway projects.  This fund was 
established to account for those projects. 

190



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

53 -6M BOND SERIES 2010

6M BOND SERIES 2010

CAPITAL PROJECTS

53-01-8325 BAGDAD/CASTLEWOOD SIDEWALK/RWA 0 0 0 0 0 0

53-01-8327 COUNTY GLEN DRAINAGE 1,800,064 102,520 0 0 0 0

53-01-8335 LEANDER T 122,300 5,162 0 0 0 0

53-01-8342 E.CRYSTAL FALLS ROADWAY 64,873 1,720,480 0 250,000 237,187 0

53-01-8385 OLD 2243 8,117 (8,117) 0 0 0 0

53-01-8386 SAN GABRIEL PARKWAY 201,054 0 0 0 0 0

53-01-8390 SONNY DRIVE EXTENSION 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 2,196,410 1,820,045 0 250,000 237,187 0

TOTAL 6M BOND SERIES 2010 2,196,410 1,820,045 0 250,000 237,187 0

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,196,410 1,820,045 0 250,000 237,187 0

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** (2,057,317) (1,819,517) 0 (250,000) (237,105) 0

191



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

2015 Bond Series-54

Beginning Fund Balance 0 0 0 (4,250) (4,250) 15,591,066

Revenues 0 0 45,615,366 45,615,366 28,452,228 14,095,500

Expenditures

CAPITAL PROJECTS 0 4,250 45,615,366 44,105,039 11,346,585 29,686,566

Total Expenditures 0 4,250 45,615,366 44,105,039 11,346,585 29,686,566

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 0 (4,250) 0 1,510,327 17,105,643 (15,591,066)

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 (1,510,327) (1,510,327) 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 0 0 (1,510,327) (1,510,327) 0

Ending Fund Balance 0 (4,250) 0 (4,250) 15,591,066 0

Fund Summary:  In 2010, the City issued the remaining $6,000,000 of voter-approved 
bonds from the 2006 election to finish various roadway projects.  This fund was 
established to account for those projects. 

Fund Summary:  In 2015, the City issued $28 million in Certificates of Obligation for 
various capital projects including major roadways, two fire stations, parkland and park 
improvements.  The City anticipates project cost sharing with Williamson County for the 
construction of two of the roadway projects - 2243 from US 183 to Lakeline and Bagdad 
north from 2243 to new LISD High School #6.  This fund was established to account for 
these projects. 

192



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

54 -CO SERIES 2015

REVENUES

ADMINISTRATIVE

54-00-4013 BOND PROCEEDS 0 0 28,012,966 28,012,966 28,416,838 0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 0 0 28,012,966 28,012,966 28,416,838 0

MISCELLANEOUS

54-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 0 0 0 0 10,000 42,500

54-00-4499 WILLIAMSON COUNTY 0 0 15,500,000 15,500,000 0 14,053,000

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 0 0 15,500,000 15,500,000 10,000 14,095,500

 SPECIAL REVENUE

54-00-4625 LISD - INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 0 0 2,102,400 2,102,400 25,390 0

TOTAL  SPECIAL REVENUE 0 0 2,102,400 2,102,400 25,390 0

TOTAL REVENUES 0 0 45,615,366 45,615,366 28,452,228 14,095,500

193



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

54 -CO SERIES 2015

CAPITAL PROJECTS

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

54-01-5650 LEGAL FEES 0 0 0 0 25,000 0

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 25,000 0

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

54-01-6811 BOND ISSUANCE COSTS 0 0 0 0 302,255 0

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 0 0 0 0 302,255 0

CAPITAL OUTLAY

54-01-7420 PARKLAND ACQUISITION 0 4,250 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,763,330 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 4,250 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,763,330 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS

54-01-8202 BENBROOK RANCH REGIONAL PARK 0 0 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 0

54-01-8282 BAGDAD (N) STREET & DRAINAGE 0 0 11,000,000 10,900,908 1,000,000 9,197,673

54-01-8352 FIRE STATION #1 0 0 2,947,091 2,947,091 0 2,947,091

54-01-8354 FIRE STATION #4 0 0 2,668,275 2,668,275 500,000 2,168,275

54-01-8385 OLD 2243 WEST / HERO WAY 0 0 20,000,000 18,588,765 3,000,000 15,373,527

54-01-8387 MUNICIPAL DRIVE 0 0 4,000,000 4,000,000 2,506,000 0

54-01-8388 EAST STREET 0 0 1,000,000 1,000,000 250,000 0

54-01-8627 RIDGMAR LANDING WATERLINE 0 0 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 0 0 43,615,366 42,105,039 9,256,000 29,686,566

194



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

TRANSFERS

54-01-9000 TRANSFER OUT 0 0 0 0 0 0

54-01-9008 TRANSFER TO CIP 0 0 0 1,510,327 1,510,327 0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 0 0 0 1,510,327 1,510,327 0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 0 4,250 45,615,366 45,615,366 12,856,912 29,686,566

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 0 4,250 45,615,366 45,615,366 12,856,912 29,686,566

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 0 (4,250) 0 0 15,595,316 (15,591,066)

195



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Park Dedication-75

Beginning Fund Balance 46,297 449,607 777,302 731,573 731,573 527,573

Revenues 367,956 208,314 600,000 600,000 404,000 200,000

Expenditures

PARKS & RECREATION 64,646 112,348 1,533,000 1,533,000 1,503,000 585,000

Total Expenditures 64,646 112,348 1,533,000 1,533,000 1,503,000 585,000

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 303,310 0 0 0 0

Transfers In 100,000 200,000 895,000 895,000 895,000 0

Transfers Out 0 (14,000) 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 100,000 186,000 895,000 895,000 895,000 0

Ending Fund Balance 449,607 731,573 739,302 693,573 527,573 142,573

Fund Summary:  The Park Dedication Fund was established to account for funds collected 
during the subdivision platting process.  The City's subdivision ordinance requires 
developers of residential property to set aside parkland ("parkland dedication") or pay an 
"in-lieu of" fee.  The City then can use these funds for the future acquisition of parkland 
or for improvements to existing parks. 

Fund Summary:  The Park Dedication Fund was established to account for funds collected 
during the subdivision platting process.  The City's subdivision ordinance requires 
developers of residential property to set aside parkland ("parkland dedication") or pay an 
"in-lieu of" fee.  The City then can use these funds for the future acquisition of parkland 
or for improvements to existing parks.  In 2016, $300,000 is budgeted for Lakewood Park 
and $240,000 for Veterans Park. 

196



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

75 -PARK DEDICATION FUND

REVENUES

DONATIONS

75-00-4263 DONATIONS VETERANS MEMORIAL 38 0 100,000 100,000 28,500 0

TOTAL FRANCHISE FEES 38 0 100,000 100,000 28,500 0

MISCELLANEOUS

75-00-4436 DEVELOPERS CONTRIBUTION 0 0 0 0 25,000 0

75-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 140 1,411 0 0 500 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 140 1,411 0 0 25,500 0

RECREATION FEES

75-00-4775 PARK ORDINANCE DEDICATION 367,778 206,903 500,000 500,000 350,000 200,000

TOTAL RECREATION FEES 367,778 206,903 500,000 500,000 350,000 200,000

TRANSFERS

75-00-4900 TRANSFER IN 100,000 200,000 895,000 895,000 895,000 0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 100,000 200,000 895,000 895,000 895,000 0

TOTAL REVENUES 467,956 408,314 1,495,000 1,495,000 1,299,000 200,000

197



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

75 -PARK DEDICATION FUND

PARK DEDICATION FUND

CAPITAL OUTLAY

75-23-7420 PARKLAND ACQUISITION 0 2,000 0 0 75,000 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 2,000 0 0 75,000 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS

75-23-8202 BENBROOK RANCH EXPENSE 60,119 81,397 1,290,000 1,290,000 1,290,000 0

75-23-8204 PARK CONSTRUCTION - RESTRICTED 4,527 28,951 38,000 38,000 38,000 45,000

75-23-8208 LAKEWOOD PARK 0 0 0 0 0 300,000

75-23-8210 VETERAN'S PARK 0 0 205,000 205,000 100,000 240,000

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 64,646 110,348 1,533,000 1,533,000 1,428,000 585,000

TRANSFERS

75-23-9000 TRANSFER OUT 0 14,000 0 0 0 0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 0 14,000 0 0 0 0

TOTAL PARK DEDICATION FUND 64,646 126,348 1,533,000 1,533,000 1,503,000 585,000

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 64,646 126,348 1,533,000 1,533,000 1,503,000 585,000

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 403,310 281,966 (38,000) (38,000) (204,000) (385,000)

198



UTILITY  FUND 
CAPITAL  PROJECTS 

199



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Water Impact Fee Fund-25

Beginning Fund Balance (404,219) 1,476,385 3,260,025 3,105,675 3,105,675 5,635,199

Revenues 2,652,897 4,784,588 3,880,000 3,880,000 5,804,250 4,656,000

Expenditures

CIP PROJECTS 622,760 625,321 625,928 625,928 625,928 626,410

WATER IMPACT FEE 149,533 2,279,977 3,377,500 4,107,500 1,673,798 7,104,546

Total Expenditures 772,293 2,905,298 4,003,428 4,733,428 2,299,726 7,730,956

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 1,880,604 (250,000) (250,000) (250,000) (975,000)

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 (250,000) (975,000) (975,000) (975,000) (1,005,000)

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 (250,000) (975,000) (975,000) (975,000) (1,005,000)

Ending Fund Balance 1,476,385 3,105,675 2,161,597 1,277,247 5,635,199 1,555,243

Fund Summary:  The Water Impact Fee fund has been established in accordance with 
state law that allows a municipality to assess impact fees on development to pay for the 
offsite impacts of that development on the municipality's utility system.  The City 
periodically updates the capital improvements plan which is required by state law before 
a fee can be established. 

Fund Summary:  The Water Impact Fee fund has been established in accordance with 
state law that allows a municipality to assess impact fees on development to pay for the 
offsite impacts of that development on the municipality's utility system.  The City 
periodically updates the capital improvements plan which is required by state law before 
a fee can be established. 

200



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

25 -UTILITY PROJ WATER IMPACT

REVENUES

ADMINISTRATIVE

25-00-4085 WATER IMPACT FEES 2,652,677 4,778,682 3,880,000 3,880,000 5,800,000 4,656,000

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 2,652,677 4,778,682 3,880,000 3,880,000 5,800,000 4,656,000

MISCELLANEOUS

25-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 220 5,906 0 0 4,250 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 220 5,906 0 0 4,250 0

TOTAL REVENUES 2,652,897 4,784,588 3,880,000 3,880,000 5,804,250 4,656,000

201



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

25 -UTILITY PROJ WATER IMPACT

PRINCIPAL & INTEREST

INTEREST

25-01-9236 INTEREST $3.0M TAX NOTES 2012 39,760 34,321 25,928 25,928 25,928 17,410

TOTAL INTEREST 39,760 34,321 25,928 25,928 25,928 17,410

PRINCIPAL

25-01-9632 PRINCIPAL 3.0M TAX NOTES 2012 583,000 591,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 609,000

TOTAL PRINCIPAL 583,000 591,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 609,000

TOTAL PRINCIPAL & INTEREST 622,760 625,321 625,928 625,928 625,928 626,410

202



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

25 -UTILITY PROJ WATER IMPACT

WATER IMPACT FEE PROJECTS

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

25-31-5681 WATER MASTER PLAN 0 9,774 17,500 17,500 40,615 25,000

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 9,774 17,500 17,500 40,615 25,000

CAPITAL PROJECTS

25-31-8306 RONALD REAGAN 24" WATERLINE 0 1,223,761 2,150,000 2,150,000 710,000 1,500,000

25-31-8320 HERO WAY WATERLINE 0 0 600,000 600,000 80,000 325,000

25-31-8328 CRYSTAL FALL EST 58,157 648,744 0 0 0 0

25-31-8606 IMPACT FEE EXPENSE - WATER 0 55,725 0 0 0 0

25-31-8612 IMPACT FEE REFUND-SARITA VALLE 91,376 127,797 0 30,000 33,183 0

25-31-8624 SAN GABRIEL WATERLINE 24" 0 0 60,000 60,000 60,000 700,000

25-31-8625 REAGAN EST/GST/BOOSTER STATION 0 0 500,000 500,000 25,000 0

25-31-8626 GRAND MESA 8 / HIGH LONESOME 0 0 50,000 50,000 0 50,000

25-31-8628 CRESCENT DEVELOPMENT WATER 0 0 0 0 0 490,000

25-31-8629 NAMELESS VALLEY DEVELOPMENT 0 214,176 0 700,000 700,000 454,546

25-31-8631 PALMERA RIDGE WATER 0 0 0 0 0 60,000

25-31-8632 KAUFFMAN LOOP EST & PUMP STA 0 0 0 0 25,000 3,500,000

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 149,533 2,270,203 3,360,000 4,090,000 1,633,183 7,079,546

TRANSFERS

25-31-9000 TRANSFER OUT 0 250,000 975,000 975,000 975,000 1,005,000

TOTAL TRANSFERS 0 250,000 975,000 975,000 975,000 1,005,000

TOTAL WATER IMPACT FEE PROJECTS 149,533 2,529,977 5,291,392 5,082,500 2,648,798 8,109,546

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 772,293 3,155,298 5,291,392 5,708,428 3,274,726 8,735,956

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 1,880,604 1,629,290 (1,411,392) (1,828,428) 2,529,524 (4,079,956)

203



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Wastewater Impact Fee               

Fund-26

Beginning Fund Balance 921,185 1,953,010 1,710,837 3,222,832 3,222,832 4,943,832

Revenues 1,106,656 1,640,956 1,292,000 1,292,000 2,505,000 1,938,000

Expenditures

WASTEWATER IMPACT FEE 74,831 121,134 900,000 1,385,000 534,000 5,411,000

Total Expenditures 74,831 121,134 900,000 1,385,000 534,000 5,411,000

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 1,031,825 1,519,822 392,000 (93,000) 1,971,000 (3,473,000)

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 (250,000) (250,000) (250,000) (250,000) (1,025,000)

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 (250,000) (250,000) (250,000) (250,000) (1,025,000)

Ending Fund Balance 1,953,010 3,222,832 1,852,837 2,879,832 4,943,832 445,832

Fund Summary:  The Wastewater Impact Fee fund has been established in accordance 
with state law that allows a municipality to assess impact fees on development to pay for 
the offsite impacts of that development on the municipality's utility system.  The City 
periodically updates the capital improvements plan which is required by state law before 
a fee can be established. 

Fund Summary:  The Wastewater Impact Fee fund has been established in accordance 
with state law that allows a municipality to assess impact fees on development to pay for 
the offsite impacts of that development on the municipality's utility system.  The City 
periodically updates the capital improvements plan which is required by state law before 
a fee can be established. 

204



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

26 -UTILITY PROJ WW IMPACT

REVENUES

ADMINISTRATIVE

26-00-4070 WASTEWATER IMPACT FEES 1,105,839 1,634,590 1,292,000 1,292,000 2,500,000 1,938,000

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 1,105,839 1,634,590 1,292,000 1,292,000 2,500,000 1,938,000

MISCELLANEOUS

26-00-4436 DEVELOPERS CONTRIBUTION 0 0 0 0 0 0

26-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 817 6,366 0 0 5,000 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 817 6,366 0 0 5,000 0

TOTAL REVENUES 1,106,656 1,640,956 1,292,000 1,292,000 2,505,000 1,938,000

205



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

26 -UTILITY PROJ WW IMPACT

WASTEWATER CIF

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

26-01-5682 WASTEWATER MASTER PLAN 0 0 0 0 49,000 25,000

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 49,000 25,000

CAPITAL PROJECTS

26-01-8702 BRUSHY CREEK WW INTERCEPTOR 485 0 0 0 0 1,250,000

26-01-8703 COUNTY GLEN INTERCEPTOR 34,998 17,774 0 0 0 0

26-01-8705 KEY DEER OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS 39,348 0 0 0 0 0

26-01-8720 NAMELESS VALLEY DEVELOPMENT WW 0 103,360 0 485,000 485,000 484,500

26-01-8721 WEDEMEYER DEV AGR 0 0 750,000 750,000 0 3,000,000

26-01-8722 PALMERA RIDGE WW 0 0 150,000 150,000 0 150,000

26-01-8724 RANCHO SIENNA LIFT STATIONS 0 0 0 0 0 501,500

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 74,831 121,134 900,000 1,385,000 485,000 5,386,000

TRANSFERS

26-01-9000 TRANSFER OUT 0 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 1,025,000

TOTAL TRANSFERS 0 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 1,025,000

TOTAL WASTEWATER CIF 74,831 371,134 1,150,000 1,635,000 784,000 6,436,000

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 74,831 371,134 1,150,000 1,635,000 784,000 6,436,000

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 1,031,825 1,269,822 142,000 (343,000) 1,721,000 (4,498,000)

206



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

207



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Utility CIP-27

Beginning Fund Balance 2,895,132 466,789 (27) 0 0 0

Revenues 2,700 73 0 0 0 0

Expenditures

CIP - WATER 2,431,043 466,862 0 2,030,000 2,030,000 125,000

CIP - WASTEWATER 0 0 0 0 0 125,000

Total Expenditures 2,431,043 466,862 0 2,030,000 2,030,000 250,000

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) (2,428,343) (466,789) 0 (2,030,000) (2,030,000) (250,000)

Transfers In 0 0 0 2,030,000 2,030,000 250,000

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 0 0 2,030,000 2,030,000 250,000

Ending Fund Balance 466,789 0 (27) 0 0 0

Fund Summary:  The Utility CIP fund is used for the purpose of funding Utility Fund 
capital improvement projects with the use of debt proceeds.  In 2012, the City borrowed 
$3,000,000 for the reconstruction of the Crystal Falls Elevated Storage Tank and related 
facilities. 

Fund Summary:  The Utility CIP fund is used for the purpose of funding Utility Fund 
capital improvement projects with the use of debt proceeds.  In 2012, the City borrowed 
$3,000,000 for the construction of a new Crystal Falls Elevated Storage Tank and related 
facilities.  This fund is now used to account for capital projects funded by system 
revenues. 

208



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

27 -UTILITY CAP PROJECTS

REVENUES

ADMINISTRATIVE

27-00-4013 BOND PROCEEDS 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 0 0 0 0 0 0

MISCELLANEOUS

27-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 2,700 73 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 2,700 73 0 0 0 0

POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE

27-00-4680 TRANSFER FROM UTILITY FUND 0 0 0 0 1,030,000 250,000

TOTAL POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE 0 0 0 0 1,030,000 250,000

TRANSFERS

27-00-4900 TRANSFER IN SERIES 2015 CO'S 0 0 0 2,030,000 1,000,000 0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 0 0 0 2,030,000 1,000,000 0

TOTAL REVENUES 2,700 73 0 2,030,000 2,030,000 250,000

209



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

27 -UTILITY CAP PROJECTS

UTILITY DEVELOPMENT

27 -UTILITY CAP PROJECTS

CIP - WATER

CAPITAL PROJECTS

27-02-8614 CRYSTAL FALLS ELEVATED STORAGE 2,431,043 466,862 0 0 0 0

27-02-8621 LIBERTY HILL CONNECTION 0 0 0 505,000 505,000 0

27-02-8627 RIDGMAR LANDING WATERLINE 0 0 0 1,000,000 1,000,000 0

27-02-8633 OLD TOWN REDEV - WATER 0 0 0 0 0 125,000

27-02-8724 LIBERTY HILL WWTP IMPACT FEES 0 0 0 525,000 525,000 0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 2,431,043 466,862 0 2,030,000 2,030,000 125,000

TOTAL CIP - WATER 2,431,043 466,862 0 2,030,000 2,030,000 125,000

27 -UTILITY CAP PROJECTS

CIP - WASTEWATER

CAPITAL PROJECTS

27-03-8634 OLD TOWN REDEV - WASTEWATER 0 0 0 0 0 125,000

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 0 0 0 0 0 125,000

TOTAL CIP - WASTEWATER 0 0 0 0 0 125,000

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,431,043 466,862 0 2,030,000 2,030,000 250,000

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** (2,428,343) (466,789) 0 0 0 0

210



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

211



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

$9.2M 2007 Utility CO's-28

Beginning Fund Balance (51,595) 8 (51,594) 8 8 0

Revenues 785 0 0 0 0 0

Expenditures

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM 1,174 0 0 0 0 0

REGIONAL WASTEWATER SYSTEM 0 0 0 0 0 0

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 1,174 0 0 0 0 0

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) (389) 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers In 51,992 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 (8) 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 51,992 0 0 0 (8) 0

Ending Fund Balance 8 8 (51,594) 8 0 0

Fund Summary:  In 2007, the City borrowed $9,200,000 for water and wastewater 
projects - principally upfront costs relating to the formation of the Brushy Creek Regional 
Utility Authority.  In 2009, after the BCRUA was officially formed and was able to borrow 
funds from the Texas Water Development Board to design and construct the regional 
water treatment plant, the City was reimbursed for these upfront costs.  The funds were 
then applied to other City projects such as the 42" water main along Ronald Reagan 
Boulevard and the purchase of wastewater capacity in the the City of Cedar Park's North 
Brushy Creek Interceptor which allowed the City of Leander to join the Brushy Creek 
Regional Wastewater System. 

Fund Summary:  In 2007, the City borrowed $9,200,000 for water and wastewater 
projects - principally upfront costs relating to the formation of the Brushy Creek Regional 
Utility Authority.  In 2009, after the BCRUA was officially formed and was able to borrow 
funds from the Texas Water Development Board to design and construct the regional 
water treatment plant, the City was reimbursed for these upfront costs.  The funds were 
then applied to other City projects such as the 42" water main along Ronald Reagan 
Boulevard and the purchase of wastewater capacity in the City of Cedar Park's North 
Brushy Creek Interceptor which allowed the City of Leander to join the Brushy Creek 
Regional Wastewater System. 

212



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

28 -SERIES 2007 9.2M CO'S

REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS

28-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 785 0 0 0 0 0

28-00-4467 OTHER REVENUE 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 785 0 0 0 0 0

TRANSFERS

28-00-4900 TRANSFER IN 51,992 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 51,992 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL REVENUES 52,777 0 0 0 0 0

213



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

28 -SERIES 2007 9.2M CO'S

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM

CAPITAL PROJECTS

28-01-8305 42" BCRUA TRANSMISSION MAIN 1,174 0 0 0 0 0

28-01-8615 RAW WATER INTAKE CONTINGENCY 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 1,174 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM 1,174 0 0 0 0 0

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,174 0 0 0 0 0

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 51,604 0 0 0 0 0

214



INTERNAL 
SERVICE  FUNDS 

215



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Equipment Fund-13

Beginning Fund Balance 28,309 21,868 0 58 58 0

Revenues 2,034 2,069 0 0 0 0

Expenditures

ADMINISTRATION 8,475 23,879 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 8,475 23,879 0 0 0

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) (6,441) (21,810) 0 0 0 0

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 (58) 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 0 0 0 (58) 0

Ending Fund Balance 21,868 58 0 58 0 0

Fund Summary:  The Equipment Reserve fund was established as a means to plan for 
significant technology purchases that occur on a regular basis. 
Fund Summary:  The Equipment Reserve fund was established as a means to plan for 
significant technology purchases that occur on a regular basis.  The fund is now inactive. 

216



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

13 -EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND

REVENUES

SPECIAL FEES

13-00-4344 INTERNAL CHARGES 2,023 2,023 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SPECIAL FEES 2,023 2,023 0 0 0 0

MISCELLANEOUS

13-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 11 47 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 11 47 0 0 0 0

TRANSFERS

13-00-4900 TRANSFER IN 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL REVENUES 2,034 2,069 0 0 0 0

217



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

13 -EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND

ADMINISTRATIVE

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

13-01-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 0 10,779 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 0 10,779 0 0 0 0

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

13-01-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 8,475 13,100 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 8,475 13,100 0 0 0 0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 8,475 23,879 0 0 0 0

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,475 23,879 0 0 0 0

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** (6,441) (21,810) 0 0 0 0

218



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

219



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Vehicle Reserve Fund-14

Beginning Fund Balance 152,570 647,777 378,220 480,642 480,642 606,752

Revenues 659,615 325,793 702,060 702,060 702,660 800,818

Expenditures

PUBLIC WORKS 0 25,861 0 0 0 95,500

ENGINEERING 0 0 25,000 25,000 0 25,000

PARKS & RECREATION 0 47,190 0 0 0 25,000

UNIFORM SERVICES 141,892 144,115 200,000 200,000 216,550 70,000

CODE ENFORCEMENT 0 0 0 0 0 0

FIRE DEPARTMENT 0 625,762 645,000 645,000 710,000 0

BLDG INSEPCTIONS 22,516 0 0 0 0 25,000

Total Expenditures 164,408 842,928 870,000 870,000 926,550 240,500

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 495,207 (517,135) (167,940) (167,940) (223,890) 560,318

Transfers In 0 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000

Ending Fund Balance 647,777 480,642 560,280 662,702 606,752 1,517,070

Fund Summary:  The Vehicle Reserve Fund was established as a means to plan for the 
eventual vehicle replacement needs of the City's fleet.  The fund allows a more 
predictable budgetary process and allows the City to avoid using debt to purchase 
vehicles. 

Fund Summary:  The Vehicle Reserve Fund was established as a means to plan for the 
eventual vehicle replacement needs of the City's fleet.  The fund allows a more 
predictable budgetary process and allows the City to avoid using debt to purchase 
vehicles. 

220



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

14 -VEHICLE RESERVE FUND

REVENUES

ADMINISTRATIVE

14-00-4013 BOND PROCEEDS 565,000 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 565,000 0 0 0 0 0

SPECIAL FEES

14-00-4344 INTERNAL CHARGES 94,504 236,599 702,060 702,060 702,060 800,818

TOTAL SPECIAL FEES 94,504 236,599 702,060 702,060 702,060 800,818

MISCELLANEOUS

14-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 111 640 0 0 600 0

14-00-4479 PROPERTY DAMAGE CLAIMS 0 17,953 0 0 0 0

14-00-4489 SALE OF ASSETS 0 70,600 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 111 89,193 0 0 600 0

TRANSFERS

14-00-4900 TRANSFER IN 0 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000

TOTAL TRANSFERS 0 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000

TOTAL REVENUES 659,615 675,793 1,052,060 1,052,060 1,052,660 1,150,818

221



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

14 -VEHICLE RESERVE FUND

PUBLIC WORKS

CAPITAL OUTLAY

14-21-7000 VEHICLES 0 25,861 0 0 0 95,500

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 25,861 0 0 0 95,500

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 0 25,861 0 0 0 95,500

14 -VEHICLE RESERVE FUND

ENGINEERING

CAPITAL OUTLAY

14-22-7000 VEHICLES 0 0 25,000 25,000 0 25,000

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 25,000 25,000 0 25,000

TOTAL ENGINEERING 0 0 25,000 25,000 0 25,000

222



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

14 -VEHICLE RESERVE FUND

PARKS

CAPITAL OUTLAY

14-23-7000 VEHICLES 0 47,190 0 0 0 25,000

14-23-7100 MAJOR EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 47,190 0 0 0 25,000

TOTAL PARKS 0 47,190 0 0 0 25,000

14 -VEHICLE RESERVE FUND

UNIFORM SERVICES

CAPITAL OUTLAY

14-41-7000 VEHICLES 141,892 144,115 200,000 200,000 216,550 70,000

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 141,892 144,115 200,000 200,000 216,550 70,000

TOTAL UNIFORM SERVICES 141,892 144,115 200,000 200,000 216,550 70,000

223



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

14 -VEHICLE RESERVE FUND

FIRE DEPARTMENT

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

14-50-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 0 4,830 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 4,830 0 0 0 0

CAPITAL OUTLAY

14-50-7100 MAJOR EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0 0 0

14-50-7300 FIRE VEHICLES 0 620,932 645,000 645,000 710,000 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 620,932 645,000 645,000 710,000 0

TOTAL FIRE DEPARTMENT 0 625,762 645,000 645,000 710,000 0

224



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

14 -VEHICLE RESERVE FUND

BUILDING INSPECTIONS

CAPITAL OUTLAY

14-51-7000 VEHICLES 22,516 0 0 0 0 25,000

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 22,516 0 0 0 0 25,000

TOTAL BUILDING INSPECTIONS 22,516 0 0 0 0 25,000

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 164,408 842,928 870,000 870,000 926,550 240,500

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 495,208 (167,136) 182,060 182,060 126,110 910,318

225



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Utility Vehicle Reserve Fund-21

Beginning Fund Balance 55,043 40,334 26,272 26,315 26,315 51,949

Revenues 10,175 21,773 25,534 25,534 25,634 33,934

Expenditures

UTILITY BILLING 0 0 0 0 0 0

WATER MAINTENANCE 24,884 18,280 0 0 0 0

WASTEWATER MAINTENANCE 0 17,512 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 24,884 35,792 0 0 0

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) (14,709) (14,019) 0 25,534 25,634 33,934

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ending Fund Balance 40,334 26,315 51,806 51,849 51,949 85,883

Fund Summary:  The Utility Vehicle Reserve Fund was established to provide a means to 
plan for the eventual replacement Utility Fund vehicles.  By doing so, the City is able to 
avoid incurring debt to purchase vehicles. 

Fund Summary:  The Utility Vehicle Reserve Fund was established to provide a means to 
plan for the eventual replacement Utility Fund vehicles.  By doing so, the City is able to 
avoid incurring debt to purchase vehicles. 

226



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

21 -VEHICLE RESERVE FUND

REVENUES

SPECIAL FEES

21-00-4344 INTERNAL CHARGES 10,146 21,660 25,534 25,534 25,534 33,934

TOTAL SPECIAL FEES 10,146 21,660 25,534 25,534 25,534 33,934

MISCELLANEOUS

21-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 29 113 0 0 100 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 29 113 0 0 100 0

TRANSFERS

21-00-4900 TRANSFER IN 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL REVENUES 10,175 21,773 25,534 25,534 25,634 33,934

227



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

21 -VEHICLE RESERVE FUND

WATER

CAPITAL OUTLAY

21-02-7000 VEHICLES 24,884 18,280 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 24,884 18,280 0 0 0 0

TOTAL WATER 24,884 18,280 0 0 0 0

21 -VEHICLE RESERVE FUND

WASTEWATER

CAPITAL OUTLAY

21-03-7000 VEHICLES 0 17,512 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 17,512 0 0 0 0

TOTAL WASTEWATER 0 17,512 0 0 0 0

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 24,884 35,792 0 0 0 0

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** (14,709) (14,019) 25,534 25,534 25,634 33,934

228



SPECIAL 
REVENUE FUNDS 

229



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Bryson Farmstead-03

Beginning Fund Balance 25,086 22,637 685,248 22,694 22,694 22,734

Revenues 53 57 0 0 40 0

Expenditures

ADMINISTRATION 302,502 0 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 302,502 0 0 0 0 0

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) (302,449) 57 0 0 40 0

Transfers In 300,000 0 0 0 0 662,566

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 300,000 0 0 0 0 662,566

Ending Fund Balance 22,637 22,694 685,248 22,694 22,734 685,300

Fund Summary:  The Bryson Farmstead Fund was established as part of the 
Memorandum of Understanding that was executed between the City of Leander, the 
Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (CTRMA) and TxDOT.  The purpose of the MOU 
was to establish conditions under which the CTRMA could extend the 183A tollway 
project northward.  The project had been on hold when the Bryson Farmstead property 
was discovered to be an historical property.  The CTRMA agreed to place $1,000,000 in 
escrow to be used by the City of Leander for historical preservation and related activities 
for the property. 

Fund Summary:  The Bryson Farmstead Fund was established as part of the 
Memorandum of Understanding that was executed between the City of Leander, the 
Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (CTRMA) and TxDOT.  The purpose of the MOU 
was to establish conditions under which the CTRMA could extend the 183A tollway 
project northward.  The project had been on hold when the Bryson Farmstead property 
was discovered to be an historical property.  The CTRMA agreed to place $1,000,000 in 
escrow to be used by the City of Leander for historical preservation and related activities 
for the property.  In 2016, the amount remaining in escrow will be transferred from the 
General Fund to this fund. 

230



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

03 -BRYSON FARMSTEAD HISTORIC

REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS

03-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 53 57 0 0 40 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 53 57 0 0 40 0

TRANSFERS

03-00-4900 TRANSFER IN 300,000 0 0 0 0 662,566

TOTAL TRANSFERS 300,000 0 0 0 0 662,566

TOTAL REVENUES 300,053 57 0 0 40 662,566

231



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

03 -BRYSON FARMSTEAD HISTORIC

ADMINISTRATIVE

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

03-01-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 2,502 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 2,502 0 0 0 0 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS

03-01-8335 LEANDER T 300,000 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 300,000 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 302,502 0 0 0 0 0

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 302,502 0 0 0 0 0

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** (2,449) 57 0 0 40 662,566

232



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

233



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Leander Clean Up Fund-04

Beginning Fund Balance 0 2,595 2,595 (3,301) (3,301) (3,301)

Revenues 11,280 10,164 10,690 10,690 11,516 12,250

Expenditures

ADMINISTRATION 8,685 16,060 10,690 10,690 11,516 12,250

Total Expenditures 8,685 16,060 10,690 10,690 11,516 12,250

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 2,595 (5,896) 0 0 0 0

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ending Fund Balance 2,595 (3,301) 2,595 (3,301) (3,301) (3,301)

Fund Summary:  The Leander Clean Up fund was established to provide an additional 
source of funds for the City's annual Spring Clean Up day which is typically held in May of 
each year.  The revenue comes from a $1 assessment on residential garbage bills one 
time a year in March. 

Fund Summary:  The Leander Clean Up fund was established to provide an additional 
source of funds for the City's annual Spring Clean Up day which is typically held in May of 
each year.  The revenue comes from a $1 assessment on residential garbage bills one 
time a year in March. 

234



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

04 -LEANDER CLEAN UP

REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS

04-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 0 5 0 0 0 0

04-00-4453 LEANDER CLEAN UP REVENUE 11,279 10,159 10,690 10,690 11,516 12,250

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 11,280 10,164 10,690 10,690 11,516 12,250

TOTAL REVENUES 11,280 10,164 10,690 10,690 11,516 12,250

04 -LEANDER CLEAN UP

ADMINISTRATIVE

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

04-01-6308 LEANDER CLEAN UP 8,685 16,060 10,690 10,690 11,516 12,250

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 8,685 16,060 10,690 10,690 11,516 12,250

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 8,685 16,060 10,690 10,690 11,516 12,250

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,685 16,060 10,690 10,690 11,516 12,250

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 2,594 (5,895) 0 0 0 0

235



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Public Arts Fund-10

Beginning Fund Balance 5,131 3,208 800 1,225 1,225 24,185

Revenues 754 360 300 23,055 23,060 300

Expenditures

ADMINISTRATION 2,677 2,343 1,100 23,855 100 300

Total Expenditures 2,677 2,343 1,100 23,855 100 300

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) (1,923) (1,983) (800) (800) 22,960 0

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 25,000

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 0 0 0 0 25,000

Ending Fund Balance 3,208 1,225 0 425 24,185 49,185

Fund Summary:  The Public Arts fund was established by the City Council to eventually be 
a sustainable and significant source of funds to promote the arts in Leander.  By 
ordinance, the City contributes 1% of the cost of certain capital projects to the fund.  The 
Council has appointed an advisory commission that makes recommendations regarding 
promoting the arts in Leander. 

Fund Summary:  The Public Arts fund was established by the City Council to eventually be 
a sustainable and significant source of funds to promote the arts in Leander.  By 
ordinance, the City contributes 1% of the cost of certain capital projects to the fund.  The 
Council has appointed an advisory commission that makes recommendations regarding 
promoting the arts in Leander.  In 2016, $25,000 is anticipated as a result of construction 
of Fire Station No. 4. 

236



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

10 -PUBLIC ARTS FUND

REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS

10-00-4435 DONATIONS PUBLIC ARTS FUND 752 354 300 300 300 300

10-00-4436 DONATIONS - JUNIOR ARTISAN WS 0 0 0 0 0 0

10-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 2 6 0 0 5 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 754 360 300 300 305 300

TRANSFERS

10-00-4900 TRANSFER IN 0 0 0 22,755 22,755 25,000

TOTAL TRANSFERS 0 0 0 22,755 22,755 25,000

TOTAL REVENUES 754 360 600 23,055 23,060 25,300

237



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

10 -PUBLIC ARTS FUND

ADMINISTRATIVE

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

10-01-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 14 93 100 12,855 100 300

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 14 93 100 12,855 100 300

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

10-01-6307 JUNIOR ARTISAN WORKSHOP 0 0 0 0 0 0

10-01-6314 CONCERTS & EVENTS 2,663 2,250 1,000 11,000 0 0

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 2,663 2,250 1,000 11,000 0 0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 2,677 2,343 1,100 23,855 100 300

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,677 2,343 1,100 23,855 100 300

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** (1,923) (1,983) (500) (800) 22,960 25,000

238



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

239



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Hotel-Motel Tax-11

Beginning Fund Balance 472 472 472 473 473 473

Revenues 0 1 0 0 0 0

Expenditures

ADMINISTRATION 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 0

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 0 1 0 0 0 0

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ending Fund Balance 472 473 472 473 473 473

Fund Summary:  The City's hotel-motel occupancy tax ordinance mirrors the state's 
occupancy tax and originally included establishments in the City's ETJ.  During that time a 
small amount of revenue was collected from one establishment that was within the City's 
ETJ.  The ordinance has since been amended to only apply to businesses within the city 
limits. 

Fund Summary:  The City's hotel-motel occupancy tax ordinance mirrors the state's 
occupancy tax and originally included establishments in the City's ETJ.  During that time a 
small amount of revenue was collected from one establishment that was within the City's 
ETJ.  The ordinance has since been amended to only apply to businesses within the city 
limits. 

240



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

11 -HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS

11-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 0 1 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 0 1 0 0 0 0

TAXES

11-00-4860 HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL TAXES 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL REVENUES 0 1 0 0 0 0

11 -HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

ADMINISTRATIVE

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 0 0 0 0 0 0

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 0 1 0 0 0 0

241



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Park Grants-41

Beginning Fund Balance 0 11 14,017 14,018 14,018 24

Revenues 11 7 236,000 636,000 56,006 400,000

Expenditures

CIP PARK GRANTS 0 0 272,000 672,000 70,000 400,000

Total Expenditures 0 0 272,000 672,000 70,000 400,000

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 11 7 (36,000) (36,000) (13,994) 0

Transfers In 0 14,000 22,000 22,000 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 14,000 22,000 22,000 0 0

Ending Fund Balance 11 14,018 17 18 24 24

Fund Summary:  The Parks Grant fund is used to account for grants that the City's Park 
and Recreation department may be awarded.  The FY 2013-14 budget reflects a $56,000 
grant (and $14,000 local match) from the Texas Parks & Wildlife Department for 
construction of a pedestrian trail. 

Fund Summary:  The Parks Grant fund is used to account for grants that the City's Park 
and Recreation department may be awarded.  In 2015, the City received a $400,000 
grant from the Texas Parks & Wildlife Department for Lakewood Park.  

242



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

41 -G/F CIP PARK GRANTS

REVENUES

SPECIAL FEES

41-00-4382 TEXAS PARKS / WILDLIFE GRANTS 0 0 56,000 456,000 56,000 400,000

TOTAL SPECIAL FEES 0 0 56,000 456,000 56,000 400,000

MISCELLANEOUS

41-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 11 7 0 0 6 0

41-00-4498 WMS COUNTY - CDBG 0 0 180,000 180,000 0 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 11 7 180,000 180,000 6 0

TRANSFERS

41-00-4900 TRANSFER IN 0 14,000 22,000 22,000 0 0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 0 14,000 22,000 22,000 0 0

TOTAL REVENUES 11 14,007 258,000 658,000 56,006 400,000

243



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

41 -G/F CIP PARK GRANTS

G/F CAPITAL PROJECTS

CAPITAL PROJECTS

41-01-8013 BAGDAD SIDEWALK 0 0 202,000 202,000 0 0

41-01-8202 BENBROOK RANCH REGIONAL PARK 0 0 70,000 70,000 70,000 0

41-01-8208 LAKEWOOD PARK 0 0 0 400,000 0 400,000

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 0 0 272,000 672,000 70,000 400,000

TOTAL G/F CAPITAL PROJECTS 0 0 272,000 672,000 70,000 400,000

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 272,000 672,000 70,000 400,000

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 11 14,007 (14,000) (14,000) (13,994) 0

244



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

245



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Police Grants-70

Beginning Fund Balance 35 2,205 0 2,211 2,211 2,211

Revenues 11,805 6 0 0 50,000 49,000

Expenditures

CID/HRT INV PROGRAM 0 0 0 0 0 0

WILLIAMSON COUNTY GRANT 9,635 0 0 0 0 0

VICTIM SERVICES GRANT 0 0 0 0 50,000 49,000

Total Expenditures 9,635 0 0 0 50,000 49,000

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 2,170 6 0 0 0 0

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ending Fund Balance 2,205 2,211 0 2,211 2,211 2,211

Fund Summary:  The Police Grants fund has been established to account for various 
grants that the Police Department receives. 

Fund Summary:  The Police Grants fund has been established to account for various 
grants that the Police Department receives.  In 2015, the Police Department received a 
state grant for partial funding for a new  position - Victims Coordinator.  It is anticipated 
that the grant will be renewed in 2016. 

246



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

70 -POLICE DEPT.  GRANTS

REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS

70-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 1 6 0 0 0 0

70-00-4489 SALE OF ASSETS 2,209 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 2,210 6 0 0 0 0

POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE

70-00-4615 VICTIMS SERVICES GRANT 0 0 0 0 50,000 49,000

70-00-4690 WMS COUNTY GRANT 9,595 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE 9,595 0 0 0 50,000 49,000

TOTAL REVENUES 11,805 6 0 0 50,000 49,000

247



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

70 -POLICE DEPT.  GRANTS

WMS COUNTY GRANT FY10

GRANTS

70-02-6005 WILLIAMSON COUNTY GRANT 9,635 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL GRANTS 9,635 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL WMS COUNTY GRANT FY10 9,635 0 0 0 0 0

70 -POLICE DEPT.  GRANTS

VICTIMS SERVICES GRANT

PERSONNEL

70-03-5120 OPERATIONS 0 0 0 0 48,800 35,900

70-03-5180 FICA 0 0 0 0 0 2,220

70-03-5182 HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE 0 0 0 0 0 6,065

70-03-5186 MDC 0 0 0 0 0 519

70-03-5188 TMRS 0 0 0 0 0 4,296

TOTAL PERSONNEL 0 0 0 0 48,800 49,000

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

70-03-5215 COMPUTER HARDWARE 0 0 0 0 1,200 0

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0 1,200 0

TOTAL VICTIMS SERVICES GRANT 0 0 0 0 50,000 49,000

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,635 0 0 0 50,000 49,000

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 2,170 6 0 0 0 0

248



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

249



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Court Security-71

Beginning Fund Balance 23,603 28,665 31,440 38,658 38,658 54,608

Revenues 11,192 13,400 10,000 10,000 25,950 24,400

Expenditures

MUNICIPAL COURT 6,130 3,407 10,000 10,000 10,000 47,885

Total Expenditures 6,130 3,407 10,000 10,000 10,000 47,885

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 5,062 9,993 0 0 15,950 (23,485)

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ending Fund Balance 28,665 38,658 31,440 38,658 54,608 31,123

Fund Summary:  The Court Security Fee fund was established to account for fees 
assessed on certain citations filed in municipal court.  The fee is restricted by state law to 
certain purposes - primarily for expenditures relating to providing security for court 
personnel. 

Fund Summary:  The Court Security Fee fund was established to account for fees 
assessed on certain citations filed in municipal court.  The fee is restricted by state law to 
certain purposes - primarily for expenditures relating to providing security for court 
personnel. 

250



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

71 -COURT SECURITY FUND

REVENUES

FINES

71-00-4110 CHILD SAFETY FEES 0 0 0 0 13,500 13,500

71-00-4112 SPECIAL EXPENSE FEES 0 0 0 0 900 900

71-00-4130 COURT SECURITY FEES 11,178 13,319 10,000 10,000 11,500 10,000

TOTAL FINES 11,178 13,319 10,000 10,000 25,900 24,400

MISCELLANEOUS

71-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 13 81 0 0 50 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 13 81 0 0 50 0

TOTAL REVENUES 11,192 13,400 10,000 10,000 25,950 24,400

251



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

71 -COURT SECURITY FUND

COURT SECURITY FUND

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

71-11-6215 SECURITY FUND - COURT 6,130 3,407 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

71-11-6216 CHILD SAFETY FEES 0 0 0 0 0 27,585

71-11-6218 SPECIAL EXPENSE FEES 0 0 0 0 0 10,300

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 6,130 3,407 10,000 10,000 10,000 47,885

TOTAL COURT SECURITY FUND 6,130 3,407 10,000 10,000 10,000 47,885

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,130 3,407 10,000 10,000 10,000 47,885

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 5,061 9,992 0 0 15,950 (23,485)

252



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

253



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Court Technology-72

Beginning Fund Balance 17,697 24,555 23,426 22,325 22,325 20,450

Revenues 14,912 17,814 16,900 16,900 15,025 16,500

Expenditures

MUNICIPAL COURT 8,054 20,044 16,900 16,900 16,900 16,500

Total Expenditures 8,054 20,044 16,900 16,900 16,900 16,500

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 6,858 (2,230) 0 0 (1,875) 0

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ending Fund Balance 24,555 22,325 23,426 22,325 20,450 20,450

Fund Summary:  The Court Technology Fee fund was established to account for fees 
assessed on certain citations filed in municipal court.  The fee is restricted by state law to 
certain purposes - primarily for technology related expenditures that are essential and/or 
contribute to improving the efficiency of the court system. 

Fund Summary:  The Court Technology Fee fund was established to account for fees 
assessed on certain citations filed in municipal court.  The fee is restricted by state law to 
certain purposes - primarily for technology related expenditures that are essential and/or 
contribute to improving the efficiency of the court system. 

254



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

72 -COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND

REVENUES

FINES

72-00-4135 COURT TECHNOLOGY FEES 14,905 17,758 16,900 16,900 15,000 16,500

TOTAL FINES 14,905 17,758 16,900 16,900 15,000 16,500

MISCELLANEOUS

72-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 8 55 0 0 25 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 8 55 0 0 25 0

TOTAL REVENUES 14,912 17,814 16,900 16,900 15,025 16,500

255



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

72 -COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND

COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

72-11-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 0 10,650 0 0 5,500 5,500

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 0 10,650 0 0 5,500 5,500

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

72-11-5626 EQUIPMENT LEASES 0 0 635 635 635 635

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 0 635 635 635 635

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

72-11-6219 TECHNOLOGY FUND - COURT 8,054 9,394 16,265 16,265 10,765 10,365

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 8,054 9,394 16,265 16,265 10,765 10,365

TOTAL COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND 8,054 20,044 16,900 16,900 16,900 16,500

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,054 20,044 16,900 16,900 16,900 16,500

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 6,858 (2,230) 0 0 (1,875) 0

256



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

257



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Parks & Recreation Special 

Revenue-73

Beginning Fund Balance 0 6,062 7,087 16,356 16,356 14,881

Revenues 28,406 29,147 30,750 30,750 30,525 30,750

Expenditures

PARKS & RECREATION 22,344 18,853 30,750 30,750 32,000 30,750

Total Expenditures 22,344 18,853 30,750 30,750 32,000 30,750

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 6,062 10,294 0 0 (1,475) 0

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ending Fund Balance 6,062 16,356 7,087 16,356 14,881 14,881

Fund Summary:  The Park Special Revenue fund was established to serve as a quasi-
enterprise fund for recreation programming.   Participant fees for certain recreation 
programs are put back into the fund to pay for the cost of the programs and generate 
income for other programs. 

Fund Summary:  The Parks & Recreation Special Revenue fund was established to serve 
as a quasi-enterprise fund for recreation programming.   Participant fees for certain 
recreation programs are put back into the fund to pay for the cost of the programs and 
generate income for other programs. 

258



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

73 -PARKS SPECIAL REVENUE

REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS

73-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 2 32 0 0 25 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 2 32 0 0 25 0

RECREATION FEES

73-00-4720 CONCESSIONS/VENDING MACHINE 577 170 750 750 500 750

73-00-4765 MASON HOUSE RENTALS 1,350 4,450 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

73-00-4772 RECREATION PROGRAMS 26,476 24,495 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000

TOTAL RECREATION FEES 28,403 29,115 30,750 30,750 30,500 30,750

TOTAL REVENUES 28,406 29,147 30,750 30,750 30,525 30,750

259



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

73 -PARKS SPECIAL REVENUE

PARK SPECIAL REVENUE

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

73-23-5221 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 2,223 619 2,750 2,750 2,750 8,850

73-23-5252 SOFTWARE 0 0 0 0 2,500 0

73-23-5300 CONCESSIONS 140 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 2,363 619 2,750 2,750 5,250 8,850

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

73-23-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 0 0 0 0 1,750 3,000

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 0 0 0 0 1,750 3,000

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

73-23-5600 CONTRACT LABOR 19,981 18,234 28,000 28,000 25,000 18,900

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 19,981 18,234 28,000 28,000 25,000 18,900

TOTAL PARK SPECIAL REVENUE 22,344 18,853 30,750 30,750 32,000 30,750

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 22,344 18,853 30,750 30,750 32,000 30,750

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 6,062 10,294 0 0 (1,475) 0

260



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

261



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Fire Rescue Revenue-74

Beginning Fund Balance 27,629 41,852 21,432 24,633 24,633 4,658

Revenues 16,652 10,161 15,000 15,000 15,025 15,000

Expenditures

FIRE REVENUE RESCUE 2,429 27,380 35,000 35,000 35,000 15,000

Total Expenditures 2,429 27,380 35,000 35,000 35,000 15,000

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 14,223 (17,219) (20,000) (20,000) (19,975) 0

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ending Fund Balance 41,852 24,633 1,432 4,633 4,658 4,658

Fund Summary:  The City Council by ordinance established the Fire Rescue Revenue fund 
to account for funds collected by the Fire Department for certain incidents for which an 
insurance claim can be filed.  Use of the funds collected is restricted by ordinance to Fire 
Department equipment, supplies, and training. 

Fund Summary:  The City Council by ordinance established the Fire Rescue Revenue fund 
to account for funds collected by the Fire Department for certain incidents for which an 
insurance claim can be filed.  Use of the funds collected is restricted by ordinance to Fire 
Department equipment, supplies, and training. 

262



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

74 -FIRE RESCUE REVENUE FUND

REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS

74-00-4444 REVENUE RESCUE 16,635 10,067 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000

74-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 17 94 0 0 25 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 16,652 10,161 15,000 15,000 15,025 15,000

TOTAL REVENUES 16,652 10,161 15,000 15,000 15,025 15,000

263



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

74 -FIRE RESCUE REVENUE FUND

REVENUE RESCUE FUND

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

74-50-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 193 50 20,000 20,000 20,000 7,500

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 193 50 20,000 20,000 20,000 7,500

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

74-50-6380 TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,236 27,330 15,000 15,000 15,000 7,500

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 2,236 27,330 15,000 15,000 15,000 7,500

CAPITAL OUTLAY

74-50-7300 FIRE VEHICLES 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL REVENUE RESCUE FUND 2,429 27,380 35,000 35,000 35,000 15,000

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,429 27,380 35,000 35,000 35,000 15,000

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 14,223 (17,219) (20,000) (20,000) (19,975) 0

264



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

265



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Police STEP-76

Beginning Fund Balance 34,753 86,432 174,372 163,350 163,350 185,475

Revenues 98,477 106,136 105,000 105,000 68,125 105,000

Expenditures

ADMINISTRATION 46,798 29,218 50,000 50,000 46,000 59,540

Total Expenditures 46,798 29,218 50,000 50,000 46,000 59,540

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 51,679 76,918 55,000 55,000 22,125 45,460

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ending Fund Balance 86,432 163,350 229,372 218,350 185,475 230,935

Fund Summary:  The Step fund was established to provide a funding mechanism to allow 
more proactive traffic enforcement in the community as well as creating the ability for 
the Police Department to compete for traffic enforcement grants that have a local match 
requirement. 

Fund Summary:  The Step fund was established to provide a funding mechanism to allow 
more proactive traffic enforcement in the community as well as creating the ability for 
the Police Department to compete for traffic enforcement grants that have a local match 
requirement. 

266



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

76 -STEP FUND

REVENUES

FINES

76-00-4155 MUNICIPAL COURT FINES 98,451 105,868 105,000 105,000 65,000 75,000

TOTAL FINES 98,451 105,868 105,000 105,000 65,000 75,000

MISCELLANEOUS

76-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 26 269 0 0 125 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 26 269 0 0 125 0

POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE

76-00-4670 STEP REVENUE (GRANT) 0 0 0 0 3,000 0

TOTAL POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE 0 0 0 0 3,000 0

TRANSFERS

76-00-4900 TRANSFER IN 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL REVENUES 98,477 106,136 105,000 105,000 68,125 75,000

267



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

76 -STEP FUND

ADMINISTRATIVE

PERSONNEL

76-01-5140 OVERTIME 19,661 20,458 25,000 25,000 20,000 25,000

TOTAL PERSONNEL 19,661 20,458 25,000 25,000 20,000 25,000

SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT

76-01-5217 MINOR EQUIPMENT 26,137 4,440 20,500 20,500 20,500 29,040

TOTAL SUPPLIES/MINOR EQUIPMENT 26,137 4,440 20,500 20,500 20,500 29,040

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

76-01-5485 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 1,000 4,320 4,500 4,500 5,500 5,500

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 1,000 4,320 4,500 4,500 5,500 5,500

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 46,798 29,218 50,000 50,000 46,000 59,540

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 46,798 29,218 50,000 50,000 46,000 59,540

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 51,678 76,919 55,000 55,000 22,125 15,460

268



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

269



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Police Forfeiture-77

Beginning Fund Balance 3,516 2,968 0 75 75 1,473

Revenues 2 7 0 0 1,398 0

Expenditures

POLICE FORFEITURE 550 2,900 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 550 2,900 0 0 0 0

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) (548) (2,893) 0 0 1,398 0

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ending Fund Balance 2,968 75 0 75 1,473 1,473

Fund Summary:  State law requires that certain funds or assets forfeited to the 
municipality after adjudiction by a court must be used for law enforcement purposes. 
Fund Summary:  State law requires that certain funds or assets forfeited to the 
municipality after adjudiction by a court must be used for law enforcement purposes. 

270



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

77 -POLICE FORFEITURE FUND

REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS

77-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 2 7 0 0 0 0

77-00-4483 ASSET FORFEITURE 0 0 0 0 1,398 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 2 7 0 0 1,398 0

TOTAL REVENUES 2 7 0 0 1,398 0

77 -POLICE FORFEITURE FUND

POLICE FORFEITURE

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

77-40-6210 POLICE FORFEITURE EXPENSE 550 2,900 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 550 2,900 0 0 0 0

TOTAL POLICE FORFEITURE 550 2,900 0 0 0 0

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 550 2,900 0 0 0 0

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** (548) (2,893) 0 0 1,398 0

271



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Police Special Revenue-78

Beginning Fund Balance 22,110 37,004 40,084 49,666 49,666 57,716

Revenues 16,119 18,475 12,000 12,000 20,050 20,000

Expenditures

POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE 1,225 5,813 12,000 12,000 12,000 20,000

Total Expenditures 1,225 5,813 12,000 12,000 12,000 20,000

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 14,894 12,662 0 0 8,050 0

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ending Fund Balance 37,004 49,666 40,084 49,666 57,716 57,716

Fund Summary:  The City Council established the fund by ordinance to account for the 
collection of alarm system permitting fees.  Use of the funds is restricted to expenditures 
relating to the operation of the alarm permitting program. 

Fund Summary:  The City Council established the fund by ordinance to account for the 
collection of alarm system permitting fees.  Use of the funds is restricted to expenditures 
relating to the operation of the alarm permitting program. 

272



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

78 -POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE

REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS

78-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 14 100 0 0 50 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 14 100 0 0 50 0

PERMITS & LICENSES

78-00-4510 ALARM FEES REVENUE 16,105 18,375 12,000 12,000 20,000 20,000

TOTAL PERMITS & LICENSES 16,105 18,375 12,000 12,000 20,000 20,000

TOTAL REVENUES 16,119 18,475 12,000 12,000 20,050 20,000

78 -POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE

POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE F

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

78-40-6301 FALSE ALARM PROGRAM 1,225 5,813 12,000 12,000 12,000 20,000

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 1,225 5,813 12,000 12,000 12,000 20,000

TOTAL POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE 1,225 5,813 12,000 12,000 12,000 20,000

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,225 5,813 12,000 12,000 12,000 20,000

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 14,893 12,662 0 0 8,050 0

273



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Tax Reinvestment Zone-79

Beginning Fund Balance 236,917 (5,516) 144 (11,219) (11,219) (18,364)

Revenues 186,903 192,984 251,800 251,800 191,605 235,710

Expenditures

ADMINISTRATION 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 0

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 186,903 192,984 251,800 251,800 191,605 235,710

Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers Out (429,336) (198,687) (231,250) (231,250) (198,750) (87,000)

Net Transfers In / (Out) (429,336) (198,687) (231,250) (231,250) (198,750) (87,000)

Ending Fund Balance (5,516) (11,219) 20,694 9,331 (18,364) 130,346

Fund Summary:  The Tax Reinvestment Zone No. 1 was created by the City Council in 
2006.  The district has a separate board of directors who are charged with implementing 
the Financing Plan that accompanied creation of the zone.  Both the City and Williamson 
County contribute 50% of their respective tax collections on the "incremental" value of 
property within the district to the TIRZ fund. 

Fund Summary:  The Tax Reinvestment Zone No. 1 was created by the City Council in 
2006.  The district has a separate board of directors who are charged with implementing 
the Financing Plan that accompanied creation of the zone.  Both the City and Williamson 
County contribute 50% of their respective tax collections on the "incremental" value of 
property within the district to the TIRZ fund. 

274



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

79 -TIRZ #1

REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS

79-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 190 25 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 190 25 0 0 0 0

TAXES

79-00-4838 CURRENT TAX REVENUE 110,945 105,726 145,000 145,000 113,157 138,414

79-00-4850 DELINQUENT PROPERTY TAX 0 8,804 0 0 0 0

79-00-4890 TAX REVENUE - COUNTY 75,768 78,430 106,800 106,800 78,448 97,296

TOTAL TAXES 186,712 192,959 251,800 251,800 191,605 235,710

TOTAL REVENUES 186,903 192,984 251,800 251,800 191,605 235,710

275



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

79 -TIRZ #1

TIRZ #1

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

79-01-5744 CRESCENT PROPERTY PAYMENT ACCT 0 0 29,000 29,000 0 6,000

79-01-5745 OAK CREEK PID PAYMENT ACCT 0 0 0 0 0 10,800

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 0 29,000 29,000 0 16,800

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

79-01-6202 TRANSFER TO CIP 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 0 0 0 0 0 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS

79-01-8335 LEANDER T 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 0 0 0 0 0 0

TRANSFERS

79-01-9000 TRANSFER OUT 420,000 189,200 189,200 189,200 189,200 59,200

79-01-9002 TRANSFER OUT-LEANDER DEV AUTH 9,336 9,487 13,050 13,050 9,550 11,000

TOTAL TRANSFERS 429,336 198,687 202,250 202,250 198,750 70,200

TOTAL TIRZ #1 429,336 198,687 231,250 231,250 198,750 87,000

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 429,336 198,687 231,250 231,250 198,750 87,000

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** (242,433) (5,703) 20,550 20,550 (7,145) 148,710

276



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

277



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Leander Development Authority-

96

Beginning Fund Balance 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 0

Expenditures

ADMINISTRATION 9,336 9,487 13,050 13,050 9,550 32,800

Total Expenditures 9,336 9,487 13,050 13,050 9,550 32,800

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) (9,336) (9,487) (13,050) (13,050) (9,550) (32,800)

Transfers In 9,336 9,487 13,050 13,050 9,550 32,800

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 9,336 9,487 13,050 13,050 9,550 32,800

Ending Fund Balance 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fund Summary:  The Leander Development Authority (LDA) was created by the City 
Council at the same time as the Tax Reinvestment Zone No. 1.  The LDA acts as the 
"contracting arm" for the TIRZ district. 

Fund Summary:  The Leander Development Authority (LDA) was created by the City 
Council at the same time as the Tax Reinvestment Zone No. 1.  The LDA acts as the 
"contracting arm" for the TIRZ district. 

278



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

96 -LEANDER DEVELOPMENT AUTH.

REVENUES

TRANSFERS

96-00-4900 TRANSFER IN 9,336 9,487 13,050 13,050 9,550 32,800

TOTAL TRANSFERS 9,336 9,487 13,050 13,050 9,550 32,800

TOTAL REVENUES 9,336 9,487 13,050 13,050 9,550 32,800

96 -LEANDER DEVELOPMENT AUTH.

LEANDER GOVERNMENT AUTH

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

96-01-5741 RB270 PARTNERSHIP DEV AGR 4,668 4,668 6,525 6,525 4,788 5,500

96-01-5742 VILLAGE @ LEANDER ST DEV AGR 4,668 4,819 6,525 6,525 4,762 5,500

96-01-5744 CRESCENT PAYMENT ACCOUNT 0 0 0 0 0 11,000

96-01-5745 OAK CREEK PID 0 0 0 0 0 10,800

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 9,336 9,487 13,050 13,050 9,550 32,800

TOTAL LEANDER GOVERNMENT AUTH 9,336 9,487 13,050 13,050 9,550 32,800

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,336 9,487 13,050 13,050 9,550 32,800

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 0 0 0 0 0 0

279



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

280



DEBT 
SERVICE  FUNDS 

281



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Interest & Sinking Fund-80

Beginning Fund Balance 452,414 604,817 829,728 844,477 844,477 1,280,662

Revenues 4,396,268 4,946,279 5,407,629 5,407,629 8,781,000 6,895,000

Expenditures

DEBT SERVICE 4,243,865 4,795,330 5,495,000 5,495,000 8,432,186 6,981,720

Total Expenditures 4,243,865 4,795,330 5,495,000 5,495,000 8,432,186 6,981,720

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) 152,403 150,949 (87,371) (87,371) 348,814 (86,720)

Transfers In 0 88,711 87,371 87,371 87,371 86,720

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 0 88,711 87,371 87,371 87,371 86,720

Ending Fund Balance 604,817 844,477 829,728 844,477 1,280,662 1,280,662

Fund Summary:  The Interest & Sinking fund is legally required to account for the portion 
of property taxes collected by the City to pay its debt obligations.  Each year, the City 
Council adopts a tax rate on all property within the city limits.  However, the tax rate has 
two components - an Maintenance & Operations rate which supports the General Fund; 
and an Interest & Sinking rate which goes to this fund to be available to pay the City's 
debt. 

Fund Summary:  The Interest & Sinking fund is legally required to account for the portion 
of property taxes collected by the City to pay its debt obligations.  Each year, the City 
Council adopts a tax rate on all property within the city limits.  However, the tax rate has 
two components - a Maintenance & Operations rate which supports the General Fund; 
and an Interest & Sinking rate which goes to this fund to be available to pay the City's 
debt. 

282



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

80 -GENERAL I&S FUND

REVENUES

ADMINISTRATIVE

80-00-4013 BOND PROCEEDS 0 0 0 0 2,955,000 0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 0 0 0 0 2,955,000 0

MISCELLANEOUS

80-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 2,700 1,531 629 629 1,000 0

80-00-4467 OTHER REVENUE 0 0 0 0 0 0

80-00-4475 PREMIUM ON BOND ISSUANCE 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 2,700 1,531 629 629 1,000 0

TAXES

80-00-4838 CURRENT TAX REVENUE 4,310,501 4,913,314 5,342,000 5,342,000 5,750,000 6,825,000

80-00-4852 DELINQUENT TAX REVENUE 43,210 8,139 40,000 40,000 50,000 45,000

80-00-4870 PENALTY & INTEREST 39,856 23,294 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000

TOTAL TAXES 4,393,568 4,944,748 5,407,000 5,407,000 5,825,000 6,895,000

TRANSFERS

80-00-4900 TRANSFER IN 0 88,711 87,371 87,371 87,371 86,720

TOTAL TRANSFERS 0 88,711 87,371 87,371 87,371 86,720

TOTAL REVENUES 4,396,268 5,034,990 5,495,000 5,495,000 8,868,371 6,981,720

283



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

80 -GENERAL I&S FUND

I&S EXPENDITURES

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

80-01-6810 ARBITRAGE FEES 7,890 7,420 17,500 17,500 10,000 12,500

80-01-6811 BOND ISSUANCE COSTS 0 1,381 0 0 28,977 0

80-01-6812 PAYING AGENT FEES 3,940 3,150 4,413 4,413 4,000 5,180

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 11,830 11,951 21,913 21,913 42,977 17,680

INTEREST

80-01-9207 INTEREST 27,655M GO & REF 2010 814,900 814,900 809,600 809,600 809,600 738,200

80-01-9209 INTEREST 4,630M GO REFND 2009 124,375 102,625 73,050 73,050 73,050 42,175

80-01-9212 INTEREST 21M/2007 GO REF 47,893 25,675 0 0 0 0

80-01-9222 INTEREST 4,245M/2005 REFUNDING 134,268 126,668 118,666 118,666 0 0

80-01-9223 INTEREST 6,165M / 2006 0 0 0 0 0 0

80-01-9225 INTEREST 5M / 2002 32% 0 0 0 0 0 0

80-01-9227 INTEREST 6,290M / 2002 0 0 0 0 0 0

80-01-9232 INTEREST $19,165M GO RFG 2012A 521,225 521,225 521,225 521,225 521,225 521,225

80-01-9233 INTEREST 14,310M SERIES 2012 324,375 308,575 293,175 293,175 293,175 280,875

80-01-9239 INTEREST PPFC 2013 0 9,961 7,975 7,975 7,975 6,672

80-01-9242 INTEREST $24M CTR SERIES 2015 0 0 0 0 0 1,602,796

80-01-9243 INTEREST $2.9M GO RFDG 2014 0 0 0 0 43,832 53,600

TOTAL INTEREST 1,967,035 1,909,628 1,823,691 1,823,691 1,748,857 3,245,543

PRINCIPAL

80-01-9604 PRINCIPAL 27,655M GO & REF2010 0 265,000 1,785,000 1,785,000 1,785,000 1,850,000

80-01-9609 PRINCIPAL 4,245M/2005 REFUNDIN 190,000 200,000 205,000 205,000 0 0

80-01-9610 PRINCIPAL 21M/2007 GO REF 560,000 650,000 0 0 0 0

80-01-9614 PRINICIPAL 6,165M / 2006 0 0 0 0 0 0

80-01-9617 PRINCIPAL 6,290M / 2002 0 0 0 0 0 0

80-01-9621 PRINCIPAL 5M / 2002 32% 0 0 0 0 0 0

80-01-9623 PRINCIPAL 4,630M GO REFND 2009 725,000 910,000 950,000 950,000 950,000 1,010,000

284



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

80-01-9631 PRINCIPAL 14,310M SERIES 2012 790,000 770,000 615,000 615,000 615,000 620,000

80-01-9641 PAYMENT TO REFUNDING BONDS 0 0 0 0 2,920,956 0

80-01-9642 PRINCIPAL PPFC 2013 0 78,750 79,396 79,396 79,396 80,047

80-01-9645 CONTRACT REVENUE - NAMELESS VA 0 0 15,000 15,000 15,000 158,450

80-01-9648 PRINCIPAL $2.9M GO RFDG 2014 0 0 0 0 275,000 0

TOTAL PRINCIPAL 2,265,000 2,873,750 3,649,396 3,649,396 6,640,352 3,718,497

TOTAL I&S EXPENDITURES 4,243,865 4,795,330 5,495,000 5,495,000 8,432,186 6,981,720

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,243,865 4,795,330 5,495,000 5,495,000 8,432,186 6,981,720

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 152,403 239,660 0 0 436,185 0

285



CITY OF LEANDER

FY 2015-16

ANNUAL BUDGET

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

FUND ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

Utility Fund Debt Service-85

Beginning Fund Balance 151,155 151,698 151,733 152,256 152,256 152,291

Revenues 143 543 0 0 35 0

Expenditures

DEBT SERVICE 3,285,498 3,273,741 10,534,411 10,534,411 10,536,811 10,906,935

Total Expenditures 3,285,498 3,273,741 10,534,411 10,534,411 10,536,811 10,906,935

Current Operating surplus/(deficit) (3,285,355) (3,273,198) (10,534,411) (10,534,411) (10,536,776) (10,906,935)

Transfers In 3,285,898 3,273,756 10,534,411 10,534,411 10,536,811 10,906,935

Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Transfers In / (Out) 3,285,898 3,273,756 10,534,411 10,534,411 10,536,811 10,906,935

Net Restricted for bond covenant 151,698 152,256 151,733 152,256 152,291 152,291

Fund Summary:  The City issues debt periodically for water or wastewater capital 
projects.  This fund has been established to account for the debt service related to these 
projects.   Revenues from utility operations (rate payers) are transferred to this fund so 
that sufficient revenue is available to make the payments when due. 

Fund Summary:  The City issues debt periodically for water or wastewater capital 
projects.  This fund has been established to account for the debt service related to these 
projects.   Revenues from utility operations (rate payers) are transferred to this fund so 
that sufficient revenue is available to make the payments when due. In prior years, the 
debt owed for the BCRUA Regional Water Treatment Plant and the BCRWWS wastewater 
system was expensed directly from the Utility Fund.  The FY 2015 budget reflects funds 
transferred from the Utility Fund to the Debt Service fund for those obligations. 

286



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

85 -UTILITY I&S FUND

REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS

85-00-4449 INTEREST INCOME 144 543 0 0 35 0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 144 543 0 0 35 0

TRANSFERS

85-00-4920 TRANSFER IN CIF FUND 0 500,000 1,225,000 1,225,000 1,225,000 1,000,000

85-00-4980 TRANSFER FROM UTILITY FUND 3,285,898 2,773,756 9,309,411 9,309,411 9,311,811 9,906,935

TOTAL TRANSFERS 3,285,898 3,273,756 10,534,411 10,534,411 10,536,811 10,906,935

TOTAL REVENUES 3,286,041 3,274,299 10,534,411 10,534,411 10,536,846 10,906,935

287



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

85 -UTILITY I&S FUND

UTILITY I&S EXPENDITURES

SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER

85-01-6810 ARBITRAGE REBATES 0 0 0 0 2,400 2,400

85-01-6812 PAYING AGENT FEES 550 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSE/OTHER 550 0 0 0 2,400 2,400

INTEREST

85-01-9210 INTEREST 2,155M / 2003 53,460 48,154 42,768 42,768 42,768 37,152

85-01-9213 INTEREST 14,310M SERIES 2012 119,688 119,588 119,486 119,486 119,486 119,388

85-01-9228 INTEREST 9.2M/2007 CO TAX/REV 0 0 0 0 0 0

85-01-9230 INTEREST 36,270M SERIES 2012 1,419,275 1,398,475 1,350,774 1,350,774 1,350,774 1,328,675

85-01-9232 INTEREST $19,165M GO RFG 2012A 236,525 236,525 236,525 236,525 236,525 236,525

85-01-9238 INTEREST 27,655M GO & REF 2010 286,000 286,000 286,000 286,000 286,000 256,200

85-01-9240 INTEREST BCRUA 0 0 4,243,720 4,243,720 4,243,720 4,197,311

85-01-9241 INTEREST BCRWWS 0 0 317,763 317,763 317,763 304,192

85-01-9242 INTEREST $24M CTR SERIES 2015 0 0 0 0 0 59,145

TOTAL INTEREST 2,114,948 2,088,741 6,597,036 6,597,036 6,597,036 6,538,588

PRINCIPAL

85-01-9604 PRINCIPAL 27.655 GO & REF 2010 0 0 745,000 745,000 745,000 785,000

85-01-9611 PRINCIPAL 14,310M SERIES 2012 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

85-01-9613 PRINCIPAL 2,155M / 2003 125,000 120,000 130,000 130,000 130,000 130,000

288



FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016

DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED REVISED ESTIMATED PROPOSED

FY 2015

85-01-9636 PRINCIPAL 36,270M SERIES 2012 1,040,000 1,060,000 1,105,000 1,105,000 1,105,000 1,130,000

85-01-9643 PRINCIPAL BCRUA 0 0 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,850,000

85-01-9644 PRINCIPAL BCRWWS 0 0 452,375 452,375 452,375 465,947

TOTAL PRINCIPAL 1,170,000 1,185,000 3,937,375 3,937,375 3,937,375 4,365,947

TOTAL UTILITY I&S EXPENDITURES 3,285,498 3,273,741 10,534,411 10,534,411 10,536,811 10,906,935

FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,285,498 3,273,741 10,534,411 10,534,411 10,536,811 10,906,935

*** REVENUES OVER(UNDER) EXPENSES *** 544 558 0 0 35 0

289



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

290



SCHEDULES 

291



POSITION SUMMARY 

General Fund 
Department / Position FTE  Department / Position FTE 

     
Administration   Engineering  
 City Manager 1   Engineering Director 1 
  Total 1.0   Assistant City Engineer 1 
    GIS Coordinator 1 
    Construction Inspector 3 
City Secretary    Stormwater Inspector 1 
 City Secretary 1   Engineer 2 
 Deputy City Secretary 1   Administrative Assistant 1 
  Total 2.0   Total 10.0 
     
Finance   Parks & Recreation  
 Finance Director 1   Parks & Recreation Director 1 
 Senior Accountant 1   Maintenance Supervisor 1 
 Purchasing Agent 1   Recreation Supervisor 1 
 Accounting Clerk 1      Athletics/Recreation Prog. 1 
 Payroll Clerk 1   Administrative Assistant 1 
  Total 5.0   Maintenance II / Crew Leader 3 
    Maintenance I/Parks 5 
Economic Development    Maintenance II / Janitorial 1 
 Economic Development Director 1   Maintenance I / Janitorial 1 
 Economic Development Manager 1    Total 15.0 
  Total 2.0    
   Police  
Human Resources   Administration  
 Human Resources Director 1   Chief of Police 1 
 HR Manager 1   Assistant Chief of Police 1 
  Total 2.0   Administrative Office Manager 1 
    Administrative Assistant 1 
Information Technology    Administrative Assistant/Records 1 
 Information Technology Manager 1    Sub-total 5.0 
 Public Safety Systems Admin. 1    
  Total 2.0  Uniform Services  
    Lieutenant 1 
Municipal Court    Sergeant 5 
 Court Administrator 1   Officer   16 
 Deputy Court Clerk 3   Warrant Officer 1 
  Total 4.0   Corporal 4 
     Sub-total 27.0 
     
Planning   Support Services  
 Assistant City Manager 1   Lieutenant 1 
 Senior Planner 1   TCO Manager 1 
 Planner 1   TCO Supervisor 2 
 Planning Coordinator 1   Telecommunications Officer III 2 
  Total 4.0   Telecommunications Officer II 3 
    Telecommunications Officer I 2 
    Sergeant 1 
    Officer III/Community Services 1 
Public Works – Streets    School Resource Officer/Sgt 1 
 Public Works Director 1   School Resource Officer 2 

 Street Supervisor 1    Sub-total 16.0 

 Administrative Assistant 1    
 Maintenance II/Crew Leader 5  Animal Control  
 Maintenance I 6   Animal Services Supervisor 1 
 Mechanic 1   Animal Services Officer I 1 
 Total  15.0    Sub-total 2.0 

  
292



POSITION SUMMARY 

General Fund (cont’d) 
Department / Position FTE  Department / Position FTE 

     
Criminal Investigations   Building Inspections  
 Lieutenant 1   Building Official 1 
 Sergeant/CID 3   Chief Building Inspector 1 
 Officer III/Corp 2   Senior Inspector 3 
 Victim Services Coordinator 1   Plan Reviewer 1 
 Crime Scene Specialist 1   Permits Clerk 2 
  Sub-total 8.0   Zoning Compliance Officer 1 
    Receptionist 1 
Police Department Total 58.0    Total 10.0 
     
   Code Enforcement  
Fire    Code Enforcement Officer 2 
Administration     Total 2.0 
 Fire Chief 1    
 Administrative Assistant 1    
 Volunteer Coordinator 1    
  Total 3.0  GENERAL FUND TOTAL 180.5 
     
Preparedness & Wellness     
 Admin Battalion Chief 1    
 Training Instructor 1    
 Firefighter (PT) 0.5    
  Total 2.5    
     
Prevention & Life Safety     
 Fire Marshal 1    
 Senior Fire Inspector 1    
 Fire Inspector (PT) 1    
  Total 3.0    
     
Emergency Operations     
 Assistant Fire Chief 1    
 Battalion Chief 3    
 Lieutenant 9    
 Driver / Pump Operator 12    
 Firefighter 15    
  Total 40.0    
     
Fire Department Total 48.5    
     
     

  

293



POSITION SUMMARY 

Golf Fund 
Department / Position FTE  Department / Position FTE 

     
Grounds Maintenance   Pro Shop  
 Golf Course Superintendent 1   General Manager 1 
 Assistant Course Superintendent 1   Head Golf Pro 1 
 Greenskeeper I 3.5   Assistant Golf Pro 1 
 Mechanic – Golf Maintenance 1   Pro Shop Attendant 2.7 
  Total 6.5   Cart Attendant 3.3 
     Total 9.0 
Grill     
 Grill Manager 1    
 Grill Attendant 2.1    
 Grill Attendant – Seasonal 0.4    
  Total 3.5  GOLF FUND TOTAL 19.0 
     

 

 

 

Utility Fund 
 

Department / Position FTE  Department / Position FTE 

     
Utility Billing   Wastewater Maintenance  
 Utility Billing Supervisor 1   Public Works Superintendent 0.5 
 Billing Assistant 1   Water & Wastewater Supt. 0.5 
 Utility Clerk 3   Utility Operations Supervisor 0.5 
 Meter Reader 3   Wastewater Plant Operator 5 
 Field Technician 1   Crew Leander I 1 
  Total 9.0   Utility Maintenance I 1 
    W/WW Service Tech 1 
     Total 9.5 
     
Water Maintenance   Regional Water Plant  
 Public Works Superintendent 0.5   Superintendent 1 
 Water & Wastewater Supt. 0.5   Water Plant Operators 3 
 Utility Operations Supervisor 0.5    Total 4.0 
 Crew Leader 2    
 Utility Maintenance I 2    
 W/WW Service Tech 1    
  Total 6.5  UTILITY FUND TOTAL 29.0 
     
     
     
ALL FUNDS GRAND TOTAL 228.5    
     
     
     
     

 

294



General Obligation Debt 
 

A summary of Tax-Supported General Obligation Debt outstanding at September 30, 2015 follows: 

 

$4,630,000 Series 2009 Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments of $125,000 to 
$1,010,000 through August 15, 2017; interest at 3.0% to 3.25%.  $     1,220,000  

  

$27,655,000 ($20,505,000 allocated to tax-supported debt) Series 2010 General 
Obligation and Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments of $265,000 to 
$3,370,000 through August 15, 2030; interest at 2.0% to 4.00%.  $   18,455,000  

  

$19,165,000 ($12,920,000 allocated to tax-supported debt) Series 2012-A Refunding 
Bonds, due in annual installments of $1,620,000 to $2,070,000 through August 15, 
2027; interest at 3.0% to 5.00%.  $   12,920,000  

  

$14,310,000 ($10,875,000 allocated to tax-supported debt) Series 2012 Refunding 
Bonds, due in annual installments of $280,000 to $1,170,000 through August 15, 
2024; interest at 2.0% to 5.00%.  $      8,420,000  

  

$565,000 Public Property Finance Contract, Series 2013 due in annual installments 
through July 1, 2020; interest at 1.64%. $         406,854  

  

$2,955,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 due in annual 
installments of $25,000 to $350,000 through August 15, 2025; interest at 4.00% to 
4.25%  $      2,680,000  

  

$24,040,000 ($23,185,000 allocated to tax-supported debt) Combination Tax and 
Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2015 due in annual installments of 
$845,000 to $1,865,000 through August 15, 2035; interest at 3.00% to 5.00%.  $   23,185,000  

  

Total General Obligation bonds $    67,286,854  

 

The annual requirements to retire general long-term debt, including interest, as of September 30, 2015 

are as follows: 

 

Year Ending 
September 30 

 General Obligation Bonds 
 Principal  Interest 

 Total 
 Requirements 

2016 3,560,048 3,245,543 6,805,591 

2017 4,720,704 2,594,184 7,314,888 

2018 4,916,365 2,435,061 7,351,426 

2019-2023 24,604,737 9,347,608 33,952,345 

2024-2028 17,585,000 4,792,650 22,377,650 

2029-2033 8,385,000 2,072,050 10,457,050 

2034-2039 3,515,000 265,750 3,780,750 

Totals 67,286,854 24,752,846 92,039,700 

  



Utility Self-Supporting Debt 
 

A summary of Utility Self-Supporting Debt outstanding at September 30, 2015 follows: 

 

$2,155,000 Series 2003 Waterworks and Sewer Refunding Bonds, due in annual 
installments of $75,000 to $155,000 through February 15, 2023; interest at 4.32%. $      925,000  

  

$27,655,000 ($7,150,000 allocated to self-supporting debt) Series 2010 Refunding 
Bonds, due in annual installments of $745,000 to $1,525,000 through August 15, 
2020; interest at 2.0% to 4.00%.  $      6,405,000  

  

$19,165,000 ($6,245,000 allocated to self-supporting debt) Series 2012-A Refunding 
Bonds, due in annual installments of $530,000 to $740,000 through August 15, 2027; 
interest at 3.0% to 5.00%.  $      6,245,000  

  

$14,310,000 ($3,435,000 allocated to self-supporting debt) Series 2012 Refunding 
Bonds, due in annual installments of $5,000 to $720,000 through August 15, 2024; 
interest at 2.0% to 5.00%.  $      3,365,000  

  

$36,270,000 Series 2012 Combination Tax & Revenue Certificates of Obligation, due 
in annual installments of $735,000 to $2,190,000 through August 15, 2036; interest 
at 2.0% to 5.00%.  $    32,330,000  

  

$3,000,000 Series 2012 Tax Notes, due in annual installments of $583,000 to 
$617,000 through July 1, 2017; interest at 1.42%. $       1,226,000  

  

$91,180,000 BCRUA Contract Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 due in annual installments 
of $500,000 to $6,375,000 through August 1, 2038; interest at 2.624% to 5.084%. $     88,180,000  

  

$10,800,000 BCRWWS 2010 Note Payable, due in annual installments of $426,407 to 
$747,708 through January 31, 2032; interest at 3.0%. $     10,139,738  

  

$24,040,000  ($855,000 allocated to self-supporting debt) Combination Tax and 
Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2015 due in annual installments of 
$845,000 to $1,865,000 through August 15, 2035; interest at 3.00% to 5.00%. $       855,000  

  

Total Utility Self-Supporting Debt $   149,670,738  

 

The annual requirements to retire general long-term debt, including interest, as of September 30, 2015 

are as follows: 

Year Ending 
September 30 

 Utility Self-Supporting Debt 
 Principal  Interest 

 Total 
 Requirements 

2016        4,974,948  6,549,007 11,523,955 

2017 5,691,925 6,385,621 12,077,547 

2018 6,194,324 6,194,695 12,389,018 

2019-2023 31,788,158 27,386,455 59,174,613 

2024-2028 32,013,702 20,821,656 52,835,358 

2029-2033 35,137,681 13,467,986 48,605,667 

2034-2038 33,870,000 4,963,267 38,833,267 

Totals 149,670,738 85,768,687 235,439,425 





AGENDA ITEM # 23 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

September 17, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider an Ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas, 
Amending Ordinance No. 14-058-00 Adopting the Annual Budget of the City of Leander, 
Texas for Fiscal Year 2014-15. 
 
Background:  This budget amendment provides for necessary adjustments to appropriate 
funds for a number of projects previously approved by City Council action as well as for 
certain unanticipated expenses.  In the General Fund, appropriations are increased for 
additional legal review fees (both general purpose and development agreements) and 
garbage collection payments to Clawson Disposal (offset by increased revenue 
collections.)  In the Vehicle Replacement Fund, costs exceeded budget for four patrol 
vehicles (+$16,550) and a replacement fire engine (+65,000).  In the Police Grants fund, 
the amendment reflects the Victims Services Grant that the department received to fund 
the Victims Services Coordinator position. 
 
Origination: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  Appropriates additional funds from either reserves or current 
revenue. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval 
 
Attachments:  Ordinance 

 
Prepared by:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 



ORDINANCE NO. 15-029-00 
 
  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE  CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE 
NO. 14-058-00 ADOPTING THE ANNUAL BUDGET OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, 
TEXAS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-15. 
 
 

WHEREAS, a proposed budget for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2014 and ending September 30, 
2015 for the City of Leander, Texas was duly filed with the City Secretary and was duly presented to the City 
Council by the Mayor; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved and adopted the FY2014-15 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council appropriated funds according to the prospective perceived needs and 

revenues which have changed during the fiscal year. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 

adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.   Budget Amendment.  The FY 2014-15 Budget is hereby amended as follows: 
 
 

FUND 

ADOPTED       
FY2014-15          
BUDGET 

AMENDMENT 1         
FY2014-15          
CHANGE 

AMENDMENT 2         
FY2014-15          
CHANGE 

AMENDMENT 3         
FY2014-15          
CHANGE 

REVISED                       
FY2014-15          
BUDGET 

01 - GENERAL FUND           

       REVENUES 22,844,911  148,750  700,000  188,000  23,881,661  

       EXPENDITURES 24,807,881  1,520,750  700,000  188,000  27,216,631  

            

03 - BRYSON FARMSTEAD FUND           

       REVENUES 0        0  

       EXPENDITURES 0        0  

            

04 - LEANDER CLEAN UP FUND           

       REVENUES 10,690      830  11,520  

       EXPENDITURES 10,690      830  11,520  

            

05 - GOLF FUND           

       REVENUES 1,369,021        1,369,021  

       EXPENDITURES 1,369,021        1,369,021  

            

10 - PUBLIC ARTS FUND           

       REVENUES 300  22,755      23,055  

       EXPENDITURES 1,100  22,755      23,855  

            

      



FUND 

ADOPTED       
FY2014-15          
BUDGET 

AMENDMENT 1         
FY2014-15          
CHANGE 

AMENDMENT 2         
FY2014-15          
CHANGE 

AMENDMENT 3         
FY2014-15          
CHANGE 

REVISED                       
FY2014-15          
BUDGET 

12 - TIA FUND           

       REVENUES 45,000        45,000  

       EXPENDITURES 45,000  423,000      468,000  

            

13 - EQUIPMENT FUND           

       REVENUES 0        0  

       EXPENDITURES 0        0  

            

14 - VEHICLE FUND         0  

       REVENUES 1,052,000      0  1,052,000  

       EXPENDITURES 870,000      81,550  951,550  

            

20 - UTILITY FUND           

       REVENUES 17,747,700  2,075,000      19,822,700  

       EXPENDITURES 19,967,700  2,835,000  1,030,000  2,400  23,835,100  

            

21 - UTILITY VEHICLE FUND           

       REVENUES 25,534        25,534  

       EXPENDITURES 0        0  

            

25 - WATER IMPACT           

       REVENUES 3,880,000  0      3,880,000  

       EXPENDITURES 4,978,428  730,000      5,708,428  

            

26 - WASTEWATER IMPACT           

       REVENUES 1,292,000        1,292,000  

       EXPENDITURES 1,150,000  485,000      1,635,000  

            

27 - WATER CIP FUND           

       REVENUES 0  1,000,000  1,030,000    2,030,000  

       EXPENDITURES 0  1,000,000  1,030,000    2,030,000  

            

40 - GF CAPITAL PJTS           

       REVENUES 0  2,985,327  700,000    3,685,327  

       EXPENDITURES 561,150  1,695,755  700,000    2,956,905  

            

41 - GF CIP PARK GRANTS           

       REVENUES 258,000  400,000      658,000  

       EXPENDITURES 272,000  400,000      672,000  

            

53 - $6.3M BOND 2010           

       REVENUES 0        0  

       EXPENDITURES 0  250,000      250,000  

            



FUND 

ADOPTED       
FY2014-15          
BUDGET 

AMENDMENT 1         
FY2014-15          
CHANGE 

AMENDMENT 2         
FY2014-15          
CHANGE 

AMENDMENT 3         
FY2014-15          
CHANGE 

REVISED                       
FY2014-15          
BUDGET 

54 - GO BOND 2015           

       REVENUES 45,615,366        45,615,366  

       EXPENDITURES 45,615,366        45,615,366  

            

70 - POLICE DEPT. GRANTS           

       REVENUES 0      50,000  50,000  

       EXPENDITURES 0      50,000  50,000  

            

71 - COURT SECURITY FUND           

       REVENUES 10,000        10,000  

       EXPENDITURES 10,000        10,000  

            

72 - COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND           

       REVENUES 16,900        16,900  

       EXPENDITURES 16,900        16,900  

            
73 - PARKS SPECIAL REVENUE 
FUND           

       REVENUES 30,750        30,750  

       EXPENDITURES 30,750        30,750  

            

74 - FIRE RESCUE REVENUE FUND           

       REVENUES 15,000        15,000  

       EXPENDITURES 35,000        35,000  

            

75 - PARK DEDICATION ORD.           

       REVENUES 1,495,000        1,495,000  

       EXPENDITURES 1,533,000        1,533,000  

            

76 - STEP FUND           

       REVENUES 105,000        105,000  

       EXPENDITURES 50,000        50,000  

            

77 - POLICE FORFEITURE FUND           

       REVENUES 0        0  

       EXPENDITURES 0        0  

            

78 - POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE           

       REVENUES 12,000        12,000  

       EXPENDITURES 12,000        12,000  

            

79 - TIRZ #1 FUND           

       REVENUES 251,800        251,800  

       EXPENDITURES 231,250        231,250  

            



FUND 

ADOPTED       
FY2014-15          
BUDGET 

AMENDMENT 1         
FY2014-15          
CHANGE 

AMENDMENT 2         
FY2014-15          
CHANGE 

AMENDMENT 3         
FY2014-15          
CHANGE 

REVISED                       
FY2014-15          
BUDGET 

80 - GF DEBT SERVICE            

       REVENUES 5,495,000        5,495,000  

       EXPENDITURES 5,495,000        5,495,000  

            

85 - UF DEBT SERVICE            

       REVENUES 10,534,411      2,400  10,536,811  

       EXPENDITURES 10,534,411      2,400  10,536,811  

            
96 - LEANDER DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY            

       REVENUES 13,050        13,050  

       EXPENDITURES 13,050        13,050  
 

 
Section 3.  Exhibit A.  The individual line items affected by the budget amendment are hereby 

attached as Exhibit A. 
 

Section 4.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and 
purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov’t  Code. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on this 17th day of September, 2015. 
 
 
ATTEST:           CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
 
 
____________________________   __________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary        Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

FUND DEPARTMENT DESCRIPTION 

AMENDMENT 3         
FY2014-15          
CHANGE 

SUB-
TOTAL 

01 - GENERAL FUND     
 

  
       REVENUES         
01-00-4448 Revenue Garbage Collections 68,000   
01-00-4837 Revenue Property Tax Collections 120,000   
        188,000  
       EXPENDITURES         
01-53-5629 Non-Departmental Garbage Collections 68,000   
01-53-5650 Non-Departmental Legal Fees 55,000   
01-53-5740 Non-Departmental Development Agreement (Legal Review) 65,000 

         188,000  
          
03 - BRYSON FARMSTEAD FUND         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
04 - LEANDER CLEAN UP FUND         
       REVENUES         
04-00-4453 Revenue Leander Clean Up fee 830 

         830  
       EXPENDITURES         
04-01-6308   Leander Clean Up Expense 830 

         830  
05 - GOLF FUND         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
10 - PUBLIC ARTS FUND         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
12 - TIA FUND         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
13 - EQUIPMENT FUND         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
14 - VEHICLE FUND         
       REVENUES         
          
       EXPENDITURES         
14-41-7100 Police Vehicles Patrol Vehicles 16,550   
14-50-7300 Fire Vehicles Replacement Engine 65,000   
        81,550  
20 - UTILITY FUND         
       REVENUES         
          

     



FUND DEPARTMENT DESCRIPTION 

AMENDMENT 3         
FY2014-15          
CHANGE 

SUB-
TOTAL 

       EXPENDITURES         
20-04-9010 Non-Deptartmental Transfer to Debt Service (Arbitrage Fees) 2,400   
        2,400  
          
21 - UTILITY VEHICLE FUND         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
25 - WATER IMPACT         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
26 - WASTEWATER IMPACT         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
27 - WATER CIP FUND         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
40 - GF CAPITAL PJTS         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
41 - GF CIP PARK GRANTS         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
53 - $6.3M BOND 2010         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
54 - BOND SERIES 2015         
       REVENUES         

 
        

       EXPENDITURES         
          
70 - POLICE DEPT. GRANTS         
       REVENUES         
70-00-4615 Revenue Victims Services Grant 50,000 

         50,000  
       EXPENDITURES         
70-03-5120 Police Victims Services Coordinator 50,000   
        50,000  
71 - COURT SECURITY FUND         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
72 - COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         



FUND DEPARTMENT DESCRIPTION 

AMENDMENT 3         
FY2014-15          
CHANGE 

SUB-
TOTAL 

73 - PARKS SPECIAL REVENUE 
FUND         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
74 - FIRE RESCUE REVENUE FUND         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
75 - PARK DEDICATION ORD.         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
76 - STEP FUND         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
77 - POLICE FORFEITURE FUND         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
78 - POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
79 - TIRZ #1 FUND         
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
80 - GF DEBT SERVICE          
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         
          
85 - UF DEBT SERVICE          
       REVENUES         
85-00-4980 Revenue Transfer In - Utilty Fund 2,400   
        2,400  
       EXPENDITURES         
85-01-6810 Debt Service Arbitrage Fees 2,400   
        2,400  
          
96 - LEANDER DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY          
       REVENUES         
       EXPENDITURES         

 



AGENDA ITEM # 24 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 17, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Development Agreement Case 01-DA-001 2nd Amendment: 

Discussion of the proposed second amendment to the Benbrook 
Ranch Development Agreement for property generally located to 
the east of Bagdad Road, north of South Brook Drive, Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: The original Development Agreement was executed on September 

13, 2001 and expired on September 13, 2011.  The agreement was 
amended on June 2, 2011 and the expiration date was extended to 
October 25, 2015.  The applicant is requesting the extend the 
expiration date to October 25, 2020. 

 
Origination: Applicant: Danny Martin on behalf of JSL Commercial 

Investments, LLC (John S. Lloyd) 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends preparing an amended and restated agreement 

that carries forward only the terms of the agreement that are still 
relevant to the remainder of the property that has not yet been 
developed. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Letter Explaining the Proposed Amendment  
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 08/25/2015 
 





AGENDA ITEM # 25 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 17, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Consideration of an Amended and Restated Agreement regarding Consent to Creation 
of Leander Municipal Utility Districts No. 1, 2, and 3 and Development of the Bar W Ranch and 
Wastewater Project Cost-Sharing Agreement 
 

Background: The City and the Developer previously entered into the “Agreement Regarding 
Consent to Creation of Municipal Utility Districts and Development of the Wedemeyer Ranch” on  
December 30, 2008.  In that agreement the City and the Developer agreed to certain terms and 
conditions relating to the creation of the Municipal Utility Districts and the development of the 
approximately 924 acre tract of land described on the attached Exhibit A (the “Land”).  The 
Districts, which collectively encompass approximately 670.8 acres of the Land, were created 
and executed and joined in the Original Consent Agreement at the organizational meetings of 
their respective boards of directors on October 24, 2013.  The Original Consent Agreement has 
previously been amended by “Amendment to Agreement Regarding Consent to Creation of 
Municipal Utility Districts and Development of the Wedemeyer Ranch” dated April 16, 2015. 

This amended and restated agreement provides for the following revised terms: 
• Water service to the property will be provided by the City of Leander and not Chisholm 

Trail SUD 
• Wastewater service to the property will be provided by the City of Leander through a 

wholesale contract with Liberty Hill and not by an on-site wastewater treatment plant 
• Cost participation by the City, the developer and the Districts have been defined for the 

water and wastewater infrastructure 
• Development standards and vesting have been modified and clarified 

 
Financial Consideration: The City is required to cost participate in the regional wastewater lift 
station and force main to convey wastewater to the Liberty Hill plant.  The City is also required 
to participate in the cost of extending water service to the property.  These items have been 
budgeted in the City's water and wastewater capital improvements plan. 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the Agreement 
 
Attachments:  

1. Agreement with exhibits (to be provided as a supplement to the packet) 
2. Location map 

 
Prepared by: Tom Yantis, Assistant City Manager 



! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

PLAIN
ES

LEANDER
PARK & R IDE
RAIL STATION

REAGAN'S OVERLOOK

PALMERA R IDGE

BRYSON

RANCHO SIENNA

PARKERTRACT

2B

5D

2B

4C

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B2B 2B

2B

2B 2B
2B

2B

2B
2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B
2B

2B 2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

W SH 29
CR

 26
6

CR
 27

0

CR
 26

7

CROSS CREEK LN

CR 268

CR
OS

S 
CR

EE
K 

RD

BAKER LN

CR 259

KAUFFMAN LOOP

DR
VW

RI
DG

E 
VI

EW
 D

R

CR 264

LAKE SIDE DR

VP
 R

AN
CH

 D
R

PA
RK

 P
LA

CE
 D

R

RONALD W REAGAN BLVD

PVR 918

ORCHARD DR

SANTA RITA BLVD

PEGGY DR

MO
NT

AL
CI

NO
 L

N

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

CHRISTOPHER LN

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

BRADLEY RANCH RD

PENNA LN

OA
K 

PL
AZ

A 
DR

OA
K 

ME
AD

OW
 D

R

CR 274

MI
KE

S 
W

AY

WATERFORD LN

ARREZO LN

KING LN

BR
AU

N 
PA

RK
WA

Y

LA GROTTA LN

JENNIFER LN

AIRPORT D
R

MINDY WAY

MAGONA TRL

MARSHALL CT

LEN BAR LN

GABRIELS LOOP

NORCIA LOOP

NORWOOD DR

DRAPER LN
183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 1,000

Feet

Development Agreement

Attachment #4
Location Exhibit
Wedemeyer

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits



AGENDA ITEM # 26 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 17, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Consider Award of Contract for Veterans Park Improvements 
 
Background: Four bids were received August 26th to construct initial improvements in Veterans 
Park and the lowest qualified bidder was Lanat Enterprises, LLC. 
 

Bidder Bid Amount 
Majestic Services, Inc. $241,240 
Westar Construction, Inc. $194,255 
Lanat Enterprises, LLC $155,893 
Fazzone Construction Company $245,450.69 

   
References for the low bidder have been checked and found acceptable. 
 
The scope of work includes construction of the Wall of Honor Plaza and main sculpture plaza, 
U.S. and Texas flagpoles, five service monument/seals and flagpoles, and electrical work to 
light the flagpoles. 
 
The estimate of cost was $122,000 and $170,216 is available in the Veterans Park Fund. 
Available funds include unspent Veterans Park funds budgeted for FY 2014-15 and funds raised 
by the Veterans Park Committee ($35,183). 
 
Financial Consideration: FY 2015-16 Park Dedication Fee Fund budget (75-23-8210) 
$155,893 
  
Recommendation: Staff respectfully recommends that the Council award a construction 
contract in the amount of $155,893 to Lanat Enterprises, LLC.  Staff also recommends that the 
Council authorize the City Manager to execute all contract documents.  
 
Attachments: Veterans Park Master Plan 
 
Prepared by:  Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 





AGENDA ITEM # 27 
 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

September 17, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Task Order FNI-3 with Freese and Nichols, 
Inc., for Design, Bidding, and Construction Phase Professional Services for the San 
Gabriel Parkway Roadway Project  
 
Background:  Task Order FNI-3 provides for the design, bidding, and construction phase 
professional services for the extension of San Gabriel Parkway from CR 270 to Ronald 
Reagan Boulevard as a 4-lane divided roadway with curb and gutter, storm sewers, water 
quality, detention, street lighting, landscaping, temporary irrigation system and a 24-inch 
water line.  The scope of services includes preliminary engineering, environmental 
screening, schematic development, utility coordination, geotechnical analysis, plans, 
specifications, bidding phase services, construction phase services, and right-of-way and 
easement related metes and bounds services.   
 
Compensation is a combination of lump sum amounts and time and materials not to 
exceed $695,205.00.  The cost of the roadway design will be shared with the adjacent 
developer in accordance with Addendum No.1 to Development and Annexation 
Agreement (Toungate Tract – Palmera Bluff), wherein the developer will pay 36% of the 
cost of the design, not to exceed a maximum of $150,000.  
 
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  $565,047.00 from General Purpose CIP Fund, GL# 40-04-
8386 and $130,158.00 from Water Impact Fee Fund, GL# 21-31-8624 
- 
Recommendation:  Staff requests authorization of the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute Task Order FNI-3. 
 
Attachments:  Task Order FN-3. 

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 









































AGENDA ITEM # 28 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 17, 2015 

 

Subject: Consider agreement for Architectural and Engineering Services to repurpose and renovate Fire 
Station #1 and the Pat Bryson Municipal Building.    

Background:  As Fire Station #4 is scheduled for completion this coming year the existing personnel in the 
Fire Station #1 will soon be relocated.  This provides an opportunity to repurpose Fire Station #1 and the Pat 
Bryson Municipal Building to create additional office space.  The City’s goal is to consolidate the Development 
Services Departments into this location.  These departments include Planning, Engineering and Construction 
Inspection, Building Inspections and Economic Development (as well as Municipal Court if feasible.) The 
Council Chamber will remain unchanged. 
 
A space planning and feasibility study was conducted by Brown Reynolds Watford Architects, Inc. in 2014 to 
determine the capacity of the Fire Station #1 building.  The study concluded that there is enough square 
footage to accommodate the goal of consolidating the Development Services Departments.  Further, in 
completing this project and relocating this staff, additional office space is made available in other various City 
buildings. 
 
Following the award of this agreement, the City seeks to issue a Request for Proposal for a Construction 
Manager at Risk to work in tandem with the architect for the delivery of this renovation. 
 
Financial Consideration: Funds are budgeted in the 15/16 Proposed Budget in account #40-04-8324. 
  
Recommendation:  Staff respectfully recommends that the Council award an agreement to Brown Reynolds 
Watford Architects, Inc. for this project in the amount of $270,000. 
 
Prepared by: Joy Simonton, Purchasing Agent 
 



 AIA
®

 Document B101TM – 2007 
Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect 
 

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document 
has added information 
needed for its completion. 
The author may also have 
revised the text of the 
original AIA standard form. 
An Additions and Deletions 
Report that notes added 
information as well as 
revisions to the standard 
form text is available from 
the author and should be 
reviewed. 

This document has important 
legal consequences. 
Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with 
respect to its completion 
or modification. 

AGREEMENT made as of the « ThirdSeventeenth  »Seventeenth » day of «AugustSeptember  »September » in the 
year « Two Thousand Fifteen. » 
(In words, indicate day, month and year.) 
 
BETWEEN the Architect’s client identified as the Owner: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 
 
« City of Leander »«  » 
« P.O. Box 319 » 
« Leander, Texas 78646-0319  » 
«  » 
 
and the Architect: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 
 
«Brown Reynolds Watford Architects, Inc.  »«  » 
«2700 Earl Rudder Freeway South, Suite 4000  » 
« College Station, Texas 77845 » 
«  » 
 
for the following Project: 
(Name, location and detailed description) 
 
«2007 Templates» 
« Basic professional architectural services for the design of the renovation of the existing 
Leander Fire Station No. 1 into City Office Complex  »Complex » 
«  » 
 
The Owner and Architect agree as follows. 
  

AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
1 

 

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any 
portion of this AIA®  Document 
to another electronic file is 
prohibited and constitutes a 
violation of copyright laws 
as set forth in the footer of 
this document. 



TABLE OF ARTICLES 
 
1 INITIAL INFORMATION 
 
2 ARCHITECT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT’S BASIC SERVICES 
 
4 ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 
5 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
6 COST OF THE WORK 
 
7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES 
 
8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 
 
9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
 
10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
11 COMPENSATION 
 
12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 
 
EXHIBIT A   INITIAL INFORMATION 
 
ARTICLE 1   INITIAL INFORMATION 
§ 1.1 This Agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this Article 1 and in optional Exhibit A, Initial 
Information:  
(Complete Exhibit A, Initial Information, and incorporate it into the Agreement at Section 13.2, or state below 
Initial Information such as details of the Project’s site and program, Owner’s contractors and consultants, 
Architect’s consultants, Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, authorized representatives, anticipated 
procurement method, and other information relevant to the Project.) 
 
« Design services, based on the 2014 Leander City Hall and Pat Bryson Municipal Hall & Fire Station No 1 Study 
Scheme A for the Pat Bryson Municipal Hall located in Leander, Texas. The renovated municipal hall is 
approximately 10,000 square feet with an estimated construction budget of $2,250,000.00.  »This should be for the 
renovation of the Pat Bryson Municipal Building constructed under the Construction Manager at Risk Delivery 
Method. (NOT CITY HALL)  I believe the square footage for Pat Bryson is 4,500 sq. feet PLEASE VERIFY 
Basic professional architectural services for the renovation of the Pat Bryson Municipal Building is approximately 
10,000 square feet with an estimated construction budget of $2,250,000 to be construction under the Construction 
Manager at Risk Delivery Method. 
§ 1.2 The Owner’s anticipated dates for commencement of construction and Substantial Completion of the Work are 
set forth below: 

.1 Commencement of construction date: 
 

«Upon Notice to Proceed issued by the City of Leander » 
 

.2 Substantial Completion date: 
 

« Upon Notice to Proceed To be determined upon the date of the “Notice to Proceed”    » 
 

AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
2 

 



§ 1.3 The Owner and Architect may rely on the Initial Information. Both parties, however, recognize that such 
information may materially change and, in that event, the Owner and the Architect shall appropriately adjust the 
schedule, the Architect’s services and the Architect’s compensation.  
 
ARTICLE 2   ARCHITECT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
§ 2.1 The Architect shall provide the professional services as set forth in this Agreement. 
 

A.  Scope of Architectural Services:  
 
Architectural  
Description of basic services listed below under Scope of Services by Project Phase, Section 2.1E, as well as those 
tasks and duties to be provided by the Architect under the Construction Manager at Risk agreement for the 
Renovation of the Pat Bryson Municipal Building and the selected Construction Manager at Risk. 
     
Landscape   
Landscape design to meet Zoning Ordinance requirements, as applicable, and drought-tolerant / Native vegetation 
goals: strictly around footprint of building.  
 
Landscape Irrigation 
Irrigation system design and documentation  
 
Civil   
Drainage, grading and paving design, as required. 
Grading spot elevations adequate for TAS compliance 
 
Structural  
Evaluating of existing structure for adequate structural integrity 
Structural framing 
Screening walls & retaining walls (as applicable) 
 
Mechanical, Plumbing and Electrical  
Mechanical systems, including temperature controls systems and written sequence of operations, for new office area 
being placed in existing apparatus bay space 
Evaluation of existing HVAC system currently servicing Municipal Hall 
Re-working existing ducting to service renovated spaces 
 Fire protection (sprinkler system) performance specification 
 Electrical power, lighting, and fire alarm systems 
 Coordination with utility companies for electrical power, telephone, fiber, cable TV, as needed. 
 Conduit and boxes for low voltage wiring 
 
 

B.  Exclusions from Basic Services:  [Note from paige:  Confirm the following is the correct list for 
exclusion of basic services] 

 
The services shown below are not anticipated at this time; however, project requirements identified during design 
may require them to be added. 
 
Architectural Architectural 
Demolition of buildings and other structures 
Kitchen and food vending equipment procurement. 
Furniture and office equipment procurement 
Fitness equipment procurement 
Professional models and renderings produced out-of-house 
Preparation or assistance of Solicitation and Contract Documents and Procedures. 
LEED Certification 
Full time on site construction observation 
Environmental or hazardous materials conditions / issues 
Preparation or assistance of additional bid packages after the initial bid. 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent
at:  0.5"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent
at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Bold

AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
3 

 



Preparation or assistance of bid package. 
 
Civil   
Property Plat 
Zoning modifications, including street abandonments, easements, S.U.P.s and P.D.s 
Traffic analysis and traffic signals 
Environmental or hazardous materials conditions / issues 
Storm Water Pollutant Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 
Detention Pond 
 
Mechanical, Plumbing and Electrical Mechanical. Plumbing, and Electrical 
Fire protection (sprinkler) system design (beyond performance specification) 
Building utility bill estimates 
Lightning protection  
Technology Design and Documentation (beyond coordinating with City of Leander’s IT depart.) 
A/V Design 
Acoustical Design and Documentation 
Security – Employee card control entrance, security cameras at patron/ employee areas. 
Network cabling 
Energy Efficient / Life Cycle  
  
 
 

C. Owner Responsibilities 
 
The Owner shall not increase or decrease the overall budget, or the portion the budget allocated for construction or 
contingencies, without modifying the agreement of the Architect to a corresponding change in the project scope, 
quality, and / or professional service fees.  [Note from Paige, this doesn’t really work for the Construction Manager 
at Risk, and I do not recall it being in the prior contract.] 
The Owner shall not increase or decrease the overall budget, or the portion of the budget allocated for the 
construction or contingencies without modifying the agreement of the Architect to a corresponding change in the 
project scope, quality, and /or professional service fees. 
 
The Owner shall make a good faith effort to provide written comments within fourteen (14) calendar days pertaining 
to documents submitted by the Architect in order to avoid unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential progress 
of the Architects’ services.  The Owner shall not modify a decision once given to the Architect without additional 
compensation to the Architect. The Owner shall not modify a decision once given to the Architect without additional 
compensation to the Architect. 
 
Should the Owner fail to perform necessary responsibilities to advance the project or fail to make payments to the 
Architect, the Architect shall have the right to terminate this contract upon written notice to the Owner.   
 
The Architect’s services are copyrighted and for the sole benefit of Owner.  No third party may use or benefit from 
the Architect’s services or products for this project.  In the event that the property is sold, the new owner shall have 
no recourse or benefit from the Architect’s services rendered for this project.  [Note from Paige:  in my opinion, this 
is drafted too broadly.  People who visit the Pat Bryson Hall after renovation benefit from the Architect’s 
services.]No third party may use or benefit from the Architect’s services or products for this project.  In the event 
that the property is sold, the new owner shall have no recourse or benefit from the Architect’s servise rendered for 
this project. 
 
 
 

D. Owner Provided Services and System 
 
The Owner shall furnish services or building systems other than Basic Services, or authorize the Architect in writing 
to furnish them as an Additional Service, when such services are required to complete the project, provided that the 
City may use another subcontractor to provide the following services.  These services may include those listed 
below as applicable: 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent
at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent
at:  0.5"

AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
4 

 



 Topographic Survey   
 Boundary, Easements Descriptions Survey 
 Geotechnical Survey  
 Laboratory materials testing / inspections (during construction) 
  
 Texas Accessibility Standards site inspection at completion of construction.  Architect will submit the 
 signed and sealed construction documents to a Registered Accessibility Specialist (RAS) for plan review.  
 The plan review fee is a reimbursable expense.  Architect will also have the RAS submit a fee proposal to 
 e site inspection.       
  
 Telecommunications and computer equipment and wiring, including voice, data, cable TV, fiber optic 
 cabling, wire management systems, and terminations   (Design coordination beyond integrating the 
information and design provided by City’s IT department to be included and coordinated in construction documents)  
Note:  This was in the prior contract.  Does it belong here as well? 
 Audio / visual systems  
 Building security systems  
 
 
 

E.  Scope of Services by Project Phase: 
 
 
Schematic Design includes the following: 
 
 Kick Off Meeting.  Review scope of work with project team.  Identify contact information as well as chain 
 of command for distributing information. 
 
 Code research.  Research the International Building Code requirements as well as plumbing, electrical, 
 lighting, and mechanical, site, and TAS by identifying requirements and restrictions related to the building. 
 
 Conceptual Design.  BRW will refine conceptual scheme as developed in study of Municipal Hall. The 
 Architect shall provide Schematic Design Documents based on the mutually agreed-upon space program, 
 schedule, and budget for the Cost of the Work. The documents shall establish the preliminary design 
 illustrating the scale and relationship of the components.  Upon refinement of the conceptual scheme BRW 
 will provide, a colored floor plans and exterior elevations and computer modeling if needed.  BRW will 
 submit 5 copies of the 11 x 17 conceptual designs for the Owner’s review and comment. 
 
 Schematic Design documents shall include a site plan, building plans, sections and elevations.  Preliminary 
 selections of major building systems and construction materials shall be noted on the drawings or described 
 in writing.  During the design process, the Architect shall work with the Owner’s consultants under 
 separate contract, including the Construction Manager at Risk (also referred to herein as the “Contractor”), 
to coordinate the scope of the project.  The Schematic Design phase shall include two (2)  working design meetings 
with the Owner.   
 
 Statement of Probable Cost.  BRW will provide a statement of probable cost at the completion of 
 Schematic Design, which will be a general estimate developed from several cost data bases including our 
 own to determine the cost per square foot.  BRW will submit 5 copies of the 8 ½ x 11 estimate. 
 
BRW will work with the owner in identifying and awarding a qualified Contractor as the Construction Manager at 
Risk for the renovation of the Pat Bryson Municipal Building, as needed. 
 
BRW will work with the Contractor awarded the Construction Manager at Risk contract, to provide all necessary 
documentation for the Construction Manager at Risk to provide a construction cost estimate, as set forth in Section 3 
of the Construction Contract. 
 
 
 
Design Development 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent
at:  0.5"

AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
5 

 



 
Upon receiving a letter of notice to proceed, BRW will develop the Schematic Design to greater detail.   
The Architect shall provide Design Development Documents based on the approved Schematic Design 
Documents and probable cost of the Work.  The Design Development Documents shall illustrate and 
describe the refinement of the design establishing the scope, relationships, forms, size and appearance of 
the project by means of plans, sections and elevations, typical construction details, and outline 
specifications.  The Design Development Documents shall include in general the quality levels for major 
materials and project systems.  

 
During the design process, the Architect shall work with the Owner and user group to coordinate the scope 
of the project.  At the completion of Design Development, the Architect shall update the probable cost of 
the Work and the project schedule.  The Architect shall advise the Owner of any changes from previous 
cost projections due to adjustments in the project scope, refinement of the probable cost of the work, or 
general market conditions.  If at any time the Architect’s estimate of the Cost of the Work exceeds the 
Owner’s budget, the Architect shall make appropriate recommendations to the Owner to adjust the project’s 
size, quality or budget, and the Owner shall cooperate with the Architect in making such adjustments. 

 
BRW will provide preliminary mechanical, electrical, and plumbing engineering.  Minimal structural 
engineering services will be needed to analyze the weight of mechanical equipment on the roof.    Design 
and coordination with the Owner’s IT department will be implemented at this phase.  During this phase 
interior elevations will be developed and BRW will review finish materials, lighting, and furniture.   BRW 
will review with the Owner, equipment and furniture that are owner supplied vs. items supplied by the 
contractor during construction.  Door hardware will be outlined and reviewed.  BRW will prepare an 
outline for materials and products used for specifications. 

 
The  civil engineer will evaluate our site conditions along with parking requirements, drainage, landscaping 
and irrigation.    .  

 
 

Meetings and Deliverables.  The Design Development phase shall include two (2) working design meetings 
with the Owner.  Design Development deliverables shall include 5 half size sets 30” x 42” format (15” 
x21”) for the Owner’s review and comment 

 
 
Construction Documents 
 

The Architect shall provide Construction Documents based on the approved Design Development 
Documents and updated probable cost of the Work.  The Construction Documents shall set forth in detail 
the requirements for construction of the Project.  The Construction Documents shall include Drawings and 
Specifications that establish in detail the quality levels of materials and project systems required for 
construction.   

 
The Architect shall update the estimate of the Cost of the Work and project schedule at 50% and 95% 
completion of Construction Documents.   The Statement of Probable Cost shall be an estimate to include 
materials, equipment, component systems and construction types for construction costs.  The Statement of 
Probable Cost will also include project costs consisting of alternates to the bid, owner provided furniture 
and equipment, an allowance for construction testing, along with the contingency. The contingency 
includes Owner Generated Changes, Architectural and Engineering Design Contingency, and Unforeseen 
Construction Conditions. It is recognized that neither the Architect nor the Owner has control over the cost 
of labor, materials or equipment, over the Contractor’s methods of determining bid prices, over competitive 
bidding, or market conditions.  Accordingly, the Architect acknowledges that the bids may vary from the 
Owner’s budget or the Architect’s cost estimates. 

 
During the development of the Construction Documents, the Architects shall prepare a Project Manual 
including (1) bidding and procurement information which describes the time, place and conditions of 
bidding; bidding or proposal forms; and (2) the Conditions of the contract for Construction Contract 
(General, Supplementary and other Conditions).  

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
6 

 



Construction Documents phase deliverables shall include two half-size sets of documents at 50% 
completion and 95% completion for the Owner’s review and comment.  Final deliverables at 100% 
completion shall include three sets of half-size set of prints, three sets of specifications, and one electronic 
file of the Construction Documents in PDF format and Specifications in PDF format. 

 
Final design and coordination of the civil, structural, mechanical, electrical, and plumbing will be 
completed.  Mechanical engineering will include sizing of equipment, ducts, diffusers, dampers, and 
appropriate calculations.  Plumbing engineer will include design of waste water system tied into the 
existing system, supply water, and gas system.  Electrical engineer will provide lighting, phone, cable, and 
data wiring.  Civil engineering work will be reviewed and coordinated and final details will be drawn and 
specified. 

 
BRW will upload drawings to “My Permit Now” for plan review.  

 
Coordination of all architectural drawing will be detailed and finalized.   Specifications will be coordinated 
with drawings and completed.   The Owner shall provide the solicitation documents for inclusion in the 
specifications.   
 
 

 
Bidding 

 
  
 The BRW will provide the electronic (PDF) drawings and specifications to the contractors through our web 
site.  [Note from Paige:  Specify whether this is City or BRW’s website.]  Construction Manager at Risk, for their 
distribution to subcontractors.  Hard copy documents will be provided by the architect at an additional cost. 
  
 The Owner intends to utilize Sealed Proposalthe Construction Manager at Risk delivery method for the 
project.  BRW will provide the  drawings and specifications to the Owner for postingConstruction Manager at 
Risk for bidding. 
  
 The Architect shall prepare responses to questions from proposers and provide clarifications and 
 interpretations of the Contract Documents in the form of Addenda. 
  
 The Architect shall consider requests for substitutions during the pricing period, as permitted by the 
 Contract Documents and appropriate for the Construction Manager at Risk delivery method, and shall 
prepare Addenda including approved substitutions.   
  
 The Architect shall lead and conduct a pre-proposal conference for prospective bidders. 
  
 BRW will assist the Owner and  contractor during the bidding phase.    
 
 
Construction Administration. 
 

The Architect shall participate in a pre-construction conference.  
 
The Architect shall visit the site to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the work 
completed (assuming work is ongoing).  The Architect’s representative shall attend pre-arranged progress 
meetings and prepare field reports describing the status of the work and any deviations observed from the 
Construction Documents. 

 
Through the construction administration activities with monthly progress meetings, submittal approvals, 
RFI’s, change orders, payment request approvals. construction schedule approval, and project close-out, 
BRW will serve as the representative of the Owner during construction to observe the construction effort 
and the general conformance by the construction contractor with the construction drawings and 
specifications. 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
7 

 



Architect shall perform final closeout procedures as defined in the Contract Documents, including 
preparation and verification of Punch Lists for the Contractor's use. 

 
Construction Administration services beyond the following limits shall be an Additional Service: 

  Evaluation of Contractor’s substitution requests after 30 days following the execution of the  
  contract 
  Owner requested project scope changes resulting in changes to the Construction Documents  
  Evaluation of an extensive number of claims submitted by the Contractor in connection with the 
work  
  One (1) eleven (11) month warranty walk through after completion 
 

Construction Administration services provided more than sixty (60) days after the date of the Substantial 
Completion originally established in the construction contract shall be Additional Services.  The monthly 
lump-sum fee for extended Construction Administration (CA) services shall be the CA portion of the fee 
divided by the number of months for construction originally established in the construction contract 

 
§ 2.2 The Architect shall perform its services consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by 
architects practicing in the same or similar locality under the same or similar circumstances. The Architect shall 
perform its services as expeditiously as is consistent with such professional skill and care and the orderly progress of 
the Project.  
 
§ 2.3 The Architect shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Architect with respect to the 
Project. 
 
§ 2.4 Except with the Owner’s knowledge and consent, the Architect shall not engage in any activity, or accept any 
employment, interest or contribution that would reasonably appear to compromise the Architect’s professional 
judgment with respect to this Project. 
 
§ 2.5 The Architect shall maintain the following insurance for the duration of this Agreement. If any of the 
requirements set forth below exceed the types and limits the Architect normally maintains, the Owner shall 
reimburse the Architect for any additional cost: 
(Identify types and limits of insurance coverage, and other insurance requirements applicable to the Agreement, if 
any.) 

.1 General Liability 
 

« $ 1,000,000.00  » 
 

.2 Automobile Liability 
 

« $ 1,000,000.00   » 
 

.3 Workers’ Compensation 
 

«$ 1,000,000.00    » 
 

.4 Professional Liability 
 

« $ 2,000,000.00   » 
 
ARTICLE 3   SCOPE OF ARCHITECT’S BASIC SERVICES 
§ 3.1 The Architect’s Basic Services consist of those described in Article 3, Sections 2.1.A and 2.1.E and include 
usual and customary structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services. Services not set forth in this Article 
3 or Section 2.1.A or 2.1E. are Additional Services. 
 
§ 3.1.1 The Architect shall manage the Architect’s services, consult with the Owner, research applicable design 
criteria, attend Project meetings, communicate with members of the Project team and report progress to the Owner.  
 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
8 

 



§ 3.1.2 The Architect shall coordinate its services with those services provided by the Owner and the Owner’s 
consultants, including the Contractor. The Architect shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of 
services and information furnished by the Owner and the Owner’s consultants. The Architect shall provide prompt 
written notice to the Owner if the Architect becomes aware of any error, omission or inconsistency in such services 
or information. 
 
§ 3.1.3 As soon as practicable after the date of this Agreement, the Architect shall submit for the Owner’s approval a 
schedule for the performance of the Architect’s services. The schedule initially shall include anticipated dates for the 
commencement of construction and for Substantial Completion of the Work as set forth in the Initial Information. 
The schedule shall include allowances for periods of time required for the Owner’s review, for the performance of 
the Owner’s consultants, and for approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Once 
approved by the Owner, time limits established by the schedule shall not, except for reasonable cause, be exceeded 
by the Architect or Owner. With the Owner’s approval, the Architect shall adjust the schedule, if necessary, as the 
Project proceeds until the commencement of construction.  
 
§ 3.1.4 The Architect shall not be responsible for an Owner’s directive or substitution made without the Architect’s 
approval. 
 
§ 3.1.5 The Architect shall, at appropriate times, contact the governmental authorities required to approve the 
Construction Documents and the entities providing utility services to the Project. In designing the Project, the 
Architect shall respond to applicable design requirements imposed by such governmental authorities and by such 
entities providing utility services. 
 
§ 3.1.6 The Architect shall assist the Owner in connection with the Owner’s responsibility for filing documents 
required for the approval of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. 
 
§ 3.2 SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE SERVICES 
§ 3.2.1 The Architect shall review the program and other information furnished by the Owner, and shall review laws, 
codes, and regulations applicable to the Architect’s services.  
 
§ 3.2.2 The Architect shall prepare a preliminary evaluation of the Owner’s program, schedule, budget for the Cost 
of the Work, Project site, and the proposed procurement or delivery method and other Initial Information, each in 
terms of the other, to ascertain the requirements of the Project. The Architect shall notify the Owner of (1) any 
inconsistencies discovered in the information, and (2) other information or consulting services that may be 
reasonably needed for the Project. 
 
§ 3.2.3 The Architect shall present its preliminary evaluation to the Owner and the Contractor and shall discuss with 
the Owner alternative approaches to design and construction of the Project, including the feasibility of incorporating 
environmentally responsible design approaches. The Architect shall reach an understanding with the Owner and the 
Contractor regarding the requirements of the Project.  
 
§ 3.2.4 Based on the Project’s requirements agreed upon with the Owner, the Architect shall prepare and present for 
the Owner’s approval a preliminary design illustrating the scale and relationship of the Project components. 
 
§ 3.2.5 Based on the Owner’s approval of the preliminary design, the Architect shall prepare Schematic Design 
Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Schematic Design Documents shall consist of drawings and other 
documents including a site plan, if appropriate, and preliminary building plans, sections and elevations; and may 
include some combination of study models, perspective sketches, or digital modeling. Preliminary selections of 
major building systems and construction materials shall be noted on the drawings or described in writing. 
 
§ 3.2.5.1 The Architect shall consider environmentally responsible design alternatives, such as material choices and 
building orientation, together with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design that 
is consistent with the Owner’s program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work. The Owner may obtain other 
environmentally responsible design services under Article 4. 
 
§ 3.2.5.2 The Architect shall consider the value of alternative materials, building systems and equipment, together 
with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design for the Project that is consistent 
with the Owner’s program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work.  
AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
9 

 



 
§ 3.2.6 The Architect shall submit to the Owner an estimate of the Cost of the Work prepared in accordance with 
Section 6.3.  
 
§ 3.2.7 The Architect shall submit the Schematic Design Documents to the Owner, and request the Owner’s 
approval.  
 
§ 3.3 DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE SERVICES 
§ 3.3.1 Based on the Owner’s approval of the Schematic Design Documents, and on the Owner’s authorization of 
any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare 
Design Development Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Design Development Documents shall illustrate and 
describe the development of the approved Schematic Design Documents and shall consist of drawings and other 
documents including plans, sections, elevations, typical construction details, and diagrammatic layouts of building 
systems to fix and describe the size and character of the Project as to architectural, structural, mechanical and 
electrical systems, and such other elements as may be appropriate. The Design Development Documents shall also 
include outline specifications that identify major materials and systems and establish in general their quality levels. 
 
§ 3.3.2 The Architect shall update the estimate of the Cost of the Work.  
 
§ 3.3.3 The Architect shall submit the Design Development Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any 
adjustments to the estimate of the Cost of the Work, and request the Owner’s approval.  
 
§ 3.4 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE SERVICES 
§ 3.4.1 Based on the Owner’s approval of the Design Development Documents, and on the Owner’s authorization of 
any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare 
Construction Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Construction Documents shall illustrate and describe the 
further development of the approved Design Development Documents and shall consist of Drawings and 
Specifications setting forth in detail the quality levels of materials and systems and other requirements for the 
construction of the Work. The Owner and Architect acknowledge that in order to construct the Work the Contractor 
will provide additional information, including Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and other similar submittals, 
which the Architect shall review in accordance with Section 3.6.4.  
 
§ 3.4.2 The Architect shall incorporate into the Construction Documents the design requirements of governmental 
authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.  
 
§ 3.4.3 During the development of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in the 
development and preparation of (1) bidding and procurement information that describes the time, place and 
conditions of bidding, including bidding or proposal forms; (2) the form of agreement between the Owner and 
Contractor; and (3) the Conditions of the Contract for Construction (General, Supplementary and other Conditions). 
The Architect shall also compile a project manual that includes the Conditions of the Contract for Construction and 
Specifications and may include bidding requirements and sample forms.  
 
§ 3.4.4 The Architect shall update the estimate for the Cost of the Work.  
 
§ 3.4.5 The Architect shall submit the Construction Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any adjustments 
to the estimate of the Cost of the Work, take any action required under Section 6.5, and request the Owner’s 
approval.  
 
§ 3.5 BIDDING OR NEGOTIATION PHASE SERVICES 
§ 3.5.1 GENERAL 
The Architect shall assist the Owner in establishing a list of prospective contractors. Following the Owner’s 
approval of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in (1) obtaining either competitive 
bids or negotiated proposals in accordance with the Construction Manager at Risk delivery method; (2) confirming 
responsiveness of bids or proposals; (3) determining the successful bid or proposal, if any; and, (4) awarding and 
preparing contracts for construction.  
 

AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
10 

 



§ 3.5.2 COMPETITIVE BIDDING 
§ 3.5.2.1 Bidding Documents shall consist of bidding requirements for the Construction Manager at Risk delivery 
method and proposed Contract Documents.  
 
§ 3.5.2.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in bidding the Project by 

.1 procuring the reproduction of Bidding Documents for distribution to prospective bidders;  

.2 distributing the Bidding Documents to prospective bidders, requesting their return upon completion 
of the bidding process, and maintaining a log of distribution and retrieval and of the amounts of 
deposits, if any, received from and returned to prospective bidders; 

.3 organizing and conducting a pre-bid conference for prospective bidders; 

.4 preparing responses to questions from prospective bidders and providing clarifications and 
interpretations of the Bidding Documents to all prospective bidders in the form of addenda; and 

.5 organizing and conducting the opening of the bids, and subsequently documenting and distributing 
the bidding results, as directed by the Owner.  

 
§ 3.5.2.3 The Architect shall consider requests for substitutions, if the Bidding Documents permit substitutions, and 
shall prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved substitutions to all prospective bidders.  
 
§ 3.5.3 NEGOTIATED PROPOSALS 
§ 3.5.3.1 Proposal Documents shall consist of proposal requirements and proposed Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.5.3.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in obtaining proposals by 

.1 procuring the reproduction of Proposal Documents for distribution to prospective contractors, and 
requesting their return upon completion of the negotiation process;  

.2 organizing and participating in selection interviews with prospective contractors; and  

.3 participating in negotiations with prospective contractors, and subsequently preparing a summary 
report of the negotiation results, as directed by the Owner. 

 
§ 3.5.3.3 The Architect shall consider requests for substitutions, if the Proposal Documents permit substitutions, and 
shall prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved substitutions to all prospective contractors. 
 
§ 3.6 CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
§ 3.6.1 GENERAL 
§ 3.6.1.1 The Architect shall provide administration of the Contract between the Owner and the Contractor as set 
forth below and in AIA Document A201™–2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction. If the Owner 
and Contractor modify AIA Document A201–2007, those modifications shall not affect the Architect’s services 
under this Agreement unlessthe Construction Agreement between the Owner and the Architect Contractor (the 
“Construction Contract”) amend this Agreement. 
 
§ 3.6.1.2 The Architect shall advise and consult with the Owner during the Construction Phase Services. The 
Architect shall have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in this Agreement. The 
Architect shall not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, nor shall the 
Architect be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents. The Architect shall be responsible for the Architect’s negligent acts or omissions, but shall not 
have control over or charge of, and shall not be responsible for, acts or omissions of the Contractor or of any other 
persons or entities performing portions of the Work. 
 
§ 3.6.1.3 Subject to Section 4.3, the Architect’s responsibility to provide Construction Phase Services commences 
with the award of the Contract for Construction Contract and terminates on the date the Architect issues the final 
Certificate for Payment.  
 
§ 3.6.2 EVALUATIONS OF THE WORK 
§ 3.6.2.1 The Architect shall visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise 
required in Section 4.3.3, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work 
completed, and to determine, in general, if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the 
Work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect shall not 
be required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. On 
AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
11 

 



the basis of the site visits, the Architect shall keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and quality of 
the portion of the Work completed, and report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the Contract Documents and 
from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (2) defects and deficiencies observed in 
the Work.  
 
§ 3.6.2.2 The Architect has the authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever 
the Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect shall have the authority to require inspection or 
testing of the Work in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, whether or not such Work is 
fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith 
either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the 
Contractor, Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees or other persons or entities 
performing portions of the Work. 
 
§ 3.6.2.3 The Architect shall interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the 
Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect’s response to such requests 
shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness. 
 
§ 3.6.2.4 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect shall be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable 
from the Contract Documents and shall be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations 
and decisions, the Architect shall endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, shall not 
show partiality to either, and shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith. The 
Architect’s decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect shall be final if consistent with the intent expressed in the 
Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.6.2.5 Unless the Owner and Contractor designate another person to serve as an Initial Decision Maker, as that 
term is defined in AIA Document A201–2007, Tthe Architect shall render initial decisions on Claims between the 
Owner and Contractor as provided in the Contract Documents and Construction Contract.  
 
§ 3.6.3 CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR 
§ 3.6.3.1 The Architect shall review and certify the amounts due the Contractor and shall issue certificates in such 
amounts. The Architect’s certification for payment shall constitute a representation to the Owner, based on the 
Architect’s evaluation of the Work as provided in Section 3.6.2 and on the data comprising the Contractor’s 
Application for Payment, that, to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, information and belief, the Work has 
progressed to the point indicated and that the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
The foregoing representations are subject (1) to an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract 
Documents upon Substantial Completion, (2) to results of subsequent tests and inspections, (3) to correction of 
minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion, and (4) to specific qualifications expressed by 
the Architect. 
 
§ 3.6.3.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment shall not be a representation that the Architect has (1) made 
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work, (2) reviewed construction 
means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from 
Subcontractors and material suppliers and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor’s right to 
payment, or (4) ascertained how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of 
the Contract Sum. 
 
§ 3.6.3.3 The Architect shall maintain a record of the Applications and Certificates for Payment. 
 
§ 3.6.4 SUBMITTALS 
§ 3.6.4.1 The Architect shall review the Contractor’s submittal schedule and shall not unreasonably delay or withhold 
approval. The Architect’s action in reviewing submittals shall be taken in accordance with the approved submittal 
schedule or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient 
time in the Architect’s professional judgment to permit adequate review. 
 
§ 3.6.4.2 In accordance with the Architect-approved submittal schedule, the Architect shall review and approve or 
take other appropriate action upon the Contractor’s submittals such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, 
but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept 
expressed in the Contract Documents. Review of such submittals is not for the purpose of determining the accuracy 
AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
12 

 



and completeness of other information such as dimensions, quantities, and installation or performance of equipment 
or systems, which are the Contractor’s responsibility. The Architect’s review shall not constitute approval of safety 
precautions or, unless otherwise specifically stated by the Architect, of any construction means, methods, 
techniques, sequences or procedures. The Architect’s approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an 
assembly of which the item is a component.  
 
§ 3.6.4.3 If the Contract Documents specifically require the Contractor to provide professional design services or 
certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials or equipment, the Architect shall specify the 
appropriate performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. The Architect shall review Shop 
Drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by the design professional retained by the 
Contractor that bear such professional’s seal and signature when submitted to the Architect. The Architect shall be 
entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, certifications and approvals 
performed or provided by such design professionals.  
 
§ 3.6.4.4 Subject to the provisions of Section 4.3, the Architect shall review and respond to requests for information 
about the Contract Documents. The Architect shall set forth in the Contract Documents the requirements for requests 
for information. Requests for information shall include, at a minimum, a detailed written statement that indicates the 
specific Drawings or Specifications in need of clarification and the nature of the clarification requested. The 
Architect’s response to such requests shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon, or otherwise with 
reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect shall prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and 
Specifications in response to requests for information.  
 
§ 3.6.4.5 The Architect shall maintain a record of submittals and copies of submittals supplied by the Contractor in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.6.5 CHANGES IN THE WORK 
§ 3.6.5.1 The Architect may, with the Owner’s consent, authorize minor changes in the Work that are consistent with 
the intent of the Contract Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract SumGuaranteed Maximum 
Price or an extension of the Contract Time or Substantial Completion Date. Subject to the provisions of Section 4.3, 
the Architect shall prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives for the Owner’s approval and 
execution in accordance with the Contract Documents.  
 
§ 3.6.5.2 The Architect shall maintain records relative to changes in the Work. 
 
§ 3.6.6 PROJECT COMPLETION 
§ 3.6.6.1 The Architect shall conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the 
date of final completion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion; receive from the Contractor and forward to 
the Owner, for the Owner’s review and records, written warranties and related documents required by the Contract 
Documents and assembled by the Contractor; and issue a final Certificate for Payment based upon a final inspection 
indicating the Work complies with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.6.6.2 The Architect’s inspections shall be conducted with the Owner to check conformance of the Work with the 
requirements of the Contract Documents and to verify the accuracy and completeness of the list submitted by the 
Contractor of Work to be completed or corrected.  
 
§ 3.6.6.3 When the Work is found to be substantially complete, the Architect shall inform the Owner about the 
balance of the Contract Sum remaining to be paid the Contractor, including the amount to be retained from the 
Contract Sum, if any, for final completion or correction of the Work. 
 
§ 3.6.6.4 The Architect shall forward to the Owner the following information received from the Contractor: (1) 
consent of surety or sureties, if any, to reduction in or partial release of retainage or the making of final payment; (2) 
affidavits, receipts, releases and waivers of liens or bonds indemnifying the Owner against liens; and (3) any other 
documentation required of the Contractor under the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.6.6.5 Upon request of the Owner, and prior to the expiration of one year from the date of Substantial Completion, 
the Architect shall, without additional compensation, conduct a meeting with the Owner to review the facility 
operations and performance. 
 
AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
13 

 



ARTICLE 4   ADDITIONAL SERVICES  
§ 4.1 Additional Services listed below are not included in Basic Services but may be required for the Project. The 
Architect shall provide the listed Additional Services only if specifically designated in the table below as the 
Architect’s responsibility, and the Owner shall compensate the Architect as provided in Section 11.2.  
(Designate the Additional Services the Architect shall provide in the second column of the table below. In the third 
column indicate whether the service description is located in Section 4.2 or in an attached exhibit. If in an exhibit, 
identify the exhibit.)
 
Additional Services Responsibility 

(Architect, Owner 
or 

Not Provided) 

Location of Service Description 
(Section 4.2 below or in an exhibit 

attached to this document and 
identified below) 

§ 4.1.1 Programming (B202™–2009) 
 Architect 
Completed   

§ 4.1.2 Multiple preliminary designs 
Architect 
Completed 

 

§ 4.1.3 Measured drawings 
Architect 
Completed 

 

§ 4.1.4 Existing facilities surveys 
Architect 
Completed 

 

§ 4.1.5 Site Evaluation and Planning (B203™–2007) Not Provided  
§ 4.1.6 Building Information Modeling (E202™–

2008) 
Not Provided  

§ 4.1.7 Civil engineering Architect Refer to Section 2.1 
§ 4.1.8 Landscape design Architect Refer to Section 2.1 
§ 4.1.9 Architectural Interior Design (B252™–2007) Not Provided  
§ 4.1.10 Value Analysis (B204™–2007) Not Provided  
§ 4.1.11 Detailed cost estimating Not Provided  
§ 4.1.12 On-site Project Representation (B207™–2008) Not Provided  
§ 4.1.13 Conformed construction documents Not Provided  
§ 4.1.14 As-Designed Record drawings Not Provided  
§ 4.1.15 As-Constructed Record drawings Not Provided  
§ 4.1.16 Post occupancy evaluation Not Provided  
§ 4.1.17 Facility Support Services (B210™–2007) Not Provided  
§ 4.1.18 Tenant-related services Not Provided  
§ 4.1.19 Coordination of Owner’s consultants Architect Refer to Section 2.1 
§ 4.1.20 Telecommunications/data design Not Provided  
§ 4.1.21 Security Evaluation and Planning (B206™–

2007) 
Not Provided  

§ 4.1.22 Commissioning (B211™–2007) Not Provided  
§ 4.1.23 Extensive environmentally responsible design Not Provided  
§ 4.1.24 LEED® Certification (B214™–2012) Not Provided  
§ 4.1.25 Fast-track design services  Not Provided  
§ 4.1.26 Historic Preservation (B205™–2007)  Not Provided  
§ 4.1.27 Furniture, Furnishings, and Equipment Design 

(B253™–2007) 
Not Provided  

   
 
§ 4.2 Insert a description of each Additional Service designated in Section 4.1 as the Architect’s responsibility, if not 
further described in an exhibit attached to this document. 
 
« Refer to Article 11.7 of this agreement for hourly rates.    » 
 
§ 4.3 Additional Services may be provided after execution of this Agreement, without invalidating the Agreement. 
Except for services required due to the fault of the Architect, any Additional Services provided in accordance with 
this Section 4.3 shall entitle the Architect to compensation pursuant to Section 11.3 and an appropriate adjustment in 
the Architect’s schedule.  
AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
14 

 



 
§ 4.3.1 Upon recognizing the need to perform the following Additional Services, the Architect shall notify the Owner 
with reasonable promptness and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. The Architect shall not 
proceed to provide the following services until the Architect receives the Owner’s written authorization:  

.1 Services necessitated by a change in the Initial Information, previous instructions or approvals given 
by the Owner, or a material change in the Project including, but not limited to, size, quality, 
complexity, the Owner’s schedule or budget for Cost of the Work, or procurement or delivery 
method;  

.2 Services necessitated by the Owner’s request for extensive environmentally responsible design 
alternatives, such as unique system designs, in-depth material research, energy modeling, or LEED® 
certification; 

.3 Changing or editing previously prepared Instruments of Service necessitated by the enactment or 
revision of codes, laws or regulations or official interpretations; 

.4 Services necessitated by decisions of the Owner not rendered in a timely manner or any other failure 
of performance on the part of the Owner or the Owner’s consultants or contractors; 

.5 Preparing digital data for transmission to the Owner’s consultants and contractors, or to other Owner 
authorized recipients;  

.6 Preparation of design and documentation for alternate bid or proposal requests proposed by the 
Owner; 

.7 Preparation for, and attendance at, a public presentation, meeting or hearing; 

.8 Preparation for, and attendance at a dispute resolution proceeding or legal proceeding, except where 
the Architect is party thereto; 

.9 Evaluation of the qualifications of bidders or persons providing proposals; 

.10 Consultation concerning replacement of Work resulting from fire or other cause during construction; 
or 

.11 Assistance to the Initial Decision Maker, if other than the Architect. 
 
§ 4.3.2 To avoid delay in the Construction Phase, the Architect shall provide the following Additional Services, 
notify the Owner with reasonable promptness, and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. If the 
Owner subsequently determines that all or parts of those services are not required, the Owner shall give prompt 
written notice to the Architect, and the Owner shall have no further obligation to compensate the Architect for those 
services:  

.1 Reviewing a Contractor’s submittal out of sequence from the submittal schedule agreed to by the 
Architect; 

.2 Responding to the Contractor’s requests for information that are not prepared in accordance with the 
Contract Documents or where such information is available to the Contractor from a careful study 
and comparison of the Contract Documents, field conditions, other Owner-provided information, 
Contractor-prepared coordination drawings, or prior Project correspondence or documentation; 

.3 Preparing Change Orders and Construction Change Directives that require evaluation of Contractor’s 
proposals and supporting data, or the preparation or revision of Instruments of Service; 

.4 Evaluating an extensive number of Claims as the Initial Decision Maker; 

.5 Evaluating substitutions proposed by the Owner or Contractor and making subsequent revisions to 
Instruments of Service resulting therefrom; or 

.6 To the extent the Architect’s Basic Services are affected, providing Construction Phase Services 60 
days after (1) the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or (2) the anticipated date of Substantial 
Completion identified in Initial Information, whichever is earlier. 

 
§ 4.3.3 The Architect shall provide Construction Phase Services exceeding the limits set forth below as Additional 
Services. When the limits below are reached, the Architect shall notify the Owner: 

.1 «Two  » ( « 2 » ) reviews of each Shop Drawing, Product Data item, sample and similar submittal of 
the Contractor 

.2 «Eighteen  » ( « 18 » ) visits to the site by the Architect over the duration of the Project Eight during 
design and 10 during construction. 

.3 «One  » ( «1  » ) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine whether such portion of the 
Work is substantially complete in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents 

.4 « One  » ( «1  » ) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine final completion 
 

AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
15 

 



§ 4.3.4 If the services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within « Eighteen  » ( « 18 » ) months of 
the date of this Agreement, through no fault of the Architect, extension of the Architect’s services beyond that time 
shall be compensated as Additional Services; provided that .  Architect understands and agrees that the Bidding and 
ContstructionConstruction Management Phase of this contract may not be consecutive to theoccur immediately 
following the Design Phase.  Project funding will determine the time frame for  biddingfor bidding and construction.  
Should the Bidding and Construction Management phases not immediately follow the Design phase, be consecutive, 
Owner shall not be charged for Additional Services.  [Question from Paige:  How long will the price for 
construction management remain fixed?] 
 
ARTICLE 5   OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
§ 5.1 Unless otherwise provided for under this Agreement, the Owner shall provide information in a timely manner 
regarding requirements for and limitations on the Project, including a written program which shall set forth the 
Owner’s objectives, schedule, constraints and criteria, including space requirements and relationships, flexibility, 
expandability, special equipment, systems and site requirements. Within 15 days after receipt of a written request 
from the Architect, the Owner shall furnish the requested information as necessary and relevant for the Architect to 
evaluate, give notice of or enforce lien rights.  
 
§ 5.2 The Owner shall establish and periodically update the Owner’s budget, as apppropriate, for the Project, 
including (1) the budget for the Cost of the Work as defined in Section 6.1; (2) the Owner’s other costs; and, (3) 
reasonable contingencies related to all of these costs. If the Owner significantly increases or decreases the Owner’s 
budget for the Cost of the Work, the Owner shall notify the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall thereafter 
agree to a corresponding change in the Project’s scope and quality.  
 
§ 5.3 The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on the Owner’s behalf with respect to the Project. 
The Owner shall render decisions and approve the Architect’s submittals in a timely manner in order to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential progress of the Architect’s services. 
 
§ 5.4 The Owner shall furnish surveys to describe physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for 
the site of the Project, and a written legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as 
applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands; 
adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and 
contours of the site; locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements 
and trees; and information concerning available utility services and lines, both public and private, above and below 
grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a Project benchmark. 
 
§ 5.5 The Owner shall furnish services of geotechnical engineers, which may include but are not limited to test 
borings, test pits, determinations of soil bearing values, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, seismic 
evaluation, ground corrosion tests and resistivity tests, including necessary operations for anticipating subsoil 
conditions, with written reports and appropriate recommendations. 
 
§ 5.6 The Owner shall coordinate the services of its own consultants with those services provided by the Architect. 
Upon the Architect’s request, the Owner shall furnish copies of the scope of services in the contracts between the 
Owner and the Owner’s consultants. The Owner shall furnish the services of consultants other than those designated 
in this Agreement, or authorize the Architect to furnish them as an Additional Service, when the Architect requests 
such services and demonstrates that they are reasonably required by the scope of the Project. The Owner shall 
require that its consultants maintain professional liability insurance as appropriate to the services provided. 
 
§ 5.7 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections and reports required by law or the Contract Documents, such as 
structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous materials. 
 
§ 5.8 The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be 
reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner’s needs and interests.  
 
§ 5.9 The Owner shall provide prompt written notice to the Architect if the Owner becomes aware of any fault or 
defect in the Project, including errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s Instruments of Service. 
 
§ 5.10 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, or when direct communications have been specially 
authorized, the Owner shall endeavor to communicate with the Contractor and the Architect’s consultants through 

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
16 

 



the Architect about matters arising out of or relating to the Contract Documents. The Owner shall promptly notify 
the Architect of any direct communications that may affect the Architect’s services.  
 
§ 5.11 Before executing the Contract for Construction Contract, the Owner shall coordinate the Architect’s duties 
and responsibilities set forth in the Contract for Construction Contract  with the Architect’s services set forth in this 
Agreement. The Owner shall provide the Architect a copy of the executed agreement between the Owner and 
Contractor, including the General Conditions of the Contract for Construction Contract.  
 
§ 5.12 The Owner shall provide the Architect access to the Project site prior to commencement of the Work and shall 
obligate the Contractor to provide the Architect access to the Work wherever it is in preparation or progress. 
 
ARTICLE 6   COST OF THE WORK 
§ 6.1 For purposes of this Agreement, the Cost of the Work shall be the total cost to the Owner to construct all 
elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect and shall include contractors’ general conditions costs, 
overhead and profit, provided that the Architect acknowledges that the Cost of the Work is limited by the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price proposed and approved by the City. The Cost of the Work does not include the 
compensation of the Architect, the costs of the land, rights-of-way, financing, and contingencies for changes in the 
Work or other costs that are the responsibility of the Owner.  
 
§ 6.2 The Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work is provided in Initial Information, and may be adjusted 
throughout the Project as required under Sections 5.2, 6.4 and 6.5. Evaluations of the Owner’s budget for the Cost of 
the Work, the preliminary estimate of the Cost of the Work and updated estimates of the Cost of the Work prepared 
by the Architect, represent the Architect’s judgment as a design professional. It is recognized, however, that neither 
the Architect nor the Owner has control over the cost of labor, materials or equipment; the Contractor’s methods of 
determining bid prices; or competitive bidding, market or negotiating conditions. Accordingly, the Architect cannot 
and does not warrant or represent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from the Owner’s budget for the Cost 
of the Work or from any estimate of the Cost of the Work or evaluation prepared or agreed to by the Architect. 
 
§ 6.3 In preparing estimates of the Cost of Work, the Architect shall be permitted to include contingencies for 
design, bidding and price escalation; to determine what materials, equipment, component systems and types of 
construction are to be included in the Contract Documents; to make reasonable adjustments in the program and 
scope of the Project; and to include in the Contract Documents alternate bids as may be necessary to adjust the 
estimated Cost of the Work to meet the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work. The Architect’s estimate of the 
Cost of the Work shall be based on current area, volume or similar conceptual estimating techniques. If the Owner 
requests detailed cost estimating services, the Architect shall provide such services as an Additional Service under 
Article 4.  
 
§ 6.4 If the Bidding or Negotiation Phase has not commenced within 90 days after the Architect submits the 
Construction Documents to the Owner, through no fault of the Architect, the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the 
Work shall be adjusted to reflect changes in the general level of prices in the applicable construction market. 
 
§ 6.5 If at any time the Architect’s estimate of the Cost of the Work exceeds the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the 
Work, the Architect shall make appropriate recommendations to the Owner to adjust the Project’s size, quality or 
budget for the Cost of the Work, and the Owner shall cooperate with the Architect in making such adjustments.  
 
§ 6.6 If the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase 
Services is exceeded by the Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposallowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal, the 
Owner shall 

.1 give written approval of an increase in the budget for the Cost of the Work; 

.2 authorize rebidding or renegotiating of the Project within a reasonable time; 

.3 terminate in accordance with Section 9.5;  

.4 in consultation with the Architect, revise the Project program, scope, or quality as required to reduce 
the Cost of the Work; or 

.5 implement any other mutually acceptable alternative. 
 
§ 6.7 If the Owner chooses to proceed under Section 6.6.4, the Architect, without additional compensation, shall 
modify the Construction Documents as necessary to comply with the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work at the 
conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase Services, or the budget as adjusted under Section 6.6.1. The 
AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
17 

 



Architect’s modification of the Construction Documents shall be the limit of the Architect’s responsibility under this 
Article 6.  
 
ARTICLE 7   COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES 
§ 7.1 The Architect and the Owner warrant that in transmitting the plans and specifications for the project (the 
Instruments of Service), or any other information, the transmitting party is the copyright owner of such information 
or has permission from the copyright owner to transmit such information for its use on the Project. If the Owner and 
Architect intend to transmit Instruments of Service or any other information or documentation in digital form, they 
shall endeavor to establish necessary protocols governing such transmissions. 
 
§ 7.2 The Architect and the Architect’s consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective 
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, statutory and 
other reserved rights, including copyrights. Submission or distribution of Instruments of Service to meet official 
regulatory requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication 
in derogation of the reserved rights of the Architect and the Architect’s consultants. 
 
§ 7.3 Upon execution of this Agreement, the Architect grants to the Owner a nonexclusive license to use the 
Architect’s Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, maintaining, altering 
and adding to the Project, provided that the Owner substantially performs its obligations, including prompt payment 
of all sums when due, under this Agreement. The Architect shall obtain similar nonexclusive licenses from the 
Architect’s consultants consistent with this Agreement. The license granted under this section permits the Owner to 
authorize the Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers, as well as the 
Owner’s consultants and separate contractors, to reproduce applicable portions of the Instruments of Service solely 
and exclusively for use in performing services or construction for the Project. If the Architect rightfully terminates 
this Agreement for cause as provided in Section 9.4, the license granted in this Section 7.3 shall terminate.  If this 
agreement is terminated, the Owner is permitted to authorize the similarly credentialed professionals to reproduce, 
and where permitted by law, to make changes, corrections or additions to the Instruments of Service for purposes of 
completing, issuing, and maintaining the project. 
 
§ 7.3.1 In the event the Owner uses the Instruments of Service without retaining the author of the Instruments of 
Service, the Owner releases the Architect and Architect’s consultant(s) from all claims and causes of action arising 
from such uses. The Owner, to the extent permitted by law, further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 
Architect and its consultants from all costs and expenses, including the cost of defense, related to claims and causes 
of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and expenses arise from the Owner’s use of 
the Instruments of Service under this Section 7.3.1. The terms of this Section 7.3.1 shall not apply if the Owner 
rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause under Section 9.4.  
 
§ 7.4 Except for the licenses granted in this Article 7, no other license or right shall be deemed granted or implied 
under this Agreement. The Owner shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge or otherwise transfer any license 
granted herein to another party without the prior written agreement of the Architect. Any unauthorized use of the 
Instruments of Service shall be at the Owner’s sole risk and without liability to the Architect and the Architect’s 
consultants. 
 
ARTICLE 8   CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 
§ 8.1 GENERAL 
§ 8.1.1 The Owner and Architect shall commence all claims and causes of action, whether in contract, tort, or 
otherwise, against the other arising out of or related to this Agreement in accordance with the requirements of the 
method of binding dispute resolution selected in this Agreement within the period specified by applicable law, but in 
any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and Architect 
waive all claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 8.1.1. 
 
§ 8.1.2 To the extent damages are covered by property insurance, the Owner and Architect waive all rights against 
each other and against the contractors, consultants, agents and employees of the other for damages, except such 
rights as they may have to the proceeds of such insurance as set forth in AIA Document A201–2007, General 
Conditions of the Contract for Construction Contract. The Owner or the Architect, as appropriate, shall require of 
the contractors, consultants, agents and employees of any of them similar waivers in favor of the other parties 
enumerated herein. 
 
AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
18 

 



§ 8.1.3 The Architect and Owner waive consequential damages for claims, disputes or other matters in question 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential 
damages due to either party’s termination of this Agreement, except as specifically provided in Section 9.7. 
 
§ 8.2 MEDIATION 
§ 8.2.1 Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be subject to 
mediation as a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution, provided that a party may initiate binding dispute 
resolution without mediation to avoid expiration of the Statute of Limitations. If such matter relates to or is the 
subject of a lien arising out of the Architect’s services, the Architect may proceed in accordance with applicable law 
to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines prior to resolution of the matter by mediation or by binding dispute 
resolution. 
 
§ 8.2.2 The Owner and Architect shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other matters in question between 
them by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by the American 
Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of 
the Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to the Agreement, and 
filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The request may be made concurrently with the filing of 
a complaint or other appropriate demand for binding dispute resolution but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in 
advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of 60 days 
from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court order. If an arbitration 
proceeding is stayed pursuant to this section, the parties may nonetheless proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s) 
and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings. 
 
§ 8.2.3 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place 
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall 
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 
 
§ 8.2.4 If the parties do not resolve a dispute through mediation pursuant to this Section 8.2, the method of binding 
dispute resolution shall be the following:  
(Check the appropriate box. If the Owner and Architect do not select a method of binding dispute resolution below, 
or do not subsequently agree in writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, the dispute will 
be resolved in a court of competent jurisdiction.) 
 

[ «  » ] Arbitration pursuant to Section 8.3 of this Agreement 
 
[ « X » ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction within Williamson County, Texas. 
 
[ «  » ] Other (Specify) 

 
«  » 

 
§ 8.3 ARBITRATION 
§ 8.3.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in this Agreement, any 
claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement subject to, but not resolved by, 
mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by 
the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Arbitration Rules in effect on the 
date of this Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to this 
Agreement, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitration.  
 
§ 8.3.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for 
mediation, but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based 
on the claim, dispute or other matter in question would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. For statute 
of limitations purposes, receipt of a written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the 
arbitration shall constitute the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the claim, dispute or other 
matter in question. 
 

AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
19 

 



§ 8.3.2 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity 
duly consented to by parties to this Agreement shall be specifically enforceable in accordance with applicable law in 
any court having jurisdiction thereof. 
 
§ 8.3.3 The award rendered by the arbitrator(s) shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance 
with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 
 
§ 8.3.4 CONSOLIDATION OR JOINDER 
§ 8.3.4.1 Either party, at its sole discretion, may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any 
other arbitration to which it is a party provided that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration 
permits consolidation; (2) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact; 
and (3) the arbitrations employ materially similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s). 
 
§ 8.3.4.2 Either party, at its sole discretion, may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a 
common question of law or fact whose presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, 
provided that the party sought to be joined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an 
additional person or entity shall not constitute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question 
not described in the written consent. 
 
§ 8.3.4.3 The Owner and Architect grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under this 
Section 8.3, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as the Owner and 
Architect under this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 9   TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
§ 9.1 If the Owner fails to make payments to the Architect in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be 
considered substantial nonperformance and cause for termination or, at the Architect’s option, cause for suspension 
of performance of services under this Agreement. If the Architect elects to suspend services, the Architect shall give 
seven days’ written notice to the Owner before suspending services. In the event of a suspension of services, the 
Architect shall have no liability to the Owner for delay or damage caused the Owner because of such suspension of 
services. Before resuming services, the Architect shall be paid all sums due prior to suspension and any expenses 
incurred in the interruption and resumption of the Architect’s services. The Architect’s fees for the remaining 
services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted. 
 
§ 9.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Architect shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice of 
such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Architect shall be compensated for reasonable expenses incurred 
in the interruption and resumption of the Architect’s services. The Architect’s fees for the remaining services and 
the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted, as appropriate. 
 
§ 9.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the 
Architect, the Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven days’ written notice.  
 
§ 9.4 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice should the other party 
fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party initiating 
the termination. 
 
§ 9.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the Architect for the 
Owner’s convenience and without cause. 
 
§ 9.6 In the event of termination not the fault of the Architect, the Architect shall be compensated for services 
performed prior to termination, together with Reimbursable Expenses then due and all Termination Expenses as 
defined in Section 9.7.  
 
§ 9.7 Termination Expenses are in addition to compensation for the Architect’s services and include expenses 
directly attributable to termination for which the Architect is not otherwise compensated, plus an amount for the 
Architect’s anticipated profit on the value of the services not performed by the Architect. 
 
§ 9.8 The Owner’s rights to use the Architect’s Instruments of Service in the event of a termination of this 
Agreement are set forth in Article 7 and Section 11.9. 
AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
20 

 



 
ARTICLE 10   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
§ 10.1 Venue for any conflicts arising out of this Agreement shall lie exclusively in Williamson County, Texas.  This 
Agreement shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, except that if the parties have 
selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern Section 8.3. 
 
§ 10.2 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in AIA Document A201–2007, General 
Conditions of the Construction Contract, to the extent defined therein for Construction. 
 
§ 10.3 The Owner and Architect, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives to this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Architect shall assign this Agreement without the 
written consent of the other, except that the Owner may assign this Agreement to a lender providing financing for 
the Project if the lender agrees to assume the Owner’s rights and obligations under this Agreement.  
 
§ 10.4 If the Owner requests the Architect to execute certificates, the proposed language of such certificates shall be 
submitted to the Architect for review at least 14 days prior to the requested dates of execution. If the Owner requests 
the Architect to execute consents reasonably required to facilitate assignment to a lender, the Architect shall execute 
all such consents that are consistent with this Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to the 
Architect for review at least 14 days prior to execution. The Architect shall not be required to execute certificates or 
consents that would require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the scope of this Agreement.  
 
§ 10.5 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor 
of a third party against either the Owner or Architect. 
 
§ 10.6 Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, the Architect shall have no responsibility for the discovery, 
presence, handling, removal or disposal of, or exposure of persons to, hazardous materials or toxic substances in any 
form at the Project site. 
 
§ 10.7 The Architect shall have the right to include photographic or artistic representations of the design of the 
Project among the Architect’s promotional and professional materials. The Architect shall be given reasonable 
access to the completed Project to make such representations. However, the Architect’s materials shall not include 
the Owner’s confidential or proprietary information if the Owner has previously advised the Architect in writing of 
the specific information considered by the Owner to be confidential or proprietary. The Owner shall provide 
professional credit for the Architect in the Owner’s promotional materials for the Project.  
 
§ 10.8 If the Architect or Owner receives information specifically designated by the other party as “confidential” or 
“business proprietary,” the receiving party shall keep such information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it 
to any other person except to (1) its employees, (2) those who need to know the content of such information in order 
to perform services or construction solely and exclusively for the Project, or (3) its consultants and contractors 
whose contracts include similar restrictions on the use of confidential information.  
 
§ 10.9 The Architect agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the Client against 
damages, liabilities and costs arising from the negligent acts of the Architect in the performance of professional 
services under this Agreement.  The Architect shall not be obligated to indemnify the Client for the Client’s own 
negligence. 
 
 
ARTICLE 11   COMPENSATION 
§ 11.1 For the Architect’s Basic Services described under Article 3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as 
follows: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.) 
 
« Payment for Basic Architectural Services is a fixed fee in the amount of $ 326,250270,000 to be invoiced monthly 
based on the percentage of work completed.    
 
Project Schedule 
 
We anticipate the following time periods for the project phases: 
AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
21 

 



 
Programming   Completed 
 
Schematic Design  3 weeks    
50% Review 
100% Review 
 
Design Development  4 weeks  
50% Review 
100 Review  
 
Construction Documents  13 weeks  
50% Review 
95% Review  
100% Final Deliverables 
 
Total  Design    20 weeks 
 
Bidding    4 weeks  
Building Construction  6 months  
  » 
 
§ 11.2 For Additional Services designated in Section 4.1, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation. If necessary, list specific services to which particular methods of 
compensation apply.) 
 
« Additional Services to be negotiated as a lump sum fee  » 
 
§ 11.3 For Additional Services that may arise during the course of the Project, including those under Section 4.3, the 
Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.) 
 
« Refer to Article 11.7 of this agreement for hourly rates.    » 
 
§ 11.4 Compensation for Additional Services of the Architect’s consultants when not included in Section 11.2 or 
11.3, shall be the amount invoiced to the Architect plus «  » percent ( «  » %), or as otherwise stated below: 
 
«Not Applicable  » 
 
§ 11.5 Where compensation for Basic Services is based on a stipulated sum or percentage of the Cost of the Work, 
the compensation for each phase of services shall be as follows: 
 

Schematic Design Phase «$  65,25054,000.00   » percent  ( «  20» %) 
Design Development Phase «$  48,93740,500.00   » percent  ( « 15 » %) 
Construction Documents 
Phase 

«$130,500.108,00000   
» 

percent  ( « 40 » %) 

Bidding or Negotiation Phase «$ 16,31313,500.00   » percent  ( « 5 » %) 
Construction Phase «$ 65,25054,000.00   » percent  ( « 20 » %) 
       
Total Basic Compensation   $ 

326,250270,000.00one 
hundred  

percent  ( 100  %) 

 
§ 11.6 When compensation is based on a percentage of the Cost of the Work and any portions of the Project are 
deleted or otherwise not constructed, compensation for those portions of the Project shall be payable to the extent 
services are performed on those portions, in accordance with the schedule set forth in Section 11.5 based on (1) the 
lowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal, or (2) if no such bid or proposal is received, the most recent estimate of 

AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
22 

 



the Cost of the Work for such portions of the Project. The Architect shall be entitled to compensation in accordance 
with this Agreement for all services performed whether or not the Construction Phase is commenced. 
 
§ 11.7 The hourly billing rates for services of the Architect and the Architect’s consultants, if any, are set forth 
below. The rates shall be adjusted in accordance with the Architect’s and Architect’s consultants’ normal review 
practices. 
(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.) 
 
«  » 
 
Employee or Category Rate 
Senior     
Principal       
Director     
Senior Project Manager   
Project Manager   
Project Architect    
Architect    
Architectural Intern I    
Architectural Intern II   
Administrative Staff   

$ 240.00 per hour 
$ 220.00 per hour 
$ 200.00 per hour 
$ 185.00 per hour 
$ 170.00 per hour  
$ 150.00 per hour  
$ 125.00 per hour 
$ 105.00 per hour  
$   85.00 per hour 
$   70.00 per hour 

 
§ 11.8 COMPENSATION FOR REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 
§ 11.8.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional Services and include 
expenses incurred by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants directly related to the Project, as follows:  

.1 Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence;  

.2 Long distance services, dedicated data and communication services, teleconferences, Project Web 
sites, and extranets; 

.3 Fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project; 

.4 Printing, reproductions, plots, standard form documents; 

.5 Postage, handling and delivery; 

.6 Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, if authorized in advance by the Owner; 

.7 Renderings, models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials requested by 
the Owner; 

.8 Architect’s Consultant’s expense of professional liability insurance dedicated exclusively to this 
Project, or the expense of additional insurance coverage or limits if the Owner requests such 
insurance in excess of that normally carried by the Architect’s consultants; 

.9 All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses; 

.10 Site office expenses; and 

.11 Other similar Project-related expenditures. 
 
§ 11.8.2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the actual expenses incurred by the Architect and the 
Architect’s consultants plus «Ten  » percent ( «10  » %) of the expenses incurred. 
 
§ 11.9 COMPENSATION FOR USE OF ARCHITECT’S INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE 
If the Owner terminates the Architect for its convenience under Section 9.5, or the Architect terminates this 
Agreement under Section 9.3, the Owner shall pay a licensing fee as compensation for the Owner’s continued use of 
the Architect’s Instruments of Service solely for purposes of completing, using and maintaining the Project as 
follows:  
 
« Not Applicable » 
 
§ 11.10 PAYMENTS TO THE ARCHITECT 
§ 11.10.1 An initial payment of «Zero  » ($ «0  » ) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement and is the 
minimum payment under this Agreement. It shall be credited to the Owner’s account in the final invoice.  
 
§ 11.10.2 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed. 
Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Architect’s invoice. Amounts unpaid «Thirty  » ( «30  » ) 

Formatted Table

AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
23 

 



days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal rate 
prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Architect. 
(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.) 
 
The lower of «Five   » % «per annum  » or the maximum rate allowed under Chapter 2251, Texas Government 
Code. 
 
§ 11.10.3 The Owner shall not withhold amounts from the Architect’s compensation to impose a penalty or 
liquidated damages on the Architect, or to offset sums requested by or paid to contractors for the cost of changes in 
the Work unless the Architect agrees or has been found liable for the amounts in a binding dispute resolution 
proceeding.  
 
§ 11.10.4 Records of Reimbursable Expenses, expenses pertaining to Additional Services, and services performed on 
the basis of hourly rates shall be available to the Owner at mutually convenient times. 
 
ARTICLE 12   SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
Special terms and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows: 
 
« Any element of this Agreement later held to violate a law or regulation shall be deemed void, and all remaining 
provisions shall continue in force.  However, the Owner and the Architect will, in good faith, attempt to replace an 
invalid or unenforceable provision with one that is valid and enforceable, and which comes as close as possible to 
expressing the intent of the original provision. 
 
The Texas Board of Architectural Examiners has jurisdiction over complaints regarding the professional practices of 
persons registered as architects in Texas: 
Texas Board of Architectural Examiners (TBAE) 
P.O. Box 12337 
Austin, Texas 78711 
512/ 305.9000 
 » 
 
ARTICLE 13   SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 
§ 13.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Architect and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be 
amended only by written instrument signed by both Owner and Architect.  
 
§ 13.2 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents listed below: 

.1 AIA Document B101™–2007, Standard Form Agreement Between Owner and Architect  

.2 AIA Document E201™–2007, Digital Data Protocol Exhibit, if completed, or the following: 
 

«  «None » 
 

.3 Other documents: 
(List other documents, if any, including Exhibit A, Initial Information, and additional scopes of 
service, if any, forming part of the Agreement.) 

 
« None » 

 
This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above. 
 

OWNER  ARCHITECT 

      
(Signature) (Signature) 
« Kent Cagle, City Manager      »« 
City of Leander  » 

«Mark E. Watford, FAIA, Principal  »« 
Brown Reynolds Watford Architects, Inc.  » 

(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title) 
 
 

Formatted: AIA Body Text Hanging

AIA Document B101™ – 2007 (formerly B151™ – 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. 
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction 
or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to 
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:37:18 on 10/24/2014 under Order No.9933572360_1 
which expires on 10/06/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:   (1869304134) 

 
24 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 29 

 
Executive Summary 

September 17, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject: Sales Tax Rebate Agreement with Toll Brothers, Highland and Pulte 

Homes  

 
Background:  In Texas, there is a Local Sales and Use Tax of up to 2% that is collected.  

Either the sales tax or the use tax is collected, but not both.  The recipient of the local 

sales tax is based on the location of the sale and the recipient of the local use tax is based 

on the destination of the goods or services provided.  No sales or use taxes are collected 

on the sale of new homes because the sales and use tax has already been collected on the 

individual components of the home.  Currently, no Leander sales taxes are collected from 

the components of Toll Brothers, Highland or Pulte Homes in Leander. In fact, there are 

virtually no sales or use taxes collected for any homebuilder that builds in Leander.  Most 

production builders have large purchase agreements with vendors outside of Leander for 

items such as lumber, doors, windows, cabinets and appliances.  Thus the local sales 

taxes related to these homebuilders for these supplies are sent to cities outside of 

Leander.  In the case where the builder uses a sub-contractor, such as concrete, the sales 

tax will go to the location of the vendor that made the sale or provided the service. 

 

These agreements would pay Toll Brothers, Highland and Pulte homes a 60% of the 1% 

tax if they agree to collect the use tax instead of the sales tax.  In order to do this, they 

must acquire software and employees to track the sales and collect the use tax and remit it 

to the State of Texas.  Currently, their vendors pay the sales tax and the homebuilders 

have no involvement.  The homebuilders also expose themselves to frequent audits by the 



State Comptroller by committing to collect and remit the use tax instead of simply paying 

the sales tax. 

 

Financial Impact:   Approximately $28,100 per year in additional revenue from Toll 

Brothers and Highland.  We do not have an estimate from Pulte at this point because they 

have almost exhausted their inventory of lots in Leander.  This estimate does not include 

inflation or additional lots of added inventory for the three homebuilders.  It is also 

possible that more homebuilders could be added in the future. 

 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval 

 
Attachments:  State Comptroller description of sales and use tax, agreements with 

homebuilders, sales tax diagram, and revenue estimates   

 
Prepared by:  Kent Cagle 



Highland Austin Chapter 380 Agreement Summary

City Chapter 380 Agreements Legal Entity Highland Austin
Individual 

Agreements 
City Use Tax Rate Required 1.00%

City Code 2246102
City Name Leander

Contact Name Kent Cagle
Contact Title City Manager

Street Address 200 W. Willis St.
City, State, Zip Code Leander, TX 78641

Phone Number (512) 528-2702
Email Address kcagle@leandertx.gov

Contact Name
Contact Title Director of Finance

Contact Email

Contact Name Eric Zeno
Contact Title Econ Devel Director

Contact Email ezeno@leandertx.gov

Est. # of Undeveloped Lots 136

Ave Sales Price - 2014 YTD $466,291
Direct Materials (%of sales) 18.00%

Ave Dir Mat Purch / House (today) $83,932

Ave Local City Use Tax/House $839

Ave Use Tax Grant / House $504

Ave Use Tax Rcvd City / House $336

Agreement Term / Length 10 years

Grant Amount / Percentage of 1% City Use Tax 60% of 1%
for Future Direct Payment Permit Purchases

Estimated Benefits for the Agreement - Haustin 0.6% Total HAustin Est Sav - thru Buildout

Existing Undev. Lots / Current Mat. Prices $68,488.82

Existing Undev. Lots/Mat. Price Incr 5% Annually $90,451.68

Existing Undev. Lots/Mat. Price Incr 8% Annually $107,154.19

Estimated Benefits for the Agreement - City 0.4% Total City Est. Sav thru Build-out

Existing Undev. Lots / Current Mat. Prices $45,659.21

Existing Undev. Lots/Mat. Price Incr 5% Annually $60,301.12

Existing Undev. Lots/Mat. Price Incr 8% Annually $71,436.12

mailto:kcagle@leandertx.gov
mailto:ezeno@leandertx.gov


Note:  Based on NO future undeveloped lot purchases/development during 10-year 380 Agreement (ie: most conservative)



Toll Bros., Inc. Chapter 380 Agreement Summary

City Chapter 380 Agreements Toll Bros.

City Use Tax Rate 1.00%
City Code 2246102
City Name Leander

Contact Name Kent Cagle
Contact Title City Manager

Street Address 200 W. Willis St.
City, State, Zip Code Leander, TX 78641

Phone Number (512) 528-2702
Email Address kcagle@leandertx.gov

Contact Name
Contact Title Director of Finance

Contact Email

Contact Name Eric Zeno
Contact Title Econ Devel Director

Contact Email ezeno@leandertx.gov

Est. # of Undeveloped Lots 770

Ave Sales Price - 2014 YTD $500,000
Direct Materials (% of sales) 15.00%

Ave Dir Mat Purch / House (today) $75,000

Ave Local City Use Tax/House $750

Ave Use Tax Grant / House $450

Ave Use Tax Rcvd City / House $300

Agreement Term / Length 10 years

Grant Amount / Percentage of 1% City Use Tax 60% of 1%
for Future Direct Payment Permit Purchases

Estimated Benefits for the Agreement - Toll Bros. 0.6% Total TB Est Sav - thru Buildout

Existing Undev. Lots / Current Mat. Prices $346,500.00

Existing Undev. Lots/Mat. Price Incr 5% Annually $457,614.93

Existing Undev. Lots/Mat. Price Incr 8% Annually $542,116.58

Estimated Benefits for the Agreement - City 0.4% Total City Est. Sav thru Build-out

Existing Undev. Lots / Current Mat. Prices $231,000.00

Existing Undev. Lots/Mat. Price Incr 5% Annually $305,076.62

Existing Undev. Lots/Mat. Price Incr 8% Annually $361,411.05

mailto:kcagle@leandertx.gov
mailto:ezeno@leandertx.gov


Note:  Based on NO future undeveloped lot purchases/development during 10-year 380 Agreement (ie: most conservative)



INVOICE

TO: City of Leander
Attn: Mr. Kent Cagle
200 W. Willis St.
Leander, TX 78641
Phone: (512) 528-2702
Email: kcagle@leandertx.gov

INVOICE NO. INVOICE DATE
0001 Jan. 20, 2016

DESCRIPTION PERIOD
Economic Development Grant July - Dec. 2015

Total Taxable Purchases for the Grant Period $1,200,000.00

Audit Adjustments, Debits or Credits $0.00

Less
Allocated Timely Filer Less Grantee Grant

Sales Discount Admin. Net Distribution Incentive
Tax Fee Fee per Agreement Due

$12,000.00 0.00% 2.00% 60.00% $7,056.00
$12,000.00 0.00% 2.00% 0.00% $0.00
$12,000.00 0.00% 2.00% 60.00% $7,056.00

TOTAL INCENTIVE DUE $7,056.00

Please make checks payable to:

Toll Bros., Inc.
Attn: Evan Ernest
250 Gibraltar Road
Horsham, PA 19044

Please call Evan Ernest with any questions at (215) 938-8222

Grant Effective Date for the Entire Agreement July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2025
Grant Percentage 50% of 1%
Current Grant Period Requested July - Dec. 2015
Attachments

Use Tax Allocated to City of Leander

Toll Bros., Inc. Texas Direct Payment Tax Returns for July - Dec. 2015 and Local Tax Supplement Attached

Toll Bros, Inc.
Use Tax Certificate for City of Leander, Texas

Leander 1% General Fund Use Tax
Austin MTA



CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS AND HIGHLAND HOMES - AUSTIN, LTD. 

 
 This CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made by and between 
the City of Leander, Texas (“City”, also referred to as “Grantor”) and Highland Homes - Austin, 
Ltd. (the “Company”), acting by and through their respective authorized officers and 
representatives. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leander, Texas (“City Council”) has 
investigated and determined that it is in the best interest of the City and its citizens to encourage 
programs, including programs for making loans and grants of public money to promote local 
economic development and stimulate business and commercial activity in the City pursuant to 
Chapter 380, Texas Local Government Code, as amended (“Chapter 380”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company will be engaged in the business of purchasing building 
materials for its use on construction projects within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has advised that it would like to partner with the City, and that 
a contributing factor that would induce the Company to purchase items using a Texas Direct 
Payment Permit and generate economic development and local use tax revenue for the City, that 
would otherwise not be available to the City, would be an agreement by the Grantor to provide 
an economic development grant to the Company; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company desires to purchase and use new building materials within the 
City that will generate additional economic development and use tax revenue for the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has investigated and determined that the Company meets 
the criteria for providing the grants (hereinafter defined), pursuant to Chapter 380, based on, 
among other things, the Company: (i) acquiring properties for development, and constructing 
improvements; (ii) adding taxable improvements to real property in the City; and (iii) creating 
employment opportunities for the citizens of Leander (“Approved Project”);  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has concluded that the Approved Project qualifies for a Grant under 
Chapter 380; and 
 
 WHEREAS, with the approval of this Agreement, the City hereby establishes a program 
authorized by Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code to encourage and induce the 
generation of local use tax; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Grantor has determined that making an economic development grant to 
the Company in accordance with this Agreement will further the objectives of the Grantor, will 
benefit the City and the City’s inhabitants and will promote local economic development and 
stimulate business and commercial activity in the City;  
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND HIGHLAND HOMES - AUSTIN, LTD. – PAGE 1 



 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and on the terms and conditions 
hereinafter set forth, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as 
follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

 
 1. For purposes of this Agreement, each of the following terms shall have the 
meaning set forth herein unless the context clearly indicates otherwise: 
 

“City” and “Grantor” shall mean Leander, Texas. 
 
“Company” shall mean Highland Homes - Austin, Ltd. 
 
“Commencement Date” shall mean September 1, 2015. 

 
 “Effective Date” shall mean September 1, 2015. 

 
“Direct Payment Permit” also referred to herein as a “Texas Direct Payment Permit” shall 
mean that permit issued by the State of Texas authorizing Company to self-asses and pay 
applicable state and local use taxes directly to the State of Texas related to selected portions 
of Company’s taxable purchases.  Texas Rule 3.288 of the Texas Administrative Code 
defines the requirements and responsibilities of Texas Direct Payment Permit holders along 
with any amendments, permutations, or recodifications of such Code or Rules whether 
renaming such permits or otherwise modifying such provisions. 
 
“Event of Bankruptcy or Insolvency” shall mean the dissolution or termination (other than 
a dissolution or termination by reason of a party merging with an affiliate) of a party’s 
existence as a going business, insolvency, appointment of receiver for any part of a 
party’s property and such appointment is not terminated within ninety (90) business days 
after such appointment is initially made, any general assignment for the benefit of 
creditors, or the commencement of any proceeding under any bankruptcy or insolvency 
laws by or against a party and in the event such proceeding is not voluntarily commenced 
by the party, such proceeding is not dismissed within ninety (90) business days after the 
filing thereof. 
 
“Force Majeure” shall mean any delays due to strikes, riots, acts of God, shortages of 
labor or materials, war, terrorism, governmental approvals, laws, regulations, or 
restrictions, or any other cause of any kind whatsoever which is beyond the reasonable 
control of the party. 
 

 “Program” shall mean the economic incentive program established by the City pursuant 
to Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code together with any amendments, 
permutations, or recodifications of such Code provisions whether renaming such 
economic incentive or other modifications thereof. 

 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND HIGHLAND HOMES - AUSTIN, LTD. – PAGE 2 
 



 “Program Grant” shall mean the periodic payments paid by the City to the Company in 
accordance with Section 3 of this Agreement. 
 
“Grant Period” shall mean consecutive six (6) month periods during the term of this 
Agreement, except that the first Grant Period shall begin on the Effective Date and 
continue through and include the last day of December 2015 following the Effective 
Date.  For illustration purposes, assume the Effective Date is September 1, 2015 then the 
first Grant Period would begin on September 1, 2015 and continue through and include 
December 31, 2015. The next Grant Period would begin on January 1, 2016 and continue 
through and include June 30, 2016.  The final Grant Period for the initial 10 year term of the 
Agreement would be from July 1, 2025 and end on August 31, 2025. 
 
“Taxable Items” shall have the same meaning assigned by Sections 151.010 and 
151.0101, TEX. TAX CODE, as amended 
 
“Impositions” shall mean all use taxes that may be imposed by public or governmental 
authority on the Company or any taxable items purchased and used by Company within 
the City. 
 
“Use Tax Receipts” shall mean the Grantor’s receipts from the State of Texas from the 
collection of one percent (1%) general City use tax imposed by the City pursuant to 
Chapter 321 of the Texas Tax Code, attributed to the collection of use tax by Company 
associated with the issuance of Company’s Texas Direct Payment for Taxable Items used 
or consumed in the City.  
 
“Use Tax Certificate” shall mean a certificate or other statement in a form reasonably 
acceptable to the Grantor setting forth the Company’s collection of use tax imposed by 
and received by the Grantor from the State of Texas, for the use of Taxable Items by 
Company in the City for the applicable calendar month during Grant Period which are to 
be used to determine Company’s eligibility for a Grant, together with such supporting 
documentation required herein, and as Grantor may reasonably request. 
 

ARTICLE II 
TERM 

 
 2.01 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and continue 
for a ten (10) year period. 
 
 2.02    This Agreement shall remain in effect until Grantor has made the Program Grants 
set forth in Section 3 of the Agreement, or until otherwise terminated under the provisions of this 
Agreement. 
 
 2.03 This Agreement may be extended for an additional period of time on terms 
mutually acceptable to both parties by a written agreement executed by both parties. 
 
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND HIGHLAND HOMES - AUSTIN, LTD. – PAGE 3 
 



ARTICLE III 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT 

 
 3.01 Grant.  Subject to the Company’s continued compliance of all the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, the Grantor agrees to provide Company with an economic 
development grant from lawful available funds payable as provided herein in an amount equal to 
60% of the Use Tax Receipts, as previously defined herein (the "Grant").  The Grant will be paid 
semi-annually at the end of June and the end of December with the potential exception of the 
final Grant Period during the ten (10) Year period following the execution of the Agreement, 
commencing ________, 2015. The Grant will never include any monies the Company pays or 
owes to the State of Texas for any penalties for late payments, failures to report in a timely 
manner, and the like, related to the Use Tax Receipts. 
 
 3.02 Grant Payment.  Grantor shall pay the Grant for the applicable Grant Period 
within forty-five (45) days after receipt of a Use Tax Certificate from Company following the 
end of each Grant Period, pursuant to Section 4.01.  Company shall submit Use Tax Certificates 
to Grantor within thirty (30) days following the end of the applicable Grant Period, beginning 
with the first Grant Period. For illustration purposes, assume the first Grant Period begins on 
September 1, 2015 and continues through and includes December 31, 2015.  Company would 
submit a Use Tax Certificate to Grantor for the first Grant Period on or before January 30, 2016 
and Grantor would pay the first Grant within forty-five (45) days after receipt of the Use Tax 
Certificate. Further assume that the Use Tax Receipts for the first Grant Period equal Five 
Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00), then the amount of the first Grant would be Three Thousand 
Dollars ($3,000.00). 
 
 3.03 Amended Returns and Audits.  In the event the Company files an amended use 
tax return, or report, or if additional use tax is due and owing, as a result of an audit conducted 
by the State of Texas that increases the Use Tax Receipts for a previous period covered within 
the term of this agreement, the Grant payment for the Grant Period immediately following such 
State approved amendment shall be adjusted accordingly, provided Grantor must have received 
the Use Tax Receipts attributed to such adjustment. As a condition precedent to payment of such 
adjustment, Company shall provide Grantor with a copy of such amended use tax report, tax 
return or audit adjustment, and the approval thereof by the State of Texas.  
 

3.04 Refunds.  In the event the State of Texas determines that the City erroneously 
received Use Tax Receipts, or that the amount of use tax paid to the City exceeds the correct 
amount of use tax for a previous Grant paid to the Company, the Company shall, within thirty 
(30) days after receipt of notification thereof from the City specifying the amount by which such 
Grant exceeded the amount to which the Company was entitled pursuant to such State of Texas 
determination, pay such amount to the Grantor.  The Grantor may at its option adjust the Grant 
payment for the Grant Period immediately following such State of Texas determination to deduct 
there from the amount of the overpayment.  As a condition precedent to payment of such refund, 
the City shall provide Company with a copy of such determination by the State of Texas. 
 
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND HIGHLAND HOMES - AUSTIN, LTD. – PAGE 4 
 



ARTICLE IV 
DOCUMENTATION SUPPORTING THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT 

 
The conditions contained in this Article IV are conditions precedent to the Grantor’s 

obligation to make any Grant payment. 
 

4.01 Use Tax Certificate.  During the term of this Agreement, Company shall within 
thirty (30) days after the end of each six (6) month Grant Period provide Grantor with a Use Tax 
Certificate relating to Use Tax Receipts paid during the Grant Period. The Grantor shall have no 
duty to calculate the Use Tax Receipts or determine Company’s entitlement to any Grant for a 
Grant Period, or pay any Grant during the term of this Agreement until such time as Company 
has provided the Grantor a Use Tax Certificate and Grantor has received the actual Use Tax 
Receipts from the State of Texas attributable to such period.  Company shall provide such 
additional documentation as may be reasonably requested by Grantor to evidence, support and 
establish the use tax paid directly to the State of Texas pursuant to Company’s Direct Payment 
Permit. The Use Tax Certificate for each Grant Period shall at a minimum contain, include or be 
accompanied by the following: 
 

a. A copy of all Texas Direct Payment Permit and self-assessment use tax returns 
and reports during the applicable Grant Period, use tax audit assessments or 
credits, including amended use tax returns or reports, filed by the Company 
during the Grant Period showing use taxes paid directly to the State of Texas 
related to Company’s operations; and 

 
b. Information concerning any refund or credit received by the Company of use tax 

paid by the Company which has previously been reported by the Company as use 
tax paid for a previous Grant Period within the term of this agreement. 

 
 Company will provide to Grantor the Use Tax Certificates from time to time pursuant to 
the terms of the Agreement, which are confidential (“Confidential Information”) and, except as 
otherwise provided herein, may not be disclosed to a third party without the Company’s consent.  
To the extent that any disclosure of the Confidential Information may be required by law (such 
as in response to a public information request or subpoena), Grantor will use reasonable efforts 
to inform Company of the request in sufficient time for Company to assert any objection it may 
have to such disclosure to an appropriate judicial or administrative body. 
 

4.02 Grantor must have received a Use Tax Certificate for the calendar month for 
which payment of a Grant is requested, and Grantor must have received the actual Use Tax 
Receipts for all calendar months covered by the Grant Period.  

 
4.03 The Company intends to issue its Texas Direct Payment Permit to specific 

suppliers or vendors that provide large quantities of building materials or other tangible personal 
property. 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND HIGHLAND HOMES - AUSTIN, LTD. – PAGE 5 
 



 
 
4.04 The Company shall provide the Grantor with a true and correct copy of its Texas 

Direct Payment Permit, which permit shall be kept in full force and effect throughout the term of 
the Agreement. 
  
 4.05 Company or the City shall not have an uncured material breach or default of this 
Agreement. 
 
  

ARTICLE V 
TERMINATION 

 
 5. This Agreement may be terminated upon any one of the following: 
 

(a) by mutual written agreement of the parties; 
 
(b) by Grantor or Company, respectively, if the other party defaults or 

breaches any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement in any material 
respect and such default or breach is not cured within thirty (30) days after 
written notice thereof by the Grantor or Company, as the case may be; 

 
(c) by Grantor, if any Impositions owed to the Grantor or the State of Texas 

by Company shall have become delinquent (provided, however, Company 
retains the rights to timely and properly protest and contest any such 
Impositions); 

 
(d) by Grantor, if Company suffers an Event of Bankruptcy or Insolvency; 

 
(e) by Grantor or Company, respectively, if any subsequent Federal or State 

legislation or any decision of a court of competent jurisdiction declares or 
renders this Agreement invalid, illegal or unenforceable. 

 
(f) by Company, if the City does not pay the applicable Grant amount within 

45 days of receipt of the Use Tax Receipts as required herein covered by a 
valid Use Tax Certificate issued by Company or fails to cure this breach 
within an additional 30 days and so long as the Company is not in default, 
or; 

 
(g) expiration of the term, or any subsequent renewal of the term. 

 
The rights, responsibilities and liabilities of the parties under this Agreement shall be 
extinguished upon the termination of this Agreement except for any rights, responsibilities 
and/or liabilities that accrued prior to such termination. 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND HIGHLAND HOMES - AUSTIN, LTD. – PAGE 6 
 



ARTICLE VI 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
 6.01 Binding Agreement.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement are binding 
upon the parties to this agreement and their respective successors and permitted assigns.  This 
Agreement may be assigned with the express written consent of Grantor, which consent shall not 
be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 
 
 6.02 Limitation on Liability.  It is understood and agreed between the parties that the 
Company and Grantor, in satisfying the conditions of this Agreement, have acted independently, 
and Grantor assumes no responsibilities or liabilities to third parties in connection with these 
actions.  The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Grantor from all such claims, 
suits, and causes of actions, liabilities and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, of any 
nature whatsoever by a third party arising out of the Company’s performance of the conditions 
under this Agreement. 
 
 6.03 No Joint Venture.  It is acknowledged and agreed by the parties that the terms 
hereof are not intended to and shall not be deemed to create a partnership or joint venture 
between the parties.  
 
 6.04 Authorization.  Each party represents that it has full capacity and authority to 
grant all rights and assume all obligations that are granted and assumed under this Agreement. 
 
 6.05 Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder shall be 
deemed received three (3) days thereafter sent by United States Mail, postage prepaid, certified 
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the party at the address set forth below (or such other 
address as such party may subsequently designate in writing) or on the day actually received if 
sent by courier or otherwise hand delivered sent via fax. 
 
 If intended for City, to: 
 

Attn:    Kent Cagle 
City Manager 

 200 W. Willis St. 
 Leander, TX 77493 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Attn:  
  
  
  
 
 
   

 If intended for the Company: 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND HIGHLAND HOMES - AUSTIN, LTD. – PAGE 7 
 



 
Attn:    Dan Miller 

 Chief Financial Officer  
 Highland Homes - Austin, Ltd. 
 5601 Democracy Dr., Suite 300 
 Plano, TX 75024 
 
 

 With a copy to: 
 
Attn:    Brad Gahm 
 General Counsel 
 Highland Homes - Austin, Ltd. 
 5601 Democracy Dr., Suite 300 
 Plano, TX 75024 
  
 

 6.06 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is the entire Agreement between the parties 
with respect to the subject matter covered in this Agreement.  There is no other collateral oral or 
written Agreement between the parties that in any manner relates to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 
 
 6.07 Governing Law.  The laws of the State of Texas shall govern the Agreement; and 
this Agreement is fully performable in Leander, ______ County, Texas with exclusive venue for 
any action concerning this Agreement being in a court of competent jurisdiction in ______ County, 
Texas. 
 
 6.08 Amendment.  This Agreement may only be amended by the mutual written 
agreement of the parties. 
 
 6.09 Legal Construction.  In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, 
such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect other provisions, and it is the 
intention of the parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each provision that is found to be illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable, a provision shall be added to this Agreement which is legal, valid and 
enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to the provision found to be illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable. 
 

6.10 Recitals.  The recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein. 
 

 6.11 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts.  Each of the 
counterparts shall be deemed an original instrument, but all of the counterparts shall constitute one 
and the same instrument and any such counterparts shall be deemed to be incorporated herein. 
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND HIGHLAND HOMES - AUSTIN, LTD. – PAGE 8 
 



 6.12 Survival of Covenants.  Any of the representations, warranties, covenants, and 
obligations of the parties, as well as any rights and benefits of the parties, pertaining to a period 
of time following the termination of this Agreement shall survive termination. 
 

6.13 Sovereign Immunity.  The parties agree that the City has not waived its sovereign 
immunity by entering into and performing its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
 6.14 Dispute Resolution.  Any controversy or claim arising from or relating to this 
Agreement, or a breach thereof shall be subject to non-binding mediation, as a condition 
precedent to the institution of legal or equitable proceedings by any party unless the institution of 
such legal or equitable proceeding is necessary to avoid the running of an applicable statute of 
limitation.  The parties shall endeavor to resolve their claims by mediation.  Grantor and 
Company shall share the costs of mediation equally.  The mediation shall be held in Leander, 
Texas, unless another location is mutually agreed upon.  Agreements reached in mediation shall 
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 
 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND HIGHLAND HOMES - AUSTIN, LTD. – PAGE 9 
 



 EXECUTED as of the ____ day of September, 2015. 
 

THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
By:   
       Kent Cagle, City Manager 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 EXECUTED as of the ____ day of September, 2015. 
 

 
Highland Homes - Austin, Ltd., 
a Texas limited partnership 
 
 
 
By:     Highland Homes-Austin GP, Inc.,  
          a Texas corporation, 
          its general partner  

 
 
 
 
  
Name:  Dan Miller  
Title:  Chief Financial Officer  
 

  

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND HIGHLAND HOMES - AUSTIN, LTD. – PAGE 10 
 



 
 ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
CITY OF LEANDER   § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of September, 2015 by 
Kent Cagle, being City Manager of The City of Leander, Texas, on behalf of said City. 
 

  
 
Name: ______________________________ 
 
Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
My commission expires:   
 

 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
CITY OF PLANO  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of September, 2015 by 
Dan Miller, Chief Financial Officer of Highland Homes Austin-GP, Inc., a Texas corporation, 
General Partner of Highland Homes - Austin, Ltd., a limited partnership, on behalf of said 
limited partnership. 
 

  
 
Name: 
 
Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
My commission expires:   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND HIGHLAND HOMES - AUSTIN, LTD. – PAGE 11 
 



CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS AND PULTE HOMES OF TEXAS, L.P. 

 
 This CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made by and between 
the City of Leander, Texas (“City”, also referred to as “Grantor”) and Pulte Homes of Texas, 
L.P. (the “Company”), acting by and through their respective authorized officers and 
representatives. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leander, Texas (“City Council”) has 
investigated and determined that it is in the best interest of the City and its citizens to encourage 
programs, including programs for making loans and grants of public money to promote local 
economic development and stimulate business and commercial activity in the City pursuant to 
Chapter 380, Texas Local Government Code, as amended (“Chapter 380”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company will be engaged in the business of purchasing building 
materials for its use on construction projects within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has advised that it would like to partner with the City, and that 
a contributing factor that would induce the Company to purchase items using a Texas Direct 
Payment Permit and generate economic development and local use tax revenue for the City, that 
would otherwise not be available to the City, would be an agreement by the Grantor to provide 
an economic development grant to the Company; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company desires to use new building materials within the City that will 
generate additional economic development and use tax revenue for the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has investigated and determined that the Company meets 
the criteria for providing the grants (hereinafter defined), pursuant to Chapter 380, based on, 
among other things, the Company: (i) acquiring properties for development, and constructing 
improvements; (ii) adding taxable improvements to real property in the City; and (iii) creating 
employment opportunities for the citizens of Leander (“Approved Project”);  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has concluded that the Approved Project qualifies for a Grant under 
Chapter 380; and 
 
 WHEREAS, with the approval of this Agreement, the City hereby establishes a program 
authorized by Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code to encourage and induce the 
generation of local use tax; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Grantor has determined that making an economic development grant to 
the Company in accordance with this Agreement will further the objectives of the Grantor, will 
benefit the City and the City’s inhabitants and will promote local economic development and 
stimulate business and commercial activity in the City;  
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND PULTE HOMES OF TEXAS, L.P. – PAGE 1 



 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and on the terms and conditions 
hereinafter set forth, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as 
follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

 
 1. For purposes of this Agreement, each of the following terms shall have the 
meaning set forth herein unless the context clearly indicates otherwise: 
 

“City” and “Grantor” shall mean Leander, Texas. 
 
“Company” shall mean Pulte Homes of Texas, L.P. 
 
“Commencement Date” shall mean September 1, 2015. 

 
 “Effective Date” shall mean September 1, 2015. 

 
“Direct Payment Permit” also referred to herein as a “Texas Direct Payment Permit” shall 
mean that permit issued by the State of Texas authorizing Company to self-asses and pay 
applicable state and local use taxes directly to the State of Texas related to selected portions 
of Company’s taxable purchases.  Texas Rule 3.288 of the Texas Administrative Code 
defines the requirements and responsibilities of Texas Direct Payment Permit holders along 
with any amendments, permutations, or recodifications of such Code or Rules whether 
renaming such permits or otherwise modifying such provisions. 
 
“Event of Bankruptcy or Insolvency” shall mean the dissolution or termination (other than 
a dissolution or termination by reason of a party merging with an affiliate) of a party’s 
existence as a going business, insolvency, appointment of receiver for any part of a 
party’s property and such appointment is not terminated within ninety (90) business days 
after such appointment is initially made, any general assignment for the benefit of 
creditors, or the commencement of any proceeding under any bankruptcy or insolvency 
laws by or against a party and in the event such proceeding is not voluntarily commenced 
by the party, such proceeding is not dismissed within ninety (90) business days after the 
filing thereof. 
 
“Force Majeure” shall mean any delays due to strikes, riots, acts of God, shortages of 
labor or materials, war, terrorism, governmental approvals, laws, regulations, or 
restrictions, or any other cause of any kind whatsoever which is beyond the reasonable 
control of the party. 
 

 “Program” shall mean the economic incentive program established by the City pursuant 
to Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code together with any amendments, 
permutations, or recodifications of such Code provisions whether renaming such 
economic incentive or other modifications thereof. 

 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND PULTE HOMES OF TEXAS, L.P. – PAGE 2 
 



 “Program Grant” shall mean the periodic payments paid by the City to the Company in 
accordance with Section 3 of this Agreement. 
 
“Grant Period” shall mean consecutive six (6) month periods during the term of this 
Agreement, except that the first Grant Period shall begin on the Effective Date and 
continue through and include the last day of December 2015 following the Effective 
Date.  For illustration purposes, assume the Effective Date is September 1, 2015 then the 
first Grant Period would begin on September 1, 2015 and continue through and include 
December 31, 2015. The next Grant Period would begin on January 1, 2016 and continue 
through and include June 30, 2016.  The final Grant Period for the initial 10 year term of the 
Agreement would be from July 1, 2025 and end on August 31, 2025. 
 
“Taxable Items” shall have the same meaning assigned by Sections 151.010 and 
151.0101, TEX. TAX CODE, as amended 
 
“Impositions” shall mean all use taxes that may be imposed by public or governmental 
authority on the Company or any taxable items purchased and used by Company within 
the City. 
 
“Use Tax Receipts” shall mean the Grantor’s receipts from the State of Texas from the 
collection of one percent (1%) general City use tax imposed by the City pursuant to 
Chapter 321 of the Texas Tax Code, attributed to the collection of use tax by Company 
associated with the issuance of Company’s Texas Direct Payment for Taxable Items used 
or consumed in the City.  
 
“Use Tax Certificate” shall mean a certificate or other statement in a form reasonably 
acceptable to the Grantor setting forth the Company’s collection of use tax imposed by 
and received by the Grantor from the State of Texas, for the use of Taxable Items by 
Company in the City for the applicable calendar month during Grant Period which are to 
be used to determine Company’s eligibility for a Grant, together with such supporting 
documentation required herein, and as Grantor may reasonably request. 
 

ARTICLE II 
TERM 

 
 2.01 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and continue 
for a ten (10) year period. 
 
 2.02    This Agreement shall remain in effect until Grantor has made the Program Grants 
set forth in Section 3 of the Agreement, or until otherwise terminated under the provisions of this 
Agreement. 
 
 2.03 This Agreement may be extended for an additional period of time on terms 
mutually acceptable to both parties by a written agreement executed by both parties. 
 
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND PULTE HOMES OF TEXAS, L.P. – PAGE 3 
 



ARTICLE III 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT 

 
 3.01 Grant.  Subject to the Company’s continued compliance of all the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, the Grantor agrees to provide Company with an economic 
development grant from lawful available funds payable as provided herein in an amount equal to 
60% of the Use Tax Receipts, as previously defined herein (the "Grant").  The Grant will be paid 
semi-annually at the end of June and the end of December with the potential exception of the 
final Grant Period during the ten (10) Year period following the execution of the Agreement, 
commencing ________, 2015. The Grant will never include any monies the Company pays or 
owes to the State of Texas for any penalties for late payments, failures to report in a timely 
manner, and the like, related to the Use Tax Receipts. 
 
 3.02 Grant Payment.  Grantor shall pay the Grant for the applicable Grant Period 
within forty-five (45) days after receipt of a Use Tax Certificate from Company following the 
end of each Grant Period, pursuant to Section 4.01.  Company shall submit Use Tax Certificates 
to Grantor within thirty (30) days following the end of the applicable Grant Period, beginning 
with the first Grant Period. For illustration purposes, assume the first Grant Period begins on 
September 1, 2015 and continues through and includes December 31, 2015.  Company would 
submit a Use Tax Certificate to Grantor for the first Grant Period on or before January 30, 2016 
and Grantor would pay the first Grant within forty-five (45) days after receipt of the Use Tax 
Certificate. Further assume that the Use Tax Receipts for the first Grant Period equal Five 
Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00), then the amount of the first Grant would be Three Thousand 
Dollars ($3,000.00). 
 
 3.03 Amended Returns and Audits.  In the event the Company files an amended use 
tax return, or report, or if additional use tax is due and owing, as a result of an audit conducted 
by the State of Texas that increases the Use Tax Receipts for a previous period covered within 
the term of this agreement, the Grant payment for the Grant Period immediately following such 
State approved amendment shall be adjusted accordingly, provided Grantor must have received 
the Use Tax Receipts attributed to such adjustment. As a condition precedent to payment of such 
adjustment, Company shall provide Grantor with a copy of such amended use tax report, tax 
return or audit adjustment, and the approval thereof by the State of Texas.  
 

3.04 Refunds.  In the event the State of Texas determines that the City erroneously 
received Use Tax Receipts, or that the amount of use tax paid to the City exceeds the correct 
amount of use tax for a previous Grant paid to the Company, the Company shall, within thirty 
(30) days after receipt of notification thereof from the City specifying the amount by which such 
Grant exceeded the amount to which the Company was entitled pursuant to such State of Texas 
determination, pay such amount to the Grantor.  The Grantor may at its option adjust the Grant 
payment for the Grant Period immediately following such State of Texas determination to deduct 
there from the amount of the overpayment.  As a condition precedent to payment of such refund, 
the City shall provide Company with a copy of such determination by the State of Texas. 
 
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND PULTE HOMES OF TEXAS, L.P. – PAGE 4 
 



ARTICLE IV 
DOCUMENTATION SUPPORTING THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT 

 
The conditions contained in this Article IV are conditions precedent to the Grantor’s 

obligation to make any Grant payment. 
 

4.01 Use Tax Certificate.  During the term of this Agreement, Company shall within 
thirty (30) days after the end of each six (6) month Grant Period provide Grantor with a Use Tax 
Certificate relating to Use Tax Receipts paid during the Grant Period. The Grantor shall have no 
duty to calculate the Use Tax Receipts or determine Company’s entitlement to any Grant for a 
Grant Period, or pay any Grant during the term of this Agreement until such time as Company 
has provided the Grantor a Use Tax Certificate and Grantor has received the actual Use Tax 
Receipts from the State of Texas attributable to such period.  Company shall provide such 
additional documentation as may be reasonably requested by Grantor to evidence, support and 
establish the use tax paid directly to the State of Texas pursuant to Company’s Direct Payment 
Permit. The Use Tax Certificate for each Grant Period shall at a minimum contain, include or be 
accompanied by the following: 
 

a. A copy of all Texas Direct Payment Permit and self-assessment use tax returns 
and reports during the applicable Grant Period, use tax audit assessments or 
credits, including amended use tax returns or reports, filed by the Company 
during the Grant Period showing use taxes paid directly to the State of Texas 
related to Company’s operations; and 

 
b. Information concerning any refund or credit received by the Company of use tax 

paid by the Company which has previously been reported by the Company as use 
tax paid for a previous Grant Period within the term of this agreement. 

 
 Company will provide to Grantor the Use Tax Certificates from time to time pursuant to 
the terms of the Agreement, which are confidential (“Confidential Information”) and, except as 
otherwise provided herein, may not be disclosed to a third party without the Company’s consent.  
To the extent that any disclosure of the Confidential Information may be required by law (such 
as in response to a public information request or subpoena), Grantor will use reasonable efforts 
to inform Company of the request in sufficient time for Company to assert any objection it may 
have to such disclosure to an appropriate judicial or administrative body. 
 

4.02 Grantor must have received a Use Tax Certificate for the calendar month for 
which payment of a Grant is requested, and Grantor must have received the actual Use Tax 
Receipts for all calendar months covered by the Grant Period.  

 
4.03 The Company intends to issue its Texas Direct Payment Permit to specific 

suppliers or vendors that provide large quantities of building materials or other tangible personal 
property. 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND PULTE HOMES OF TEXAS, L.P. – PAGE 5 
 



 
 
4.04 The Company shall provide the Grantor with a true and correct copy of its Texas 

Direct Payment Permit, which permit shall be kept in full force and effect throughout the term of 
the Agreement. 
  
 4.05 Company or the City shall not have an uncured material breach or default of this 
Agreement. 
 
  

ARTICLE V 
TERMINATION 

 
 5. This Agreement may be terminated upon any one of the following: 
 

(a) by mutual written agreement of the parties; 
 
(b) by Grantor or Company, respectively, if the other party defaults or 

breaches any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement in any material 
respect and such default or breach is not cured within thirty (30) days after 
written notice thereof by the Grantor or Company, as the case may be; 

 
(c) by Grantor, if any Impositions owed to the Grantor or the State of Texas 

by Company shall have become delinquent (provided, however, Company 
retains the rights to timely and properly protest and contest any such 
Impositions); 

 
(d) by Grantor, if Company suffers an Event of Bankruptcy or Insolvency; 

 
(e) by Grantor or Company, respectively, if any subsequent Federal or State 

legislation or any decision of a court of competent jurisdiction declares or 
renders this Agreement invalid, illegal or unenforceable. 

 
(f) by Company, if the City does not pay the applicable Grant amount within 

45 days of receipt of the Use Tax Receipts as required herein covered by a 
valid Use Tax Certificate issued by Company or fails to cure this breach 
within an additional 30 days and so long as the Company is not in default, 
or; 

 
(g) expiration of the term, or any subsequent renewal of the term. 

 
The rights, responsibilities and liabilities of the parties under this Agreement shall be 
extinguished upon the termination of this Agreement except for any rights, responsibilities 
and/or liabilities that accrued prior to such termination. 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND PULTE HOMES OF TEXAS, L.P. – PAGE 6 
 



ARTICLE VI 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
 6.01 Binding Agreement.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement are binding 
upon the parties to this agreement and their respective successors and permitted assigns.  This 
Agreement may be assigned with the express written consent of Grantor, which consent shall not 
be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 
 
 6.02 Limitation on Liability.  It is understood and agreed between the parties that the 
Company and Grantor, in satisfying the conditions of this Agreement, have acted independently, 
and Grantor assumes no responsibilities or liabilities to third parties in connection with these 
actions.  The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Grantor from all such claims, 
suits, and causes of actions, liabilities and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, of any 
nature whatsoever by a third party arising out of the Company’s performance of the conditions 
under this Agreement. 
 
 6.03 No Joint Venture.  It is acknowledged and agreed by the parties that the terms 
hereof are not intended to and shall not be deemed to create a partnership or joint venture 
between the parties.  
 
 6.04 Authorization.  Each party represents that it has full capacity and authority to 
grant all rights and assume all obligations that are granted and assumed under this Agreement. 
 
 6.05 Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder shall be 
deemed received three (3) days thereafter sent by United States Mail, postage prepaid, certified 
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the party at the address set forth below (or such other 
address as such party may subsequently designate in writing) or on the day actually received if 
sent by courier or otherwise hand delivered sent via fax. 
 
 If intended for City, to: 
 

Attn:    Kent Cagle 
City Manager 

 200 W. Willis St. 
 Leander, TX 77493 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Attn:  
  
  
  
 
 
   

 If intended for the Company: 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND PULTE HOMES OF TEXAS, L.P. – PAGE 7 
 



 
Attn:    Greg Salinas 

 Vice President-Finance  
 Pulte Nevada I, LLC 
 4800 Regent Blvd. 
 Irving, TX 75063 
 
 

 With a copy to: 
 
Attn:    Steven Cook 
 General Counsel 
 Pulte Group, Inc. 
 One Capital City Plaza 
 3350 Peachtree Road NE 
 Atlanta, GA 30326 
  
 

 6.06 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is the entire Agreement between the parties 
with respect to the subject matter covered in this Agreement.  There is no other collateral oral or 
written Agreement between the parties that in any manner relates to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 
 
 6.07 Governing Law.  The laws of the State of Texas shall govern the Agreement; and 
this Agreement is fully performable in Leander, ______ County, Texas with exclusive venue for 
any action concerning this Agreement being in a court of competent jurisdiction in ______ County, 
Texas. 
 
 6.08 Amendment.  This Agreement may only be amended by the mutual written 
agreement of the parties. 
 
 6.09 Legal Construction.  In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, 
such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect other provisions, and it is the 
intention of the parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each provision that is found to be illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable, a provision shall be added to this Agreement which is legal, valid and 
enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to the provision found to be illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable. 
 

6.10 Recitals.  The recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein. 
 

 6.11 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts.  Each of the 
counterparts shall be deemed an original instrument, but all of the counterparts shall constitute one 
and the same instrument and any such counterparts shall be deemed to be incorporated herein. 
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND PULTE HOMES OF TEXAS, L.P. – PAGE 8 
 



 6.12 Survival of Covenants.  Any of the representations, warranties, covenants, and 
obligations of the parties, as well as any rights and benefits of the parties, pertaining to a period 
of time following the termination of this Agreement shall survive termination. 
 

6.13 Sovereign Immunity.  The parties agree that the City has not waived its sovereign 
immunity by entering into and performing its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
 6.14 Dispute Resolution.  Any controversy or claim arising from or relating to this 
Agreement, or a breach thereof shall be subject to non-binding mediation, as a condition 
precedent to the institution of legal or equitable proceedings by any party unless the institution of 
such legal or equitable proceeding is necessary to avoid the running of an applicable statute of 
limitation.  The parties shall endeavor to resolve their claims by mediation.  Grantor and 
Company shall share the costs of mediation equally.  The mediation shall be held in Leander, 
Texas, unless another location is mutually agreed upon.  Agreements reached in mediation shall 
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 
 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND PULTE HOMES OF TEXAS, L.P. – PAGE 9 
 



 EXECUTED as of the ____ day of September, 2015. 
 

THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
By:   
       Kent Cagle, City Manager 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 EXECUTED as of the ____ day of September, 2015. 
 

 
Pulte Homes of Texas, L.P., 
a Texas limited partnership 
 
 
 
By:     Pulte Nevada I, LLC  
          a Texas limited liability company, 
          its general partner  

 
 
 
 
  
Name:  Greg Salinas  
Title:  Vice President-Finance  
 

  

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND PULTE HOMES OF TEXAS, L.P. – PAGE 10 
 



 
 ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
CITY OF LEANDER   § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of September, 2015 by 
Kent Cagle, being City Manager of The City of Leander, Texas, on behalf of said City. 
 

  
 
Name: ______________________________ 
 
Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
My commission expires:   
 

 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
CITY OF DALLAS  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of September, 2015 by 
Greg Salinas, Vice President of Pulte Homes of Texas, L.P., a Texas limited liability company, 
General Partner of Pulte Homes of Texas, L.P., a limited partnership, on behalf of said limited 
partnership. 
 

  
 
Name: 
 
Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
My commission expires:   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND PULTE HOMES OF TEXAS, L.P. – PAGE 11 
 



CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS AND TOLL BROS., INC. 

 
 This CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made by and between 
the City of Leander, Texas (“City”, also referred to as “Grantor”) and Toll Bros., Inc. (the 
“Company”), acting by and through their respective authorized officers and representatives. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leander, Texas (“City Council”) has 
investigated and determined that it is in the best interest of the City and its citizens to encourage 
programs, including programs for making loans and grants of public money to promote local 
economic development and stimulate business and commercial activity in the City pursuant to 
Chapter 380, Texas Local Government Code, as amended (“Chapter 380”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company will be engaged in the business of purchasing building 
materials for its use on construction projects within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has advised that it would like to partner with the City, and that 
a contributing factor that would induce the Company to purchase items using a Texas Direct 
Payment Permit and generate economic development and local use tax revenue for the City, that 
would otherwise not be available to the City, would be an agreement by the Grantor to provide 
an economic development grant to the Company; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company desires to use new building materials within the City that will 
generate additional economic development and use tax revenue for the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has investigated and determined that the Company meets 
the criteria for providing the grants (hereinafter defined), pursuant to Chapter 380, based on, 
among other things, the Company: (i) acquiring properties for development, and constructing 
improvements; (ii) adding taxable improvements to real property in the City; and (iii) creating 
employment opportunities for the citizens of Leander (“Approved Project”);  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has concluded that the Approved Project qualifies for a Grant under 
Chapter 380; and 
 
 WHEREAS, with the approval of this Agreement, the City hereby establishes a program 
authorized by Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code to encourage and induce the 
generation of local use tax; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Grantor has determined that making an economic development grant to 
the Company in accordance with this Agreement will further the objectives of the Grantor, will 
benefit the City and the City’s inhabitants and will promote local economic development and 
stimulate business and commercial activity in the City;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and on the terms and conditions 
hereinafter set forth, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as 
follows: 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND TOLL BROS., INC. – PAGE 1 



 
ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 
 
 1. For purposes of this Agreement, each of the following terms shall have the 
meaning set forth herein unless the context clearly indicates otherwise: 
 

“City” and “Grantor” shall mean Leander, Texas. 
 
“Company” shall mean Toll Bros., Inc. 
 
“Commencement Date” shall mean October 1, 2015. 

 
 “Effective Date” shall mean October 1, 2015. 

 
“Direct Payment Permit” also referred to herein as a “Texas Direct Payment Permit” shall 
mean that permit issued by the State of Texas authorizing Company to self-asses and pay 
applicable state and local use taxes directly to the State of Texas related to selected portions 
of Company’s taxable purchases.  Texas Rule 3.288 of the Texas Administrative Code 
defines the requirements and responsibilities of Texas Direct Payment Permit holders along 
with any amendments, permutations, or recodifications of such Code or Rules whether 
renaming such permits or otherwise modifying such provisions. 
 
“Event of Bankruptcy or Insolvency” shall mean the dissolution or termination (other than 
a dissolution or termination by reason of a party merging with an affiliate) of a party’s 
existence as a going business, insolvency, appointment of receiver for any part of a 
party’s property and such appointment is not terminated within ninety (90) business days 
after such appointment is initially made, any general assignment for the benefit of 
creditors, or the commencement of any proceeding under any bankruptcy or insolvency 
laws by or against a party and in the event such proceeding is not voluntarily commenced 
by the party, such proceeding is not dismissed within ninety (90) business days after the 
filing thereof. 
 
“Force Majeure” shall mean any delays due to strikes, riots, acts of God, shortages of 
labor or materials, war, terrorism, governmental approvals, laws, regulations, or 
restrictions, or any other cause of any kind whatsoever which is beyond the reasonable 
control of the party. 
 

 “Program” shall mean the economic incentive program established by the City pursuant 
to Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code together with any amendments, 
permutations, or recodifications of such Code provisions whether renaming such 
economic incentive or other modifications thereof. 

 
 “Program Grant” shall mean the periodic payments paid by the City to the Company in 

accordance with Section 3 of this Agreement. 
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND TOLL BROS., INC. – PAGE 2 
 



“Grant Period” shall mean consecutive six (6) month periods during the term of this 
Agreement, except that the first Grant Period shall begin on the Effective Date and 
continue through and include the last day of December 2015 following the Effective 
Date.  For illustration purposes, assume the Effective Date is October 1, 2015 then the 
first Grant Period would begin on October 1, 2015 and continue through and include 
December 31, 2015. The next Grant Period would begin on January 1, 2016 and continue 
through and include June 30, 2016.  The final Grant Period for the initial 10 year term of the 
Agreement would be from July 1, 2025 and end on September 30, 2025. 
 
“Taxable Items” shall have the same meaning assigned by Sections 151.010 and 
151.0101, TEX. TAX CODE, as amended 
 
“Impositions” shall mean all use taxes that may be imposed by public or governmental 
authority on the Company or any taxable items purchased and used by Company within 
the City. 
 
“Use Tax Receipts” shall mean the Grantor’s receipts from the State of Texas from the 
collection of one percent (1%) general City use tax imposed by the City pursuant to 
Chapter 321 of the Texas Tax Code, attributed to the collection of use tax by Company 
associated with the issuance of Company’s Texas Direct Payment for Taxable Items used 
or consumed in the City.  
 
“Use Tax Certificate” shall mean a certificate or other statement in a form reasonably 
acceptable to the Grantor setting forth the Company’s collection of use tax imposed by 
and received by the Grantor from the State of Texas, for the use of Taxable Items by 
Company in the City for the applicable calendar month during Grant Period which are to 
be used to determine Company’s eligibility for a Grant, together with such supporting 
documentation required herein, and as Grantor may reasonably request. 
 

ARTICLE II 
TERM 

 
 2.01 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and continue 
for a ten (10) year period. 
 
 2.02    This Agreement shall remain in effect until Grantor has made the Program Grants 
set forth in Section 3 of the Agreement, or until otherwise terminated under the provisions of this 
Agreement. 
 
 2.03 This Agreement may be extended for an additional period of time on terms 
mutually acceptable to both parties by a written agreement executed by both parties. 
 
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND TOLL BROS., INC. – PAGE 3 
 



ARTICLE III 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT 

 
 3.01 Grant.  Subject to the Company’s continued compliance of all the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, the Grantor agrees to provide Company with an economic 
development grant from lawful available funds payable as provided herein in an amount equal to 
60% of the Use Tax Receipts, as previously defined herein (the "Grant").  The Grant will be paid 
semi-annually at the end of June and the end of December with the potential exception of the 
final Grant Period during the ten (10) Year period following the execution of the Agreement, 
commencing ________, 2015. The Grant will never include any monies the Company pays or 
owes to the State of Texas for any penalties for late payments, failures to report in a timely 
manner, and the like, related to the Use Tax Receipts. 
 
 3.02 Grant Payment.  Grantor shall pay the Grant for the applicable Grant Period 
within forty-five (45) days after receipt of a Use Tax Certificate from Company following the 
end of each Grant Period, pursuant to Section 4.01.  Company shall submit Use Tax Certificates 
to Grantor within thirty (30) days following the end of the applicable Grant Period, beginning 
with the first Grant Period. For illustration purposes, assume the first Grant Period begins on 
October 1, 2015 and continues through and includes December 31, 2015.  Company would 
submit a Use Tax Certificate to Grantor for the first Grant Period on or before January 30, 2016 
and Grantor would pay the first Grant within forty-five (45) days after receipt of the Use Tax 
Certificate. Further assume that the Use Tax Receipts for the first Grant Period equal Five 
Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00), then the amount of the first Grant would be Three Thousand 
Dollars ($3,000.00). 
 
 3.03 Amended Returns and Audits.  In the event the Company files an amended use 
tax return, or report, or if additional use tax is due and owing, as a result of an audit conducted 
by the State of Texas that increases the Use Tax Receipts for a previous period covered within 
the term of this agreement, the Grant payment for the Grant Period immediately following such 
State approved amendment shall be adjusted accordingly, provided Grantor must have received 
the Use Tax Receipts attributed to such adjustment. As a condition precedent to payment of such 
adjustment, Company shall provide Grantor with a copy of such amended use tax report, tax 
return or audit adjustment, and the approval thereof by the State of Texas.  
 

3.04 Refunds.  In the event the State of Texas determines that the City erroneously 
received Use Tax Receipts, or that the amount of use tax paid to the City exceeds the correct 
amount of use tax for a previous Grant paid to the Company, the Company shall, within thirty 
(30) days after receipt of notification thereof from the City specifying the amount by which such 
Grant exceeded the amount to which the Company was entitled pursuant to such State of Texas 
determination, pay such amount to the Grantor.  The Grantor may at its option adjust the Grant 
payment for the Grant Period immediately following such State of Texas determination to deduct 
there from the amount of the overpayment.  As a condition precedent to payment of such refund, 
the City shall provide Company with a copy of such determination by the State of Texas. 
 
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND TOLL BROS., INC. – PAGE 4 
 



ARTICLE IV 
DOCUMENTATION SUPPORTING THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT 

 
The conditions contained in this Article IV are conditions precedent to the Grantor’s 

obligation to make any Grant payment. 
 

4.01 Use Tax Certificate.  During the term of this Agreement, Company shall within 
thirty (30) days after the end of each six (6) month Grant Period provide Grantor with a Use Tax 
Certificate relating to Use Tax Receipts paid during the Grant Period. The Grantor shall have no 
duty to calculate the Use Tax Receipts or determine Company’s entitlement to any Grant for a 
Grant Period, or pay any Grant during the term of this Agreement until such time as Company 
has provided the Grantor a Use Tax Certificate and Grantor has received the actual Use Tax 
Receipts from the State of Texas attributable to such period.  Company shall provide such 
additional documentation as may be reasonably requested by Grantor to evidence, support and 
establish the use tax paid directly to the State of Texas pursuant to Company’s Direct Payment 
Permit. The Use Tax Certificate for each Grant Period shall at a minimum contain, include or be 
accompanied by the following: 
 

a. A copy of all Texas Direct Payment Permit and self-assessment use tax returns 
and reports during the applicable Grant Period, use tax audit assessments or 
credits, including amended use tax returns or reports, filed by the Company 
during the Grant Period showing use taxes paid directly to the State of Texas 
related to Company’s operations; and 

 
b. Information concerning any refund or credit received by the Company of use tax 

paid by the Company which has previously been reported by the Company as use 
tax paid for a previous Grant Period within the term of this agreement. 

 
 Company will provide to Grantor the Use Tax Certificates from time to time pursuant to 
the terms of the Agreement, which are confidential (“Confidential Information”) and, except as 
otherwise provided herein, may not be disclosed to a third party without the Company’s consent.  
To the extent that any disclosure of the Confidential Information may be required by law (such 
as in response to a public information request or subpoena), Grantor will use reasonable efforts 
to inform Company of the request in sufficient time for Company to assert any objection it may 
have to such disclosure to an appropriate judicial or administrative body. 
 

4.02 Grantor must have received a Use Tax Certificate for the calendar month for 
which payment of a Grant is requested, and Grantor must have received the actual Use Tax 
Receipts for all calendar months covered by the Grant Period.  

 
4.03 The Company intends to issue its Texas Direct Payment Permit to specific 

suppliers or vendors that provide large quantities of building materials or other tangible personal 
property. 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND TOLL BROS., INC. – PAGE 5 
 



 
 
4.04 The Company shall provide the Grantor with a true and correct copy of its Texas 

Direct Payment Permit, which permit shall be kept in full force and effect throughout the term of 
the Agreement. 
  
 4.05 Company or the City shall not have an uncured material breach or default of this 
Agreement. 
 
  

ARTICLE V 
TERMINATION 

 
 5. This Agreement may be terminated upon any one of the following: 
 

(a) by mutual written agreement of the parties; 
 
(b) by Grantor or Company, respectively, if the other party defaults or 

breaches any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement in any material 
respect and such default or breach is not cured within thirty (30) days after 
written notice thereof by the Grantor or Company, as the case may be; 

 
(c) by Grantor, if any Impositions owed to the Grantor or the State of Texas 

by Company shall have become delinquent (provided, however, Company 
retains the rights to timely and properly protest and contest any such 
Impositions); 

 
(d) by Grantor, if Company suffers an Event of Bankruptcy or Insolvency; 

 
(e) by Grantor or Company, respectively, if any subsequent Federal or State 

legislation or any decision of a court of competent jurisdiction declares or 
renders this Agreement invalid, illegal or unenforceable. 

 
(f) by Company, if the City does not pay the applicable Grant amount within 

45 days of receipt of the Use Tax Receipts as required herein covered by a 
valid Use Tax Certificate issued by Company or fails to cure this breach 
within an additional 30 days and so long as the Company is not in default, 
or; 

 
(g) expiration of the term, or any subsequent renewal of the term. 

 
The rights, responsibilities and liabilities of the parties under this Agreement shall be 
extinguished upon the termination of this Agreement except for any rights, responsibilities 
and/or liabilities that accrued prior to such termination. 

 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND TOLL BROS., INC. – PAGE 6 
 



 
ARTICLE VI 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 6.01 Binding Agreement.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement are binding 
upon the parties to this agreement and their respective successors and permitted assigns.  This 
Agreement may be assigned with the express written consent of Grantor, which consent shall not 
be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 
 
 6.02 Limitation on Liability.  It is understood and agreed between the parties that the 
Company and Grantor, in satisfying the conditions of this Agreement, have acted independently, 
and Grantor assumes no responsibilities or liabilities to third parties in connection with these 
actions.  The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Grantor from all such claims, 
suits, and causes of actions, liabilities and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, of any 
nature whatsoever by a third party arising out of the Company’s performance of the conditions 
under this Agreement. 
 
 6.03 No Joint Venture.  It is acknowledged and agreed by the parties that the terms 
hereof are not intended to and shall not be deemed to create a partnership or joint venture 
between the parties.  
 
 6.04 Authorization.  Each party represents that it has full capacity and authority to 
grant all rights and assume all obligations that are granted and assumed under this Agreement. 
 
 6.05 Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder shall be 
deemed received three (3) days thereafter sent by United States Mail, postage prepaid, certified 
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the party at the address set forth below (or such other 
address as such party may subsequently designate in writing) or on the day actually received if 
sent by courier or otherwise hand delivered sent via fax. 
 
 If intended for City, to: 
 

Attn:    Kent Cagle 
 City Manager 
 200 W. Willis St.  
 Leander, TX 77493   
 
With a copy to: 
 
Attn:  
  
  
  
 
 
   

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND TOLL BROS., INC. – PAGE 7 
 



 If intended for the Company: 
 
Attn:    Evan Ernest 

 Vice President  
 Toll Bros., Inc. 
 250 Gibraltar Rd 
 Horsham, PA 19044 

 
 

 6.06 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is the entire Agreement between the parties 
with respect to the subject matter covered in this Agreement.  There is no other collateral oral or 
written Agreement between the parties that in any manner relates to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 
 
 6.07 Governing Law.  The laws of the State of Texas shall govern the Agreement; and 
this Agreement is fully performable in Leander, ______ County, Texas with exclusive venue for 
any action concerning this Agreement being in a court of competent jurisdiction in ______ County, 
Texas. 
 
 6.08 Amendment.  This Agreement may only be amended by the mutual written 
agreement of the parties. 
 
 6.09 Legal Construction.  In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, 
such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect other provisions, and it is the 
intention of the parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each provision that is found to be illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable, a provision shall be added to this Agreement which is legal, valid and 
enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to the provision found to be illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable. 
 

6.10 Recitals.  The recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein. 
 

 6.11 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts.  Each of the 
counterparts shall be deemed an original instrument, but all of the counterparts shall constitute one 
and the same instrument and any such counterparts shall be deemed to be incorporated herein. 
 
 6.12 Survival of Covenants.  Any of the representations, warranties, covenants, and 
obligations of the parties, as well as any rights and benefits of the parties, pertaining to a period 
of time following the termination of this Agreement shall survive termination. 
 

6.13 Sovereign Immunity.  The parties agree that the City has not waived its sovereign 
immunity by entering into and performing its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
 6.14 Dispute Resolution.  Any controversy or claim arising from or relating to this 
Agreement, or a breach thereof shall be subject to non-binding mediation, as a condition 
precedent to the institution of legal or equitable proceedings by any party unless the institution of 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND TOLL BROS., INC. – PAGE 8 
 



such legal or equitable proceeding is necessary to avoid the running of an applicable statute of 
limitation.  The parties shall endeavor to resolve their claims by mediation.  Grantor and 
Company shall share the costs of mediation equally.  The mediation shall be held in Leander, 
Texas, unless another location is mutually agreed upon.  Agreements reached in mediation shall 
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 
 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND TOLL BROS., INC. – PAGE 9 
 



 EXECUTED as of the ____ day of October, 2015. 
 

THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
By:   
       Kent Cagle, City Manager 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 EXECUTED as of the ____ day of October, 2015. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
By:     Toll Bros., Inc.,    
           a Texas corporation            
 
 
 
 
  
Name:  Evan Ernest  
Title:  Vice President  
 

  

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND TOLL BROS., INC. – PAGE 10 
 



 
 ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
CITY OF LEANDER  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of October, 2015 by 
Kent Cagle, being City Manager of The City of Leander, Texas, on behalf of said City. 
 

  
 
Name: ______________________________ 
 
Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
My commission expires:   
 

 
 
STATE OF   § 
    § 
CITY OF   § 
 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the          day of  __________, 
2015 by ____________________, ____________________ of Toll Bros., Inc., a 
______________, the duly authorized representative therein.  
 
 
 
 

_____________________                                
Notary Public,  

                                                                                    Notary’s commission expires: 
 
 
 

 
 
 

CHAPTER 380 GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LEANDER AND TOLL BROS., INC. – PAGE 11 
 







Tax Help: tax.help@cpa.state.tx.us  •  Window on State Government: www.window.state.tx.us
Tax Assistance Call Toll Free: (800) 252-5555  •  Local Number in Austin: (512) 463-4600

Sign up to receive e-mail updates on the Comptroller topics of your choice at www.window.state.tx.us/subscribe.

LOCAL SALES AND USE TAX

BULLETIN
S u s a n  C o m b s ,  Te x a s  C o m p t r o l l e r  o f  P u b l i c  A c c o u n t s

February 2009

Guidelines for Collecting Local Sales and Use Tax

94-105
(02/09)

If you sell taxable items (tangible 

personal property or taxable 

services), you must collect state 

sales or use tax and the appropriate 

local sales or use taxes. Usually, local 

taxes apply to the same goods and 

services as the state tax, but there 

are exceptions. This publication is 

intended to assist sellers with their 

tax-collection responsibilities.

INSIDE THIS BULLETIN
Types of Local Taxing Entities .................................... p. 2

Jurisdictional Boundaries and Combined Areas ........ p. 2

Which Tax to Collect – Sales Tax or Use Tax? ............ p. 3

Local Sales Tax ........................................................... p. 3
One Place of Business
More Than One Place of Business
Orders Received at a Place of Business in Texas; Products Delivered by  

a Third Party Vendor Located Outside Texas (i.e., “Drop Shipments”)
Traveling Salespersons 
Itinerant Vendors 
Temporary Places of Business

Local Use Tax .............................................................. p. 7
“Engaged in Business” – Who Must Collect Local Use Tax
Length of Use Tax Collection Responsibility
Do Not Collect More Than 2 Percent
Products Delivered from Inside Texas: One Place of Business
Products Delivered from Inside Texas: More Than One Place of Business

Collecting Use Tax for Drop Shipments ..................... p. 9
Orders Placed at Seller’s Place of Business in Texas,  

Products Delivered from Seller’s Out-of-State Location
Orders Placed With a Seller Located Outside Texas;  

Products Delivered from Within Texas
Orders Received by a Salesperson Located Outside Texas,  

Products Delivered from Within Texas 

Internet Sales ........................................................... p. 10

Exceptions ................................................................ p. 11
Amusement Services 
Cable TV 
Contractors with Separated Contracts for New Construction and 

for Residential Repair and Remodeling Projects 
Florists 
Landline Telecommunications 
Mobile Telecommunications 
Natural Gas and Electricity 
Nonresidential Real Property Repair and Remodeling
Waste Collection Services



Susan Combs  •  Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts
2 Tax Help: tax.help@cpa.state.tx.us  •  Window on State Government: www.window.state.tx.us

LOCAL SALES AND USE TAX

 BULLETIN
Guidelines for Collecting Local Sales and Use Tax

Types of Local Taxing Entities
There are four types of local taxing entities:

Cities – Incorporated cities (including towns and  
villages) may impose sales and use tax at a rate of up 
to 2 percent. 

Counties – Approximately half of the counties in Texas 
impose sales and use tax. County sales tax rates range 
from 0.5 to 1 percent.

Special Purpose Districts – Special purpose districts 
(SPD) are taxing entities created to generate revenue 
for a specific reason such as crime control, libraries or 
emergency services. SPD sales and use tax rates range 
from 0.125 to 2 percent. 

Transit Authorities – Transit authorities include jurisdic-
tions such as metropolitan transit authorities (MTA), city 
transit departments (CTD), county transit authorities 
(CTA) and advanced transportation districts (ATD). Tran-
sit jurisdictions may impose sales and use tax at rates 
ranging from 0.25 percent up to 1 percent. 

Jurisdictional Boundaries  
and Combined Areas
City sales tax jurisdictional boundaries cannot overlap 
one another. Therefore, a city cannot impose a city 
sales tax in an area that is already within the jurisdic-
tion of another city. 

If a county imposes a sales tax, the tax applies to all 
locations within that county. 

However, different types of taxing entities may cross or 
share boundaries, and boundaries for transit authorities 
and special purpose districts may encompass several 
cities and/or counties. Most urban areas, and many 
suburban areas, have two or more types of local taxing 
jurisdictions in effect in the same geographical area. 
For example, businesses located inside the city limits 
of Corpus Christi are within the boundaries of three 
types of local sales and use tax jurisdictions: the City 
of Corpus Christi, the Corpus Christi Regional Transit 
Authority and the Corpus Christi Crime Control and 
Prevention District. 

Boundaries often cross ZIP codes and streets. For 
example, in some situations, a business located on one 
side of a street will be within the boundaries of different 
taxing jurisdictions than a business located on the other 
side of the street. Two businesses located next door to 
each other may actually be in different jurisdictions. 
There are situations where businesses are bisected by 
two local taxing authorities. A portion of the business is 
physically located within one jurisdiction, while another 
portion is located outside of the jurisdiction. In those 
situations, the location of the cash register determines 
which local sales taxes are collected. 

Moreover, there are several areas in the state where a 
portion of a city or a special purpose district overlaps 
another taxing jurisdiction. The combined total local 
tax rate in these areas technically exceeds the 2 per-
cent cap as explained below, but the Tax Code allows 



 Susan Combs  •  Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts
 Tax Help: tax.help@cpa.state.tx.us  •  Window on State Government: www.window.state.tx.us 3

LOCAL SALES AND USE TAX

 BULLETIN
Guidelines for Collecting Local Sales and Use Tax

the Comptroller to make certain determinations to 
maintain a 2 percent rate in these combined areas. The 
jurisdictions with competing boundaries share the tax 
revenue generated in the combined areas. 

For example, Wise County imposes a 0.5 percent coun-
ty sales tax. When Fort Worth annexed a small portion 
of Wise County, the county tax rate added to the other 
Fort Worth local rates exceeded the 2 percent cap. By 
creating a combined area using the special provisions 
in the law, the 2 percent cap was maintained. Sellers 
use a unique code to report sales subject to the com-
bined area rate, and Fort Worth and Wise County each 
receive a percentage of that revenue.

If a seller does business in one of these areas, it must 
use the combined area local code when reporting sales 
and use taxes instead of the regular city or  
special purpose district code.

Which Tax to Collect – Sales Tax or 
Use Tax?

Sales tax collections are usually based on the location 
of the seller’s place of business; use tax collections are 
based on the customer’s location. 

Specific rules are detailed below, but remember two 
general rules. First, a seller can collect no more than 2 
percent in total local sales and use tax for all applica-
ble jurisdictions, as explained further below. Second, 
if a seller collects a sales tax for a city, county, special 
purpose district or transit authority, the seller cannot 
collect a use tax for another local taxing jurisdiction 
of the same type. A seller may, however, collect more 
than one transit or special purpose district sales tax 
or multiple transit or special purpose district use 
taxes in relation to the same sales transaction. For 
example, a seller located in the city of San Antonio 
should collect sales tax for two transit authorities: the 
San Antonio ATD and the San Antonio MTA. Likewise, 

a seller in Baytown (Chambers County) should col-
lect sales tax for three special purpose districts: the 
Chambers County Health Services SPD, the Baytown 
Fire Control, Prevention and Emergency Medical 
Services District and the Baytown Crime Control and 
Prevention District. 

Local Sales Tax
If the seller delivers the taxable goods or services 
sold to Texas customers from an out-of-state loca-
tion, or from a warehouse or distribution center that 
is not a place of business as defined below, skip this 
section and refer to the section on use tax.

Other than the exceptions listed below, local sales 
taxes are collected based on the location of the  
seller’s place of business. 



Susan Combs  •  Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts
4 Tax Help: tax.help@cpa.state.tx.us  •  Window on State Government: www.window.state.tx.us

LOCAL SALES AND USE TAX

 BULLETIN
Guidelines for Collecting Local Sales and Use Tax

A “place of business” is a store, office or other location 
operated for the purpose of receiving orders for tax-
able goods or services. A manufacturing plant, ware-
house or other location not operated for the purpose 
of receiving orders for taxable items is not a place of 
business, unless three or more sales are made there, or 
orders are taken there, during a year. 

In addition to collecting local sales taxes based on its 
place of business, a seller might be required to collect 
local use taxes for other local taxing jurisdictions. For 
additional information, see the section on use tax.

One Place of Business

If the seller’s only place of business is in a local city, 
county special purpose district, and/or transit author-
ity taxing jurisdiction, sales tax is collected for those 
jurisdictions on all sales of taxable items made to  
customers in Texas.

For example, if a seller’s only place of business is in 
Bastrop, the applicable local sales taxes due are Bastrop 
city sales tax of 1.5 percent and Bastrop County sales 

tax of 0.5 percent on all sales of taxable items delivered 
in Texas. If a seller’s place of business is in Uvalde, the 
applicable local sales taxes due are Uvalde city sales tax 
of 1 percent, Uvalde county sales tax of 0.5 percent and 
Uvalde SPD sales tax of 0.5 percent on all sales of tax-
able items shipped or delivered in Texas.

Note that in the above examples concerning Bastrop 
and Uvalde, no additional local tax can be collected  
on these transactions because the 2 percent cap has 
been reached.

If, however, a seller’s place of business is in Driftwood, 
the applicable local sales taxes due are Dripping Springs 
SPD sales tax of 0.25 percent and Hays County sales 
tax of 0.5 percent on all sales of taxable items made in 
Texas. Therefore, since the seller is not collecting a full 
2 percent of local sales tax, the seller may be required to 
collect up to an additional 1.25 percent of local city or 
transit use tax at the point of delivery. (See the section 
on use tax.)

More Than One Place of Business

When a seller has more than one place of business 
in Texas, the local tax collected is determined by the 
place of business from which the items are shipped, 
not the location where the order is received. If the 
seller ships items from a place of business in a taxing 
jurisdiction, local sales tax must be collected for  
that jurisdiction. 

For example, assume a seller has one place of business 
in El Paso and another place of business in Fort Worth. 
A customer places an order at the place of business in El 
Paso for delivery in El Paso, but the goods are shipped 
from the seller’s place of business in Fort Worth. 

Based on these facts, Fort Worth city sales tax of  
1 percent is due, but there is no applicable county 
sales tax to collect because neither Tarrant County 
nor Denton County (where Fort Worth is located)  
has a local sales and use tax. Fort Worth SPD sales 
tax of .5 percent and the Fort Worth MTA sales tax of 



 Susan Combs  •  Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts
 Tax Help: tax.help@cpa.state.tx.us  •  Window on State Government: www.window.state.tx.us 5

LOCAL SALES AND USE TAX

 BULLETIN
Guidelines for Collecting Local Sales and Use Tax

.5 percent are also due because Fort Worth is where 
the good were shipped, even though the order is 
received in El Paso and the goods are shipped to  
an address in El Paso. Note that in this example, no 
additional local use tax can be collected because the  
2 percent cap has been reached. 

Orders Received at a Place of Business in Texas; 
Products Delivered by Third Party Vendor Located 
Outside Texas (“Drop Shipments”)

If a seller receives an order at a place of business in 
Texas, and the taxable goods or services are delivered 
to Texas customers by a third party supplier located 
outside of Texas, the seller must collect local sales 
tax based on the place of business where the order 
was received. For example, assume a seller operates a 
place of business in Round Rock and receives an order 
from a customer for an item that must be ordered 
from a supplier located outside of Texas. The seller 
receives payment for the item from the customer. The 
seller instructs the supplier to ship the item directly to 
the customer’s location in Texas rather than shipping it 
to the seller’s place of business. Based on these facts, 
the seller should collect local sales taxes based on its 
place of business in Round Rock, which is the place of 
business where the order was received.

If a seller receives an order at a place of business in 
Texas, and the taxable goods or services sold are deliv-
ered to the customer in Texas from the seller’s place of 
business located outside of Texas or from the seller’s 
warehouse, distribution center or other location outside 
Texas (even if it is not a place of business that takes 
orders), the seller must collect local use tax based on 
where the product is delivered. For more information, 
see the section on use tax and drop shipments.

Traveling Salespersons, Itinerant Vendors and 
Temporary Places of Business

Different rules for collecting local taxes apply to trav-
eling salespersons, itinerant vendors (i.e., sellers with 
no place of business) and people operating temporary 
places of business.

Traveling salespersons 

For Texas sales and use tax purposes, traveling sales-
persons are people who operate from a seller’s place 
of business in Texas and go to customers’ locations 
to solicit sales. They generally do not carry inven-
tory ready for immediate sale but may carry samples 
and demos with them. Traveling salespersons receive 
orders from customers at various locations throughout 
the state and then transmit the order information to the 
seller’s place of business for processing. 

If a traveling salesperson receives an order, and deliv-
ery or shipment is made from a location within Texas 
which is not a place of business of the Texas retailer, 
local sales tax is due based on the retailer’s place of 
business from which the salesperson operates. 

For example, assume a Texas retailer has one place of 
business in Lufkin, a salesman that operates out of that 
location who travels throughout Texas soliciting sales 
and a warehouse in New Braunfels that is not a place 
of business from which all orders are shipped. Based 
on these facts, all orders received by the salesman 



Susan Combs  •  Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts
6 Tax Help: tax.help@cpa.state.tx.us  •  Window on State Government: www.window.state.tx.us

LOCAL SALES AND USE TAX

 BULLETIN
Guidelines for Collecting Local Sales and Use Tax

should be considered made from the place of business 
in Lufkin. Therefore, the seller must collect 1.5 percent 
sales tax for the Lufkin city sales tax jurisdiction and .5 
percent sales tax for Angelina County (where Lufkin is 
located) on all sales made by the traveling salesperson 
shipped from the New Braunfels warehouse.

If an order is received by a traveling salesperson and 
delivery or shipment is made from a place of business 
of the Texas retailer, local sales tax is due based on 
the retailer’s place of business from which the item 
is shipped, regardless of the place of business from 
which the salesperson operates. 

For example, assume a seller has two places of busi-
ness in Texas, one in Lufkin and one in New Braunfels, 
and a traveling salesperson based out of Lufkin. Based 
on these facts, local sales tax is due based on the place 
of business from which the orders are shipped. So, if 
the traveling salesperson takes an order in Mission and 
the item is shipped from the New Braunfels place of 
business, then New Braunfels city sales tax is collected 
on the sale, plus either Guadalupe County or Comal 

County sales tax, depending on the exact location of the 
seller’s place of business in the city of New Braunfels. 
No local tax is collected based on the place of business 
in Lufkin, even though the salesperson is based out of 
that place of business.

In addition, note that a business with traveling sales-
persons is considered to be engaged in business in all 
locations where the salespersons have made sales calls. 
Therefore, the seller may be responsible for collecting 
local use taxes in addition to local sales taxes on trans-
actions such as the ones above. (See section on use tax.)

Itinerant Vendors 

A seller who does not operate a place of business 
in Texas and who travels to various locations in this 
state to solicit sales is an “itinerant vendor.” Itinerant 
vendors collect tax for all local taxing jurisdictions in 
Texas where deliveries are made or where the custom-
er takes possession. 

For example, if a person sells rugs from a truck in 
San Antonio, then the seller must collect all appli-
cable local San Antonio sales taxes on each sale:  
San Antonio city, MTA and ATD sales taxes.

If a seller does not operate a place of business in 
Texas, has salespersons who travel throughout the 
state soliciting sales and has orders shipped from a 
location outside of Texas, then no local sales tax is due; 
only local use tax is due based on the point of delivery. 
(See section on Use Tax.)

Temporary Places of Business

A “temporary place of business” is a location that is 
established for the purpose of receiving orders and mak-
ing sales for a limited period of time. For example, a 
booth at a craft fair or art show is a temporary place of 
business. When a seller operates a temporary place of 
business, local sales taxes must be collected for the tax-
ing jurisdictions in effect at that location on all taxable 
items transferred to customers at the time of the sale. 



 Susan Combs  •  Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts
 Tax Help: tax.help@cpa.state.tx.us  •  Window on State Government: www.window.state.tx.us 7

LOCAL SALES AND USE TAX

 BULLETIN
Guidelines for Collecting Local Sales and Use Tax

For example, assume a seller has a place of business 
in Blanco selling jewelry on a regular basis. The seller 
decides to participate in a craft show in Hutto selling 
taxable items at a temporary place of business. For 
Texas sales and use tax purposes the seller is consid-
ered to be operating a place of business in Hutto and 
is required to collect all applicable local sales taxes in 
effect at that location on all sales made there. The fact 
that the seller’s business activities in Hutto are tempo-
rary and that the usual place of business is located out-
side of Blanco, does not affect the seller’s responsibili-
ties for collecting the Hutto local sales taxes. 

If the seller receives an order at a temporary location 
that is later filled and shipped from the seller’s store in 
Blanco, then local sales taxes are based on the place 
of business from which the item is shipped and not 
the temporary location where the order was received. 
Using the example above, assume that a customer 
orders a special piece of jewelry that the seller does 
not have in stock at the temporary place of business in 
Hutto. The seller later ships the item to the customer 
from Blanco. In this case, the seller should collect the 
Blanco local sales taxes and not the Hutto taxes, even 
though the order and payment was received in Hutto.

Local Use Tax
Local use tax is collected based on where the custom-
er receives the goods or services: the point of delivery. 
Texas sellers may be required to collect local use taxes 
if they are engaged in business in the local taxing  
jurisdictions in effect at the point of delivery unless 
the 2 percent cap for local taxes would be exceeded. 

“Engaged in Business” – Who Must Collect Local Use Tax

If a seller of taxable items has any of the following 
within a local jurisdiction or does any of the following 
within a local jurisdiction, then the seller is engaged 
in business in that jurisdiction and may be required to 
collect local use tax on taxable goods or services deliv-
ered into that jurisdiction.

Locations
This includes permanent and temporary locations, 
whether operated by the retailer directly or through 
an agent. It may be an office, warehouse, distribution 
center, storage place, sales or sample room, temporary 
booth or any other place of business.

Sales Representatives
This includes agents, salespersons, canvassers, solici-
tors and independent salespersons operating on behalf 
of direct sales companies. A representative includes  
a seller or other company that accepts returns of  
merchandise purchased from an affiliate or related 
business entity. (See section on Internet sellers for 
additional information.) 



Susan Combs  •  Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts
8 Tax Help: tax.help@cpa.state.tx.us  •  Window on State Government: www.window.state.tx.us

LOCAL SALES AND USE TAX

 BULLETIN
Guidelines for Collecting Local Sales and Use Tax

Make Deliveries 
The use of company vehicles (whether owned, leased 
or rented) to deliver taxable items to customers in  
the taxing jurisdiction means a seller is engaged in 
business there.

Leased Equipment 
If a seller derives income from the lease of equipment 
or other tangible personal property in the taxing juris-
diction, the seller is engaged in business there.

Provide Services 
This includes services provided by company employees 
or authorized service agents, including subcontractors.

Length of Use Tax Collection Responsibility

Once a seller engages in business in a local taxing 
jurisdiction, the applicable local use tax for that  
jurisdiction must be collected (when possible) for  
12 months after the seller was last engaged in busi-
ness there.

Do Not Collect More Than 2 Percent

Two important rules must be remembered when col-
lecting local use tax. First, a seller cannot collect more 
than a total of 2 percent combined local sales and use 
taxes. If an applicable type of local use tax cannot be 
collected at its full rate without going over the 2 per-
cent maximum, even if the use tax is technically due, 
the seller cannot collect it. Second, the seller must  
collect applicable local use taxes in the following 
order by type of tax, making sure not to collect the 
same type of use tax already collected as sales tax on 
the same transaction:

1. City 
2. County 
3. Special purpose districts 
4. Transit tax 

One way to think about applying these rules is to first 
collect all applicable local sales tax relating to the sale 
of the taxable item, which will never be more than  
2 percent. Then, if the 2 percent cap was not reached 
by collecting all applicable sales taxes, collect any 
applicable use tax in the above order without going 
over the 2 percent total. 

Collecting Use Tax on Products Delivered from  
Inside Texas with One Place of Business

If a seller’s only place of business is outside a local tax-
ing jurisdiction, and he ships or delivers taxable items 
inside a taxing jurisdiction, the seller must collect local 
use taxes if he is engaged in business in the jurisdiction. 

For example, assume a place of business is in Spring 
Branch and the seller is delivering its products to a 
customer in the City of Bulverde. The delivery of tan-
gible personal property located within a local taxing 
jurisdiction causes the seller to be engaged in busi-
ness in Bulverde. Therefore, the seller needs to collect 
a total of 8.25 percent sales and use tax on the trans-
action in this order: 6.25 percent state sales tax, plus 
0.5 percent Comal County sales tax, plus 0.5 percent 



 Susan Combs  •  Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts
 Tax Help: tax.help@cpa.state.tx.us  •  Window on State Government: www.window.state.tx.us 9

LOCAL SALES AND USE TAX

 BULLETIN
Guidelines for Collecting Local Sales and Use Tax

Bulverde Library District sales tax, plus 1.0 percent 
Bulverde city use tax. 

Please note that, in this example, if the seller makes a 
delivery into a county or special purpose district which 
imposes a sales tax, that county or special purpose 
district local use tax would not be due because a cus-
tomer does not owe the same type of tax twice. Since 
Comal County and Bulverde Library District (SPD) 
sales taxes are due, the customer does not owe another 
county or special purpose district use tax based on the 
point of delivery. 

Products Delivered from Inside Texas with  
More Than One Place of Business

When a seller has more than one place of business, 
the local taxes that are due are determined by the 
place of business from which the items are delivered. 
If goods or taxable services are delivered from a  
place of business outside a taxing jurisdiction to a 
location inside a taxing jurisdiction, collect use taxes 
for that jurisdiction if the seller is engaged in business 
in that jurisdiction. 

For example, assume a seller has a place of business 
outside the city limits of Blanco in Blanco County and 
a place of business inside the City of Marble Falls. A 
customer places an order for furniture at the Marble 
Falls store that will be delivered to a location inside 
the city limits of Blanco. The seller delivers the fur-
niture in its own vehicle from its place of business in 
Blanco County. Based on these facts, the seller must 
first collect all applicable local sales tax, which is 0.5 
percent local tax for Blanco County. Since the 2 per-
cent cap is not yet reached, the seller needs to deter-
mine whether any applicable use tax applies, starting 
with city use tax. Since the delivery is made into the 
City of Blanco, the 1.5 percent use tax for the City of 
Blanco is due, even though the order was taken at the 
Marble Falls location. The seller has now reached the 
2 percent cap, so no additional local tax can be col-
lected, even if applicable.

Collecting Use Tax for  
Drop Shipments
A seller engaged in business in Texas is responsible 
for collecting Texas state tax and any applicable local 
taxes that apply on all sales that are mailed, shipped or 
delivered to a customer in Texas, including orders that 
are drop shipped. A “drop shipment” is an order that is 
received by a seller at one location and shipped direct-
ly to the customer’s location either by the seller or an 
unrelated third-party supplier from another location.

Orders Placed at a Seller’s Place of Business in Texas; 
Products Delivered from a Seller’s Out-of-State Location

If a seller receives an order at a place of business in 
Texas and the taxable goods or services sold are deliv-
ered to Texas customers from the seller’s out-of-state 
location, and if the seller is engaged in business where 
the product is delivered, the seller should collect use 
tax for any city, county, special purpose district, and/or 
transit authority jurisdictions in effect where the prod-
uct is delivered, if the seller is engaged in business in 
the jurisdiction.



Susan Combs  •  Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts
10 Tax Help: tax.help@cpa.state.tx.us  •  Window on State Government: www.window.state.tx.us

LOCAL SALES AND USE TAX

 BULLETIN
Guidelines for Collecting Local Sales and Use Tax

Orders Placed With a Seller Located Outside Texas; 
Products Delivered From Within Texas

If a seller receives an order at a place of business 
located outside of Texas, but delivery or shipment is 
made to a customer in Texas from a location within 
the state that is not a place of business (such as a 
warehouse or distribution center), the seller must 
collect use tax for any city, county, special purpose 
district, and/or transit authority jurisdictions in effect 
where the product is delivered, if the seller is engaged 
in business in the jurisdiction.

Order Received by Salesperson Located Outside Texas; 
Products Delivered From Within Texas 

If an order is received by a salesperson assigned to a 
place of business located outside Texas, and delivery 
or shipment is made from a location within Texas 
other than a place of business of the seller such as a 
warehouse or distribution center, the seller must  
collect use tax for the city, county, special purpose  
district, or transit authority jurisdictions in effect 
where the product is delivered if the seller is engaged 
in business in the jurisdiction.

Internet Sales
Texas sellers

Internet sellers are required to collect local tax in the 
same way as sales made by any other business. Texas 
sales and use tax applies to taxable items (tangible per-
sonal property and taxable services) on orders taken 
over the Internet when shipped or delivered to a pur-
chaser in Texas. Local sales taxes are based on the sell-
er’s place of business, and use taxes are based on the 
point of delivery to the purchaser. As with sales made 
by traditional “brick and mortar” businesses, Texas 
taxes should not be collected on taxable items shipped 
or delivered by the seller to a location outside of Texas.

A seller’s home is considered a place of business if the 
seller receives or processes three or more orders there 
during a calendar year. For example, a person living 
in Texas who sells three or more items through an 
Internet or online auction Web site has a place of busi-
ness in Texas and has responsibility for collecting and 
reporting tax for the year in which those sales were 
made. The location of the server hosting the Web site 
is not a factor in determining what sales and use taxes 
should be collected.

Internet sellers are responsible for collecting Texas 
state and local taxes if the Internet seller is engaged  
in business within a jurisdiction.

For example, Internet sellers are considered to be 
engaged in business in a jurisdiction if there is a related 
or affiliated entity in the jurisdiction that will accept 
returns of merchandise sold by the Internet seller. The 
related or affiliated entity may be a separate division or 
branch of the same seller or a separate legal entity. More 
specifically, Company A is a traditional brick and mor-
tar retailer with several locations in Texas. Company A 
forms a separate legal entity, Company B.com, to make 
sales over the Internet. Company B.com does not have a 
physical location in Texas; however, customers making 
purchases from Company B.com may return or exchange 
that merchandise at Company A’s physical locations in 



 Susan Combs  •  Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts
 Tax Help: tax.help@cpa.state.tx.us  •  Window on State Government: www.window.state.tx.us 11

LOCAL SALES AND USE TAX

 BULLETIN
Guidelines for Collecting Local Sales and Use Tax

Texas. Based on these facts, Company A is acting as a 
representative for Company B.com, and Company B.com 
has sufficient contacts or “nexus” in any sales tax juris-
dictions in effect at the Company A location.

Out-of-State Sellers

A seller that doesn’t operate a place of business in 
Texas, but who is otherwise engaged in business in this 
state, is required to collect state and local use taxes 
rather than sales taxes on all orders of taxable items 
delivered to customers in Texas. 

Use tax rates are the same as sales tax rates. As previ-
ously stated, a warehouse is not considered a place of 
business for Texas sales and use tax purposes unless 
three or more orders are received at that location. If a 
seller receives an order at a place of business located 
outside of Texas, but delivery or shipment is made to 
a customer in Texas from a location within the state 
that is not a place of business (such as a warehouse 
or distribution center), the seller must collect use tax 
for the city, county, special purpose district or transit 
authority where the product is delivered if the seller is 
engaged in business in the jurisdiction.

Exceptions
If a person sells any of the following services, just fol-
low the instructions below for that service. However, 
the 2 percent cap on collecting local taxes still applies 
to these services.

Amusement Services 

Collect local taxes on amusement services based on 
where the performance or event occurs.

Cable TV 

Collect local taxes on cable television services based 
on where the customer receives the service. 

Exception: Since February 8, 1996, satellite service 
provided to residential and commercial properties, 

commonly known as “direct-to-home” satellite service, 
is exempt from local taxation under the Federal Tele-
communications Act of 1996.

Contractors with Separated Contracts for New 
Construction and for Residential Repair and 
Remodeling Projects 

Contractors working under a separated contract make 
separate charges for materials and for labor. A contractor 
who has a separated contract for new residential con-
struction, new commercial construction or for residential 
repair and remodeling must collect local taxes on the 
charge for materials based on the location of the job site. 

Under a lump sum contract for residential repair and 
remodeling or new construction (residential or nonresi-
dential), the contractor is considered the consumer of 
all materials and must pay tax to suppliers at the time of 
purchase; the contractor does not collect sales tax on the 
charge to the customer. If the supplier delivers goods to 
the job site, the supplier will collect sales tax from the 
contractor based on the location of the supplier’s place 
of business and may also collect local use taxes based on 



Susan Combs  •  Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts
12 Tax Help: tax.help@cpa.state.tx.us  •  Window on State Government: www.window.state.tx.us

LOCAL SALES AND USE TAX

 BULLETIN
Guidelines for Collecting Local Sales and Use Tax

the point of delivery. A lump sum contract is a contract in 
which the agreed contract price is one lump-sum amount 
and in which the charges for incorporated materials are 
not separately stated from charges for labor. 

Florists 

Collect local taxes, including transit taxes, based on 
the location of the place of business that takes the 
order, regardless of where the delivery is made.

Landline Telecommunications Services 

Collect local taxes on landline telecommunications ser-
vices sold on a call-by-call basis based on the location 
of the telephone or other device from which the call or 

other transmission originates. If the seller cannot deter-
mine where the communication originates, collect local 
tax based on the address to which the service is billed.

Mobile Telecommunications Services

Collect local taxes on mobile telecommunications ser-
vices (e.g., cell phones) based on the place of primary 
use. The place of primary use must be the customer’s 
residential street address or the primary business street 
address within the service provider’s licensed service 
area. If the person that contracts for the service with the 
service provider is not the end user, the end user’s place 
of primary use determines which local taxes are due.

Natural Gas and Electricity 

Collect local taxes based on where the customer 
receives the gas or electricity. Residential use of 
gas and electricity is exempt from county, special 
purpose district, and transit tax, and, in many cities, 
from city tax. A list of all cities that currently impose 
sales tax on the residential use of gas and electricity 
and those cities eligible to do so is available online at: 
www.window.state.tx.us/taxinfo/utility/reflist.html.

Nonresidential Real Property Repair and Remodeling

If a contractor provides repair, restoration or remodel-
ing services on nonresidential improvements to realty, 
the entire charge, regardless of whether it is billed as a 
separated or lump sum charge, is subject to local tax. 
Collect local taxes for labor and materials based on the 
location of the job site.

Waste Collection Services

Collect local taxes based on where the waste is collected.

The Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts is an equal opportunity employer and does not discriminate on the basis of 
race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, or disability in employment or in the provision of any services, programs 
or activities.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this document may be requested in alternative formats by calling 
the toll-free number listed at the bottom of the cover page, or by calling (512) 463-4600 in Austin, (512) 475-0900 (FAX). 



AGENDA ITEM # 30 

 
Executive Summary 

September 17, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject: YMCA Letter of Intent & cost-sharing for feasibility study 

 
Background:  The attached Letter of Intent describes the major deal points of a future 

management agreement for the City of Leander to build and the YMCA to equip and 

operate a recreation center in Leander.  The financial details will depend on the results of 

a market study that would be funded 50/50 by the City and the YMCA.  The City and the 

YMCA would own the results of the survey.  The letter of intent and funding the survey 

do not bind the City to a contract with the YMCA, but we should not move forward 

unless there is a serious desire to build a YMCA operated facility in Leander.  The details 

of the agreement will still need to be finalized after the survey is completed. 

 

Financial Impact:   $13,000 from City Manager Contingency Line Item. 

 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval 

 
Attachments:    Market Study Proposal and Letter of Intent 

 
Prepared by:  Kent Cagle 



R E S E A R C H , I N C .
FourSquare

 

 

3577 Chamblee Tucker Road 
Suite A225 
Atlanta, Georgia 30341 
Tel: 404-888-0530 
Fax: 404-881-9860 
info@foursquareresearch.com 
www.foursquareresearch.com 

Submitted by 

A Proposal for a FourSquare 
Market Study 

 
 
 
 
   

 

Assessing Opportunities 
for A New Leander 
YMCA Recreation 
Center in Collaboration 
between the City of 
Leander and the YMCA 
of Greater Williamson 
County 

Presented to  
YMCA of Greater Williamson 
County 
 
September 01, 2015 



       
M a r k e t  R e s e a r c h  a n d  S t r a t e g i c  P l a n n i n g  f o r  N o n p r o f i t s  N a t i o n w i d e  

Via Email  
 

September 1, 2015 
 
Jeff Andresen 
President/Chief Executive Officer 
YMCA of Greater Williamson County 
1812 N Mays 
Round Rock, TX 78680‐0819 

 

 
Dear Jeff: 
 
Thank you for your continued interest in FourSquare Research, Inc. Based on our conversation 
and information provided by Cori, I have updated the proposal for a FourSquare Market Study 
assessing opportunities for a new Leander YMCA Recreation Center in collaboration between 
the City of Leander and the YMCA of Greater Williamson County.  Please find it enclosed for 
your review.   
 
Having conducted over 700 studies for YMCAs and nonprofit organizations throughout the 
United States, we are known for our comprehensive methodology, accurate data, user‐friendly 
reporting and reliable track record.  
 
The attached proposal outlines our experience, scope of work, research methodology, timeline, 
references, a bio of the lead consultant, a schedule, and fees.  If you have any questions, please 
do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. I welcome the opportunity to work with you again. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Li Li 
Managing Partner 
Enclosure 3577 Chamblee Tucker Road 

Suite A225 
Atlanta, Georgia  30341 
Tel: 404-888-0530 
Fax: 404-881-9860 
info@foursquareresearch.com 
www.foursquareresearch.com 



 

FourSquare Research, Inc. 2 

PROPOSAL 
A FourSquare Market Study Assessing Opportunities for  

A New Leander YMCA Recreation Center in Collaboration between the City of 
Leander and the YMCA of Greater Williamson County 

 
COMPANY EXPERIENCE 
 
We only work with nonprofit organizations.  Having conducted over 700 studies for YMCAs 
and nonprofits throughout the United States, the team at FourSquare Research, Inc. has more 
experience with this type of project than any other market research team in the nation.   
 
We specialize in nonprofit organizations and have worked with many YMCAs in Texas 
communities such as Alvin, Houston, Fort Worth, Pearland, League City, Tomball, Magnolia, 
Boerne, Kerrville, Katy, Hood County, Round Rock, and Midland as well as ten studies in the 
greater San Antonio area.  
 
Many of our YMCA studies involved collaborations with municipalities.  Specifically we’ve 
worked with municipalities and local governments such as Burnet and San Antonio in Texas; 
Pratt County in Missouri; Canton, Marietta, Rockdale County, Fairburn, and Roswell in Georgia; 
Barberton and Wadsworth in Ohio; and San Diego in California. We therefore are very familiar 
with opportunities and challenges facing such collaborations.   
 
PURPOSE OF WORK 
 
The study will provide the following data: 
 

 primary market penetration expectations (5‐7 mile radius) for potential YMCA 
membership (number of membership units); projected market penetration at maturity 
based on population growth 

 price points (membership rates) and related unit acquisition expectations specific to 
each price point 

 potential program programs desired by potential users 

 facility requirements 

 phased construction requirements, if applicable 

 member cannibalization factors from the existing Twin Lakes Family YMCA 

 proposed construction date recommendation, which maximizes membership and 
minimizes cannibalization from existing YMCAs. 



 

FourSquare Research, Inc. 3 

Specifically, the study could answer the following questions: 
 
Demand  
 
 How can a new YMCA recreation center better meet community needs and serve the 

residents of Leander and surrounding communities?  
 
 What is the level of demand for a new recreation facility in the community? How many new 

households will join a new recreation facility during the first 12–18 months after opening? 
How many area residents would prefer using daily passes or registering for programs rather 
than joining the new facility? 

 
 What is the potential in revenue generated from new membership units within the  

first 12–18 months of operation of the new recreation facility?  
 

Location 
 
 Which of the proposed locations would prospective members most prefer for a new 

recreation facility?  
 

 Which of the proposed locations would current members of the existing Twin Lakes Family 
YMCA least prefer for a new recreation facility, and which would therefore have the least 
impact on the branch? 
 

Facility Features, Programing and Member Services 
 
 Which configuration of features for a new recreation facility will attract the highest number 

of new membership units and appeal to the fewest current members of the existing Twin 
Lakes Family YMCA? These features could include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

 a first‐class, comprehensive fitness area with a wide variety of cardiovascular and 
muscle‐strengthening equipment that can be segmented according to the specific  
needs of members  
 

 an indoor multipurpose gymnasium with versatile flooring and areas for a variety of 
indoor sports and recreation activities, as well as dividers and retractable hoops so it 
can be used for different types of events 
 

 indoor and/or outdoor aquatics facilities such as an indoor warm‐water pool for 
recreation, therapeutic exercise, and outdoor pool with water playground features, and 
an indoor cool‐water pool for lap swimming and swim teams  
 



 

FourSquare Research, Inc. 4 

 multipurpose space for community meetings such as wellness programs, weight 
management classes, healthy cooking classes, and testing and screening for certain 
health conditions 
 

 first‐class aerobics and dances studios 
 

 outdoor sports fields for baseball, softball, and soccer 
 

 activities for active older adults, with fitness and recreation programs designed 
specifically for them  
 

 creatively‐designed spaces for child care programs, from infant care to preschool  
 

 a fitness, recreation, and adventure center designed and programed specifically for 
youth and teens 
 

 facilities for summer day camps, from traditional camp with crafts and swimming, to 
theme‐based camps like water sports camp and arts camp. 
 

 What types of traditional and new services should be offered to adults of all ages, ranging 
from cardiovascular, weight management, to exercise programs designed specifically for 
women, to new aquatic‐based orthopedic rehabilitation services? 
 

 What types of child care services should be offered for children? These services could 
include preschool, before‐ and after‐school programs, and summer camps with special 
themes. 
 

 What types of programs should be offered for active seniors? These could range from 
fitness programs specifically designed for older adults, to interest groups such as book and 
card clubs, or travel groups.  

 
 What types of new and traditional community programs should be considered for residents 

of the City of Leander? These could include arts and crafts classes, social programs for 
seniors, and continuing education programs for adults? 

 
Marketplace and Pricing 
 
 What are the demographic and psychographic profiles of prospective members?  
 
 What is the new facility’s niche in the area? 
 
 What pricing policy would be most attractive to prospective members? Would the current 

membership pricing structure of the YMCA of Greater Williamson County work? Or should 



 

FourSquare Research, Inc. 5 

the Y and the City consider a new membership structure offering different categories or a 
new pricing point?  

 
Partnerships 
 
 Other than the City of Leander, what other opportunities for partnerships are present? 

Potential partners might include: 

 local public, private, and charter schools 

 hospitals 

 local economic development authorities  

 other nonprofit organizations.  
 
 
STAKEHOLDER AND AUDIENCES 
 
The following stakeholders and audiences will be targeted and included in the study: 
 

 prospective members, who will be identified from households in the service area that 
currently do not belong to a YMCA 

 current members of the existing Twin Lakes Family YMCA 

 the task force of the new YMCA recreation center, including key representatives of the 
Board of Directors of the YMCA, the City, and potential partners, and other community 
representatives who are interested in expanded YMCA programs and services in the 
area. 

 
METHODOLOGY 
 
We will answer these questions through both qualitative and quantitative research. 
 
Qualitative Research 
 
Step 1 The Consultant will conduct secondary research to conceptualize the needs, 

determine the targeted survey boundaries, and audit providers of similar services.  
Previous research and plans for the YMCA will be reviewed.  



 

FourSquare Research, Inc. 6 

 
Step 2 The Client will designate a strategic planning team consisting of four to six members 

to work with the Consultant. This team will meet with the Consultant on four 
occasions:  

 as host for focus groups with staff, board members  
and any potential partners (Step 3) 

 to review the proposed survey (Step 5) 

 to receive the study’s initial findings (Step 8) 

 as host for the presentation of the final report (Step 9). 
 
Step 3 The Consultant will conduct focus group(s) with key board members and senior staff 

of the YMCA. 

 
Quantitative Research 
 
Step 4 The Consultant will develop the survey instrument based on focus groups, market 

audits, exploratory interviews and national trends identified by the Consultant. The 
Consultant will field‐test the instrument for the appropriateness of the questions, 
the chronology and the language. 
 

Step 5 The Consultant will finalize the survey area and review the survey instrument with 
the strategic planning team word‐by‐word, issue‐by‐issue as needed. While the 
actual survey instrument remains proprietary to the Consultant, the design of the 
survey will be unique to, and approved by, the Client.  

 
Step 6 The Consultant will conduct in‐depth telephone interviews with a total of 600 

randomly selected households that currently do not belong to a YMCA and live in 
the targeted survey area.  The targeted survey area will be proposed by the 
Consultant using a census tract‐based map and approved by the Client.  

 
The Consultant will conduct in‐depth telephone interviews with a total of 200 
randomly‐selected current members of the Twin Lakes Family YMCA regarding their 
preference of new locations and facility features.   

 
Please note these are the number of interviews completed, not attempted. Call 
backs will be made until the desired number of interviews is completed.  Quota 
systems are in place by census tract level to ensure the makeup of each sample 
mirrors that of the total population. This also ensures all interviews are made within 
specific geographic boundaries, that is, only in the service area of the new YMCA.  
Interviews will be conducted with computer assistance, throughout the day, and 
spreading over both weekdays and weekends.  Cell phone only households will also 
be targeted and incorporated in the total number of households.  



 

FourSquare Research, Inc. 7 

 
Data Collection, Analysis, Interpretation and Presentation 
 
Step 7 The Consultant will collect, tabulate and analyze all findings. 

 
Step 8 The Consultant will deliver the initial findings via conference call with the strategic 

planning team and discuss the presentation of the final report. 
 
Step 9 The Consultant will present the written final report in person. The report will include 

an executive summary and answer the questions set forth in this proposal, including: 

 the forecasted number of households that will join the new YMCA recreation 
center, with the consideration of a new Georgetown YMCA and all existing YMCA 
branches in the area 

 anticipated revenue generated from annual new memberships 

 specific recommendations for facility developments 

 specific suggestions for facility development, programing, and pricing strategies. 
 
This process will provide findings with a 95% confidence level and a statistical error of plus or 
minus 4.0%.  
 
The sample size of 600 is recommended for non‐YMCA households. It allows the statistical error 
of the results to stay below the national average penetration of a full facility YMCA, which is 
about 4.5%, thus further ensure the validity of the findings.  
 
Please note that the survey instrument is intellectual property owned by FourSquare Research 
and as such cannot be distributed outside the company under any circumstances. However, the 
YMCA has full ownership of the study findings and the final report and can choose to circulate it 
as desired. 



 

FourSquare Research, Inc. 8 

WHY CHOOSE FOURSQUARE RESEARCH? 
 

 We’re accurate – We honor the laws of statistics, market research, and business 
planning. Because our methodology employs both quantitative and qualitative 
research, there is no guesswork involved. 

 We’re professional and do all the work ourselves – Our in‐house staff completes all 
aspects of the study; we use no subcontractors or outsourced call centers, giving us 
total control over the entire process and ensuring the utmost quality. 

 We understand nonprofits – We have unparalleled expertise in working with 
nonprofit organizations; our staff has over 50 years combined nonprofit experience. 
We understand the unique challenges facing nonprofits and are able to help interpret 
study results and provide specific recommendations on programming, pricing, facility 
size and key features required for optimal growth. 

 We’re reliable – Our research findings and strategic recommendations have withstood 
the test of time. Our clients have invested over a billion dollars based on our 
recommendations: not one client has ever reported our findings in error.  

 We’re the most experienced – Having conducted over 700 studies for YMCAs 
nationwide, we have more experience with this type of research than any other 
market research team in the nation.  

 We’re unbiased – We specialize in market feasibility studies for nonprofits and by 
choice, do not provide any other services such as fund raising studies, marketing 
campaign implementation, and computer services. This allows us to provide unbiased 
interpretation of the data, regardless of good or bad news, and avoid any potential 
conflict of interest. 



 

FourSquare Research, Inc. 9 

SCHEDULE  
 
Typically, this type of project takes two to three months to complete.  We can start a project 
typically within 2‐3 weeks of approval.  Please see the Appendix A for a proposed 
implementation timeline. 

COSTS 
 
The total cost for the study will be $24,000 in professional fees and $2,000 in out‐of‐pocket 
expenses.  
 
In addition to items outlined in the Scope of Work, the cost also includes the following: 
 

 current and projected population trends and households characteristics by census tract 

 current membership analysis by census tract 

 ten (10) bound copies of the final report, as well as an Adobe Acrobat file of the report  

 necessary follow‐up analysis and phone consultations after the final report is delivered.  
 
In accordance with our payment procedure, 50% of the fee and expenses are due at the 
inception of the project. Another 25% is due upon delivery of initial findings. The remaining 
25% will be billed in the final invoice. Payment is due upon receipt of invoice. A 1% per month 
finance charge is added to overdue accounts. 
 
Approved by 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________     _______________________ 
YMCA of Greater Williamson County   Date 
 
 
By signing, this document will serve as the contract for both parties.  



 

FourSquare Research, Inc. 10 

APPENDIX A: PROPOSED IMPLEMENTATION TIMELINE 
 
The following table shows the proposed timeline of each step as outlined in the proposal, starting the project early October.  
 

Step  Tasks  Client Involvement 
Data Needed from 

Client 
Proposed Time

Fees & 
Expenses 

1  Secondary research  Planning Committee  Project Summary 

2 weeks  50%  
2  Schedule startup focus groups 

Invite and schedule focus group with 
YMCA representatives, community 
leaders and any potential partners 

None 

3 

Official startup visit &  
focus groups 

(face‐to‐face meeting) 

Planning Committee and 

 focus group participants 
None  Early October   

4  Survey design 
Provide program prices and other 
related details for survey design 

Program prices  2 weeks   

5 
Survey review meeting  

(via conference call) 

Planning Committee reviews  
and approves the survey 

questionnaire and survey area 
None  Late October   

6 
600 + 200 

telephone interviews 
None  None  2 weeks   

7  Data tally and analysis  None  None  1 week   

8 
Initial findings via  
conference call 

Planning Committee  None  Early December 25%  

9 
Final report 

(face‐to‐face meeting) 

Planning Committee, focus  
group participants, and other 

community leaders 
None  Late December  25%  



 

FourSquare Research, Inc. 11 

APPENDIX B : COMPANY BACKGROUND & LEADERSHIP 
 
FourSquare Research, Inc. was established in March 2007 by the team at the former Winfield 
Consulting Group. It works with nonprofits exclusively (100%).  Located in Atlanta, GA, the 
FourSquare Research team has over 20 years of experience working with YMCAs and other 
nonprofit organizations nationwide.  
 
Currently the company has six active projects.  Over the years, FourSquare Research team has 
worked with over 700 YMCAs.  
 
The following is a biography of principal owner/managing partner, Li Li, who would be the lead 
consultant and take overall responsibility for your project.  
 
Li Li, Managing Partner 
 
As Managing Partner for FourSquare Research, Inc. Li Li is responsible for project direction, 
client relations, and business development. 
 
With more than 15 years’ experience in market research and business planning for nonprofit 
organizations, Li Li has extensive hands‐on experience and a wealth of knowledge concerning 
nonprofits. In her previous role as Senior Vice President at The Winfield Consulting Group, she 
led and directed over 350 projects from start to finish and has worked on over 550 studies for 
nonprofit organizations nationwide.  
 
Li Li earned her M.A. in Market Research and Mass Communications from the University of 
Georgia and a B.A in Law from Fudan University in Shanghai, China. With her education and 
experience, Li Li brings a unique perspective to her work. 
 



 

FourSquare Research, Inc. 12 

APPENDIX C : KEY CONTACT & REFERENCE  
 
Key contact of the company is as follows: 
 
Li Li, Managing Partner 
FourSquare Research 
3577 Chamblee Tucker Road, Suite A225 
Atlanta, GA 30341 
(404) 888‐0530 
lili@foursquareresearch.com 
 
The following list includes names of CEOs from YMCA associations we have completed similar 
studies in recent years.  
 
Tony Shuman 
President/Chief Executive Officer, YMCA of Metropolitan Fort Worth 
512 Lamar St, Suite 400 
Fort Worth, TX 76102‐3717 
Tel: (817) 335‐9622 
Multiple studies for existing and new facilities 
 
Joe Bueno 
Senior Vice President of Corporate Development, YMCA of Greater San Antonio 
3233 N. St. Mary's 
San Antonio TX 78212 
Tel: (210) 246‐9654 
Multiple studies for existing and new facilities 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
Jeff Andresen, President/CEO 
YMCA of Greater Williamson County 
P.O. Box 819 
Round Rock, TX  78680 
 
Re: Letter of Intent to participate with the YMCA of Greater Williamson County to Investigate 
and potentially develop a future YMCA facility in Leander, Texas. 
 
Dear Mr. Andresen, 
 
It is the intent of the City of Leander to actively participate in a committee with the YMCA of 
Greater Williamson County and potentially other community representatives, to develop a 
YMCA in Leander, Texas.  This committee will focus on the following key areas: 
 The City of Leander and the YMCA will participate and equally underwrite the cost of 

the market research (see attachment). 
 Identify and secure, at the City of Leander’s expense, a site for the future YMCA.  The 

site needs to be validated by the market research results. 
 The YMCA will provide the facility specification to the City for the future YMCA. 
 The City will determine and secure the funding source to construct the future YMCA. 
 Based on the market research results, the YMCA will provide an operating pro forma 

that will reflect the following: 
 If the market research confirms less than 4,000 net units.  (net units count 

considers cannibalization from Cedar Park Branch).  The pro forma will require 
annual operating subsidiary from the City. 

 If the market research confirms over 4,000 net units.  The operating pro forma 
will not require subsidiary from the City and may allow for the YMCA to share in 
the long term capital maintenance cost of the facility. 

 Identify potential capital funding partner(s), operating partner(s) and or sub-
tenants that can help promote and provide community services offered at the 
future YMCA.  It is the intent of this effort that a potential partner will help 
underwrite the cost of construction and operations. 

 Develop a management agreement with the YMCA for the operation of the future 
Leander YMCA. 

 Develop a fixtures, furniture and equipment list for the future Leander YMCA 
which would be funded by the YMCA. 

 Develop a potential timeline for the construction of the future Leander YMCA. 



 

 
The City of Leander will designate the representatives that will participate in these efforts as a 
member(s) of this committee. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Mayor of the City of Leander 
 
cc:  Leander City Council 
 YMCA of Greater Williamson County Board of Directors  



AGENDA ITEM # 31 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 17, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Planning & Zoning Commission Progress Report for October 2014 

through September 2015. 
 
Background: The City Charter requires the Planning & Zoning Commission to 

submit a progress report to  the City Council on an annual basis.   
 
Origination: City of Leander Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Approval 
 
Attachments: 1. Annual Progress Report 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  09/08/2015  
 Assistant City Manager   
 
  



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G  &  Z O N I N G  C O M M I S S I O N  

A N N U A L  P R O G R E S S  R E P O R T  
 

O C T O B E R  2 0 1 4  –  S E P T E M B E R  2 0 1 5  
 
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission is assigned the duties and powers by Section 14.108, 
number 10 of the Leander City Code to “Submit each September a progress report to the City 
Council summarizing its activities, major accomplishments for the past year and a proposed 
work program for the coming year.  The report shall contain for the year the attendance record 
of all members and the identity of commission officers.” 
 
SPECIAL PROJECTS / TRAINING 

 
Special Projects 

Parkland dedication - the Commission met with the Parks Board and discussed 
increasing the fee-in-lieu of parkland and the recreation improvement fee.  This 
recommendation was approved by City Council and took effect February 19, 2015. 
 
Garage placement standards - the Commission met with City Council and received 
feedback from homebuilders and developers regarding changes to the City's standards for 
the placement and percentage of frontage for residential, street facing garages.  
Modifications to the zoning ordinance regarding garage placement were recommended by 
P&Z and approved by Council on March 19, 2015. 
 
Comprehensive Plan update - the Commission participated in joint meetings with the 
Council and Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee to provide input and feedback on 
the update to the Comprehensive Plan.  The Plan is scheduled for public hearing before 
P&Z on September 24, 2015. 

 
Special Meetings 

11/13/2014 - Joint meeting with the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board to discuss 
parkland dedication and fees 
 
2/19/2015 - Joint work session with City Council to discuss garage placement 
 
6/4/2015 - Joint work session with City Council and Comprehensive Plan Steering 
Committee to discuss the update to the comprehensive plan 
 
8/20/2015 - Joint work session with City Council to discuss Council priorities, PUD 
criteria, rear setbacks in SFC and SFL, and the comprehensive plan update 

 

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

Training 
Commissioners Anderson and Allen attended the 2014 State of Texas Planning 
Conference hosted by the American Planning Association in Frisco, Texas 
 
Commissioners Hines and Schwendenmann completed their open government training. 

 
ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS 
 

• Composite Zoning Ordinance: 
1. Add Heritage Tree definitions. 
2. Modify Single-Family Use Components regarding garages. 
3. Update the Use and Site Components regarding outdoor animal boarding. 
4. Update the Landscape Requirements. 
5. Update the setback table and exhibits. 
6. Modify the requirements for drainage and detention facilities. 
7. Update the masonry wall requirements. 
8. Add Minor Site Development Permit provisions. 
9. Update the site development standards regarding utility line requirements. 

 
• Subdivision Ordinance: 

1. Add Heritage Tree definitions and provisions. 
2. Require a secondary point of access as currently required by the Fire Code. 
3. Modify the Water Utility Improvements Section to change the requirements 

associated with fire hydrants and fire flows. 
4. Grant the City Manager the authority to sign easements granted outside of the 

subdivision process. 
5. Modify utility requirements. 

 
• Comprehensive Plan: 

1. Amended the Transportation Plan: 
a. Remove all connector roadways located within the TOD and replace with 

collector roads. 
b. Change alignment of South Brook Drive to match the Oak Creek 

Preliminary Plat. 
c. Add collectors approved as part of the Red Oak Valley, Bryson, Palmera 

Ridge, and Oak Creek Subdivisions. 
d. Change alignment of Hero Way. 
e. Add trails including Blockhouse Creek, Boulders at Crystal Falls, Crystal 

Falls West PEC, and Halsey Drive Trail. 
f. Add W Woodview Drive collector. 
g. Update the corresponding matrix. 

 
• Fee Schedule: 

1. Updated TOD Fees 
2. Increased Parkland Dedication Fee in Lieu and Recreation Improvements Fees  

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

a. Payment of Fee In-Lieu of Parkland Dedication: Increase the payment in-lieu 
fee from $825 to $1,050 per dwelling unit. 

b. Park Improvements: Increase the park improvement fee from $350 to $400 
per dwelling unit. 

 
REVIEW ACTIVITY - OCTOBER 2014 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2015 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the following: 

Concept Plans:           9               Preliminary Plats:      13           
Final Plats:       38            Short Form Plats:      15          
Amended Final Plats   6 Zoning Cases:       28         
TOD Zoning Cases:    1           Special Use Permits:     1          
Ordinance Amendments:   6 Street Vacate:     2 
Plat Vacate:    2 Subdivision Variances:   3 
Zoning Variances:   1 Comprehensive Plan Amendment:  7 
  

CASES WHERE CITY COUNCIL ACTION DIFFERED FROM P&Z 
 

1. Zoning Case 14-TOD-Z-026:  
• Zoning Request: Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning of a 

33.67 acre portion tract of land, AW0134 – Cochran, C. Sur., more or less, 
generally located 850 feet from the northwest corner of the intersection of W. San 
Gabriel Pkwy and US 183, WCAD Parcel# R031694. Currently, the property is 
zoned PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) and 
the applicant is proposing an amendment to the PUD, Leander, Williamson 
County, Texas. Applicant: Bob Wunsch. 
 

• P&Z action: Commissioner Wixon moved to approve with staff 
recommendation, Vice Chairman Stephenson seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously 

 
• City Council action: Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to 

approve with the requirement that screening be provided adjacent to the 
concrete plant and against the first two houses on 183.  Second  
by Mayor Pro Tem  Garcia.   Motion passes, 4 to 2 with Council Members 
Siebold and Abruzzese voting against. 
 

2. Zoning Case 14-Z-027: 
• Zoning Request: Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning of a 

5.69 acre tract of land, more or less, located at 1001 Horizon Park Blvd, WCAD 
Parcel# R036572. Currently, the property is zoned TF-2-B (Two-Family) and the 
applicant is proposing to zone the property PUD (Planned Unit Development), 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas. 
 

• P&Z action: Vice Chairman Stephenson moved to approve the zoning 
request with the following conditions: 

3 
 



Attachment # 1                 

a. No neon signs are permitted (no exposed bulbs).  Only back lighting 
can be utilized on the sign. 

b. The project shall comply with the Type B Architectural Component 
with the condition that the masonry requirement may be reduced to 
40%. 
 
Commissioner Anderson seconded the motion. 

 
Commissioner Wixon moved to amend the motion to include the 
following: 
 

c. Porte Cocheres are not permitted, each unit will be required to have an 
enclosed garage. 

 
Commissioner Sokol seconded the motion.  Motion for the amendment 
passed with a four to two vote (Vice Chairman Stephenson and 
Chairman Seiler opposing). 

 
The main motion as amended passed with a four to two vote (Vice 
Chairman Stephenson and Chairman Seiler opposing). 
 

• City Council action: Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve 
as submitted except with no exposed neon.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem 
Garcia. Motion passes, 4 to 2 with Mayor Fielder and Council Member 
Dishongh voting against. 
 
Neon sign is permitted with no exposed bulbs. 
 
Garages are not required for this project. Units will have an attached porte-
cochere with an enclosed 4X8 storage area (minimum) to the rear of the porte-
cochere with driveways at least 18 feet long and 9 feet wide. Each porte-cochere 
may be flush or behind the primary façade. Each porte-cochere shall include 2 
screening walls which conform to the masonry requirements stated above. The 
roofing on the porte-cochere shall match the roofing on the home. 

 
3. Zoning Case 14-Z-028: 

• Zoning Request: Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning of a 
18.00 acre tract of land, more or less, generally located at the northwest corner 
of the intersection of Old 2243 W. and N. Bagdad Rd. and the northwest corner 
of the intersection of Northcreek Dr. and N. Bagdad Rd, WCAD Parcels 
#R304545 and #R304546. Currently the property is zoned LC-2-B (Local 
Commercial), and the applicant is proposing to the zone the property GC-3-C 
(General Commercial) and MF-2-A (Multi-Family), Leander, Williamson 
County, Texas. Applicant: Bruce Nakfoor on behalf of Firstmark Credit Union. 
 

4 
 



Attachment # 1                 

• P&Z action: Commissioner Wixon moved to approve with staff 
recommendation of the requested MF-2-A (Multi-Family) and GC-3-C (General 
Commercial) districts, but leaving the southern and western most 410’ portion 
of the property as LC-2-B (Local Commercial) and adding the following 
conditions: 

a. The building setback for the MF-2-A development shall be 30 feet from 
the single-family residential properties.  The building height may increase 
one foot for every additional foot the building is setback from the 30’ 
setback. 

b. The non-residential wall requirements shall apply.  A six foot tall masonry 
wall shall be required between the MF-2-A development and the single-
family residential properties.   

 
Vice Chairman Stephenson seconded the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

• City Council action: Motion made by Mayor Fielder to approve with the 
following conditions: 

a. The buildings associated with the MF-2-A development shall be limited to 
two stories within 50 feet of the north and west property lines.   

b. The non-residential wall requirements shall apply.  A six foot tall masonry 
wall shall be required between the MF-2-A development and the single-
family residential properties.   

c. The southern and western most 410’ portion of the property shall 
be rezoned to LC-2-B (Local Commercial) 

   
     Second by Council Member Navarrette. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

4. Zoning Case 15-Z-001:  
• Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning of a portion of a tract 

of land, for 1.89 acres more or less, generally located to the northwest of the 
intersection of South Bagdad Road and Marsala Circle, WCAD Parcel 
R430194. Currently, the property is zoned LO-2-B (Local Office) and the 
applicant is proposing to zone the property MF-2-B (Multi-Family), Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas. Applicant: Ken Liem on behalf of Emmet J. and 
Sally Hawkes. 

 
• P&Z action: Commissioner Saenz moved to approve with staff recommendation 

of approval of the MF-2-B (Multi-Family) zoning district, Commissioner 
Anderson seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
• City Council action: Motion made by Council Member Dishongh to 

deny the zoning change.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette. Motion 
passes to deny, all voting “aye”. 

 
5. Zoning Case: 15-Z-007 

5 
 



Attachment # 1                 

• Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning of 1.7 acres 
more or less of Lot 1, Block A of the Village Subdivision, located at 801 
Apache Trail, WCAD ID #R487426. Currently, the property is zoned 
GC-3-C (General Commercial) the applicant is proposing to zone the 
property to MF-2-B (Multi-Family), Leander, Williamson County, 
Texas. Applicant: Josh Becker on behalf of Mike O’Dell. 
 

• P&Z action: Commissioner Wixson moved to approve the requested MF-2-B 
(Multi-Family) district with staff recommendation and the following conditions: 
a. A six (6’) foot masonry wall is required to be constructed on the east property 

line adjacent to the single-family development. 
b.Access to the site will be provided by the existing driveway, any other 

driveways will be for emergency access only. 
c.    No parking modules, drive aisles, driveways, garages or similar facilities are 

permitted between the building(s) closest to the street(s) and the street 
frontage. 

 
Commissioner  Saenz seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

• City Council action: Motion made by Council Member Siebold to deny 
the request.  Second by Council Member Lynch.  Motion passes, all voting 
“aye” 
 

6. Zoning Case: 15-Z-006 
• Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning of 11.065 acres 

more or less, generally located to the southwest corner of Crystal Falls 
Pkwy and Lakeline Blvd, WCAD ID R484293, R517839, and R096984; 
TCAD ID 823336.  Currently, the property is zoned SFT-2-A (Single 
Family Townhouse).  The applicant is proposing to zone the property to 
PUD (Planned Unit Development), Leander, Williamson County, Texas. 
Applicant: Mark Baker on behalf of Lookout Partners LP (Mike Siefert). 

 
• P&Z action: Commissioner Hines moved to approve with staff recommendation 

with the condition that sidewalks, a minimum of four (4’) foot wide and 
constructed of crushed/decomposed granite or concrete, are constructed 
throughout the neighborhood and connecting to Local Rebel.  Commissioner 
Schwendenmann seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
• City Council action: Motion made by Council Member Abruzzese to approve 

with P & Z recommendations of Sidewalks which will be a minimum of four (4’) 
foot wide and constructed of crushed/decomposed  
 granite or concrete, are constructed throughout the neighborhood and connecting 
to Local Rebel, and also that this will be a gated community and structures will 
have an earth tone color palate and no more than 8 units can be attached and if 
fencing is proposed it must be constructed of wrought iron or decorative tubular 
metal.  Second by Council Member Seiler.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

6 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 
7. Zoning & Subdivision Case: 14-Z014; 14-CP-007; & 14-PP-008 

• Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning and approval of the 
Woodview Village Concept Plan and Preliminary Plat of 20.679 acres more or 
less, generally located to the southwest of the intersection of East Woodview 
Drive and Raider Way, WCAD ID #R031251. Currently, the property is zoned 
Interim SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban) and Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family 
Rural).  The applicant is proposing to zone the property to PUD (Planned Unit 
Development), Leander, Williamson County, Texas. Applicant: Darren Webber 
on behalf of DeWette Partners, LTD.  
 
• P&Z action: Commissioner Wixson moved to approve with staff 

recommendation with the following conditions: 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission unanimously recommended approval at 
the July 09, 2015 meeting with the following conditions: 
a. Strike the last sentence of Item 19 in Exhibit A that states “All home 

construction will meet Type A architectural requirements and garage 
ordinance standards in effect as of the date of adoption hereof.” 

b. Restrictive covenants will be submitted to City Staff for review prior to 
recordation. 

c. A required mix of elevations and floor plans will be required similar to the 
requirements of Article III, Section 5 of the Composite Zoning Ordinance. 

 
Commissioner Hines seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

• City Council action: Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette  to deny.  
Second by Council Member Shepherd. 
 
Motion passes to deny with Council Member Stephenson voting against the 
denial. 
 

8. Zoning Case 14-Z-034 
• Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning of several parcels of 

land generally located to the northeast of the intersection of CR 279 and 
Collaborative Way, to the north of the Savanna Ranch Subdivision; 262 acres 
more or less; WCAD Parcels R031696, R031697, R031695 and R392814.  
Currently, the property is zoned Interim SFR-1-B (Single Family Rural).  The 
applicant is proposing to zone the property to PUD (Planned Unit Development), 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas. Applicant: David Singleton on behalf of 
Deerbrooke Land Austin, LLC.  
 

• P&Z action: Commissioner Hines moved to approve with staff recommendation, 
Commissioner Anderson seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 

7 
 



Attachment # 1                 

• City Council action: Motion made by Mayor Fielder to approve to 
architectural standard “A”, the trail system to be put in place, parkland to  
be above and beyond the requirement and roundabouts be placed for 
traffic control.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette.   

 
Council Member Shepherd asked to modify the motion to include a 10ft. 
setback if property backs up to a greenbelt otherwise 15 ft. setback.  
Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette. 

       
    Motion passes unanimously with all modifications listed. 
 

9. Zoning Case: 15-Z-014 
• Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning of two parcels of land 

located at 18130 Ronald W. Reagan Blvd; 58.675 acres more or less; WCAD 
Parcels R489942 and R021710.  Currently, the property is zoned Interim SFR-1-B 
(Single Family Rural).  The applicant is proposing to zone the property to SFC-2-
A (Single Family Compact) and LC-2-A (Local Commercial), Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas. Applicant: Jones & Carter, Inc on behalf of Pamela 
Christianson. 

 
• P&Z action: Commissioner Hines moved to approve with staff recommendation,   

Commissioner Wixson seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

• City Council action: Motion made by Mayor Fielder to deny the request.  
Second by Council Member Seiler. 

 
  Motion passes to deny, all voting “aye”  
 
 
PROPOSED WORK PROGRAM 
 
The proposed work program for 2015-16 includes implementation of the updated comprehensive 
plan including necessary amendments to the City's development ordinances.  In addition, P&Z 
will oversee an annual update to the zoning, subdivision and sign ordinances to address issues 
identified by staff, applicants and citizens during the normal course of applying the ordinances. 
 
The Commission will also work with City Council to review and possibly revise the City's 
policies related to the development of the pedestrian and bicycle network. 
 
The Commission will also continue to hold joint work sessions with City Council at least twice 
annually.  Commissioners Hines and Schwendenmann will attend the 2015 State of Texas 
Planning Conference hosted by the American Planning Association in Galveston, Texas. 
 
Staff will also work with the Commission to schedule a retreat and training date in the 2015-16 
fiscal year. 
 

8 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 
 
ATTENDANCE RECORD 
 
Total absences from October 2014 through September 2015 were as follows: 
 

Name/Position Number of Absences 
Christiane Schwendenmann, Place 1: 
(term began May 2015) 

                                                        
2 

Joel Wixon, Place 2: 3 
Jason Anderson, Place 3: 0 
Sid Sokol, Chairman, Place 4: 1 
Richard Allen, Vice Chairman, Place 5: 4 
Betty Saenz, Place 6: 5 
Marshall Hines, Place 7: 
(term began May 2015) 

1 

 
Total regular meetings for the year – 23 
 

9 
 





AGENDA ITEM # 32 

 
Executive Summary 

September 17, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  Discuss Policy for re-appointments to Boards & Commissions   

 
Background:  The City does not currently have a policy for re-appointment of Members 

to Boards & Commissions.  Citizens wishing to serve on a Board of Commission submit 

an application and are interviewed by the Board Selection Committee.  The Board 

Selection Committee will then make recommendations to the Council.  

  

Origination:   

 
Recommendation:  N/A 

 
Attachments:  None   

 
Prepared by:  Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 


	Agenda
	Item # 7
	Item # 8
	Item # 9
	Item # 10
	Item # 11
	Item # 12
	Item # 13
	Item # 14
	Item # 15
	Item # 16
	Item # 17
	Item # 18
	Item # 19
	Item # 20
	Item # 21
	Item # 22
	Item # 23
	Item # 24
	Item # 25
	Item # 26
	Item # 27
	Item # 28
	Item # 29
	Item # 30
	Item # 31
	Item # 32



